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May 10, 2012

Susan Crotts

Centralized Contracting Division Manager
City of Greensboro

P.O. Bo 3136

Greensboro, NC 27402-3136

RE: RFP #08-12 Municipal Solid Waste Management Services
Ms. Crotts:

On behalf of Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc., enclosed is our proposal offering the City
of Greensboro our qualified response to RFP # 08-12 Municipal Solid Waste Management Services,
solicitation to services. Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc. submits its proposal for
transportation and disposal of solid waste from the City of Greensboro Transfer Station.

This response to the solicitation will be valid for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days and will
become the property of the City of Greensboro. We have, as requested, provided a proposal that
follows the guidelines of the City’s published “Request for Proposals”.

As an established part of the North Carolina solid waste infrastructure, as well as a clear leader in
environmental compliance nationwide, we offer both the local roots and financial strength that
make Waste Connections the premier company to partner with as the solution to your iong term
solid waste plan. Included for your review, future consideration and planning for the City of
Greensboro is documentation on our alternative energy partner, Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc.

Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. currently operates a research facility in Durham, NC. Fulcrum is
scheduled to open the first “Waste to Energy” facility in Reno, Nevada in 2013. While this new
facility with state of the art technology is scheduled to begin in 2013, the opportunity to implement
this disposal option for the City of Greensboro could occur in eighteen (18) to twenty four (24)
months from actual receipt of permits. Waste Connections is committed to the partnership with
Fulcrum BioEnergy to ensure future disposal options.

Waste Connections is one of the nation’s leading providers of solid waste and recycling services.
We serve municipal, county, commercial, industrial and residential customers throughout the
United States. We serve approximately two million residential, commercial and industrial
customers from a network of operations in 29 states. Our differentiated strategy within the solid
waste industry targets markets that have strong demographic growth trends and where competitive
barriers exist.

The general management philosophy of Waste Connections, Inc. includes concern for all of our
employees including their health, safety, respect and growth. It also includes a very visible
commitment to the environment and providing both protection and restoration and the promise of a
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safe and cleaner world for future generations. It means that we will work diligently to provide a
strong and consistent return on our shareholders investment to have our customers desire to
continue to recognize Waste Connections as a leader in the solid waste industry and serve them far
beyond the initial term of the agreement. At Waste Connections, we make every effort to
strengthen the relationships with customers and are always working to improve and provide
service excellence. We believe in seeking and finding individuals that we are able to empower and
develop to meet their goals and attract the best talent available - regardless of the job function -
and building upon that relationship to continuously build employee retention. We believe in
keeping “Safety First” at Waste Connections and this is an everyday concern and commitment for
all of our employees and customers. Customer satisfaction and their retention go hand in hand in
every phase of the services that Waste Connections provides.

Although our focus is decidedly local, it is our policy to custom-tailor our services to the areas we
serve to ensure, safe, timely effective response to all customer needs. In a time of change, we want
you to rest assured that we will serve you at the same level to which you are accustomed, but to
raise this level where and when we can through introductions of new programs, services and
technologies that draw upon our resources nationwide which will begin with the introduction of
Fulcrum BioEnergy (enclosed documentation). And we will remain acutely attuned to customer
responses, working diligently to gain your trust and confidence while we strive to build a
partnership with the City of Greensboro to satisfy your solid waste collection disposal.

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your request “Municipal Solid Waste Management
Services” for the City of Greensboro. We have assumed supplying all services, and labor for these
services, which is reflected in the proposal rates included in Waste Connection of NC, Inc.
response in the enclosed RFP package.

We are excited to build a long-term citizenry of your great community and look forward to becoming
a long-term partner with the City of Greensboro. Please know we look forward to hearing from you
and assure you of our willingness to meet, discuss, talk, negotiate and finalize an agreeable
Contract for providing services. Waste Connections want your business and the opportunity and
privilege of providing you with the highest possible level of service excellence and satisfaction.

Respectfully submitted,

Tty ) !

Timothy J. Fadul
Division Vice-President
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UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT
OF THE SOLE DIRECTOR OF
WASTE CONNECTIONS OF NORTH CAROLINA, INC,

The undersigned, being the sole director of Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby consents to the following actions and adopts the
following resolution pursuant to the Bylaws of this corporation:

BE 1T RESOLVED that Tim Fadul, Division Vice President of the
Company, be, and he hereby is, authorized 1o sign and submit the Company’s
proposals, and execute by on behalf of the Company any and all agrcements,
instruments, documents or papers, as he may deem reasonably appropriatc or
necessary, pertaining to that certain Request For Proposals # 08-12 For Municipal
Solid Waste Management Services For The City Of Greensboro, NC, and that any
such action taken to date involving the above bid is hereby ratified and approved.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned solc director of Waste Connections of North
Carolina, Inc. has duly executed this Written Cum-..nl on the d.t&aul Im[ll opposite his name.

A,/J /

)
May 7, 2012 x’\ / 2/

Ronald J. Mzuy!’sm}(ﬁ

{00048148.00C.}
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Invitation to Tour Plant

Timothy J. Fadul

Waste Connections of NC, Inc.
5516 Rozzelles Ferry Road
Charlotte, NC 28214

Dear Mayor and Council Members of the City of Greensboro

Allow me the pleasure of inviting you to come and tour the Fulcrum BioEnergy Research plant on [DATE
AND TIME, to be determined]. 'm certain you will be interested in seeing the recycling process of solid
waste materials. This process could be the future disposal option for the City of Greensboro.
Furthermore, I’'m anxious to show you the equipment used for this technology.

| am sure you will be pleased with the tour and | am anxious to show you around.

Best regards,

Timothy Fadul
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Chapter 2 Statement of Organization




RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 1
PROPOSER’S STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION

1. Full Name of Business Concern (Proposer):
Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc.

Principal Business Address:
5516 Rozzelles Ferry Road, Charlotte, NC 28214
2. Principal Contact Person(s) and Phone Numbers:

Timothy J. Fadul {Waste Connections) Ronnie Petty 336-736-2104 (A1 Sandrock)
704-398-4162 (office) Gene Petty 336-708-1602 (A1 Sandrock)
704-299-7273 Mike Mcfeely 336-301-8411

3. Form of Business Concern (Corporation, Partnership, Joint Venture, Other):

Corporation-Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc.
C-Corporation —A1 Sandrock, Inc.

4. Provide names of partners or officers as appropriate and indicate if the individual has the authority to sign on
behalf of proposer. Provide proof of the ability of the individuals so hamed to legally bind the proposer.

Name Address Title
1. Timothy J Fadul (WC) 5516 Rozzelles Ferry Rd, Charlotte, NC 28214 Division Vice-President

2. Ronald E. Petty Sr./Betty B Petty 3011 County Clare Rd., Greensboro. NC President/Secretary
3. Ronald E. Petty Ill 5045 Groometown Rd., Greensboro, NC Vice President

If a corporation, in what state incorporated: Delaware (WC)  North Carolina (A1 Sandrock)

Date Incorporated: February 26, 2009 (WC) November 17, 1987 (A1Sandrock)
Month Day Year

If a Joint Venture or Partnership, date of agreement: N/A

Federal Employer ldentification Number. 26-4443059 (WC)  56-1588648 (A1 Sandrock)

5. List all fims participating in this project (including the prime contractor, subcontractors, operators, major
equipment suppliers, etc., if any):

Name Address Phone

1. Waste Connections of NC, Inc. 5516 Rozzelles Ferry Rd, Charlotte, NC 28214 704-398-4162
2. A1 Sandrock Inc. 2091 Bishop Road, Greensboro. NC 27406  336-855-8195

3. John Tucker & Assoc. 611 Aiken Prkwy , Fuquay Varina, NC  336-855-8195

4. Linder Industrial Equipment 4817 Corlett Place, Greensboro, NC 336-451-4380

City of Greensboro Page 4-2
MSW Management Services April 11, 2012



RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 1
PROPOSER’S STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION

(CONTINUED)

6. Outline specific areas of responsibility for each firm listed in Question 5.

1. WC-Overall management of Contract and Disposal Facility

2. A1 Sandrock Inc. — Transfer Station day to day operations, loading, transportation to landfill
3. John Tucker & Assoc. Provide expertise in landfill/transfer station compliance

4. Linder Industrial Equipment — Major Equipment Supplier

7. Summarize the provisions of any agreement between the parties which assigns legal or financial liabilities or
responsibilities.
Not Applicable

8. If any of the responding firm(s) are a partially or fully-owned subsidiary of another firm, or share common
ownership with another firm, please identify the related firms and describe the relationships.
Not Applicable

City of Greensboro Page 4-3
MSW Management Services April 11, 2012
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Our Company,

Waste Connections is an integrated solid waste services company that provides solid waste collection,
transfer, disposal and recycling services in mostly secondary markets in the Western and Southern U.S.
We serve approximately two million residential, commercial and industrial customers from a network of
operations in 30 states: Alabama, Arizona, California, Colorado, Idaho, Illinois, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Mexico,
New York North Carolina, Oklahoma, Oregon, Rhode Island, South Carolina, South Dakota, Tennessee,
Texas, Utah, Washington and Wyoming. As of December 31, 2009, we owned or operated a network of
142 solid waste collection operations, 57 transfer stations, 37 recycling operations and 45 active landfills.
In addition, we provided intermodal services for the rail haul movement of cargo and solid waste containers
in the Pacific Northwest through a network of six intermodal facilities.

Waste Connections, founded in 1997, has become the third largest solid waste services provider in the
U.S., and the premier provider of solid waste services in secondary markets in the Western and Southern
U.S. Our differentiated strategy within the solid waste industry targets markets that have strong
demographic growth trends and where competitive barriers exist. Over 50% of our revenues are derived
from markets where we have long-term exclusive arrangements to provide our services.

Waste Connections is a publicly traded company whose common stock is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (ticker: WCN; equity market cap approximately $2.5 billion). We maintain one of the strongest
balance sheets in our sector, and our credit is rated investment grade by S&P.

Our People

Our approach to business starts with our Statement of Values: our Purpose, Operating Values, and

Vision of the Future. We also have adopted the principles of Servant Leadership which flips the “old
school” hierarchical managerial style on its head. Our managers are trained to help their employees
become more successful at work and in their lives. Servant Leadership holds management accountable to
employees, rather than solely holding employees accountable. Our managers are measured not only by the
financial performance of their operations, but also by the feedback of their employees on management’s
embodiment of these principles. Benefits realized from the adoption of Servant Leadership include an
increase in our employees’ satisfaction with their jobs, reduced employee turnover and a decrease in
accident frequency.

Our culture embraces accountability to attain superior customer service and results. We accept that our
success is also measured by the continuing positive impact we have within our local communities. Our
employees volunteer their time at hundreds of local organizations, and we back their efforts with financial
support for many of these organization. Plus, we cap off each year with a Christmas bike drive building
thousands of bicycles company-wide to donate to local charities and military bases for distribution to
deserving youth.

Our Operating Strategy

We seck to avoid highly competitive, large urban markets and instead target markets where we can
provide non-integrated or integrated solid waste services under exclusive arrangements or where we can
operate on an integrated basis while attaining high market share. The key components of our operating
strategy, which are tailored to the competitive and regulatory factors that affect our markets, are as
follows:

Control the Waste Stream. In markets where waste collection services are provided under exclusive
arrangements, or where waste disposal is municipally funded or available at multiple municipal sources, we
believe that controlling the waste stream by providing collection services is often more important to our




profitability and growth than owning or operating landfills. In addition, contracts in some Western U.S.
markets dictate the disposal facility to be used. The large size of many western states increases the cost of
interstate and long haul disposal, heightening the effects of regulations that direct waste disposal, which
may make it more difficult for a landfill to obtain the disposal volume necessary to operate profitably. In
markets with these characteristics, we believe that landfill ownership or vertical integration is not as critical

to our success.

Provide Vertically Integrated Services. In markets where we believe that owning landfills is a strategic
element to a collection operation because of competitive and regulatory factors, we generally focus on
providing integrated services, from collection through disposal of solid waste in landfills that we own or
operate.

Manage on a Decentralized Basis. We manage our operations on a decentralized basis. This places
decision-making authority close to the customer, enabling us to identify and address customers’ needs
quickly in a cost-effective manner. We believe that decentralization provides a low-overhead, highly
efficient operational structure that allows us to expand into geographically contiguous markets and operate
in relatively small communities that larger competitors may not find attractive. We believe that this
structure gives us a strategic competitive advantage, given the relatively rural nature of much of the
Western and Southern U.S., and makes us an attractive buyer too many potential acquisition candidates.

We currently deliver our services from approximately 165 operating locations grouped into three
regions. We manage and evaluate our business on the basis of the regions’ geographic characteristics,
interstate waste flow, revenue base, employee base, regulatory structure and acquisition opportunities.
Each region has a regional vice president and a regional controller, reporting directly to our corporate
management. These regional officers are responsible for operations and accounting in their regions and
supervise their regional staff.

Each operating location has a district or site manager who has autonomous service and decision-

making authority for his or her operations and is responsible for maintaining service quality, promoting
safety, implementing marketing programs and overseeing day-to-day operations, including contract
administration. Local managers also help identify acquisition candidates and are responsible for integrating
acquired businesses into our operations and obtaining the permits and other governmental approvals
required for us to operate.

Implement Operating Standards. We develop company-wide operating standards, which are tailored
for each of our markets based on industry norms and local conditions. We implement cost controls and
employee training and safety procedures and establish a sales and marketing plan for each market. By
internalizing the waste stream of acquired operations, we can further increase operating efficiencies and
improve capital utilization. We use a wide-area information system network, implement financial controls
and consolidate certain accounting, personnel and customer service functions. While regional and district
management operate with a high degree of autonomy, our senior officers monitor regional and district
operations and require adherence to our accounting, purchasing, marketing and internal control policies,
particularly with respect to financial matters. Our executive officers regularly review the performance of
regional officers, district managers and operations. We believe we can improve the profitability of existing
and newly acquired operations by establishing operating standards, closely monitoring performance and
streamlining certain administrative functions.

Our Growth Strategy

We tailor the components of our growth strategy to the markets in which we operate and into which we
hope to expand.

Obtain Additional Exclusive Arrangements. Our operations include market areas where we have
exclusive arrangements, including franchise agreements, municipal contracts and governmental certificates,
under which we are the exclusive service provider for a specified market. These exclusive rights and




contractual arrangements create a barrier to entry that is usually obtained through the acquisition of a
company with such exclusive rights or contractual arrangements or by a competitive bid.

We devote significant resources to securing additional franchise agreements and municipal contracts
through competitive bidding and by acquiring other companies. In bidding for franchises and municipal
contracts and evaluating acquisition candidates holding governmental certificates, our management team
draws on its experience in the waste industry and knowledge of local service areas in existing and target
markets. Our district management and sales and marketing personnel maintain relationships with local
governmental officials within their service areas, maintain, renew and renegotiate existing franchise
agreements and municipal contracts, and secure additional agreements and contracts while targeting
acceptable financial returns. Our sales and marketing personnel also expand our presence into areas
adjacent to or contiguous with our existing markets, and market additional services to existing customers.
We believe our ability to offer comprehensive rail haul disposal services in the Pacific Northwest improves
our competitive position in bidding for such contracts in that region.

Generate Internal Growth. To generate continued internal revenue growth, our district management
and sales and marketing personnel focus on increasing market penetration in our current and adjacent
markets, soliciting new residential, commercial and industrial customers in markets where such customers
have the option to choose a particular waste collection service and marketing upgraded or additional
services (such as compaction or automated collection) to existing customers. We also focus on raising
prices and instituting surcharges, when appropriate, to offset cost increases. Where possible, we intend to
leverage our franchise-based platforms to expand our customer base beyond our exclusive market
territorics. As customers are added in existing markets, our revenue per routed truck increases, which
generally increases our collection efficiencies and profitability. In markets in which we have exclusive
contracts, franchises and certificates, we expect internal volume growth generally to track population and
business growth.

Expand Through Acquisitions. We intend to expand the scope of our operations by continuing to
acquire solid waste companies in new markets and in existing or adjacent markets that are combined with
or “tucked in” to our existing operations. We focus our acquisition efforts on markets that we believe
provide significant growth opportunities for a well-capitalized market entrant and where we can create
economic and operational barriers to entry by new competitors. This focus typically highlights markets in
which we can either: (1) provide waste collection services under franchises, exclusive contracts or other
arrangements; or (2) gain a leading market position and provide vertically integrated collection and
disposal services. We believe that our experienced management, decentralized operating strategy, financial
strength, size and public company status make us an attractive buyer to certain solid waste collection and
disposal acquisition candidates. We have developed an acquisition discipline based on a set of financial,
market and management criteria to evaluate opportunities. Once an acquisition is closed, we seek to
integrate it while minimizing disruption to the ongoing operations of both Waste Connections and the
acquired business.

In new markets, we often use an initial acquisition as an operating base and seek to strengthen the
acquired operation's presence in that market by providing additional services, adding new customers and
making “tuck-in” acquisitions of other solid waste companies in that market or adjacent markets. We
believe that many suitable “tuck-in” acquisition opportunities exist within our current and targeted market
areas that may provide us with opportunities to increase our market share and route density.
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Ronald J. Mittelstaedt
Steven F. Bouck
Darrell W. Chambliss
Worthing F. Jackman
David M. Hall

James M. Little

Eric M. Merrill

David G. Eddie

Eric O. Hansen

Jerri L. Hunt

Scott l. Schreiber
Patrick J. Shea

Richard K. Wojahn

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

President

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing

Senior Vice President — Engineering and Disposal
Senior Vice President — People, Safety and Development
Vice President - Chief Accounting Officer

Vice President - Chief Information Officer

Vice President - Employee Relations

Vice President - Disposal Operations

Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Vice president — Business Development

WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.

Connect with the Future




Ronald J. Mittelstaedt has been CEO and a director of Waste Connections since the
company was formed, and was elected Chairman in January 1998. Mr. Mittelstaedt
also served as president from Waste Connections’ formation through August 2004. Mr.
Mittelstaedt has more than 21 years of experience in the solid waste industry. Mr.
Mittelstaedt holds a B.A. degree in Business Economics with a finance emphasis from
the University of Californian at Santa Barbara.

Steven F. Bouch has been President of Waste Connections since September1, 2004.
From February 1998 to that date, Mr. Bouck served as Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Bouck held various positions with First Analysis Corporation
from 1986 to 1998, focusing on financial services to the environmental industry. Mr.
Bouck holds B.S. and M.S. degrees in Mechanical Engineering from Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute, and an M.B.A. in Finance from the Wharton School.

Darrell W. Chambliss has been Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
of Waste Connections since October 2003. From October 1, 1997 to that date, Mr.
Chambliss served as Executive Vice President — Operations. Mr. Chambliss has more
than 20 years of experience in the solid waste industry. Mr. Chambliss holds a B.S.
degree in Business Administration from the University of Arkansas.

Worthing F. Jackman has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Waste Connections since September 1, 2004. From April 2003 to that date, Mr.
Jackman served as Vice President — Finance and Investor Relations. Mr. Jackman held
various investment banking positions with Alex, Brown & Sons, now Deutsche Bank
Securities, Inc., from 1991 through 2003, including most recently as a Managing
Director within the Global Industrial & Environmental Services Group. In that capacity,
he provided capital markets and strategic advisory services to companies in a variety of
sectors, including solid waste services. Mr. Jackman serves as a director for Quanta
Services, Inc. He holds a B.S. degree in Finance from Syracuse University and an
M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School.

WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.

Connect with the Future




WasTE CONNECTIONS, INC

Connect with ihe fassere

Chapter 3 Staffing




RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2A
TRANSFER STATION OPERATIONS SERVICES

A. Name and Address of Contractor: A-1 Sandrock Inc

2091 Bishop Road

Greensboro, NC 27406

Telephone: 336-855-8195
B. Key Personnel (Name, Position): Ronald Petty, Il
Mike Mcfeeley

Ronald Petty, Sr

C. Transportation Experience

1. Facility(ies) Location:
Abbey Green Transfer Station — Winston Salem, NC
ARC Transfer Station — Durham, NC {Inter-Company Location)
New Hanover County Landfill - Wilmington, NC

2. Description (capacity, waste source, equipment, etc):
300-400 tons per day
Industrial/Construction Waste Sources
New Kamuotsu 320 Wheel loaders/New Mack Trucks/East Walking Floor Trailers

3. Responsibilities and Personnel:
Wilbert Carter — Site Manager -Durham Operations
Mike Mcfeeley - GM — A1 Sandrock and ARC
Ronnie Petty — President/CEO of A1 Sandrock and ARC operations
Chad Morris — Sales/Customer Service

4. Dates of Operational Responsibility:
Abbey Green Transfer Station - 2 years
ARC-Durham Transfer Station — 3 months

City of Greensboro Page 4-5
MSW Management Services April 11, 2012



RFP#08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2A

TRANSFER STATION OPERATIONS SERVICES

(CONTINUED)

D. Other Transfer Stations Owned or Operated by Contractor (name, locations, size):

None by A-1 Sandrock. List attached for Waste Connections.

E. Provide a total listing of equipment that is proposed for execution of the contract. Provide as a minimum the
following information for each vehicle to be used for the operation of the City's Transfer Station:

Manufacturer, model and year
Capacity

Gross vehicle weight rating
Gross combination weight rating
Payload, volume

I e

Vehicle dimensions

1. 2012 MACK PINNACLE ROAD TRACTORS

2. EAST §3'/102" TRAILERS; TIPPERS — 135 YARDS

3. 14,500 LBS.

4. 13,602 LBS + 14.500 LS = 28,102 LBS

) PAYLOAD - 80,000-28,102 = 51,898 LBS OR 25.94 TONS

6. 102" x 53’ x 106"

i CoLumBlIA TIPPER
8. MOUNTAIN ROLL TARP, MESH WiTH RATCHET SRAPS
City of Greensboro Page 4-6
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RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2B
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

A. Name and Address of Contractor: A-1 Sandrock Inc

2091 Bishop Road

Greensboro, NC 27406

Telephone: 336-855-8195
B. Key Personnel (Name, Position): Ronald Petty, IlI
Mike Mcfeeley

Ronald Petty, Sr

C. Transportation Experience

1. Facility(ies) Location:
Abbey Green Transfer Station — Winston Salem, NC
ARC Transfer Station — Durham, NC (Inter-Company Location)
New Hanover County Landfill - Wilmington, NC

2. Description (capacity, waste source, equipment, etc):
300-400 tons per day
Industrial/Construction Waste Sources
New Kamuotsu 320 Wheel loaders/New Mack Trucks/East Walking Floor Trailers

& Responsibilities and Personnel:
Wilbert Carter — Site Manager ~Durham Operations
Mike Mcfeeley — GM — A1 Sandrock and ARC
Ronnie Petty — President/CEO of A1 Sandrock and ARC operations
Chad Morris — Sales/Customer Service

4, Dates of Operational Responsibility:
Abbey Green Transfer Station — 2 years
ARC-Durham Transfer Station — 3 months

City of Greensboro Page 4-7
MSW Management Services April 11, 2012



RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FOrRM 2B
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

(CONTINUED)

Proposer guarantees the truth and accuracy of all statements and of all answers to interrogatories hereinafter made.

1.

How many years has your organization been in business as a truck fleet operator under your present

business name? 1979

2. How many years of total experience in truck fleet operation has your organization had? 33

81 Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? If so, where and why?
_NO

4, Has any officer or partner of your organization ever been an officer or partner of some other organization
that failed to meet its terms of refuse hauling contract? If so, state name of individual, name of owner, and
reason therefore: _NO

5. Has any officer or partner of your organization ever failed to meet the terms of any refuse hauling contract
handled in his own name? _NO
If so, state name of individual, name of owner, and reason therefore:

6. In what other lines of business do you have a financial interest?
Recycling and Waste Hauling

City of Greensboro Page 4-8
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RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2B
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

(CONTINUED)

7. For what commercial or industrial corporations have you performed hauling work, and who, for that

corporation, supervised or administered your performance of that contract?

Abbey Green Recycling, Inc — Randall Baker

Absolute Recycling Center — Durham, NC — Sister Company — Wilbert Carter

8. For what governmental units have you performed hauling and who, in that city or town, supervised or

administered your performance of that contract?

Not Applicable — Only Private or Industrial Accounts

9. Have you ever performed any hauling work for the U.S. Government? No

If so, who in the Government supervised or administered your performance of that contract?

Not applicable
10. What is the hauling experience of the principal individuals of your organization?
INDIVIDUAL'S PRESENT POSITION YEARS OF MAGNITUDE AND IN WHAT
NAME OR OFFICE EXPERIENCE TYPE OF WORK CAPACITY
Mike Mcfeeley General Manager 20 Waste Hauling/Landfili
Ronald Petty Il Vice President 6 Waste Hauling/Landfill
Ronald Petty, Sr. President 33 Waste Hauling/Landfill
Tim Fadul (WC) Division Vice President 24 Waste Hauling/Landfill/Transfer Station
Brad Green (WC) District Landfilt Mgr 15 Waste Hauling/Landfill/Transfer Station
City of Greensboro Page 4-9
MSW Management Services April 11, 2012



1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17

18.

RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2B
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

(CONTINUED)

Provide data on your experience in the operation and maintenance of over-the-road tractor-trailer vehicles.

Number of vehicles: 14 On-road trucks

Years of experience: 30
Average annual miles per vehicle: 100,000
Vehicle capacity, pounds: 60,000 — 118,000

List the location where the truck fleet operation can be visited.
2091 Bishop Road, Greensboro, NC

List the location where the vehicle maintenance facility can be visited.

2021 Bishop Road, Greensboro, NC (New facility under construction)

Do you currently operate a fleet of more than 25 trucks? M

If the answer to No. 14 is yes, do you provide fleet maintenance; and if not, how is your fleet maintenance
managed?

Transource, Fleetpride currently utilized for all fleet maintenance, New maintenance facility under

construction and fleet maintenance will be completed in house.

During the past year, did the fleet operate over city, state, or federal highways?

Yes

List the approximate total number of miles the fleet was driven during the past year.
1,000,000

If applicable, indicate, by verbal description and inclusion of appropriate maps, the transportation route(s)
which would be used to transport the MSW from the City's transfer station to the Subtitie D landfill in your
firm's disposal services proposal. 140 to Hwy 220 to Hwy 24/27 to Hwy 109 to Hwy 74 - 94.6 miles

City of Greensboro Page 4-10
MSW Management Services April 11, 2012



RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2B
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
(CONTINUED)

D. Provide a total listing of equipment that is proposed for execution of the contract. Provide as a minimum the
following information for each vehicle to be used for the transportation of MSW:

ik Manufacturer, model and year

2. Capacity

3. Gross vehicle weight rating

4, Gross combination weight rating

5. Payload, volume

6. Vehicle dimensions

7. Method of unloading

8. Top cover description

1. 2012 MACK PINNACLE ROAD TRACTORS
2. EAST 53'/102” TRAILERS; TIPPERS — 135 YARDS
3. 14,500 LBS.

4, 13,602 LBS + 14.500 LBS = 28,102 LBS
5. PAYLOAD — 80,000-28,102 = 51,898 LBS OR 25.94 TONS

6. 102" x 53' x 106"

7. CoLuMBIA TIPPER
8. MOUNTAIN ROLL TARP, MESH WITH RATCHET SRAPS
City of Greensboro Page 4-11

MSW Management Services April 11, 2012



RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2C
DISPOSAL SERVICES

A. Name and Address of Contractor: Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc
5516 Rozzelles Ferry Rd., Charlotte, NC 28215
375 Dozer Dr., Polkton , NC 28135
Telephone: 704-398-4162/704-694-6900
B. Key Personnel (Name, Position): Timothy J. Fadul-Division Vice President
Brad Green- District Manager-Landfill
C. Landfill Operating Experience

1. Facility(ies) Location: Anson County Landfill-Polkton, North Carolina
Anderson County Landfill — Anderson, South Carolina
Anson County Landfill - Polkton, NC

Additional Information Included- Enclosed list

2. Description (capacity, design, waste source, equipment, etc):
*See attached documentation

3. Responsibilities and Personnel:
Rob Wall - Day to Day —Financial/Operational/Compliance Management
Brad Green - Day to Day - Financial/Operational/Compliance Management

4, Dates of Operational Responsibility:
June 2009
June 2009
D. Other Landfills Owned or Operated by Contractor (name, locations, size): Attached List
City of Greensboro Addendum 1 Page 4-12
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RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2C
DISPOSAL SERVICES
(CONTINUED)
E. Description of Proposed Landfill to be used for Greensboro MSW Disposal:
1. Name of Landfil. Chambers Development
Location of Landfill: Polkton, North Carolina

Municipality or Jurisdiction located in:

Anson County, North Carolina

Main access highways from the City of Greensboro’s transfer station and distance:

Hwy 220 Express to Hwy 74
2. Ownership, Operations and Engineer (Name, Address, Phone)
a. Landfill Owner: Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc.
b. Landfill Operator. Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc
c. Original Landfill Designer: ~ Almes and Associates
d. Current Landfill Engineers: A list of all current and past engineers will be provided
upon request.
City of Greenshoro Addendum 1 Page 4-13
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RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2C
DISPOSAL SERVICES
(CONTINUED)
3. Design and Construction:
a. Describe current or future proposed landfill access, layout, design, and construction.

Discuss the development plan, cell construction, liners, leachate collection and
management, on-site and off-site monitoring, and other facilities. Attach drawings and
specifications as appropriate.

The facility is currently a permitted solid waste facility in the State of North Carolina under
permit 0403 — MSWLF - 2010. All site development, construction and site monitoring
points can be provided upon request. Leachate is collected from 100% of the facility and
the facility also has an active gas collection system. Current designs and plan will be
provided upon request.

4, Operations:

a. Discuss existing or future proposed landfili operations including days and hours of
operation; gate controls; waste weighing or volume determinations; on-site traffic control;
dumping procedures; daily, intermediate, and final covering; and on-site facilities
(maintenance areas, water, restrooms).

Facilityis currently permitted and operating. All volume is acaled on the facility, Waste
inspectionis are performed are required by the solid waste permit. Traffic is direct through
signage and currently travels on 65% of paved roads. The active areas are directed by
the operators at the working face. All cover is applied wither it's daily, intermediate or
final in accordance with the solid waste permit. Portable restrooms are provided as
needed and dictated by necessity of the operation

b. List landfill equipment currently used, or to be used, on site

D-7E, D-8R, 836G, 826E, 330 Excavator, 2 — D40 end-dumps, 2-17 yd pans, and various support
units for dust Control, grass maintenance, and street cleaning.
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RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2C
DiSPOSAL SERVICES

(CONTINUED)
Provide below three references of private firms or local governments who have been

utilizing the current fandfill for MSW for at least the last year. Provide name of user,
contact, and a telephone number.
i. Reference No. 1: Waste Management 910-281-0337 Kathy McNish

i Reference No. 2: ALVAC -704-282-1533 Kyle Dean

ii. Reference No. 3 B & G Sanitation — 843-672-9225 Brian Givvons

5. Operating History (for existing proposed landfills):

a. Summary of quantities of waste received at the landfill in the last four years.
Year Amount of Waste Landfilled
2010-2011 301,160 tons
2009-2010 220,555 tons
2008-2009 156,380 tons
2007-2008 208,982 tons
b. Average quantities of waste currently received and landfilled.
Daily Average: 900 tons
Weekly Average: 4500 tons
Annual Estimate: 250,000 tons
c. What proportion of the current waste deliveries are under various contractual
arrangements?
Long-Term (over 1 year): 55,000 tons
Short-Term/Spot Market: 20,000 tons
Other (explain): 175,000 tons (Internally controlled volumes combined with
un-contracted haulers and residents)
QUALIFICATION FORM 2C
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d.

e.

RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

DisPOSAL SERVICES

(CONTINUED)

What are the historical spot market tip fees for acceptable municipal waste over the last
three years?

39.50 $/ton

37.50%/ton

33.00 $/ton
Current spot market tip fee:

39.50%/ton*
*Does this fee include any taxes, state or local fees, or other pass-through charges?

Please explain: _Includes all fees

6. Permit Conditions and Status

a.

For facilities under construction: Identify the permit(s) required for the proposed landfill
construction and operation with names and addresses of granting organizations.

Not Applicable

For existing facilities: Provide a summary of current permit status including permit name,
identification number, date granted, and expiration date.

Active- Chambers Development Municipal Solid Waste Landfill

0403-MSWLF-2000

12/12/1999

No expiration while active and complient.

City of Greensboro

Addendum 1 Page 4-16

MSW Management Services revised May 2, 2012



RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2C
DISPOSAL SERVICES
(CONTINUED)
C. From the above permits, summarize any specifications, conditions, limitations, or
restrictions contained in the landfill permits, which would relate to any of the following:
Types of wastes: MSW, C & D, and Special Waste as defined by North Carolina solid
waste permit — 04-03
Number and size of delivery vehicles: No limitations
Days or hours of receiving or landfilling waste: Current operational hours are M-F 6:30-
4:00 and closed on Saturdays. However, the facility is permitted to be open M-F 6:00-
5:00pm. And Saturday 6:00 to 12:00 and can be utilized during permitted hours to service
volume demands.
Life of permitted areas (give expiration date): Remaining Life in Years(average tons)
58.18 years as of June 30, 2011.
Volumetric capacity of permitted areas (give final permitted capacity):
20,913,135 cubic yards
Terms of contractual agreement: N/A
Conditional operations related to ongoing environmental monitoring: N/A
Conditional operations related to any past or pending legal, financial, or operational event
or finding: N/A
Any other permit item which could impact this agreement. N/A
City of Greensboro Addendum 1 Page 4-17
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RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 2C

DISPOSAL SERVICES
(CONTINUED)
d. Are there any current lawsuits pending against the operations of the landfill? Please
detail: No
e. Is there any pending enforcement action against the landfill that has been filed by the

federal, state, or local jurisdiction? Please detail: No

f. Has the landfill been shut down since it was initially permitted?
How long? (months) No
Reason for shutdown: N/A
7. Proposed Schedule:

Submit a list of all activities, including permitting, design, construction, equipping, and startup
required to bring the landfill on line. For each activity, provide detailed information regarding the
time required to complete the activity, the current status of the activity, and your assessment of
factors that may prevent the activity from being completed in order to have the landfill available by
7/1/2012. Clarify all activities required to achieve capacity for the contract period.

Landfill is currently operational and capable of excepting the volume 7/1/12
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Statement of Qualifications — Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc.

. Waste Connections, Inc.

urpose

Honoring our commitments provides our stakeholders peace of mind and establishes us as the
preniiere solid waste sefvices company In the markels we setve. This creates a safe and rewarding enviropnient for our
employees while protecting the heatth and welfare of the communties we serve,
thereby increasing value for our shareholders.

Statement of Operating Values

Safety. We strive to assure complete safety of our employees, our customers and the public in afl of our operations.
Protection from accident or injury is paramount in alt we do.

integrity. We define integrity as “saying what you will do and then doing it." We keep our promises to our customers, our
employees and our stockholders. Do the right thing, at the right time, for the right reason.

Customer Service. We provide our cusfomers the best possible service in a courteous, effective manner, showing
respect for those we are fortunate fo serve.

To be a Great Place To Work. We maintain a growth culture where our employees can maximize their potential
personally and professionally. Our objective Is to provide an environment where people enjoy what they do and take prde
1n their work. We wish to embody a work hard, play harder culture.

70 be the Premier Solid Waste Services Company in the U.S. We continue to provide superior retums, remain

enviranmentally responsible, and continue to grow in a disciplined way, deploying resources intelligently and benefiting
communities we live in. We remain a “different breed".

. Vision for the Future

Our goal Is to create an environment where self directed, empowered employees slrive to
consistently fulfill our constituent commilments and seek to create positive impacts through
interactions with customers, communities, and fellow employees, always relying on our
Operating Values as the foundation for our existence.

Relevant Experience
Landjfill Operations Contracts — the following is a listing of the 10 landfill operating contracts held by WCN.

AVENAL REGIONAL LANDFILL - (4VENAL, CALIFORNIA) — WCN operates the Avenal Regional Landfill
under a life-of-site operating contract with the City of Avenal. This landfill currently receives approximately
2,200 tons per day and that amount is growing rapidly. During 2008, the landfill received a total of 562,400 tons. The
landfill consists of 173 total acres, of which 123.2 acres are permitted for disposal. The landfill has approximately
16 million tons of unused permitted capacity remaining and is estimated to have a remaining life beyond 20 years at
current disposal rates. The landfill is permitted to accept up to 6,000 tons per day of municipal solid waste. The landfill
has an operating staff of 12 full-time and three part-time employees, and an operating fleet composed of two heavy
Compactors, one heavy Bulldozer, one Excavator, three Articulated Dump Trucks, one Water Truck, one Wheeled
Loader, one Grader, and one Backhoe. WCN was the successful bidder for the operating contract, which began on
September 1, 2002.

FAIRMEAD LANDFILL — (CHOWCHILLA, CALIFORNIA) — WCN operates the Fairmead Landfill under an
operating agreement with Madera County with a remaining term of 12 years. The company’s predecessor held this
tract from July 1, 1981. The Fairmead Landfill consists of 160 total acres, of which 121.2 acres are permitted for
posal. The Fairmead Landfill has approximately 4.4 million tons of unused permitted capacity remaining and is
estimated to have a remaining life of 28 years at current disposal rates. The Fairmead Landfill is currently pennitted to
accept up to 1,100 tons per day of municipal solid waste and currently receives approximately 522 tons per day. This
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Statement of Qualifications — Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc.

fandfill received 133,000 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of five employees and an
rating fleet composed of one heavy Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper, two Water Trucks, and
e Wheel Loader. WCN acquired Madera Disposal Systems, Inc., who held the landfill-operating contract, in
February 1998.

JOHN SMITH ROAD LANDFILL — (HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA) — WCN operates the John Smith Road Landfill
under an operating agreement with San Benito County with a remaining term of 8 years. The landfill receives
approximately 371 tons per day. This landfill received 94,647 tons of waste during 2008. The permitted waste footprint
is 44 acres and has approximately 2.3 million tons of remaining airspace. The landfill has an operating staff of eight
people and an operating fleet composed of two Dozers, one Wheel Loader, one Scraper, two Farmn Tractors, one Water
Truck, and one Compactor. WCN acquired the operating contract in 2005.

LEA COUNTY - (HOBBS, NEW MEXICO) — WCN operates the Lea County Landfill under an operating agreement
with Lea County with a remaining term of 8 years. The landfill was originally permitted in 1998. The Lea County
Landfill consists of 350 acres of property of which 340 acres are permitted for disposal operations. The Lea County
Landfill has about 11.9 million tons of remaining permitted capacity. The landfill currently averages about 323 tons in
daily gate receipts. This landfill received 82,461 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of five
employees and an operating fleet composed of one heavy Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper, one
Water Truck, one Grader and one Wheel Loader. WCN acquired IEII, Inc., which held this operating contract, in
August 1999.

LEFLORE COUNTY - (GREENWOQOD, MISSISSIPPI) - WCN operates the Leflore County Landfill under a life-of-
site operating agreement with Leflore County. The landfill averages about 393 tons per day. The site has a permiited
design capacity of 4 million cubic yards of remaining airspace. The landfill accepted 100,154 tons during 2008. The
permitted landfill footprint is 56 acres, 32 of which are constructed and operating. The landfill has an operating staff of
e people and an equipment fleet including one Compactor, one Bulldozer, one Pull Tractor and Pull Scraper, one
‘ter Truck and one Utility Tractor. In August 2003, WCN acquired the operation from Santek Environmental, which
held this landfill operating contract.

NNSWC LANDFILL — (CLARKSON, NEBRASKA) — WCN operates the NNSWC Landfill under an operating
agreement with Northeast Nebraska Coalition JPA with a remaining term of 3 years. The NNSWC Landfill is located
in Madison County, Nebraska and was originally permitted in 1994. The landfill consists of 160 acres of property of
which 74 acres are permitted for disposal operations. It has about 3.5 million tons of remaining capacity. The landfill
currently averages about 376 tons in daily gate receipts. This landfill received 95,806 tons of waste during 2008. The
landfill has an operating staff of nine employees and an operating flect composed of two heavy Compactors, one heavy
Bulldozer, one Water Truck, one Grader, one Wheel Loader, one Articulated Dump Truck and one Track Excavator.
WCN acquired CRD, Inc., which held this operating contract, in March 1999.

NORTHEAST MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LANDFILL — (WALNUT, MISSISSIPPI) - WCN operates the Northeast
Mississippi Landfill under a life-of-site operating agreement with the Northeast Mississippi JPA. The landfill averages
1,200 tons per day. The site has one million cubic yards of remaining permitted airspace. The landfill accepted
266,126 tons during 2008. The permitted landfill footprint is 32 acres of which 26 are constructed and operating. A
permit for expansion is in draft form with the responsible state agency (MDEQ) and is expected to be issued in the
next few months. The expansion provides an additional 50-acre footprint and approximately 13 million cubic yards
(mcy) of airspace. The landfill has an operating staff of five people and an equipment fleet including one Compactor,
one Bulldozer, one Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water Truck and one Utility Tractor. In
January 2002, WCN acquired Liberty Waste Management, which held the operating contract.

TEHAMA COUNTY LANDFILL — (RED BLUFF, CALIFORNIA) — WCN operates the Tehama County Landfill
|!ider an operating agreement with Tehama County/City of Red Bluff JPA with a remaining term of 15 years. This

fill received 54,243 tons of waste during 2008.The Landfill consists of 252 total acres, of which 120 acres are
urrently permitted for disposal. The landfill has approximately 1.2 million tons of unused permitted capacity
remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life beyond 17 years at current disposal rates. The landfill has an
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Statement of Qualifications — Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc.

operating staff of 15 employees (includes operation of scalehouse, landfill and public drop-off/recycling facility) and

Qoperating fleet composed of one Compactor, one Bulldozer, one Articulated Dump truck, one Tracked Excavator,

e Water Truck, one Grader and one Wheeled Loader. WCN acquired Green Waste of Tehama, which held this
operating contract, in August 2003.

THREE RIVERS REGIONAL — (PONTOTOC, MISSISSIPPI) — WCN operates the Three Rivers Regional Landfill
under an operating agreement with the Three Rivers Regional JPA with a remaining term of 10 years. The landfill
averages about 792 tons per day. The site has a permitted design capacity of 23 million cubic yards of remaining
airspace. The landfill accepted 201,881 tons during 2008. The permitted landfill footprint is 207 acres, 36 of which are
constructed and operating. The landfill has an operating staff of five people and an equipment fleet including one
heavy Compactor, one Compactor, one Bulldozer, one Track Excavator, two Articulated Dump Trucks, one Water
Truck and one Utility Tractor. In August 2003, WCN acquired the operation from Santek Environmental, which held
this landfill operating confract.

Landfills Owned and Operated by WCN - the following is a listing of the 34 landfills owned and operated by WCN.

ANDERSON COUNTY LANDFILL - (ANDERSON, SOUTH CAROLINA) — The site sits on 370 acres in rolling
farm country, of which 113 acres are permitted for disposal of waste. To date, 86 acres are in development or filled.
There are approximately nine million bank cubic yards of remaining airspace. At current filling rates, the site will last
another 31 years. The site has significant expansion potential. Infrastructure at the site includes a small scale and office
building, and leachate storage. The landfil} primarily receives municipal solid waste and construction debris from
Anderson County and Greenville/Spartanburg through the Greer transfer station. The site average approximatefy 800-
900 tons per day. There are nine employees at ACL, including a manager and scale personnel. The site has 12 mainline
pieces of heavy equipment used to compact trash, move dirt and water roads. The site has recently completed the
construction and commenced operations of a landfill gas to energy. This landfill received 220,000 tons of waste during
08. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in April 2009.

ANSON COUNTY LANDFILL - (ERIE, COLORADO) — The Landfill is situated on approximately 300 acres of
forest land. The permitted footprint is 133 acres, of which 47 have been built and partially filled. The site is a fully
permitted Subtitle D landfill, with a gas collection system in place. The landfill accepts between 800 and 1,000 tons
per day. The site has about 16 million bank cubic yards of permitted airspace remaining, which should last about 43
years at current filling rates. The landfill is well staffed and has a compliment of 10 employees and approximately
eight mainline pieces of heavy equipment. The landfill is extremely well maintained, with an attractive entry way with
offices and a scale house. This landfill received 280,000 tons of waste during 2008. Waste Connections acquired the
landfill in April 2009.

BRENT RUN LANDFILL- (MONTROSE, MICHIGAN) — The site is situated on about 400 acres of land, surrounded
by farms and homes. The permitted footprint is about 103 acres, of which 79 are developed and being filled. Brent Run
has about 7.7 million bank cubic yards of remaining permitted airspace. At current filling rates of 686,000 tons per
year, the site has about eight years of life, without expansion. The current footprint is bounded by two roads and Brent
Run Creek, which winds through the owned property. An expansion of the site is possible, but will be very difficult
dug to the physical constraints and a number of homes that the expansion will encroach upon. Facilities at Brent Run
include a scale house, office, and maintenance building. There are also gas collection facilities and leachate
management tanks on site. The site has 12 full-time employees, including office staff and management. Brent Run has
12 pieces of mainline equipment used to manage trash and soil. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in April
2009.

BROADACRES LANDFILL — (PUEBLO, COLORADQO) — The Broadacres Landfill consists of approximately
406 acres, of which 283 acres are currently permitted for disposal. The Landfill has approximately 20 million tons of
used capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 50 years at current disposal rates. During 2007
landfill averages 200 tons per day in gate receipts. The landfill has an operating staff of 3 employees and an
aperating fleet composed of a Compactor, Dozer, Wheeled Loader and Articulated Dump Truck, Backhoe and Water
Truck. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in September 2007.
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Statement of Qualifications — Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc.

BUTLER COUNTY LANDFILL -~ (DAVID CITY, NEBRASKA) — The Butler County Landfill consists of

roximately 282 acres, of which 88 acres are permitted for disposal. The Butler County Landfill has approximately

®) million tons of unused permitted capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 18 years at

current disposal rates. The landfill currently averages 1,700 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received

456,745 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of 12 employees and an operating fleet

composed of two heavy Compactors, two Bulldozers, one Grader, one Wheel Loader and two Excavators. WCN
acquired the landfill in January 1999.

CAMINO REAL LANDFILL - (SUNLAND PARK, NEW MEXICQ) — The Camino Real Landfill consists of
approximately 480 acres, of which 126 acres are permitted for disposal. The Camino Real Landfill has approximately
3.9 million tons of permitted capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of six years at current
disposa! rates. Site capacity is permitted in 10-year increments and has design capacity for an additional 60 mcy. The
landfill currently averages 2,600 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 653,266 tons of waste during
2008. The landfill has an operating staff of 34 employees and an operating fleet composed of two heavy Compactors,
two heavy Bulldozers, three Wheeled Scrapers, two Water Trucks, one Grader, two Wheel Loaders and two
Articulated Dump Trucks. WCN acquired the landfill in August 1999.

CHIQUITA CANYON LANDFILL— (CASTAIC CALIFORNIA) — The landfill is permitted to accept up to 6,000 tons
per day of municipal solid waste, 550 tons per day of Green Waste and an unlimited amount of ADC and/or Diversion
materials from private haulers and municipal governments in the Los Angeles basin. The landfill accepted 1,200,000
tons of waste materials during 2008. The landfill was originally developed by a partnership between Newhall Land
Company & Genstar in the 1970°s. The landfill has sufficient staffing (24 employees), including the site manager and
site engineer and heavy equipment (17 mainline pieces) to accommodate the expected waste stream. Waste
Connections acquired the landfill in April 2009.

D CANYON LANDFILL — (SAN LOUIS OBISPO, CALIFORNIA) — The Cold Canyon Landfill consists of
emximalely 121 acres, of which 79.4 acres are currently permitted for disposal. The Cold Canyon Landfill has
approximately 1.8 million tons of unused capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 9 years at
current disposal rates. The landfill currently averages 680 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 155,688
tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of 12 employees and an operating fleet composed of two
heavy Compactors, two heavy Bulldozers, two Wheeled Scrapers, Water Truck, Grader, Backhoe and a Utility Farm

Tractor. Waste Connections acquired the landf{ill in December 1999.

DENVER REGIONAL LANDFILL - (ERIE, COLORADO) — The Denver Regional Landfill consists of
approximately 340 acres, of which 120 acres are currently permitted for disposal. The Denver Regional Landfill has
approximately 4 million tons of unused capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 5 years at
current disposal rates. The landfill currently averages 2,300 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received
561,189 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of 14 employees and an operating fleet
composed of three heavy Compactors, 2 Scrapers, 2 Dozers, 2 Water Trucks, Grader, Backhoe and a Tractor. Waste
Connections acquired the landfill in December 1999.

FINLEY BUTTES LANDFILL — (BOARDMAN, OREGON) -- The Finley Buttes Landfill consists of 1,800 acres of
property of which 498 acres are currently permitted for landfill operation. The Finley Buttes Landfill has a currently
approved design capacity of over 80 million tons. The landfill currently averages 2,500 tons per day in daily gate
receipts. This landfill received 645,439 tons of waste during 2008. At this rate of fill the landfill will have a site life in
excess of 100 years. The landfill has an operating staff of 11 employees and an operating fleet composed of two heavy
Compactors, two heavy Bulldozers, one Wheeled Scraper, one Water Truck, one Grader and two Wheel Loaders.
WCN acquired this landfill in March 1999.

FINNEY COUNTY LANDFILL — (GARDEN CITY, KANSAS) — WCN owns and operates the landfill, which was
chased from Finney County in 1996. The landfill has 94 permitted acres of which 40 are constructed. The landfili
poses approximately 329 tons per day. This landfill received 83,682 tons of waste during 2008. It has an operating
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staff of two employees and an operating fleet composed of one heavy Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheel
.raper, one Backhoe and one Grader. WCN acquired the landfill in June 2000.

FOUNTAIN LANDFILL - (FOUNTAIN, COLORAD(O) — The Fountain Landfill consists of approximately
320 acres, of which 320 acres are currently permitted for disposal. The Landfill has approximately 16 million tons of
unused capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 25 years at current disposal rates. The landfill
currently averages 1,250 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 320,833 of waste during 2008. The landfill
has an operating staff of 12 employees and an operating fleet composed of a 2 Compactors, 2 Dozers, Excavator and
Articulated Dump Truck, Backhoe and Water Trucks. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in September 2007.

FRONT RANGE LANDFILL — (ERIE, COLORADQ) — The landfill began operations as a fully compliant, Subtitle
D designed sanitary landfill in 1994. It is situated on 600 acres of property with 322 acres permitted for waste
placement. To date approximately 76 acres of the landfill have been developed for active operations. The landfill’s
permitted design provides approximately 60 million bank cubic yards of airspace and should last for approximately 40
years at expected fill rates. The site has sufficient staffing (17 employees) and heavy equipment (10 pieces) to readily
accommodate the expected customer base. Infrastructure includes scale and office complex, recycling facility and
maintenance building for the repair of heavy equipment on-site. The landfill currently averages 2,300 tons per day in
gate receipts. This landfill received 420,000 tons of waste during 2008. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in
April 2009.

G&P DEVELOPMENT — (MILFORD, NEBRASKA) - The G&P Landfill consists of approximately 160 acres, of

which 52 acres are permitted for disposal. The G&P Landfill has approximately 0.6 million tons of unused permitted

capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 4.5 years at current disposal rates. The landfill

currently averages 450 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 107,711 tons of waste during 2008. The

landfill has an operating staff of three employees and an operating fleet composed of one Compactor, one heavy
Ildozer, one Wheel Loader, one Off —Road Truck, one Excavator, one Grader and one Tractor. WCN acquired the
dfill in July 1999,

HOPKINS COUNTY REGIONAL LANDFILL — (MADISONVILLE, KENTUCKY) ~ WCN recently modified the
permit for the Hopkins County Regional Landfiil and opened the landfill in December 2005. The landfill receives
approximately 500 tons per day. This landfill received 160,489 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has a design
capacity of 12mcy. Landfill staff includes seven operators and office staff. The operating fleet includes one
Compactor, heavy Bulldozers, one Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water Truck and one Utility
Tractor.

J BAR J LANDFILL — (OGALLALA, NEBRASKA) —The J Bar J landfill receives approximately 386 tons per day.
This landfill received 98,328 tons of waste during 2008. The permitted waste footprint is 66 acres and has
approximately 4.2 million tons of remaining airspace. The landfill has an operating staff of five people and an
operating fleet composed of two Dozers, one Wheel Loader, two Scrapers, one Farm Tractor, one Water Truck, one
Compactor and one Dump Truck. WCN acquired the landfill in October 2000.

LAND RECOVERY INC 304" STREET LANDFILL — (PUYALLUP, WASHINGTON) — The LRI 304" Street
Landfill consists of over 300 acres, of which 168 acres are permitted for disposal. The landfill has approximately
25 million tons of unused permitted capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life beyond 20 years at
current disposal rates. The landfill currently receives approximately 3,800 tons of waste per average operating day.
The landfill accepted 903,927 tons during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of fifteen employecs and an
operating fleet composed of two heavy Compactors, one heavy Bulldozer, one medium Bulldozer, two Wheel Loaders,
one Water Truck, one Grader, one Articulated Dump Truck and one Track Excavator. WCN acquired an interest in
LRI in February 2001.

QUREL RIDGE LANDFILL — (LILY, KENTUCKY) ~The Laurel Ridge Landfill averages 1,200 tons per day. This
dfill received 344,961 tons of waste during 2008. The site has a permitted design capacity of 5.5 million cubic yards
of airspace. The permitted landfill footprint is 101 acres. A permit for expansion of the facility is pending with the
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responsible state agency (KEPA) and is expected to be issued in the next few months. The expansion provides an

itional 44 acres and 9 mey of airspace. The landfill has an operating staff of seven people and an equipment fleet
wcluding two Compactors, two heavy Bulldozers, one Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water
Truck and one Utility Tractor. WCN acquired this landfill in January 2007.

MEADOW BRANCH LANDFILL — (ATENS, TENNESSEE) -The Meadow Branch Landfill has a remaining
permitted capacity of 8.3 mcy. The average daily volume is 1,600 tons per day. The landfill accepted 390,243 tons
during 2008. Landfill staff includes seven operators and office staff. The equipment includes two heavy Compactors,
two heavy Bulldozers, one Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck and one Utility Tractor. WCN acquired the
Meadow Branch Landfill in March 2002.

NEBRASKA ECOLOGY SYSTEMS — (GENEVA, NEBRASKA) — The NES Landfill consists of approximately
40 acres, of which 20 acres are permitted for disposal. The NES Landfill has approximately 0.3 million tons of unused
permitted capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life beyond 10 years at current disposal rates. The
landfill currently averages less than 25 tons per day in gate receipts. The landfill has an operating staff of one
employee and an operating fleet composed of one Landfill Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper and
one Water Truck, WCN acquired the landfill in July 1999.

NOBLES COUNTY LANDFILL - (WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA) — The Nobles County Landfill consists of
104 acres of property, of which 45 acres are currently permitted for disposal activities. The Nobles County Landfill has
approximately 100,000 tons of unused permitted capacity remaining, with approximately 2.2 million additional tons of
capacity in various stages of permitting, and is estimated to have a remaining life of over 90 years at current disposal
rates. The landfill currently averages about 183 tons in daily gate receipts. This landfill received 48,000 tons of waste
during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of two employees and an operating fleet composed of one Compactor,
one Bulldozer, one Wheel Loader, one Dump Truck and one Scraper. WCN acquired the landfili in November 1999.

Q!,AHOMA LANDFILL - (OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA) - The Oklahoma Landfill consists of 377 acres of
property, of which 123 acres are currently permitted for disposal activities. The Oklahoma Landfill has approximately
2.3 million tons of unused permitted capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of six years at
current disposal rates. The Oklahoma Landfill is currently accepting about 1,700 tons per day of municipal solid waste.
This landfill received 477,475 tons of wastes during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of 15 employees and an
operating fleet composed of two Compactors, four Dozers, three Dump Trucks, one Grader and two Water Trucks.
WCN acquired the landfill in February 2000.

OSAGE LANDFILL — (BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA) -The Osage Landfill has a design capacity to receive
thirteen million tons. The average daily volume is 270 tons per day. This landfill received 70,000 tons of waste during
2008. Landfill staff includes four operators and office staff. The equipment includes two Compactors, one Bulldozer,
one Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Grader, one Water Truck and one Utility Tractor. WCN acquired the
landfill in October 2000.

PLUMB _THICKET LANDFILL — (HARPER, KANSAS) ~The Plumb Thicket Landfill has a design capacity to
receive 38 million tons. The average daily volume is 2,000 tons per day. This landfill received 513,685 tons of waste
during 2008. Landfill staff includes nine operators and office staff. The equipment fleet is made up of two Compactors,
two heavy Bulldozers, one Track Excavator, two Articulated Dump Trucks, one Water Truck and one Utility Tractor.
WCN recently permitted the Plumb Thicket Landfill and opened the site in January 2006.

POTRERO HILLS LANDFILL — (SUSIAN CITY, CALIFORNIA) — The landfill began operations as a fully
compliant, Subtitle D designed sanitary landfill in 1986. It is situated on 1,400 acres of property with 190 acres
permitted for waste placement. The landfill’s permiited design provides approximately 60 million bank cubic yards of
airspace and should last for approximately 40 years at expected fill rates. The site has sufficient staffing (34
loyees) and heavy equipment (17 pieces) to readily accommodate the expected customer base. Infrastructure
cludes scale and office complex, recycling facility and maintenance building for the repair of heavy equipment on-
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site. The landfill currently averages 3,500 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 940,000 tons of waste
.ring 2008. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in April 2009.

QUAD CITY LANDFILL — (MOLINE, ILLINOIS) — The Quad City Landfill consists of 307 acres of property of
which the permitted waste footprint is 62 acres. The Quad City Landfili has approximately 7 mcy of unused permitted
capacity remaining, with approximately 10 mey of expansion capacity and is estimated to have a remaining life of
20 years at current disposal rates. The Quad City Landfill is currently receives about 1,600 tons of MSW during a
typical operating day. This landfill received 356,707 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of
seven employees and an operating fleet composed of one Compactor, two Bulldozers, one Water Truck, one Wheel
Loader, one Wheeled Scraper and one Backhoe. WCN acquired the landfill in July 2002.

RED CARPET LANDFILL - (LAHOMA, OKLAHOMA) —~ The Red Carpet Landfil! is located in Major County,
Oktahoma and was originally permitted in 1979. The landfill consists of 406 acres of property of which the permitted
waste footprint is 90 acres. The Red Carpet Landfill has approximately 5.3 million tons of unused permitted capacity
remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 12 years at current disposal rates. The Red Carpet Landfill
currently receives about 200 tons of MSW during a typical operating day. This landfill received 70,000 tons of waste
during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of five employees and an operating fleet composed of one Compactor,
one Dozer, one Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Grader and one Water Truck. WCN acquired the landfill
in 1998.

SEABREEZE LANDFILL- (ANGELTON, TEXAS) — The Seabreeze Landfill averages 5,000 tons per day and
received 900,000 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill sits on approximately 640 acres of land, and 382 acres are
permitted for waste disposal. Currently 205 acres are developed. Approximately 134 acres are capped and closed. The
site has approximately 29 million bank cubic yards of permitted airspace remaining, with a potential for expansion
totaling 65 million bank cubic yards. The permitted site life is about 39 years at current volumes. The landfill is well
nned and well equipped. There are 14 employees at the landfill, including managers and office staff. The site has 11

‘in line pieces of heavy equipment used to manage trash, soil and leachate. Infrastructure at the site includes a scale
and office complex, leachate storage facilities, gas collection and flare, and a maintenance building. Waste
Connections acquired the landfill in April 2009.

SEDALIA LANDFILL — (SEDALIA COLORADO) —The Sedalia Landfill consists of 124 acres, of which 67 acres is
permitted for disposal. The landfill has a design capacity of 6 million tons. The landfill is currently receiving about
300 tons per day. This landfill received 80,000 tons of waste during 2008. Operations staff consists of five operators
and office staff. The equipment includes one Compactor, one Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper, one Water Truck, one
Utility Tractor and one Grader. WCN recently permitted the Sedalia Landfill and opened the landfill in February 2006.

SOUTHERN PLAINS LANDFILL — (ALEX, OKLAHOMA) —The Southern Plains Landfill averages 900 tons per
day. This landfill received 253,783 tons of waste during 2008. The site has a permitted design capacity of four million
tons of remaining airspace. The permitted landfill footprint is 79 acres, 32 of which are constructed and operating. The
landfill has an operating staff of six people and an equipment fleet including two Dozers, one Compactor, one
Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water Truck, one Farm Tractor and one Grader. WCN acquired the
landfill in October 2000.

SOUTHSIDE LANDFILL — (PUBLEO, COLORADO) — The landfill began operations as a fully compliant, Subtitle
D designed sanitary landfill in 1993. It is situated on 300 acres of property with 80 acres permitted for waste
placement. To date approximately 55 acres of the landfill have been developed for active operations. The landfill’s
permitted design provides approximately 7 million bank cubic yards of airspace and should last for approximately 40
years at expected fill rates. The site has sufficient staffing (8 employees) and heavy equipment (8 pieces) to readily
accommodate the expected customer base. Infrastructure includes scale and office complex, recycling facility and
maintenance building for the repair of heavy equipment on-site. The landfill currently averages 600 tons per day in

receipts. This landfill received 180,000 tons of waste during 2008. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in

eptember 2008.
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VOLUNTEER REGIONAL LANDFILL — (ONEIDA, TENNESSEE) ~The Volunteer Landfill averages 1,200 tons
, day. This landfill received 281,531 tons of waste during 2008. The site has a permitted design capacity of 16 mcy
airspace. The permitted landfill footprint is 87 acres, 26 of which are constructed and operating. The landfill has an
operating staff of five people and an equipment fleet including one Landfill Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one

Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water Truck and one Utility Tractor. WCN acquired the landfill in
January 2002.

WASCO COUNTY - (THE DALLES, OREGON) — The Wasco Landfill consists of 511 acres of property, of which
160 acres are currently permitted for landfill operation. The Wasco landfill has a currently approved design capacity of
over 18 million tons. The landfill currently averages 1,500 tons per day. This landfill received 368,713 tons of waste
during 2008. At this rate of fill, the landfill has a site life in excess of 100 years. The landfill has an operating staff of
six employees and an operating fleet composed of one heavy Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper,
one Water Truck, one Grader and one Utility Farm Tractor. WCN acquired this landfill in June 1999.

Just as with our landfill operating experience we have very extensive Transfer Station operating experience across the
USA.. Our Transfer Stations handles millions of tons of waste each year and many thousands of customer loads. Again
all while keeping our operating record second to none.

We have split our Transfer Station operating experience into two categories. First we have covered the Transfer
Stations which we currently operate under contracts with Cities, Counties or JPA type organizations. Then, we have
covered the Transfer Stations which we both own and operate.

Transfer Station Operations Contracts — the following is a listing of the 13 Transfer Station operating contracts held
by WCN.

air County Transfer Station (Columbia, KY) — WCN operates the facility under a long term operating agreement

l the County. The transfer facility routinely processes 34 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The operating hours
are Monday thru Friday 8:00am-4:00pm and Saturday 8:00am-12:00pm. Solid waste material is accepted from
Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The facility is manned by one employee who interfaces with
the customers and operates a Skid Steer Loader to top load into walking floor Transfer Trailer. The waste is
transported to the Volunteer Regional Landfill located in Oneida, TN.

Central City Transfer Station (Central City, Nebraska) WCN owns and operates this transfer station near the
community of Central City. The station receives waste typically from 7:00am to 5:00pm five days a week with limited
usage on the weekends. Average daily volumes are 32 tons per day. The station accepts municipal solid waste, MSW
and construction debris or C&D. Loading is accomplished with a wheel loader and tamping is performed with an
excavator. The waste is loaded into walking floor trailers that are transported 62 miles to the Butler County Landfill in
David City, NE.

Mammoth MRF (Chowchilla, Ca.) — The Mammoth MRF is operated as a “Dirty MRF” where mixed solid waste is
processed with the recyclable materials being extracted and recovered from an MSW stream. The balance of the waste
volume is then transferred to the landfill. The facility is able to receive up to 500 tons per day and the daily throughput
averages around 400 tons per day. The operating hours are from 8:00am — 4:30pm Monday through Friday and 9:00am
— 4:30pm on Saturday. The facility operates with 6 operators, 15 sorters, 2 load checkers, 1 scale attendant and a
supervisor. Materials accepted at the facility include recycle rich commercial and residential MSW, E-waste, green
waste, tires, motor oil, cardboard, mixed papers, various metals including white goods and plastics 1 - 7. The facility
utilizes 2 wheel loaders and 2 forklifts. The residual material is baled and transported to the Fairmead Landfill which is
on site.

onroe Co Transfer Station (Vonore, TN) — WCN operates this Transfer Station under a long term agreement with
nroe County. This facility processes about 120 tons of MSW during a normal operating day. The operations
Toutine accepts materials from commercials waste collections companies and from the general public. The operation
typical runs from 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and has an operating crew of | equipment operators, 1 spotter and 1 gate
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master. The facility operates with 1 medium sized wheel loader, which marshals the waste and loads the materials into
er trailers, which are stationed in a loading pit. The waste is transported to Meadow Branch in Athens, TN, which
5 miles from the transfer station. During a typical year the transfer station processed 26,000 tons or materials.

Nebraska City Transfer Station Nebraska City, Nebraska) WCN operates this transfer station under a long term
operating agreement with the City of Nebraska City. The station receives waste typically from 7:00am to 4:00pm five
days a week with limited usage on the weekends. Average daily volumes are 47 tons per day. The station accepts
municipal solid waste, MSW and construction debris or C&D. Loading is accomplished with a wheel loader and
tamping is performed with an excavator. The waste is loaded into walking floor trailers that are transported 75 miles
to the G&P Development Landfill near Milford, NE.

North Fork Transfer Station (North Fork, California) — The facility is permitted as a medium-volume
transfer/processing facility able to receive up to 60 tons per day. The daily throughput averages 32 tons per day. The
station’s operating hours are from 8:30am to 5:00pm M-F. The station is operated with 1 equipment operator/load
checker, 1 weigh-master and 1 part time operator/load checker. Materials accepted at this facility include commercial
and residential MSW, E-waste such as TV’s and computer monitors, discarded tires and recyclable material such as
cardboard, mixed papers, various metals and various plastics. A waste collection company, local contractors and the
general public bring in these materials. Recycling is accepted at no charge and the posted tipping fee for MSW is $43
per ton. The MSW is deposited directly into a walking floor trailer that is located in a loading pit. The facility operates
with 1 backhoe, which distributes the weight evenly in the trailer. The waste is then transported to the Fairmead
Landfill located in Chowchilla, Ca. which is 53 miles from the transfer station. During a typical year the North Fork
Transfer Station processed 8,200 tons of MSW and 230 tons of recycling material.

Port Angeles (Port Angeles, Washington) WCN operates the facility under a long term operating agreement with the
City of Port Angeles. The transfer facility routinely processes 200 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The facility
.o accommodates curbside collected recyclable and source separated paper, cardboard, 3 colors of glass, bimetal
s, PET & HDPE plastics, aluminum and scrap metal. The operating hours are Monday thru Saturday 9:00 a.m. to
5:00 p.m. Solid waste material is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The facility is
manned by 3 employees who interfaces with the customers and operates a wheeled loader to load the AM FAB
compactor which compacts 29 ton bales into 48 foot Containers. The waste is transported to the LRI rail yard in
Tacoma Washington then railed to the landfill.

Prairie Ridge Transfer (Sumner, Washington) WCN operates the facility under a long term operating agreement with
the Pierce County. The transfer facility routinely processes 25 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The operating
hours are Monday thru Sunday 9:00am-5:30pm. Solid waste material is accepted from the general public. The facility
is manned by two employees who interface with the customers for waste off-loading into waste containers. The waste
is transported to the 304" Street Landfill located in Graham, WA.

Purdy Transfer & Compost (Purdy, Washington) WCN operates the facility under a long term operating agreement
with the Pierce County. The transfer facility routinely processes 130 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The
operating hours are Monday thru Sunday 9:00am-5:00pm. Solid waste material is accepted from Commercial Waste
Haulers and from the general public. The facility is manned by four employees for offloading of waste into 48-foot
containers. The waste is transported to the 304" Street Landfill located in Graham, WA.

SQOEA Transfer Station (Duncan, Oklahoma)_The station receives waste typically from 8:00am to 6:00pm six days
a week. The average daily volume is 180 tons per day. The station accepts municipal solid waste or MSW and
construction debris or C&D. The facility is newly constructed and opened for use in July 2006. It is approximately
100’ by 100’ in size with one loading bay on the west side of the building. Loading and tamping is accomplished with
a wheel loader. The waste is loaded into walking floor trailers that are transported 45 miles to the Southern Plains

Gdﬂll.
eton County Transfer Station (Jackson, Wyoming) - This facility is pennitted to receive MSW and Construction
debris; there is no maximum permit limit on the tons per day the Transfer Station may receive. The facility receives an
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average of 170 tons of MSW and construction debris per day with approximately 15% of the waste stream being

erted from the landfill as recyclable materials, most of which is clean wood waste being chipped and sold to a

ivate party. The operations routine accepts materials from commercial waste collection companies as well as the
general public. The operation typical runs from 7am-3pin during summer season and 8am-3pm during the winter
season. The operation has an operation crew of 2 equipment operators, 1 spotter, and 4 drivers. The scale is operated
by County personnel. The facility operates with 2 medium sized wheel loaders which marshal the waste and assist a
stationary Grizzly Loader in loading the materials into walking floor trailers which are stationed in a loading pit. The
waste is transported by Waste Connections to Sublette County Landfill in Marbleton, Wyoming which is 89 miles
from the transfer station. The facility also provides for the handling of discarded Tires, E-waste such as scrap TVs, and
cardboard recyclable material. During a typical year the transfer station processed 32,000 tons of materials.

Thurston County Transfer Station (Lacey, Washington) Thurston County operates the scale operations and LeMay
operates the operations facility. This site accepts solid waste and recycling from both public and private customers
originating from the greater Thurston County area. Material accepted includes MSW, C&D waste, various recycling,
Asbestos, Tires, White Goods and Household Hazardous Waste (HHW). Hours of operation are Monday through
Friday, 7:00am to 6:00pm, Saturday and Sunday 8:00am to 5:00pm. Average annual tonnage is 186,000.

Valley County Transfer Station (Donnelly, Idaho) - WCN operates this transfer station under a long term agreement
with the County. The facility processes around 150 to 200 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial
and municipal haulers as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from Monday
through Friday. The operation consists of 1 tipping floor operator and one scale attendant, Waste is loaded into the
walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader. Normally, 6 to 8 loads/day are transported to the American Ecology
Landfill which is located 160 miles away.

Western Amador Recycling Facility & Transfer Station (“WARF”) (Jone, California) WCN operates the facility
‘Ier a long term operating agreement with the Amador County. The transfer facility routinely processes 100 tons of
nicipat solid waste daily. The facility also accommodates curbside collected recyclable, “Blue Bag™ materials and
source separated paper, cardboard, 3 colors of glass, bimetal cans, PET & HDPE plastics, aluminum and scrap metal;
as well as, having separate facilities for C&D and inert materials. The operating hours are Monday thru Sunday
9:00am-5:00pm. Solid waste material is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The
facility is manned by 3 employees who interface with customers and operate 2 wheeled Loaders to top load into
walking floor Transfer Trailers. The waste is transported to the Forward Landfill located in Manteca, CA.

Transfer Stations Owned and Operated by WCN — the following is a listing of the 39 Transfer Station owned and
operated by WCN.

Aberdeen Transfer Station (Aberdeen, Washington). This facility accepts solid waste and recycling from both
public and private customers originating from the greater Grays Harbor County area. Material accepted includes
MSW, C&D waste, various recycling, e-waste, Asbestos, Tires, White Goods and Household Hazardous Waste
(HHW). Hours of operation are Monday through Friday, 8:00am to 5:00pm and Saturday 8:00am to 4:00pm. The
facility handles about 135,000 tons each year.

Apex_Transfer Station (South Union, KY.) - This facility is permitted to accept 600 tons of MSW a day. The
operation accepts residential, commercial and industrial waste from Waste Connections Companies, the general public,
and local competitors. The facility is open from 6:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday and 6:00 a.m. to 12:00
p.m. Saturdays. The facility employs a scale attendant, a loader operator and a spotter. The waste is top-loaded into
walking floor trailers and transported 88 miles to Hopkins County Regional Landfill, a Waste Connections landfill
facility. The facility is operated by Waste Connections under a 20 year lease that began November 1, 2005.

eathitt County Transfer Station (Jackson, Kentucky) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. Typically the
lity processes around 20 to 30 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal haulers

as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from Monday through Friday. The
operation consists of 1tipping floor operator. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader.
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Normally 1 to 2 loads/day are transported daily to the Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located 80 miles away. During a
.ical year the transfer station is expected to process over 6,500tons of material.

Campbellsville Transfer Station (Campbellsville, Kentucky) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. Typically
the facility processes around 40 to 60 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal
haulers as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:30 AM to 4:30 PM from Monday through Friday,
and from 8:00AM to 12:00 PM on Saturdays. The operation consists of 1 tipping floor operator and one scale
attendant. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader. Normally 4 to 6 loads/day are
transported daily to the Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located 110 miles away. During a typical year the transfer
station is expected to process over 29,000 tons of material.

Canyon City Transfer Station (Canyon City, Colorado) - This facility has a maximum handling of 500 tons of
residential and commercial waste per day but a normal average handling ofv80 tons per day. The gate hours are 8am
to 5pm M-F. The facility operates with a crew of 1 equipment operators, 1 scale house operator, 0 spotter, and a site
manager. The equipment used 1 John Deere 544G front-end loader. One loader is used to push trash into the building
and into a walking floor trailer that is backed into a loading pit. The waste is transported to Fountain Landfill in
Fountain, Colorado. During a typical year the facility processes 40,000 tons of material.

Central Transfer and Recyeling (Vancouver, Washington) — This facility routinely processes about 550 tons of MSW

during a normal operating day. The operation accepts material from commercial waste collections companics and the
general public. This facility accepts recyclable material from the public within Clark County. The operating hours are
6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday. The facility operates
with a crew of three supervisors, four equipment operators, four solid waste technicians, one truck driver, six scale house
attendants, and one office administrator. The facility operates with two medium-sized wheel loaders, which continually
push solid waste directly into an MSW compactor. The facility has a third loader to move recycle boxes. This facility

lects approximately 190,000 tons of solid waste per year and 19,000 tons of recyclable materials per year. The waste

ransported 13.5 miles from the transfer station to the port where it is loaded onto a barge and transported 180 miles up
river where it is then trucked 10 miles to the Finley Buttes Landfill in Boardman, Oregon. The facility also provides for
the handling of waste oil, household hazardous waste, discarded tires, metals and recyclable materials such as
newspaper, cardboard, and various plastics.

Centralia_Transfer and Recycling (Centralia, Washington) - This facility routinely processes about 250 tons of

MSW during a normal operating day. The operation accepts material from commercial waste collections companies and
the general public. This facility accepts recyclable material from the public within Lewis County. The operating hours
are 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. Saturday. The facility operates with two
medium-sized wheel loaders, which load waste into open top transfer trailers. This facility collects approximately 80,000
tons of solid waste per year and 7,000 tons of recyclable materials per year. The facility also provides for the handling of
waste oil, household hazardous waste, discarded tires, metals and recyclable materials such as newspaper, cardboard, and
various plastics.

Cleveland Transfer Station (Cleveland, Tennessee) — This facility is fully permitted to accept MSW and routinely
processes about 375 tons of MSW during a normal operating day. The operations routine accepts materials from
commercials waste collections companies and from the general public. The operation typically runs from 7:00 a.m. to
4:00 p.m. and has an operating crew of 1 equipment operators, 1 laborer and 1 gate masters. The facility operates
with 1 medium sized wheel loaders which marshal the waste and load the materials into tipper trailers which are
stationed in a loading pit. The waste is transported to the Meadow Branch Landfill in Athens, Tennessee which is 35
miles from the transfer station. During a typical year the transfer station processed 96,000 tons.

Colorado Springs Transfer Station (Colorado Springs, Colorado) - This facility has a maximum handling of 1000,
s of residential and commercial waste per day but a normal average handling of 263 tons per day. The gate hours
8am to 5pm M-F. The facility operates with a crew of 1 equipment operators, 1 scale house operators, 1 spotter,
and a site manager. The equipment used 1 John Deere 644G One loader is used to push trash into the building and into
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the walking floor trailer that is backed into a loading pit. The waste is transported to Fountain Landfill in Fountain,
lorado During a typical year the facility processed 57,000 tons of material.

Cumberland Waste Disposal Transfer Station (Crossville, TN) - This facility processes an average of 110 tons per
day of MSW and C & D material. The operations routine accepts materials from commercials waste collections
companies and from the general public. The facility hours are 7:00am - 4:00pm Monday - Friday and is operated by 1
equipment operator who loads and swaps trailers and one scale attendant who is also a dispatcher. The facility operates
with one John Deere backhoe and one spotter tractor. 7th Transfer is the 3rd party vendor who hauls away the trash to
Meadow Branch Landfill in Athens, TN and to the Cumberland County Landfill in Crossville, TN. During a typical
year the transfer station has processed 17,500 tons of materials.

Curry_Transfer and Recycling (Brookings, Oregon) - This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and
recyclables. The operation routinely accepts material from commercial and residential routes and some commercial
contractors. The operation runs from 7:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. This facility has an operating
crew of three people. One person handles the recyclables and two people load and spot. The facility has two medium-
size wheeled loaders; one to load the solid waste into transfer trailers and one for the recycling operation that consists
of baling and the general handling of recyclable material. This facility collects approximately 15,600 tons of solid
waste per year. The waste is transferred to the Dry Creek Landfill in Medford, Oregon, which is 140 miles away from
the transfer station. The facility accepts tin, glass, newspaper, cardboard, mixed waste paper, aluminum cans, assorted
plastics and used motor oil. The used motor oil is burned in the waste oil heater in the maintenance shop.

Floyd County Transfer Station (Langley, Kentucky) WCN operates this transfer station. Typically the facility
processes around 80 to 100 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from cominercial and municipal haulers as well
as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:30 PM from Monday through Friday. The operation
consists of 1 tipping floor operator and one scale attendant. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a
.;eeled loader. Normally 4 to 5 loads/day are transported daily to the Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located
miles away. During a typical year the transfer station is expected to process over 23,000 tons of material.

Fremont Transfer Station (Fremont, Nebraska) On a normal operating day we average about 150 tons of MSW. Our
transfer station accepts waste from contractors, hauling companies and the general public. Our hours of operation are
Monday through Friday 8:00am to 5:00pm and Saturdays from 8:00am to noon. We have one operator and one scale
clerk who is an employee of the City of Fremont. We have one loader on site and a contract with Ladd Trucking to
transport our loads to the Coalition Landfill in Clarkson Nebraska, which is located about 56 miles northwest of our
facility. Our transfer station also provides collection for waste oil, used batteries and truck tires. Our site also
provides drop off of white goods or appliances. Qur facility averages about 45,000 tons per year.

Gering Transfer Station (Gering, Nebraska) The Gering Facility is fully permitted to accept as much as 200 tons of
MSW per day. Typically the facility processes around 40 to 60 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from
commercial and municipal haulers as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from
Monday through Friday, and from 8:00 AM to 12:00 PM on Saturdays. The operation consists of one tipping floor
operator and one scale attendant. Debris is pushed into the trailers with a CAT 910F Loader and packed into the trailer
with a John Deere Excavator. The trailer fleet consists of 3-53 foot walking floor trailers and 1-48 foot walking floor
trailer. Normally four to six loads are transported daily to J Bar J Landfill, which is located 127 miles away. During a
typical year the transfer station is expected to process over 23,000 tons of material.

Greer Transfer Station (Greer, South Carolina) The facility is located west of Spartanburg approximately 2 miles
northeast of the Greenville Spartanburg international airport in Greer, SC. The facility has ready access to the 1-95 and
Hwy 290 and is strategically located to serve the entire Greenville/Spartanburg market. The transfer station currently
does approximately 250 tons per day of municipal solid waste. While most of the volume coming into the transfer

tion is internally generated from the hauling operations, the operation also accepts material from other independent
ection companies and some minor amounts from the general public. Waste is aggregated into long haul trailers and
transported about 40 miles to the Anderson County Landfill in Benton, S.C, The operating hours are 6:00 a.m. to 4:00
p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. on Saturday. Waste Connections staff man the gate and
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coordinate customer interactions and billing. The waste marshalling operations and waste transport operations are
tracted out to a 3 party (First Tee). The contractor operates the facility with two medium-sized wheel loaders, which
ntinually marshal the waste and load into open top walking floor semi-trailers.

Green-Team of San Jose Transfer Station (San Jose, California) — This facility is fully permitted to accept as much
as 149 tons of MSW each day and routinely processes about 90 tons of MSW during a normal operating day. The
operations routine accepts materials from our fleet of Multi Family and Single Family collection vehicles in the City of
San Jose. The operation typical runs from 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and has operating crew of one person who Spots and
process flow into the trailer by remotely walking the sold waste forward. The facility operates without the use of any
loaders. The waste is transported to John Smith Landfill in san Benito County, California which is 60 miles from the
transfer station. In the case of Multi-Family solid waste, this material is transported to Z-Best for solid waste
composting and diversion. During a typical year the transfer station received approximately 24,000 tons of solid
waste.

G&W Transfer Station (Somerset, Kentucky) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. Typically the facility
processes around 90 to 120 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal haulers as well
as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:30 PM from Monday through Friday, and from 8:00
AM to 12:00 PM on Saturdays. The operation consists of 1 tipping floor operator and one scale attendant. Waste is
loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader. Normally Sto 7 loads/day are trausported daily to the
Laure! Ridge Landfill, which is located 48 miles away. During a typical year the transfer station is expected to process
over 26,000 tons of material

Hardy Road Transfer Station (Houston, Texas) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. The operating hours are
4-:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 5:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. on Saturday. WCI staff man the gate and
coordinate customer interactions and billing. WCI operates with a crew of two scale house attendants with oversight

.tm the Wilson Road Hauling offices. The waste marshalling operations and waste transport operations are contracted

to a 3¢ party (Sprint Logistics). The contractor operates the facility with two medium-sized wheel loaders, which

continually marshal the waste and load into open top walking floor semi-trailers. The operation accepts material from
commercial waste collections companies and some minor amounts from the general public. Hardy Road currently
handles roughly 1,300 tons per day with approximately 400 to 450 tons per day from the Wilson Road hauling
operations. A portion of the volume coming out of the transfer station is going to the Waste Management Atascocita
Landfill under a transload agreement. This facility is projected to handle approximately 195,000 tons of solid waste per
year or routinely processes about 684 tons of MSW during a normal operating day.

Harlan Transfer Station (Langley, Kentucky) WCN operates this transfer station. Typically the facility processes
around 100 to 120 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal haulers as well as the
general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from Monday through Friday. The operation consists
of | tipping floor operator and one scale attendant. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled
loader. Normally 5 to 6 loads/day are transported daily to the Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located 62miles away.
During a typical year the transfer station is expected to process over 28,000 tons of material.

Hidden Vallev Transfer & Compost (Puyallup, Washington) LRI a subsidiary of WCN, owns and operates the
facility. The transfer facility routinely processes 800 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The operating hours are
Monday thru Sunday 8:00am- 6:00pm. Solid waste material is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the
general public. The facility is manned by six employees who operate the facility for waste off-loading and loading into
an AMFAB compactor for transport to the 304" Street Landfill located in Graham, WA. During a typical year the
transfer station is expected to process over 228,000 tons of material.

Hood River Transfer Station (Hood River, Oregon) - This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and
yclables from the public and commercial customers. The operation runs from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday
ough Friday. This operation runs with two people. One person greets customers and measures each load while the

second person packs solid waste into drop boxes using a backhoe. This facility collects approximately 16,800 tons of

solid waste per year. The waste is transferred to the Wasco County Landfill in The Dalles, Oregon, approximately 30
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miles from the transfer site. The transfer station also accepts recycling, including mixed waste paper, cardboard, tin,
minum, assorted plastics, glass, used motor oil and yard debris from the general public and its residential curbside
lection. This facility collects approximately 1,255 tons of yard debris and 2,675 tons of recyclables per year.

Jordan Read Transfer Station (Englewood, Colorado) - This facility has a maximum handling of 2,200 tons of
residential and commercial waste per day but a normal average handling of 1,000 tons per day. The operations can
run from 13 to 24 hours and gate hours are 4am to Spm. The facility operates with a crew of 4 equipment operators, 2
scale house operators, 1 spotter, and a site manager. The equipment used is 3 Volvo 150c front-end loaders. One loader
is used to push trash into the building and two load walking floor trailers that are backed into a loading pit. The waste
is transported to Denver Regional Landfill in Erie, Colorado or Tower Road Landfill in Denver, Colorado. DRL is
about 40 miles from the transfer station and Tower is about 30 miles. During a typical year the facility processed
275,000 tons of material.

Lakewood transfer Station (Lakewood, Washington). This facility accepts solid waste from both LeMay hauling
companies originating from the greater Pierce County area. Material accepted includes MSW and C&D waste. Hours
of operation are Monday through Friday, 6:30am to 4:30pm. Average monthly inbound tonnage is 7,200.

Lenoir City Transfer Station (Loudon, TN) — This facility processes about 190 tons of MSW during a normal
operating day. The operations routine accepts materials from commercials waste collections companies. The operation
typical runs from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and has an operating crew of 1 equipment operators, 1 spotters and 1 gate
master. The facility operates with 1 medium sized wheel loader, which marshals the waste and loads the materials into
tipper trailers, which are stationed in a loading pit. The waste is transported to Meadow Branch landfill in Athens, TN
which is 30 miles from the transfer station. During a typical year the transfer station processed 50,000 tons or
materials.

Grrex’s Disposal (Fife, Washington)-. Murrey's Transfer Station is located at 4622 70th Ave East in Fife

shington. It is a private facility owned and operated by Waste Connections Inc. dba The Murrey Companies as a
consolidation point for solid waste materials (garbage only) collected throughout the greater Pierce County area. No
other commercial solid waste collection vehicles or the public are allowed to or otherwise use the transfer station. The
facility routinely processes 400 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The operating hours are Monday througl Friday
6:00am to 5:00 pm. The facility is manned by one employee who operates a Grizzly compactor to compact loads into
intermodal containers and walking floor transfer trailers. The waste is transported to the LRI 304th Street Landfill
located in Graham, WA

Nesika Beach Transfer Station (Gold Beach, Oregon) - This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and

recyclables from the public and commercial customers. This facility is a drop-off point for residential and commercial
solid waste and recyclables. The operating hours are 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Tuesday through Saturday. This
operation runs with one person whao uses a backhoe to load the transfer trailers. This person takes care of both the solid
waste and the recyclables. This facility collects approximately 5,800 tons of solid waste per year. The recyclables are
loaded into roll off bins and transported to Curry Transfer and Recycling where they are baled. The waste is loaded
into transfer trailers and hauled to the Dry Creek Landfill in Medford, Oregon, which is approximately 160 miles from
the transfer site. The facility accepts tin, glass, newspaper, cardboard, mixed waste paper, aluminum cans, assorted
plastics and used motor oil. The used motor oil is burned in the waste oil heater at the maintenance shop at Curry
Transfer.

Ord Transfer Station (Ord, Nebraska) - The facility at the present time is permitted to handle 3000 cubic yards of
municipal solid waste per month. Our current permit allows only commercial loads of municipal solid waste to be
accepted; however, the public can deliver waste oil, white goods, tires, and construction debris. The station has one full
time employee that utilizes a motorized loader to move waste from the tipping floor to an open top-live floor trailers
t is stationed in a loading pit. The operation runs from 8:00a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday. The current
ration handles solid waste from approximately ten counties in north central Nebraska, which generates an average
monthly volume of 400 tons. The waste is then transported to the Butler County Landfill, 240 mile round trip away.
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Prosser Rd_Transfer Station (Knoxville, TN) — This facility processes about 650 tons of MSW during a normal
rating day. The operations routine accepts materials from commercials waste collections companies. The operation
ical runs from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and has an operating crew of 2 equipment operators, 2 spotters and 2 gate

masters. The facility operates with 1 medium sized wheel loader, and ! excavator, which marshal the waste and load

the materials into walking floor / tipper trailers which are stationed in a loading pit. The waste is transported to

Meadow Branch / Volunteer landfills in Athens and Oneida, TN which are 55 miles from the transfer station. During a

typical year the transfer station processed 175,000 tons or materials.

Pueblo Transfer Station (Pueblo, Colorado) - This facility has a maximum handling of 1000tons of residential and
commercial waste per day but a normal average handling of 275 tons per day. The gate hours are 8am to 5pm M-F.
The facility operates with a crew of | equipment operators, | scale house operators, 1 spotter, and a site manager. The
equipment used is 1 John Deere 644] front end loader. One loader is used to push trash into the building and into the
walking floor trailer that is backed into a loading pit The waste is transported to Fountain Landfill in Fountain,
Colorado. During a typical year the facility handles 70,000 tons of material.

Queen City Transfer (Charlotte, North Carolina) - The operation accepts material from commercial waste collections
companies and some minor amounts from the general public. This facility is projected to handle approximately 161,858
tons of solid waste per year or routinely processes about 565 tons of MSW during a normal operating day. Of this
tonnage about 33 tons per day are internally generated volume, 125 tons per day under the Waste Management transload
agreement and 100 tons per day from other 3" Parties. Waste Connections staff will man the gate and coordinate
customer interactions and billing. Waste Connections operates with a crew of two scale house attendants with oversight
from the Duncan Hauling offices. The waste marshalling operations and waste transport operations are sub-contracted
out to a third party (K R Drenth). The contractor operates the facility with two medium-sized wheel loaders, which
continually marshal the waste and load into open top walking floor semi-trailers. The waste is transported approximately
50 miles to the Anson County Landfill.

%ders County Recyeling and Disposal (Wahoo, Nebraska) —In a normal operating day we average about 3.85
tons of MSW. Our transfer station accepts waste from the general public and private contractors. Our hours of
operation are noon to 3 pm on Wednesdays and 8 am through noon on Saturdays. We have one gate attendant on duty
at these times. Wahoo Sanitation transports the loads to the Butler County Landfill at David City, which is NW of
Wahoo approximately 40 miles away. Our facility averages about 400 tons per year. The transfer station also collects
waste oil, used batteries, car and truck tires, and appliances. We also have on site recycling bins available.

Sales Road Transfer (Lakewood, Washington) LRI a subsidiary of WCN, owns and operates the facility. The
transfer facility routinely processes 60 tons of Woodwaste daily. The operating hours are Monday thru
Sunday 8:00am-4:30pm. Woodwaste is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The
facility is manned by three employees. The waste is transported to the 304" Street Landfill located in Graham, WA.

Southern Disposal Transfer Station (Memphis TN) — The station receives waste typically from 12:00am to 6:00pm
five days a week with limited usage on the weckends. Average daily volumes are 650 tons per day. The station
accepts municipal solid waste or MSW and construction debris or C&D. Operation of the station, loading and
transportation is contracted to a third party service provider who regularly operates with a crew of six employee’s that
make up two shifts with two operators and a laborer per shift. The facility is newly constructed and opened for use in
November of 2005. It is approximately 100’ by 100’ in size with two staggered loading bays on the east side of the
building. Loading is accomplished with a wheel loader and tamping is performed with an excavator. The waste is
loaded into 53 flat bottom trailers that are transported 71 miles to the Walnut Landfill where they are offloaded
mechanically via a tipper. During a typical year the transfer station has processed 140,000 tons.

Sweet Home Transfer Station (Sweet Home, Oregon) — This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and
yclables from the public and commercial customers. This facility is a drop-off point for residential and commercial
id waste and recyclables. The operating hours are 10:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Tuesday through Saturday. There are
two attendant/operators at this facility who collect money from customers, monitor the recycling drop-off area, general
cleanup, bale recyclables and load the transfer trailers using a backhoe. This facility collects approximately 15,600
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tons of solid waste per year and approximately 18,000 tons of wood, metal, yard debris and other recyclables.
Qstomers dump the solid waste into roll off containers, which are then hauled to the Coffin Butte Landfill in
rvallis, Oregon, approximately 45 miles from the transfer site. Site operators pick out recyclable wood, cardboard,
metal, aluminum and other materials before loading the remaining solid waste into the roll off containers. Source
separated recyclables collected on-site include scrap metal, white goods, tin, aluminum, cardboard, wood, yard debris,
glass, newspaper, waste paper, lead acid batteries, tires, assorted plastics, used motor oil and electronic waste. A reuse
area displays materials customers can take for their own use. Commingled curbside recycling is consolidated and
hauled to SP Newsprint in Portland, approximately 95 miles from the transfer site.

The Dalles Transfer Station (The Dalles, Oregon) — This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and
recyclables from the public and commercial customers. The operation runs from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday
through Saturday. This operation runs with one person who greets customers, measures loads and directs customers to
the tip floor. Solid waste is moved via conveyor belt into transfer trailers, which is then packed with a backhoe. This
facility collects approximately 1,440 tons of solid waste per year. The waste is transferred to the Wasco County
Landfill in The Dalles, Oregon, approxiinately 20 miles from the transfer site. The transfer station also accepts
recycling, including mixed waste paper, cardboard, tin, aluminum, assorted plastics, glass, used motor oil and yard
debris from the general public and its residential curbside collection. This facility collects approximately 300 tons of
yard debris and 1,500 tons of recyclables per year.

Tehama County MRF (Red Bluff, California) WCN operates the facility under a long term operating agreement with
the Amador County. The transfer facility routinely processes 175 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The facility also
accommodates curbside collected recyclable and source separated paper, cardboard, 3 colors of glass, bimetal cans,
PET & HDPE plastics, aluminum and scrap metal; as well as, having separate facilities for wood & green waste, C&D
and inert materials. The operating hours are Monday thru Friday 8:00am-4:30pm and Saturday and Sunday 8:00am-
2:30pm. Solid waste material is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The facility is

nned by 8 employees who interfaces with the customers and operates a 2 wheeled Loader to top load into Roll-Off

‘nainers. The waste is transported to the Tehama County Landfill located adjacent to the MRF.

Victor Transfer Station: (Victor, Montana) - VTS currently handles 125-150 tons of solid waste per day. The
facility accepts waste from Bitterroot Disposal as well as the general public. Our hours of operation are 8-4, Monday
thru Saturday. We accept tires, C & D, and MSW. We don’t take any Hazardous Waste. Victor Transfer is at
capacity with the current equipment.

Wayne County Transfer Station (Monticello, Kentucky) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. Typically the
facility processes around 20 to 30 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal haulers
as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from Monday through Friday. The
operation consists of 1 tipping floor operator. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader.
Normally 1 to 2 loads/day are transported daily to the Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located 61 miles away. During a
typical year the transfer station is expected to process over 7,000 tons of material.

West Coast Recycling and Transfer (Coos Bay, Oregon) — This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and

recyclables from the public and commercial customers. The operation runs from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday
through Saturday, May through October and 8:00 a.m, to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday, November through
April.  There are three people who operate this facility; one traffic booth attendant, one spotter and one loader
operator. This facility collects approximately 24,000 tons of solid waste per year. Residential and commercial
customers and route trucks dump at this transfer station. The solid waste is moved via conveyor belt into a compactor
and then loaded into transfer trailers and hauled to either the Beaver Hill Disposal Site in Coos County, approximately
18 miles from the transfer site or to the Coffin Butte Landfill in Corvallis, Oregon, approximately 150 miles from the
transfer site. The transfer station also accepts recycling, including mixed waste paper, cardboard, tin, aluminum,

orted plastics, glass, used motor oil, lead acid batteries, electronic waste and yard debris from the general public.

recyclable materials are commingled with the exception of glass, yard debris, electronic waste, batteries and motor

oil. Approximately 2,400 tons of recyclable materials are collected per year.
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West Vancouver Materials Recovery Center (Vancouver, Washington) — This facility routinely processes about

tons of MSW during a nonmnal operating day. The operation accepts material from commercial customers and the

eral public. This facility also processes all curbside recycling from within Clark County, which equates to
approximately 190 tons per day. The operating hours are 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. for the general public and 4:00 a.m. to
7:30 p.m. for commercial haulers Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Saturday. The facility
operates with a crew of three supervisors, three equipment operators, six solid waste technicians, two truck drivers,
three scale house attendants, cne office administrator, and three maintenance personnel. The facility operates with two
medium-sized wheel loaders, which continually push onto an in-feed conveyor, which loads an MSW compactor.
There are also two additional loaders used for recyclable products such as compost, wood chips, and paper products.
This facility collects approximately 150,000 tons of solid waste per year and 60,000 tons of recyclable materials per
year. The waste is transported half a mile from the transfer station to the port where it is loaded onto a barge and
transported 180 miles up river where it is then trucked 10 miles to the Finley Buttes Landfill in Boardman, Oregon.
The facility also provides for the handling of waste oil, household hazardous waste, discarded tires, metals and
recyclable materials such as newspaper, cardboard, and various plastics.

Western El Dorado Recovery System Facility (“WERS”) (Placerville California) WCN owns and operates this
facility. The transfer facility routinely processes 400 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The facility also
accommodates curbside collected recyclables , “Blue Bag” materials and source separated paper, cardboard, mixed
glass, bimetal cans, PET & HDPE plastics, aluminum and scrap metal; as well as, having separate facilities for wood
& green waste, C&D and inert materials. The operating hours are Monday thru Sunday 8:00am- 5:00pm. Solid waste
material is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The facility is manned
by 30 employees who interface with the customers and operate various equipment to top load into walking floor
Transfer Trailers, end dumps and possum belly trucks. The waste is transported to the Kiefer Landfill located in
Sacramento County, CA, the Forward Landfill located in Stockton, CA. Single stream recyclable materials are
transported to Pacific Rim Recyclers for additional processing.

.chita Transfer Station (Wichita, Kansas) This facility is fully permitted to accept 4000 tons per day of MSW and
routinely processes 1500 TPD of MSW during a normal operating day. The building sits on 17 acres and the building
itself is 38,000 sq. feet in size. The operations routine accepts materials from commercial waste collection companies,
residential waste collection companies and the general public as well. There are six receiving bays with one being set
aside for the general public where commercial or residential trucks are not allowed. There are two load bays where by
the loaders which are 960 Cat wheel loaders marshal the trash to throughout the day. The loaders load the materials
into 53 foot aluminum tipper trailers. The hours of operation of the facility are 4:00 am to 6:00pm Monday thru
Friday, Saturday 6:00am to 4:00pm and Sunday 8:00 am to 2:00pm. The waste is transported to our Plume Thicket
Landfill located Harper, Kansas. We curtently contract out the loading, and transportation of this process to a
company called MBI who use 35 tractor-trailer rigs to transport these loads each day. The facility is manned by a
supervisor, one scale master, two spotters and two litter pickers/laborers who are WCI employees and MBI has three
wheel Joader operators and 35 tractor trailer drivers.  The facility also provides for the handling of appliances, C&D
materials and tires, which are all, banned by local ordinance from being accepted in the transfer station. This is done
with a convenience center located outside the facility using open top roll-off boxes setting down in pits. During a
typical year the transfer station will process 350,000 tons of MSW.

Landfill & Transfer Station References
We have provided a listing of references for our transfer station & landfill operating contracts, State and local
regulatory officials and facilities inspectors (LEA). The list is accurate and correct as of January 7, 2008 but is subject

to changes after that date.

Landfill & Transfer Station Contract References

ey of Avenal 559-386-5766 Court House, Suite 11
1ssa Whitten Lovington, NM 88260-4030
919 Skyline Boulevard Lea County 505-396-8521
Avenal, CA 93204 Randy Smith
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Leflore County
Abraham
W. Market Street
Greenwood, MS 38930
Phone: (662)455-3904
Fax: (662)455-7965

Madera County

Stell Manfredi

200 West 4th Street
Madera, CA 93637
Telephone (559) 675-7703

Northeast Mississippi Solid Waste
Management Authority

Hale Aust

County Maintenance Facility,
Highway 4

State/Local Regulatory Official

LEA for Amador County
Tim Hall

810 Court Street
Jackson, CA 95642
209.223.6439
thall@co.amador.ca.us

,4 for El Dorado County
emuel (Lem) Estolas
3091 County Center Drive, Suite 180

Auburn, CA 95603
Phone; (530) 745-2300

LEA for Kings County
Troy Hommerding
330 Campus Drive
Hanford, CA 93230
559-584-1411

LEA for Madera County
Jill Nishi

2037 W. Cleveland
Madera, CA 93637
559-675-7817

LEA for Placer County

Debra Kirshman

3091 County Center Drive, Suite 180
Aubum, CA 95603

Phone: (530) 745-2300

LEA for San Benito County
Ray Stevens
1 San Felipe Road,
¢ 101
Hollister, CA 95023
Phone: (831) 636-4035

Ripley, MS 38663
(662) 728-4667

NNSWC

Gary Lund

610 E. Monroe Avenue
Norfolk, NE 68701
402-644-8715

San Benito County
Mandy Rose

3220 Southside Road
Hollister, CA 95023
831-636-4110

Tehama County/City of Red Bluff
Management Agency
Alan Abbs

LEA for San Jose
Sharon Clute
City of San Jose

Department of Planning, Building,
and

Cade Enforcement

170 W San Carlos St
San Jose, CA 95113
Phone: (408)277-8472
Fax: (408) 277-3290

LEA San Louis Obispo
Mr. Jeff Hackett
CIWMB

PO Box 4025
Sacramento, CA 95812
916-341-6000

LEA for Tehama County
Allen Fleming

633 Washington Street
Red Bluff, CA 96080
530-527-8020

Pierce County, WA

Andy Comstock

3629 South D Street

Tacoma, WA 98418-6813 253 798-
6538

State of Colorado

Doug Ickenberry and

Jerry Henderson.

4300 Cherry Creek Drive S
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19995 Plymire Road
Red Bluff, CA 96080
530-528-1102

Three Rivers Regional Waste
Management Authority

75 S. Main Street

PO Box 690

Pontotoc, MS 38863

Ronnie Bell

662/489-2415

Western Placer IPA
Bill Zimmerman
11476 C Avenue
Auburn, CA. 95603
916-645-5180

Denver, CO 80222-1530
303-692-3437 or
303-692-3455

State of Illinois

John Tripses

7620 North University Street, Suite
201

Peoria, L 61614

(309) 693-5462

State of Kansas

William Bider

1000 SW Jackson, Suite 320
Topeka, KS 66612-1366
785-296-1612

State of Kentucky
Ronald Gruzesky

14 Reilly Road
Frankfort, K'Y 40601
502-564-6716

State of Minnesota
Corey Boeck

1601 E. Hwy 12, Suite 1
Willmar, MN 56201
320-214-3786

Mississippi DEQ

Billy Warden

PO Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385
(601) 961-5047

Fax (601) 961-5703
billy_warden@deq.state.ms.us
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State of Montana

k Thompson

0 E. Sixth Avenue
P.O. Box 200901
Helena, MT 59620-0901
Phone: 406-444-5345
Fax: 406-444-4386

State of Nebraska

Bill Gidley

1200 N Street, Suite 400
Lincoln, NE 68509-8922
402-471-2186

State of New Mexico
George (Chuck) Akeley
1190 Saint Francis Drive
Santa Fe, NM 87503
505-827-2853

State of Qklahoma

Greg Garber/ Dee Ready Inspector

707 North Robinson
Oklahoma City, OK 73101-1677
405-702-5100

State of Oregon

e Gingerich
East Scenic Drive, #307

e Dalles, OR 97058-3434
541-298-7330

State of Tennessee

Mike Apple, Director

5th Floor, L&C Tower
401 Church Street
Nashville, TN 37243-1535
615-532-0780

State of Tennessce

Guy Moose

Management of Solid (Trash) &
Hazardous Wastes

Chattanooga Environmental Field

Office

Key Personnel

540 McCallie Avenue,
Suite 550

State Office Bidg
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Phone: (423) 634-5745
Fax: (423) 634-6389

State of Tennessee

Larry Cook

Management of Solid (Trash) &
Hazardous Wastes

Knoxville Environmental Field
Office

3711 Middlebrook Pike

Knoxville, TN 37921 Phone: (865)

594-6035 FAX: (865) 594-6105

Manager MSW Permits Section -
TCEQ in Austin

Dr. Richard Carmichael,
Municipal Solid Waste Permits
Section — MC 124

Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality

12100 Park 35 Circle, Building F
Austin, TX 78753

(512) 239-6784

TCEQ Project Manager for
Seabreeze LF

Mr. Eric Beller

Geologist

Municipal Solid Waste Permits
Section — MC 124

Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality

12100 Park 35 Circle, Building F
Austin, TX 78753
(512)239-1177

TCEQ Project Manager for Hardy

Road TS
Mr. Charles Quseph, Ph.D, P.E.
Project Manager

Municipal Solid Waste Permits
Section — MC 124

Waste Permits Division

Texas Commission on
Environmenta! Quality

12100 Park 35 Circle, Building F
Austin, TX 78753

(512) 239-3269

TCEQ Enforcement in Houston
Waste Section Manager, TCEQ
Region 12

Ms. Nicole Bealle

TCEQ Region 12

5425 Polk Ave., Ste. H
Houston, TX 77023-1452
(713) 767-3500

State of Washington
Department of Ecology,

Solid Waste and

Financial Assistance

Cullen Stephenson

Program Manager

P.O. Box 47600, Olympia, WA
98504-7600

(360) 407-6103

Weld County

Department of Public Health &
Environment

Deborahi Blandin

1555 N 17th Avenue

Greeley Co.80631
dblandin@co.weld.co.us
(970)304-6415 ext.2216

Fax (970)304-6411

State of Wyorming
Environmental Quality

‘ Robert W. Breuer
122 West 25th St, Herschler Building

Cheyenne 82002
Ph. 307-473-3454
Fax 307-777-7682

WCIT & Waste Connections, Inc. has assembled a management team that has gained extensive and proven hands-
on experience managing every aspect of today’s municipal transfer stations and landfills. This combined expertise
adds up to well over 100 years and includes every facet of design, permitting, construction, operation, monitoring,
closure and post-closure maintenance to landfill gas collection and treatment, groundwater remediation, and
hazardous waste site and superfund site management. The experience was gamnered at hundreds of transfer stations,
andfills or remediation projects and covered most of the fifty states.

Local North Carolina Area Managenient
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‘;im Fadul serves as the Divisional Vice President and has oversight of the entire North and South Carolina area

Pharketplace for Waste Connections. He joined Waste Connections, Inc. in 2003, and has served as the District
Manager for the Memphis Tennessee market place before coming to North Carolina in 2009. Mr. Fadul has 24
years experience in the solid waste industry, starting with Chambers Development in 1986 and then USA Waste
Services after it acquired Chambers Development in 1995 and continued with Waste Management after its merger
in 1998. Through that time, Mr. Fadul has held various operational and general management roles of increasing
responsibility. Mr. Fadul holds a B.S. degree in Public Service from West Liberty State College.

Tyler Fitzgerald serves as the Division Landfill Manager with oversight of Anson Landfill in Anson County,
North Carolina, Anderson Regional landfill in Anderson, South Carolina and Peachland Hauling in Polkton, NC.
Mir. Fitzgerald has nineteen years experience in the solid waste industry, which began with Chambers Development
in 1991. USA Waste Services purchased Chambers Development in 1995 that became Waste Management through
a merger in 1998. Before joining Waste Connections in April of 2009, Mr. Fitzgerald was serving as General
Manager for Kimble Companies, a privately owned and operated solid waste services company in Ohio. Mr.
Fitzgerald holds a B.A. in Economics and Business Administration from the University of Pittsburgh.

Regional Staff

Chris Ruane serves as our Regional Vice President. Mr. Ruane has worked in the solid waste industry for 19 years.
He started working in the solid waste field in 1988 as a financia! analyst for Chambers Development Company Inc.
In 1989, Mr. Ruane began managing a project services group supporting solid waste development and construction
projects for Chambers. In 1991, Mr. Ruane entered general management and advanced in this capacity with
increased responsibility with other publicly traded companies such as Sanifill, USA Waste Services, Inc., and
Waste Management, Inc. Mr. Ruane joined Waste Connections in December 2002.

wri Shaner, P.E. serves as our Regional Engineer. Mr. Shaner has worked in the solid waste industry for 19 years.
He started working in the solid waste field in 1988 as a consulting engineer. In 1990, Mr. Shaner began managing
engineering and construction projects for Chambers Development Company Inc (Chambers merged into USA
Waste and was renamed Waste Management, Inc.). Mr. Shaner has held positions of increased responsibility with
Chambers, USA Waste, and Waste Management until joining Waste Connections in April 2002.

James Norstrom has 22 years of experience in the solid waste industry in various engineering and environmental
positions such as Region Engineering Manager, Director of Environmental Due Diligence, and Senior Director of
Engineering. Prior to his solid waste experience, he conducted geotechnical engineering studies for high-rise
buildings, highways and bridges, and offshore platforms. He has a Masters Degree in Geotechnical Engineering and
Bachelors Degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Illinois, and he is registered professional engineer in
Texas.

Corporate Staff

Ronald J. Mittelstaedt has been CEQ of Waste Connections, Inc. since the company was formed, and was elected
Chairman of the Board of Directors in January 1998. Prior to founding Waste Connections, Inc., Mr. Mittelstaedt
gained extensive direct managerial experience over numerous transfer stations and landfills in the Western United
States and Canada, Mr. Mittelstaedt has more than ten years of experience in the solid waste industry. He served
with United Waste Systems, Inc., as Executive Vice President, from January 1997 to August 1997, where he was
responsible for corporate development for all states west of Colorado. As Regional Vice President of USA Waste
Services, Inc. (and their predecessor company Sanifill, Inc.) from November 1993 to January 1997, he was
responsible for all operations in 16 states and Canada. Mr. Mittelstaedt held various positions at Browning-Ferris
Industries, Inc. from August 1987 to November 1993, most recently as Division Vice President in Northern

lifornia, overseeing the San Jose market. Previously he was the District Manager responsible for BFT's operations

Sacramento and the surrounding areas. Mr. Mittelstaedt holds a B.S. in Finance from the University of California
at Santa Barbara.
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.) Sacramento and the surrounding areas. Mr. Mittelstaedt holds a B.S. in Finance from the University of California
t Santa Barbara.

Steven F. Bouck serves as President of Waste Connections, Inc. Mr. Bouck joined Waste Connections, Inc. in
February 1998. Mr. Bouck held various positions with First Analysis Corporation from 1986 to 1998, including
most recently as Managing Director coordinating corporate finance. In that capacity, he provided merger and
acquisition advisory services to companies in the environmental industry. Mr. Bouck was also responsible for
assisting in investing venture capital funds focused on the environmental industry that were managed by First
Analysis. In connection with those investments, he served on the board of directors of several companies. While at
First Analysis, Mr. Bouck also provided analytical research coverage for a number of publicly traded environmental
services companies. Mr. Bouck holds B.S. and M.S. degrees in mechanical engineering from Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute and an M.B.A. in Finance from the Wharton School. He has been a Chartered Financial
Analyst since 1990.

Darrell W. Chambliss has been Vice President of Operations since October 1, 1997. Prior to joining Waste
Connections, Mr. Chambliss gained extensive experience with numerous municipal solid waste transfer stations and
landfills,. Mr. Chambliss has held various management positions at USA Waste Services, Inc. (including Sanifill,
Inc. and United Waste, Inc., both of which were acquired by USA Waste Services, Inc.) from April 1995 to
September 1997, including most recently Division Manager in Corning, California, where he was responsible for
the operations of 19 operating companies as well as supervising and integrating acquisitions. From July 1989 to
April 1995, he held various management positions with Browning-Ferris Industries, Inc., including serving as
Assistant District Manager in San Jose, California, and as District Manager in Tucson, Arizona for more than three
years. Mr. Chambliss holds a B.S. in Business Administration from the University of Arkansas.

e company, Mr. Little gained extensive experience in transfer station and landfill management and engineering.
From November 1996 to October 1999, Mr. Little served as Regional Landfill Manager for Waste Management,
Inc. From April 1986 to November 1996, Mr. Little held several managerial and technical positions in the solid
waste and environmental industry.

‘im Little has been Waste Connections, Inc.’s Vice President of Engineering since October 1999. Prior to joining

Scott Schreiber has been Waste Connections, Inc.’s Vice President of Disposal Operations since February 2009.
Prior to then, Mr. Schreiber served as Director of Landfill Operations since October 1998. Prior to joining the
company, Mr. Schreiber gained extensive experience in transfer station and landfill management. From September
1993 to September 1998, Mr. Schreiber served as Director of Landfill Development and Director of Environmental
Compliance for Allied Waste Industries. From August 1988 to September 1993, Mr. Schreiber served has Regional
Engineer and Director of Landfill Development for Laidlaw Waste Systems. From June 1979 to August 1988, Mr.
Schreiber held several managerial and technical positions in the solid waste and environmental industry.
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CHAPTER 3 - STAFFING

Tim Fadul-Division Vice President, North & South Carolina

Tim Fadul serves as the Divisional Vice President and has oversight of the North and
South Carolina Area Marketplace for Waste Connections. Mr. Fadul joined Waste
Connections, Inc. in 2003, and has served as the District Manager for the Memphis,
Tennessee Marketplace before relocating to North Carolina in 2009. He has twenty-
four (24) years experience in the solid waste industry. His career began in 1986 with
Chambers Development, and continuing through 2003 after the merger of Wasfe
Management and Chambers Development. During his solid waste industry career he
has held various operational and general management roles of increasing responsibility.
During these roles he managed Moores County Transfer Station, Chambers
Development Transfer Station and is currently responsible for the Queen City Transfer
Station, Charlotte, NC and the Greer Transfer Station, Greer, SC. Mr. Fadul holds a
B.S. in Public Service from West Liberty State College.

Brad Green-Division Landfill Manager

Brad Green serves as the Division Landfill Manager with management responsibilities of
the Anson Landfill in Anson County, North Carolina, Anderson Regional Landfill in
Anderson, South Carolina and Peachland Hauling in Polkton, North Carolina. Mr.
Green has fifteen (15) years experience in the solid waste industry. He began his
career with Allied Waste in 1997. He continued his career through the Allied
Waste/Republic Industries merger, and prior to joining Waste Connections was directly
responsible for the management of the Speedway Landfill in Concord, NC. In 2011,
Mr. Green joined Waste Connections as the Division Landfill Manager. Mr. Green holds
a B.A. in Economics from Youngstown State Universily.

Peqgy T. Poston-Municipal Territory Manager

Peggy Poston is the Municipal Territory Manager of Community and Municipal Relations
for Waste Connections of the Carolinas. Mrs. Poston’s primary role includes marketing
services for fowns, cities and counties and the administration of related governmental
Contracts. Mrs. Poston joined Waste Connections in 2011 continuing her twenty-four
(24) years of solid waste industry experience. Mrs. Poston has a unique and beneficial
level of experience in sales, sales training, and education and is well-versed in working
closely with the management of municipal, government, Universily and College
employees and management. She has served many positions including Sales and
District Manager of hauling/transfer operations.

WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.
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CHAPTER 3 STAFFING

Resume for Michael R. McFeeley

A. Name and Title
Michael R. McFeeley, General Manager

B. Assignment on City’s Project
Will oversee the landfill operation and manage the landfill operations staff.

C. Name of Employer
A-1 Sandrock, Inc.

D. Years of Experience

Eighteen years of experience within the solid waste industry including MSW and C&D facility
management, construction, waste transportation, compliance, field monitoring and occupational safety.
Last two years with current employer. MOLO certified since 1996.

E. Education
Bachelor of Science in Environmental Planning, May 9, 1992. Bloomsburg University, Bloomsburg, PA.

F. Summary of Professional Training and Experience

A-1 Sandrock, Inc., Greensbhoro, NC. (April 1, 2009 — Present)
General Manager for a construction and demolition landfill and recycling facility. Managed the landfill
from the initial start-up, including staffing, equipment selection, and development and implementation
of operational procedures. Developed the landfill customer base and market recycled commaodities
from the processing facility. Manage all operations, sales and administrative personnel, including
employee selection, hiring, training and retention. Responsible for the implementation of all
environmental and safety compliance programs. Manage all in-house site construction and off-site
mobile crushing, grinding and demolition jobs.

W(CA of High Point, High Point, NC. (August 4, 2003 — February 19, 2009)

General Manager for a construction and demoilition landfill, recycling facility and ten-truck roll-off
hauling operation. Managed the landfill from the initial construction through start-up, including
staffing, equipment selection, and development and implementation of operational procedures.
Developed a strong landfill customer base of construction companies, demolition contractors and waste
haulers throughout the Piedmont Triad market area. Actively market recycled commodities from the
processing facility. Manage the daily hauling operations, including the recent acquisition of an
additional eleven-truck operation. Developed an on-site equipment maintenance program for all heavy
equipment and rolling stock. Manage the financial performance of all operations through budget
preparation and tracking, weekly forecasting and productivity analysis. Manage all operations, sales and



administrative personnel, including employee selection, hiring, training and retention. Responsible for
the implementation of all environmental and safety compliance programs. Manage all site construction,
both in-house and contract work.

Waste Management, Inc. -Piedmont Landfill, Kernersville, NC. (October 30, 2000 — August 1, 2003)
District Manager for the Piedmont Landfill and Recycling Center, a regional MSW landfill accepting 1,500
tons per day, as well as two solid waste transfer stations in East Spencer, North Carolina and Danwville,
Virginia. Managed the financial performance of all three facilities, including annual budget preparation,
weekly financial forecasting and daily financial performance tracking. Responsible for fleet asset
management, including the implementation of maintenance programs, tracking of equipment hours and
fuel costs, maintenance scheduling and fleet capital expenditures. Managed facility personnel, including
employee selection, hiring, training and retention. Responsible for the implementation of all
environmental and safety compliance programs. Supervised the daily operation of the landfill.
Managed a transportation and disposal contract for the county-owned transfer station in Patrick
County, Virginia.

J. Harman Saunders Construction, South Boston, VA. (June 18, 2000 — October 27, 2000)
Construction Supervisor Supervised the closure of a six-acre landfill cell at the Pittsylvania County Landfill
in Dry Fork, Virginia.

Joyce Engineering, Inc., Greensboro, NC. (January 21, 1998 — June 15, 2000)
Environmental Scientist Provided environmental consulting and technical services to solid waste
management facilities throughout North and South Carolina, Virginia and West Virginia. Project
experience includes:
e Superior Services Sycamore Landfill, Hurricane, West Virginia. Provided oversight for the
construction of a new landfill cell and closure of a completed cell, installation of leachate

transfer lines and pump stations, and installation of an active landfill gas collection system and
flare.

e Waste Management Inc. Coble Road Landfill, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina. Supervised
the remediation of a leachate release from the closed landfill and supervised several
improvements to the site drainage characteristics and final cover to decrease leachate
production within the landfill.

e Waste Management Inc., North and South Carolina. Provided field services for six WMI
landfills, including groundwater sampling, landfill gas and surface emissions monitoring, and
active gas collection system operation.

e Course Instructor. Conducted on-site training courses for clients on the topics of landfill safety,
stormwater pollution and spill control. Served as an instructor for Virginia Solid Waste Operator
certification courses.

Waste Management, Inc., Piedmont Landfill, Kernersville, NC (July 17, 1995 — January 2, 1998)
Environmental Health and Safety Manager for Piedmont Landfill and Recycling Center, Danville Transfer
Station, East Spencer Transfer Station and Winston-Salem Materials Recycling Facility. Managed
environmental and safety compliance programs and reporting for all four facilities.



Waste Management, Inc., Tulleytown, PA. {October 18, 1993-July 17, 1995)
Environmental Technician Coordinated and conducted environmental monitoring at Waste Management
facilities throughout New Jersey, Pennsylvania and Maryland.

ETC Laboratories, Inc., Edison, NJ. (June 1992 - October 15, 1993)
Lab Technician responsible for receipt, preparation and storage of environmental samples for analysis.

G. Professional References
D.H. Griffin, Sr., President, D.H. Griffin Companies (336) 855-7030
4700 Hilltop Road, Greensboro, North Carolina 27407

Norbert Hector, President, MRR Southern (919) 835-3655
421 Raleighview Road, Raleigh, North Carolina 27610
fnhector@dhgc.com

Chris Roof, General Manager, MRR Southern (919) 835-3655
421 Raleighview Road, Raleigh, North Carolina 27610
croof@mrrsouthern.com

Dan Moore, P.G., Project Director, MRR Southern (336) 253-0091
421 Raleighview Road, Raleigh, North Carolina 27610
dmoore@mrrsouthern.com

Jamie Lockhart, Account Manager, Hilco Transport (336) 273-9441 ext. 235
P.0. Box 35049, Greensboro, North Carolina 27425

Charles Hiner, P.E., Senior Engineer, Golder & Associates (336) 852-4903
Charles_hiner@golder.com



Resume for Ronald (Ronnie) Petty IlI

A. Name and Title
Ronald E. Petty [ll, Vice President

B. Assignment on City’s Project
Ronnie will be the main contact to the city on any issues relating to management, customer service,
and operation.

C. Name of Employer
A-1 Sandrock, Inc

D. Years of Experience

Nine years of experience in the solid waste industry within the Triad area including landfill
operations, permitting, financial management and waste transportation. MOLO certified in June of
2011.

E. Education

Ronnie holds a Bachelor of Science degree from Greensboro College with specialties focused on
Business Management and Economics. He graduated and completed the schools four year program
in only three years with a 3.0 GPA.

F. Summary of Professional Training and Experience

A-1 Sandrock, Inc., Greensboro, NC. (2002 - present)

Since school, Ronnie has worked for his family-owned and operated business as a laborer,
equipment operator, scalehouse operator and manager. In 2006, he took over the management of
A-1's newest construction and demolition site and handled all development and permitting issues
with Guilford county and NCDENR. He now serves as vice president of A-1 Sandrock, Inc. and has
expanded the company’s revenue base and scope of services every year since 2006. In 2010,
Ronnie opened a second sandrock quarry operation and is currently working to expand solid waste
operations into other North Carolina markets.

Guilford Container Services, Greensboro, NC. (2005 —2006)
From 2005 through 2006, Ronnie worked as a part time container truck driver hauling construction
dumpsters from job sites throughout the Triad.

Absolute Recycling Contractors, LLC, Greensboro, NC. (June 1, 2009 — Present)
Ronnie was one of three founding members of ARC a waste hauling company in Greensboro, North
Carolina. With skills he had learned in obtaining financing with A-1 Sandrock Inc, he started
purchasing equipment for the hauling company. ARC started with 50 dumpsters and one truck and
has grown to over 400 dumpsters and seven trucks. ARC acquired Guilford Container LLC in 2010 to



consolidate competition and to further grow the company. Ronnie is a managing partner of ARC and
is very involved with daily operations of the company.

G. Professional References
Alfred Morton—Owner/Operator of Gold Hill Landfill in Randolph County (336) 382-2111

Walker Moffitt, previous owner of MAPCO Inc, now known as APAC Triad division (336) 465-1299

Randall Baker, manager of Abbey Green, Inc, a waste recycling facility in
Winston-Salem (215) 962 0353

Betty Garrett, Guilford County Interim Director of Planning and Development (336)634-3334
Steve Bruce, General Manager - Carolina Division, Martin Marietta Materials (336) 389-6617

David Garrett, P.G., P.E., David Garrett & Associates (919) 418-4375
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Resume for Ronald “Gene” Petty SR.

A. Name and Title
Ronald Eugene Petty Sr. President of A-1 Sandrock Inc

B. Assignment on city project
Mr. Petty will have no day to day operation on the city project, only will provide council and
experience to managers of A-1 Sandrock, Inc. that will be providing direct service to the city.

C. Name of Employer
A-1 Sandrock, Inc.

D. Years of Experience
Over forty years of experience as a business owner within the solid waste industry including landfill
management, waste transportation, mining and construction.

E. Education
Mr. Petty graduated from Jamestown High School in 1957.

F. Summary of Professional Training and Experience

Mr. Petty founded A-1 Sandrock, Inc. in 1979 and has operated several related sites including
landfills, sandrock quarries and transfer stations. Mr. Petty sited and permitted Guilford County’s
first MSW transfer station and first construction and demolition landfill under the new regulation in
Guilford County. Mr. Petty has 40 years in the solid waste and aggregate field and supplies A-1
Sandrock, Inc. with valuable knowledge and direction for much of the daily operation of the
company.

G. Professional References
David Garrett, P.G., P.E., David Garrett & Associates (919) 418-4375
Drew Eisenhower, Regional Vice President, Republic Waste Services (828) 234-4860

Norman Bunce, President, Capitol Container Services (919) 795-0990



Resume for Ronald “Gene” Petty SR. Cont...

H. Other Relevant Experience and Qualifications

Mr. Petty has extensive knowledge on how to handle large projects and will be able to provide A-1’s
managers consultation and experience on the management of the city landfill. He has learned these
skills from years of managing large scale racing teams and businesses in waste/construction
industries. He has owned and operated race teams in some NASCAR'’s highest levels of competition
such as Sprint Cup and Nationwide Series and been very successful. He has been extremely
influential in getting drivers careers off the ground by providing them with the tools to be
successful.

Mr. Petty has also owned or has partnerships in three waste hauling companies since early 90’s. A-1
Sandrock Inc owned its own waste hauling company that was sold to Republic Waste in 2003 and
Mr. Petty helped in starting Guilford Container LLC in 2002. He now owns a 25% percent stake in
Absolute Recycling Contractors LLC (Known as ARC) through an acquisition of Guilford Container in
2010. ARC provides waste services throughout Winston Salem, Greensboro, and Durham North
Carolina. ARC operates with over 400 dumpsters and seven trucks with ranging between two and
three million dollars. You may visit the company’s website www.arc-recycling.com to get a full scope
of the company and its abilities.
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RFP#08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 3
REFERENCES

The Proposer shall provide a minimum of three (3) but no more than five (5) references of the most recently awarded
and serviced (but not necessarily completed) comparable projects. References are to be provided for each service
being offered by the proposer (transfer station operations, transportation, and/or disposal).

1. Name of Agency: Waste Connections of NC., Inc

Address:

Phone Number;

Principal Contact Person(s):

Year Contract Initiated:
Cost of Work ($):
Project Description: No awards in NC for Waste Connections of NC., Inc. since the inception of the corporation

In 2009. Enclosed list of relevant experience.

2. Name of Agency:
Address:

Phone Number:

Principal Contact Person(s):

Year Contract Initiated:
Cost of Work ($):

Project Description:

City of Greensboro Page 4-19
MSW Management Services April 11, 2012



RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 3
REFERENCES

The Proposer shall provide a minimum of three (3) but no more than five (5) references of the most recently awarded
and serviced (but not necessarily completed) comparable projects. References are to be provided for each service
being offered by the proposer (transfer station operations, transportation, and/or disposal).

1. Name of Agency: Guilford County, NC
Address:

Phone Number;

Principal Contact Person(s):

Year Contract Initiated: Franchise Granted in 2003
Cost of Work ($): No Cost to County

Project Description:  A-1 Sandrock Inc. privately owned construction and demolition landfill with permitting to

Handle asbestos and operate mechanized recycling line. Permit 41-17 for 108,000 tons annually.

2. Name of Agency: Guilford County
Address:

Phone Number;

Principal Contact Person(s):

Year Contract Initiated: 2002 Awarded County Franchise
Cost of Work (§): No Cost to County/Sold

Project Description: A-1 Sandrock fully engineered and sited the county's first transfer station and with goods
Collection site. Location was sold in 2004. A-1 showed its relationship with the community and worked to

Resolve community issues relating to project. Special use permit from Guildford County was awarded.

City of Greensboro Page 4-19
MSW Management Services April 11, 2012



RFP #08-12 for MSW Management Services

QUALIFICATION FORM 3
REFERENCES

(CONTINUED)

3. Name of Agency: State of North Carolina (FEMA Project)
Address:

Phone Number;

Principal Contact Person(s):

Year Contract Initiated: 2001
Cost of Work ($):  $600,000/Site Revenue $3,000,000 annually

Project Description: A-1 former privately owned LCID site on Bishop Road to service FEMA in ice storm of 2001.
Project showed A-1 capability to react in a state of emergency, site stayed open 24/7 for 2 months to complete
project. All material was ground on site and sold to Corn Products Inc.

4. Name of Agency:
Address:

Phone Number:

Principal Contact Person(s):

Year Contract [nitiated:

Cost of Work ($):

Project Description:

City of Greensboro Page 4-20
MSW Management Services April 11, 2012



QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

COMPANY

Waste Connections is an integrated solid waste services company that provides solid
waste collection, transfer, disposal and recycling services in mostly secondary markets
in the Western and Southern U.S.  We serve approximately two million residential,
commercial and industrial customers from a network of operations in 29 states:
Alabama, Arizona, California, Colorado, Idaho, lllinois, lowa, Kansas, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Massachutes, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Montana, Nebraska,
Nevada, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, Oklahoma, Oregon, South Carolina,
South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Washington and Wyoming. As of December
31, 2010, we owned or operated a network of 135 solid waste collection operations, 55
transfer stations, 37 recycling operations and 43 active landfills. In addition, we provide
intermodal services for the rail haul movement of cargo and solid waste containers in
the Pacific Northwest through a network of six intermodal facilities.

Waste Connections, founded in 1997, has become the third largest solid waste services
provider in the U.S., and the premier provider of solid waste services in secondary
markets in the Western and Southern U.S. Our differentiated strategy within the solid
waste industry targets markets that have strong demographic growth trends and where
competitive barriers exist. Over 50% of our revenues are derived from markets where
we have long-term exclusive arrangements to provide our services.

Waste Connections is a publicly traded company whose common stock is listed on the
New York Stock Exchange (tickler: WCN; equity market cap approximately $2.5 billion).
We maintain one of the strongest balance sheets in our sector, and our credit is rated
investment grade by S&P.

PEOPLE

Waste Connections approach to business starts with our Statement of Values: Our
Purpose, Operating Values, and Vision of the Future. We also have adopted the
principles of Servant Leadership which flips the “old school” hierarchical managerial
style on its head. Our managers are trained to help their employees become more
successful at work and in their lives. Servant Leadership holds management
accountable to employees, rather than solely holding employees accountable. Our
managers are measured not only by the financial performance of their operation, but
also by the feedback of their employees on management’'s embodiment of these
principles. Benefits realized from the adoption of Servant Leadership include an

WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.
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increase in our employees’ satisfaction with their jobs, reduced employee turnover and
a decrease in accident frequency.

Our culture embraces accountability to attain superior customer service and results.

We accept that our success is also measured by the continuing positive impact we have
within our local communities. Our employees volunteer their time at hundreds of local
organizations, and we back their efforts with financial support for many of these
organization. Plus, we cap off each year with a Christmas bike drive building thousands
of bicycles company-wide to donate to local charities and military bases for distribution

to deserving youth.

OPERATING STRATEGY

We seek to avoid highly competitive, large urban markets and instead target markets
where we can provide non-integrated or integrated solid waste services under exclusive
arrangements or where we can operate on an integrated basis while attaining high
market share. The key components of our operating strategy, which are tailored to the
competitive and regulatory factors that affect our markets, are as follows:

Control the Waste Stream. In markets where waste collection services are provided
under exclusive arrangements or where waste disposal is municipally funded or
available at multiple municipal sources, we believe that controlling the waste stream by
providing collection services is often more important to our profitability and growth than
owning or operating landfills. In addition, contracts in some Western U.S. markets
dictate the disposal facility to be used. The large size of any western states increases
the cost of interstate and long haul disposal, heightening the effects of regulations that
direct waste disposal, which may make it more difficult for a landfill to obtain the
disposal volume necessary to operate profitably. In markets with these characteristics,
we believe that landfill ownership or vertical integration is not as critical to our success.

Provide Vertically Integrated Services. In markets where we believe that owning
landfills is a strategic element to a collection operation because of competitive and
regulatory factors, we generally focus on providing integrated services, from collection
through disposal of solid waste in landfills that we own or operate.

Manage on a Decentralized Basis. Waste Connections manages all operations on a
decentralized basis. This places decision-making authority close to the customer,
enabling us to identify and address customers’ needs quickly in a cost-effective manner.
We believe that decentralization provides a low-overhead, highly efficient operational
structure that allows us to expand into geographically contiguous markets and operate
in relatively small communities that larger competitors may not find attractive. This
structure gives us a strategic competitive advantage, given the relatively rural nature of

WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.
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much of the Western and Southern U.S., and makes us an attractive buyer too many
potential acquisition candidates.

We currently deliver our services from approximately 165 operating locations grouped
into three regions. We manage and evaluate our business on the basis of the regions’
geographic characteristics, interstate waste flow, revenue base, employee base, and
regulatory structure and acquisition opportunities. Each region has a regional vice
president and a regional controller, reporting directly to our corporate management.
These regional officers are responsible for operations and accounting in their regions
and supervise their regional staff.

Each operating location has a district or site manager who has autonomous service and
decision-making authority for his or her operations and is responsible for maintaining
service quality, promoting safety, implementing marketing programs and overseeing
day-to-day operations, including contract administration. Local managers also help
identify acquisition candidates and are responsible for integrating acquired businesses
into our operations and obtaining the permits and other governmental approvals
required for us to operate.

Operating Standards. We develop company-wide operating standards, which are
tailored for each of our markets based on industry and local conditions. We implement
cost controls and employee training and safety procedures and establish a sales and
marketing plan for each market. By internalizing the waste stream of acquired
operations, we can further increase operating efficiencies and improve capital utilization.
We use a wide-area information system network, implement financial controls and
consolidate certain accounting, personnel and customer service functions. While
regional and district management operate with a high degree of autonomy, our senior
officers monitor regional and district operations and require adherence to our
accounting, purchasing, marketing and internal control policies, particularly with respect
to financial matters. Our executive officers regularly review the performance of regional
officers, district managers and operations. We believe we can improve the profitability
of existing and newly acquired operations by establishing operating standards,
monitoring performance and streamlining certain administrative functions.

GROWTH STRATEGY

Waste Connections tailors the components of our growth strategy to the markets in
which we strive to expand. Our strategy is based on three significant components.

Exclusive Arrangements
Generate Internal Growth
Expansion Through Acquisitions

WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.
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Statement of Qualifications — Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc.

. Waste Connections, Inc.

urpose

Honoring our commitments provides our stakeholders peace of mind and establishes us as the
preniiese solid waste services company In the markets wa sefve. This creates a safe and rewarding environment for our
employees while protecting the health and welfare of the communities we serve.
thereby increasing value fof our shareholders. '

Statement of Operating Values

Safety. We strive to assure complete safety of our employees, our customers and the public in afl of our operations.
Protection from accident or injury is paramount in all we do.

Integrity. We define integrity as “saying what you will do and then doing it" We keep our promises to our customers, our
employees and our stockholders. Do the'right thing, at the right time, for the right reason.

Customer Service. We provide our cusfomers the best possible service in a courteous, effective manner, showing
respect for those we are fortunate fo setve.” .

To be a Great Place To Work. We maintain a growth culture where our employess can maximize their potential

personally and professionally. Our objective I to provide an environment where people enjoy what they do and take pride
in thelr work. We wish to embody a work hard, play harder culture. )

To be the Premier Solid Waste Services Company in the U.S. We continue to provide superior retumns, remain
environmentally responsible, and continue to grow in a disciplined way, deploying resources intelligently and benefiting
communities we live in. We remain a “différent breed”.

‘ Vision for the Future

our goal Is to create an environment where seff directed, empowered employees stiive to
consistently fulfill our constituent commitments and seek to create positive impacts through
interactions with customers, communities, and feliow employees, atways relying on our
Operating Values as the foundation for our existence.

Relevant Experience
Land{fill Operations Contracts — the following is a listing of the 10 landfill operating contracts held by WCN.

AVENAL REGIONAL LANDFILL: — (4VENAL, CALIFORNI4) — WCN operates the Avenal Regional Landfill
under a life-of-site operating contract with the City of Avenal. This landfill currently receives approximately
2,200 tons per day and that amount is growing rapidly. During 2008, the landfill received a total of 562,400 tons. The
fandfill consists of 173 total acres, of which 123.2 acres are permitted for disposal. The landfill has approximately
16 million tons of unused permitted capacity remaining and is estimated to have a remaining life beyond 20 years at
current disposal rates. The landfill is permitted to accept up to 6,000 tons per day of municipal solid waste. The landfitl
has an operating staff of 12 full-time and three part-time employees, and an operating fleet composed of two heavy
Compactors, one heavy Bulldozer, one Excavator, three Articulated Dump Trucks, one Water Truck, one Wheeled
Loader, one Grader, and one Backhoe. WCN was the successful bidder for the operating contract, which began on

September 1, 2002.

FAIRMEAD LANDFILL — (CHOWCHILLA, CALIFORNIA) — WCN operates the Fairmead Landfill under an
operating agreement with Madera County with a remaining term of 12 years. The company’s predecessor held this
‘\tract from July 1, 1981. The Fairmead Landfill consists of 160 total acres, of which 121.2 acres are permitted for
posal. The Fairmead Landfill has approximately 4.4 million tons of unused permitted capacity remaining and is
estimated to have a remaining life of 28 years at current disposal rates. The Fairmead Landfill is currently permitted to
accept up to 1,100 tons per day of municipal solid waste and currently receives approximately 522 tons per day. This
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Statement of Qualifications — Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc.

landfill received 133,000 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of five employees and an
rating fleet composed of one heavy Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper, two Water Trucks, and
e Wheel Loader. WCN acquired Madera Disposal Systems, Inc., who held the landfill-operating contract, in

February 1998.

JOHN SMITH ROAD LANDFILL — (HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA) — WCN operates the John Smith Road Landfill
under an operating agreement with San Benito County with a remaining term of 8 years. The landfill receives
approximately 371 tons per day. This landfill received 94,647 tons of waste during 2008. The permitted waste footprint
is 44 acres and has approximately 2.3 million tons of remaining airspace. The landfill has an operating staff of eight
people and an operating fleet composed of two Dozers, one Wheel Loader, one Scraper, two Farm Tractors, one Water

Truck, and one Compactor. WCN acquired the operating contract in 2005.

LEA COUNTY - (HOBBS, NEW MEXICO) — WCN operates the Lea County Landfill under an operating agreement
with Lea County with a remaining term of 8 years. The landfill was originally permitted in 1998. The Lea County
Landfill consists of 350 acres of property of which 340 acres are permitted for disposal operations. The Lea County
Landfill has about 11.9 million tons of remaining permitted capacity. The landfill currently averages about 323 tons in
daily gate receipts. This landfill received 82,461 tons of waste during 2008, The landfill has an operating staff of five
employees and an operating fleet composed of one heavy Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper, one
Water Truck, one Grader and one Wheel Loader. WCN acquired IEIL, Inc., which held this operating contract, in

August 1999.

LEFLORE COUNTY -- (GREENWOQOD, MISSISSIPPI) — WCN operates the Leflore County Landfill under a life-of-
site operating agreement with Leflore County. The landfill averages about 393 tons per day. The site has a permitted
design capacity of 4 million cubic yards of remaining airspace. The landfill accepted 100,154 tons during 2008. The
permitted landfill footprint is 56 acres, 32 of which are constructed and operating. The landfill has an operating staff of
e people and an equipment fleet including one Compactor, one Bulldozer, one Pull Tractor and Pull Scraper, one
‘tcr Truck and one Utility Tractor. In August 2003, WCN acquired the operation from Santek Environmental, which

held this landfill operating contract.

NNSWC LANDFILL - (CLARKSON, NEBRASKA) — WCN operates the NNSWC Landfill under an operating
agreement with Northeast Nebraska Coalition JPA with a remaining term of 3 years. The NNSWC Landfill is located
in Madison County, Nebraska and was originally permitted in 1994. The landfill consists of 160 acres of property of
which 74 acres are permitted for disposal operations. It has about 3.5 million tons of remaining capacity. The landfill
currently averages about 376 tons in daily gate receipts. This landfill received 95,806 tons of waste during 2008. The
landfill has an operating staff of nine employees and an operating fleet composed of two heavy Compactors, one heavy
Bulldozer, one Water Truck, one Grader, one Wheel Loader, one Articulated Dump Truck and one Track Excavator.
WCN acquired CRD, Inc., which held this operating contract, in March 1999.

NORTHEAST MISSISSIPPI REGIONAL LANDFILL — (WALNUT, MISSISSIPPI) - WCN operates the Northeast
Mississippi Landfill under a life-of-site operating agreement with the Northeast Mississippi JPA. The landfill averages
1,200 tons per day. The site has one million cubic yards of remaining permitted airspace. The landfill accepted
266,126 tons during 2008. The permitted landfill footprint is 32 acres of which 26 are constructed and operating. A
permit for expansion is in draft form with the responsible state agency (MDEQ) and is expected to be issued in the
next few months. The expansion provides an additional 50-acre footprint and approximately 13 million cubic yards
(mcy) of airspace. The landfill has an operating staff of five people and an equipment fleet including one Compactor,
one Bulldozer, one Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water Truck and one Utility Tractor. In
January 2002, WCN acquired Liberty Waste Management, which held the operating contract.

TEHAMA COUNTY LANDFILL - (RED BLUFF, CALIFORNIA) — WCN operates the Tehama County Landfill
der an operating agreement with Tehama County/City of Red Bluff JPA with a remaining term of 15 years. This
*dﬁll received 54,243 tons of waste during 2008.The Landfill consists of 252 total acres, of which 120 acres are

rrently permitted for disposal. The landfill has approximately 1.2 million tons of unused permitted capacity
remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life beyond 17 years at current disposal rates. The landfill has an
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operating staff of 15 employees (includes operation of scalehouse, landfill and public drop-offfrecycling facility) and
Qoperating fleet composed of one Compactor, one Bulldozer, one Articulated Dump truck, one Tracked Excavator,
e Water Truck, one Grader and one Wheeled Loader. WCN acquired Green Waste of Tehama, which held this

operating contract, in August 2003.

THREE RIVERS REGIONAL - (PONTOTOC, MISSISSIPPI) — WCN operates the Three Rivers Regional Landfili
under an operating agreement with the Three Rivers Regional JPA with a remaining term of 10 years. The landfill
averages about 792 tons per day. The site has a permitted design capacity of 23 million cubic yards of remaining
airspace. The landfill accepted 201,881 tons during 2008. The permitted landfill footprint is 207 acres, 36 of which are
constructed and operating. The landfill has an operating staff of five people and an equipment fleet including one
heavy Compactor, one Compactor, one Bulldozer, one Track Excavator, two Articulated Dump Trucks, one Water
Truck and one Utility Tractor. In August 2003, WCN acquired the operation from Santek Environmental, which held

this landfill operating contract.

Landfills Owned and Operated by WCN ~ the following is a listing of the 34 landfills owned and operated by WCN.

ANDERSON COUNTY LANDFILL - (ANDERSON, SOUTH CAROLINA) — The site sits on 370 acres in rolling
farm country, of which 113 acres are permitted for disposal of waste. To date, 86 acres are in development or filled.
There are approximately nine million bank cubic yards of remaining airspace. At current filling rates, the site will last
another 31 years. The site has significant expansion potential. Infrastructure at the site includes a small scale and office
building, and leachate storage. The landfill primarily receives municipal solid waste and construction debris from
Anderson County and Greenville/Spartanburg through the Greer transfer station. The site average approximately 800-
900 tons per day. There are nine employees at ACL, including a manager and scale personnel. The site has 12 mainline
pieces of heavy equipment used to compact trash, move dirt and water roads. The site has recently completed the
construction and commenced operations of a landfill gas to energy. This landfill received 220,000 tons of waste during

8. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in April 2009.

ANSON COUNTY LANDFILL - (ERIE, COLORADQ) — The Landfill is situated on approximately 300 acres of
forest land. The permitted footprint is 133 acres, of which 47 have been built and partially filled. The site is a fully
permitted Subtitle D landfill, with a gas collection system in place. The landfill accepts between 800 and 1,000 tons
per day. The site has about 16 million bank cubic yards of permitted airspace remaining, which should last about 43
years at current filling rates. The landfill is well staffed and has a compliment of 10 employees and approximately |
eight mainline pieces of heavy equipment. The landfill is extremely well maintained, with an attractive entry way with
offices and a scale house. This landfill received 280,000 tons of waste during 2008. Waste Connections acquired the

landfill in April 2009.

BRENT RUN LANDFILL- (MONTROSE, MICHIGAN) — The site is situated on about 400 acres of land, surrounded
by farms and homes. The permitted footprint is about 103 acres, of which 79 are developed and being filled. Brent Run
has about 7.7 million bank cubic yards of remaining permitted airspace. At current {illing rates of 686,000 tons per
year, the site has about eight years of life, without expansion. The current footprint is bounded by two roads and Brent
Run Creek, which winds through the owned property. An expansion of the site is possible, but will be very difficult
due to the physical constraints and a number of homes that the expansion will encroach upon. Facilities at Brent Run
include a scale house, office, and maintenance building. There are also gas collection facilities and leachate
management tanks on site. The site has 12 full-time employees, including office staff and management. Brent Run has
12 pieces of mainline equipment used to manage trash and soil. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in April

2009. .

BROADACRES LANDFILL — (PUEBLO, COLORADO) — The Broadacres Landfill consists of approximately
406 acres, of which 283 acres are currently permitted for disposal. The Landfill has approximately 20 million tons of
used capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 50 years at current disposal rates. During 2007
landfill averages 200 tons per day in gate receipts. The landfill has an operating staff of 3 employees and an
operating fleet composed of a Compactor, Dozer, Wheeled Loader and Articulated Dump Truck, Backhoe and Water

Truck. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in September 2007.
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BUTLER COUNTY LANDFILL — (DAVID CITY, NEBRASKA) — The Butler County Landfill consists of
roximately 282 acres, of which 88 acres are permitted for disposal. The Butler County Landfill has approximately

B million tons of unused permitted capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 18 years at
current disposal rates. The landfill currently averages 1,700 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received
456,745 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of 12 employees and an operating fleet
composed of two heavy Compactors, two Bulldozers, one Grader, one Wheel Loader and two Excavators, WCN

acquired the landfill in January 1999.

CAMINO REAL LANDFILL — (SUNLAND PARK, NEW MEXICO) — The Camino Real Landfill consists of
approximately 480 acres, of which 126 acres are permitted for disposal. The Camino Real Landfill has approximately
3.9 million tons of permitted capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of six years at current
disposal rates. Site capacity is permitted in 10-year increments and has design capacity for an additional 60 mcy. The
landfill currently averages 2,600 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 653,266 tons of waste during
2008. The landfill has an operating staff of 34 employees and an operating fleet composed of two heavy Compactors,
two heavy Bulldozers, three Wheeled Scrapers, two Water Trucks, one Grader, two Wheel Loaders and two

Articulated Dump Trucks. WCN acquired the landfill in August 1999.

CHIQUITA CANYON LANDFILL -~ (CASTAIC CALIFORNIA) — The landfill is permitted to accept up to 6,000 tons
per day of municipal solid waste, 550 tons per day of Green Waste and an unlimited amount of ADC and/or Diversion

materials from private haulers and municipal governments in the Los Angeles basin. The landfill accepted 1,200,000
tons of waste materials during 2008. The landfill was originally developed by a partnership between Newhall Land
Company & Genstar in the 1970’s. The landfill has sufficient staffing (24 employees), including the site manager and
site engineer and heavy equipment (17 mainline pieces) to accommodate the expected waste stream. Waste

Connections acquired the landfill in April 2009.

LD CANYON LANDFILL — (SAN LOUIS OBISPO, CALIFORNIA) — The Cold Canyon Landfill consists of

roximately 121 acres, of which 79.4 acres are currently permitted for disposal. The Cold Canyon Landfill has
approximately 1.8 million tons of unused capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 9 years at
current disposal rates. The landfill currently averages 680 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 155,688
tons of waste during 2008, The landfill has an operating staff of 12 employees and an operating fleet composed of two
heavy Compactors, two heavy Bulldozers, two Wheeled Scrapers, Water Truck, Grader, Backhoe and a Utility Farm
Tractor. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in December 1999.

DENVER REGIONAL LANDFILL — (ERIE, COLORADO) -~ The Denver Regional Landfill consists of
approximately 340 acres, of which 120 acres are currently permitted for disposal. The Denver Regional Landfill has
approximately 4 million tons of unused capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of S years at
current disposal rates. The landfill currently averages 2,300 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received
561,189 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of 14 employees and an operating fleet
composed of three heavy Compactors, 2 Scrapers, 2 Dozers, 2 Water Trucks, Grader, Backhoe and a Tractor. Waste

Connections acquired the landfill in December 1999.

FINLEY BUTTES LANDFILL — (BOARDMAN, OREGON) — The Finley Buttes Landfill consists of 1,800 acres of
property of which 498 acres are currently permitted for landfill operation. The Finley Buttes Landfill has a currently
approved design capacity of over 80 million tons. The landfill currently averages 2,500 tons per day in daily gate
receipts. This landfill received 645,439 tons of waste during 2008. At this rate of fill the landfill will have a site life in
excess of 100 years. The landfill has an operating staff of 11 employees and an operating fleet composed of two heavy
Compactors, two heavy Bulldozers, one Wheeled Scraper, one Water Truck, one Grader and two Wheel Loaders.

WCN acquired this landfill in March 1999.

FINNEY COUNTY LANDFILL — (GARDEN CITY, KANSAS) — WCN owns and operates the landfill, which was
hased from Finney County in 1996. The landfill has 94 permitted acres of which 40 are constructed. The landfill
Bposes approximately 329 tons per day. This landfill received 83,682 tons of waste during 2008. It has an operating
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staff of two employees and an operating fleet composed of one heavy Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheel
.raper, one Backhoe and one Grader. WCN acquired the landfill in June 2000.

FOUNTAIN LANDFILL — (FOUNTAIN, COLORADO) — The Fountain Landfill consists of approximately
320 acres, of which 320 acres are currently permitted for disposal. The Landfill has approximately 16 million tons of
unused capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 25 years at current disposal rates. The landfill
currently averages 1,250 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 320,833 of waste during 2008. The landfill
has an operating staff of 12 employees and an operating fleet composed of a 2 Compactors, 2 Dozers, Excavator and
Articulated Dump Truck, Backhoe and Water Trucks. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in September 2007.

FRONT RANGE LANDFILL — (ERIE, COLORADQ) — The landfill began operations as a fully compliant, Subtitle
D designed sanitary landfill in 1994. It is situated on 600 acres of property with 322 acres permitted for waste
placement. To date approximately 76 acres of the landfill have been developed for active operations. The landfill’s
permitted design provides approximately 60 million bank cubic yards of airspace and should last for approximately 40
years at expected fill rates. The site has sufficient staffing (17 employees) and heavy equipment (10 pieces) to readily
accommodate the expected customer base. Infrastructure includes scale and office complex, recycling facility and
maintenance building for the repair of heavy equipment on-site. The landfill currently averages 2,300 tons per day in
gate receipts. This landfill received 420,000 tons of waste during 2008. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in

April 2009.

G&P DEVELOPMENT - (MILFORD, NEBRASKA) — The G&P Landfill consists of approximately 160 acres, of
which 52 acres are permitted for disposal. The G&P Landfill has approximately 0.6 million tons of unused permitted
capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 4.5 years at current disposal rates. The landfill
currently averages 450 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 107,711 tons of waste during 2008. The
landfill has an operating staff of three employees and an operating fleet composed of one Compactor, onc heavy

lldozer, one Wheel Loader, one Off —~Road Truck, one Excavator, one Grader and one Tractor. WCN acquired the

dfill in July 1999.

HOPKINS COUNTY REGIONAL LANDFILL — (MADISONVILLE, KENTUCKY) — WCN recently modified the
permit for the Hopkins County Regional Landfill and opened the landfill in December 2005. The landfill receives
approximately 500 tons per day. This landfill received 160,489 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has a design
capacity of 12mcy. Landfill staff includes seven operators and office staff. The operating fleet includes one
Compactor, heavy Bulldozers, one Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water Truck and one Utility

Tractor.

J BAR J LANDFILL — (OGALLALA, NEBRASKA) ~The J Bar J landfill receives approximately 386 tons per day.
This landfill received 98,328 tons of waste during 2008. The permitted waste footprint is 66 acres and has
approximately 4.2 million tons of remaining airspace. The landfill has an operating staff of five people and an
operating fleet composed of two Dozers, one Wheel Loader, two Scrapers, one Farm Tractor, one Water Truck, one
Compactor and one Dump Truck. WCN acquired the landfill in October 2000.

LAND RECOVERY INC 304" STREET LANDFILL — (PUYALLUP, WASHINGTON) — The LRI 304" Street
Landfill consists of over 300 acres, of which 168 acres are permitted for disposal. The landfill has approximately
25 million tons of unused permitted capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life beyond 20 years at
current disposal rates. The landfill currently receives approximately 3,800 tons of waste per average operating day.
The landfill accepted 903,927 tons during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of fifteen employees and an
operating fleet composed of two heavy Compactors, one heavy Bulldozer, one medium Bulldozer, two Wheel Loaders,
one Water Truck, one Grader, one Articulated Dump Truck and one Track Excavator. WCN acquired an interest in
LRI in February 2001.

QUREL RIDGE LANDFILL — (LILY, KENTUCKY) —The Laurel Ridge Landfill averages 1,200 tons per day. This
Wdfill received 344,961 tons of waste during 2008. The site has a permitted design capacity of 5.5 million cubic yards

of airspace. The permitted landfill footprint is 101 acres. A permit for expansion of the facility is pending with the
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responsible state agency (KEPA) and is expected to be issued in the next few months. The expansion provides an

itional 44 acres and 9 mey of airspace. The landfill has an operating staff of seven people and an equipment fleet
wcluding two Compactors, two heavy Bulldozers, one Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water
Truck and one Utility Tractor. WCN acquired this landfill in January 2007.

MEADOW BRANCH LANDFILL — (ATENS, TENNESSEE) -The Meadow Branch Landfill has a remaining
permitted capacity of 8.3 mcy. The average daily volume is 1,600 tons per day. The landfill accepted 390,243 tons
during 2008. Landfill staff includes seven operators and office staff. The equipment includes two heavy Compactors,
two heavy Bulldozers, one Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck and one Utility Tractor. WCN acquired the

Meadow Branch Landfill in March 2002.

NEBRASKA ECOLOGY SYSTEMS — (GENEVA, NEBRASKA) — The NES Landfill consists of approximately
40 acres, of which 20 acres are permitted for disposal. The NES Landfill has approximately 0.3 million tons of unused
permitted capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life beyond 10 years at current disposal rates. The
landfill currently averages less than 25 tons per day in gate receipts. The landfill has an operating staff of one
employee and an operating fleet composed of one Landfill Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper and

one Water Truck. WCN acquired the landfill in July 1999.

NOBLES COUNTY LANDFILL — (WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA) — The Nobles County Landfill consists of
104 acres of property, of which 45 acres are currently permitted for disposal activities. The Nobles County Landfill has
approximately 100,000 tons of unused permitted capacity remaining, with approximately 2.2 million additional tons of
capacity in various stages of permitting, and is estimated to have a remaining life of over 90 years at current disposal
rates. The landfill currently averages about 183 tons in daily gate receipts. This landfill received 48,000 tons of waste
during 2008, The landfill has an operating staff of two employees and an operating fleet composed of one Compactor,
one Bulldozer, one Whee! Loader, one Dump Truck and one Scraper. WCN acquired the landfill in November 1999.

.’LA}IOMA LANDFILL — (OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA) — The Oklahoma Landfill consists of 377 acres of

property, of which 123 acres are currently permitted for disposal activities. The Oklahoma Landfill has approximately
2.3 million tons of unused permitied capacity remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of six years at
current disposal rates. The Oklahoma Landfill is currently accepting about 1,700 tons per day of municipal solid waste.
This landfill received 477,475 tons of wastes during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of 15 employees and an
operating fleet composed of two Compactors, four Dozers, three Dump Trucks, one Grader and two Water Trucks.

WCN acquired the landfill in February 2000.

OSAGE_LANDFILL — (BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA) ~The Osage Landfill has a design capacity to receive
thirteen million tons. The average daily volume is 270 tons per day. This landfill received 70,000 tons of waste during
2008. Landfill staff includes four operators and office staff. The equipment includes two Compactors, one Bulldozer,
one Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Grader, one Water Truck and one Utility Tractor. WCN acquired the

landfill in October 2000.

PLUMB THICKET LANDFILL — (HARPER, KANSAS) ~The Plumb Thicket Landfill has a design capacity to
receive 38 million tons. The average daily volume is 2,000 tons per day. This landfill received 513,685 tons of waste
during 2008. Landfill staff includes nine operators and office staff. The equipment fleet is made up of two Compactors,
two heavy Bulldozers, one Track Excavator, two Articulated Dump Trucks, one Water Truck and one Utility Tractor.
WCN recently permitted the Plumb Thicket Landfill and opened the site in January 2006.

POTRERO HILLS LANDFILL — (SUSIAN CITY, CALIFORNIA) — The landfill began operations as a fully
compliant, Subtitle D designed sanitary landfill in 1986. It is situated on 1,400 acres of property with 190 acres
permitted for waste placement. The landfill’s permitted design provides approximately 60 miilion bank cubic yards of
airspace and should last for approximately 40 years at expected fill rates. The site has sufficient staffing (34
loyees) and heavy equipment (17 pieces) to readily accommodate the expected customer base. Infrastructure
cludes scale and office complex, recycling facility and maintenance building for the repair of heavy equipment on-
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site. The Jandfill currently averages 3,500 tons per day in gate receipts. This landfill received 940,000 tons of waste
.ring 2008. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in April 2009.

QUAD CITY LANDFILL — (MOLINE, ILLINOIS) — The Quad City Landfill consists of 307 acres of property of
which the permitted waste footprint is 62 acres. The Quad City Landfill has approximately 7 mcy of unused permitted
capacity remaining, with approximately 10 mcy of expansion capacity and is estimated to have a remaining life of
20 years at current disposal rates. The Quad City Landfill is currently receives about 1,600 tons of MSW during a
typical operating day. This landfill received 356,707 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of
seven employees and an operating fleet composed of one Compactor, two Bulldozers, one Water Truck, one Wheel
Loader, one Wheeled Scraper and one Backhoe. WCN acquired the landfill in July 2602.

RED CARPET LANDFILL — (LAHOMA, OKLAHOMA) — The Red Carpet Landfill is located in Major County,
Oklahoma and was originally permitted in 1979. The landfill consists of 406 acres of property of which the permitted
waste footprint is 90 acres. The Red Carpet Landfill has approximately 5.3 million tons of unused permitted capacity
remaining, and is estimated to have a remaining life of 12 years at current disposal rates. The Red Carpet Landfill
currently receives about 200 tons of MSW during a typical operating day. This landfill received 70,000 tons of waste
during 2008. The landfill has an operating staff of five employees and an operating fleet composed of one Compactor,
one Dozer, one Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Grader and one Water Truck. WCN acquired the landfill

in 1998.

SEABREEZE LANDFILL- (ANGELTON, TEXAS) — The Seabreeze Landfill averages 5,000 tons per day and
received 900,000 tons of waste during 2008. The landfill sits on approximately 640 acres of land, and 382 acres are
permitted for waste disposal. Currently 205 acres are developed. Approximately 134 acres are capped and closed. The
site has approximately 29 million bank cubic yards of permitted airspace remaining, with a potential for expansion
totaling 65 million bank cubic yards. The permitted site life is about 39 years at current volumes. The landfill is well
nned and well equipped. There are 14 employees at the landfill, including managers and office staff. The site has 11

‘in line pieces of heavy equipment used to manage trash, soil and leachate. Infrastructure at the site includes a scale

and office complex, leachate storage facilities, gas collection and flare, and a maintenance building. Waste

Connections acquired the landfill in April 2009.

SEDALIA LANDFILL — (SEDALIA COLORADO) -The Sedalia Landfill consists of 124 acres, of which 67 acres is
permitted for disposal. The landfill has a design capacity of 6 million tons. The landfill is currently receiving about
300 tons per day. This landfill received 80,000 tons of waste during 2008. Operations staff consists of five operators
and office staff. The equipment includes one Compactor, one Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper, one Water Truck, one
Utility Tractor and one Grader. WCN recently permitted the Sedalia Landfill and opened the landfill in February 2006.

SOUTHERN PLAINS LANDFILL, — (ALEX, OKLAHOMA) -The Southern Plains Landfill averages 900 tons per
day. This landfill received 253,783 tons of waste during 2008. The site has a permitted design capacity of four million
tons of remaining airspace. The permitted landfill footprint is 79 acres, 32 of which are constructed and operating. The
landfill has an operating staff of six people and an equipment fleet including two Dozers, one Compactor, one
Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water Truck, one Farm Tractor and one Grader, WCN acquired the

Iandfill in October 2000.

SOUTHSIDE LANDFILL — (PUBLEO, COLORADO) — The landfill began operations as a fully compliant, Subtitle
D designed sanitary landfill in 1993. It is situated on 300 acres of property with 80 acres permitted for waste
placement. To date approximately 55 acres of the landfill have been developed for active operations. The landfill’s
permitted design provides approximately 7 million bank cubic yards of airspace and should last for approximately 40
years at expected fill rates. The site has sufficient staffing (8 employees) and heavy equipment (8 pieces) to readily
accommodate the expected customer base. Infrastructure includes scale and office complex, recycling facility and
aintenance building for the repair of heavy equipment on-site. The landfill currently averages 600 tons per day in
ée receipts. This landfill received 180,000 tons of waste during 2008. Waste Connections acquired the landfill in

eptember 2008.
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VOLUNTEER REGIONAL LANDFILL — (ONEIDA, TENNESSEE) ~The Volunteer Landfill averages 1,200 tons
' day. This landfill received 281,531 tons of waste during 2008. The site has a permitted design capacity of 16 mcy
airspace. The permitted landfill footprint is 87 acres, 26 of which are constructed and operating. The landfill has an
operating staff of five people and an equipment fleet including one Landfill Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one
Track Excavator, one Articulated Dump Truck, one Water Truck and one Utility Tractor. WCN acquired the landfill in

January 2002.

WASCO COUNTY — (THE DALLES, OREGON) — The Wasco Landfill consists of 511 acres of property, of which
160 acres are currently permitted for landfill operation. The Wasco landfill has a currently approved design capacity of
over 18 million tons. The landfill currently averages 1,500 tons per day. This landfill received 368,713 tons of waste
during 2008. At this rate of fill, the landfill has a site life in excess of 100 years. The landfill has an operating staff of
six employees and an operating fleet composed of one heavy Compactor, one heavy Bulldozer, one Wheeled Scraper,
one Water Truck, one Grader and one Utility Farm Tractor. WCN acquired this landfill in June 1999.

Just as with our landfill operating experience we have very extensive Transfer Station operating experience across the
USA. Our Transfer Stations handles millions of tons of waste each year and many thousands of customer loads. Again

all while keeping our operating record second to none.

We have split our Transfer Station operating experience into two categories. F irst we have covered the Transfer
Stations which we currently operate under contracts with Cities, Counties or JPA type organizations. Then, we have

covered the Transfer Stations which we both own and operate.

Transfer Station Operations Contracts — the following is a listing of the 13 Transfer Station operating contracts held
by WCN.

‘:_iir County Transfer Station (Columbia, KY) — WCN operates the facility under a long term operating agreement

h the County. The transfer facility routinely processes 34 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The operating hours

are Monday thru Friday 8:00am-4:00pm and Saturday 8:00am-12:00pm. Solid waste material is accepted from
Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The facility is manned by one employee who interfaces with
the customers and operates a Skid Steer Loader to top load into walking floor Transfer Trailer. The waste is
transported to the Volunteer Regional Landfill located in Oneida, TN.

Central City Transfer Station (Central City, Nebraska) WCN owns and operates this transfer station near the
community of Central City. The station receives waste typically from 7:00am to 5:00pm five days a week with limited
usage on the weekends. Average daily volumes are 32 tons per day. The station accepts municipal solid waste, MSW
and construction debris or C&D. Loading is accomplished with a wheel loader and tamping is performed with an
excavator. The waste is loaded into walking floor trailers that are transported 62 miles to the Butler County Landfill in

David City, NE.

Mammoth MRF (Chowchilla, Ca.) — The Mammoth MRF is operated as a “Dirty MRF” where mixed solid waste is
processed with the recyclable materials being extracted and recovered from an MSW stream. The balance of the waste
volume is then transferred to the landfill. The facility is able to receive up to 500 tons per day and the daily throughput
averages around 400 tons per day. The operating hours are from 8:00am — 4:30pm Monday through Friday and 9:00am
— 4:30pm on Saturday. The facility operates with 6 operators, 15 sorters, 2 load checkers, 1 scale attendant and a
supervisor. Materials accepted at the facility include recycle rich commercial and residential MSW, E-waste, green
waste, tires, motor oil, cardboard, mixed papers, various metals including white goods and plastics 1 - 7. The facility
utitizes 2 wheel loaders and 2 forklifts. The residual material is baled and transported to the Fairmead Laundfill which is

on site.

onroe Co Transfer Station (Vonore, TN) — WCN operates this Transfer Station under a long term agreement with
nroe County. This facility processes about 120 tons of MSW during a normal operating day. The operations
routine accepts materials from commercials waste collections companies and from the general public. The operation
typical runs from 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and has an operating crew of 1 equipment operators, 1 spotter and 1 gate
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master. The facility operates with 1 medium sized wheel loader, which marshals the waste and loads the materials into
er trailers, which are stationed in a loading pit. The waste is transported to Meadow Branch in Athens, TN, which
5 miles from the transfer station. During a typical year the transfer station processed 26,000 tons or materials.

Nebraska City Transfer Station Nebraska City, Nebraska) WCN operates this transfer station under a long term
operating agreement with the City of Nebraska City. The station receives waste typically from 7:00am to 4:00pm five
days a week with limited usage on the weekends. Average daily volumes are 47 tons per day. The station accepts
municipal solid waste, MSW and construction debris or C&D. Loading is accomplished with a wheel loader and
tamping is performed with an excavator. The waste is loaded into walking floor trailers that are transported 75 miles

to the G&P Development Landfill near Miiford, NE.

North Fork Transfer Station (North Fork, California) — The facility is permitted as a medium-volume
transfer/processing facility able to receive up to 60 tons per day. The daily throughput averages 32 tons per day. The
station’s operating hours are from 8:30am to 5:00pm M-F. The station is operated with 1 equipment operator/load
checker, T weigh-master and 1 part time operator/load checker. Materials accepted at this facility include commercial
and residential MSW, E-waste such as TV’s and computer monitors, discarded tires and recyclable material such as
cardboard, mixed papers, various metals and various plastics. A waste collection company, local contractors and the
general public bring in these materials. Recycling is accepted at no charge and the posted tipping fee for MSW is $43
per ton. The MSW is deposited directly into a walking floor trailer that is located in a loading pit. The facility operates
with | backhoe, which distributes the weight evenly in the trailer. The waste is then transported to the Fairmead
Landfill located in Chowchilla, Ca. which is 53 miles from the transfer station. During a typical year the North Fork
Transfer Station processed 8,200 tons of MSW and 230 tons of recycling material.

Port Angeles (Port Angeles, Washington) WCN operates the facility under a long term operating agreement with the
City of Port Angeles. The transfer facility routinely processes 200 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The facility
.o accommodates curbside collected recyclable and source separated paper, cardboard, 3 colors of glass, bimetal
s, PET & HDPE plastics, aluminum and scrap metal. The operating hours are Monday thru Saturday 9:00 a.m. to
5:00 p.m. Solid waste material is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The facility is
manned by 3 employees who interfaces with the customers and operates a wheeled loader to load the AM FAB
compactor which compacts 29 ton bales into 48 foot Containers. The waste is transported to the LRI rail yard in

Tacoma Washington then railed to the landfill.

Prairie Ridge Transfer (Sumner, Washington) WCN operates the facility under a long term operating agreement with
the Pierce County. The transfer facility routinely processes 25 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The operating
hours are Monday thru Sunday 9:00am-5:30pm. Solid waste material is accepted from the general public. The facility
is manned by two employees who interface with the customers for waste off-loading into waste containers. The waste

is transported to the 304" Street Landfill located in Graham, WA.

Purdy Transfer & Compost (Purdy, Washington) WCN operates the facility under a long term operating agreement
with the Pierce County. The transfer facility routinely processes 130 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The
operating hours are Monday thru Sunday 9:00am-5:00pm. Solid waste material is accepted from Commercial Waste
Haulers and from the general public. The facility is manned by four employees for offloading of waste into 48-foot
containers. The waste is transported to the 304™ Street Landfill located in Graham, WA.

SQOEA Transfer Station (Duncan, Oklahoma)_The station receives waste typically from 8:00am to 6:00pm six days
a week. The average daily volume is 180 tons per day. The station accepts municipal solid waste or MSW and
construction debris or C&D. The facility is newly constructed and opened for use in July 2006. It is approximately
100’ by 100’ in size with one loading bay on the west side of the building. Loading and tamping is accomplished with
a wheel loader. The waste is loaded into walking floor trailers that are transported 45 miles to the Southern Plains

gdﬁll.
eton County Transfer Station (Jackson, Wyoming) - This facility is penmitted to receive MSW and Construction
debris; there is no maximum permit limit on the tons per day the Transfer Station may receive. The facility receives an
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average of 170 tons of MSW and construction debris per day with approximately 15% of the waste stream being

erted from the landfill as recyclable materials, most of which is clean wood waste being chipped and sold to a

jvate party. The operations routine accepts materials from commercial waste collection companies as well as the
general public. The operation typical runs from 7am-3pm during summer season and 8am-3pm during the winter
season. The operation has an operation crew of 2 equipment operators, 1 spotter, and 4 drivers. The scale is operated
by County personnel. The facility operates with 2 medium sized wheel loaders which marshal the waste and assist a
stationary Grizzly Loader in loading the materials into walking floor trailers which are stationed in a loading pit. The
waste is transported by Waste Connections to Sublette County Landfill in Marbleton, Wyoming which is 82 miles
from the transfer station. The facility also provides for the handling of discarded Tires, E-waste such as scrap TVs, and
cardboard recyclable material. During a typical year the transfer station processed 32,000 tons of materials.

Thurston County Transfer Station (Lacey, Washington) Thurston County operates the scale operations and LeMay
operates the operations facility. This site accepts solid waste and recycling from both public and private customers

originating from the greater Thurston County area. Material accepted includes MSW, C&D waste, various recycling,
Asbestos, Tires, White Goods and Household Hazardous Waste (HHW). Hours of operation are Monday through
Friday, 7:00am to 6:00pm, Saturday and Sunday 8:00am to 5:00pm. Average annual tonnage is 186,000.

Valley County Transfer Station (Donnelly, Idaho) - WCN operates this transfer station under a long term agreement
with the County. The facility processes around 150 to 200 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial
and municipal haulers as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from Monday
through Friday. The operation consists of I tipping floor operator and one scale attendant. Waste is loaded into the
walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader. Normally, 6 to 8 loads/day are transported to the American Ecology

Landfill which is located 160 miles away.

Western Amador Recyeling Facility & Transfer Station (“WARF”) (Ione, California) WCN operates the facility
‘ier a long term operating agreement with the Amador County. The transfer facility routinely processes 100 tons of
nicipal solid waste daily. The facility also accommodates curbside collected recyclable, “Blue Bag” materials and
source separated paper, cardboard, 3 colors of glass, bimetal cans, PET & HDPE plastics, aluminum and scrap metal;
as well as, having separate facilities for C&D and inert materials. The operating hours are Monday thru Sunday
9:00am-5:00pm. Solid waste material is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The
facility is manned by 3 employees who interface with customers and operate 2 wheeled Loaders to top load into
walking floor Transfer Trailers. The waste is transported to the Forward Landfill located in Manteca, CA.

Transfer Stations Owned and Operated by WCN — the following is a listing of the 39 Transfer Station owned and
operated by WCN.

Aberdeen Transfer Station (Aberdeen, Washington). This facility accepts solid waste and recycling from both
public and private customers originating from the greater Grays Harbor County area. Material accepted includes
MSW, C&D waste, various recycling, e-waste, Asbestos, Tires, White Goods and Household Hazardous Waste
(HHW). Hours of operation are Monday through Friday, 8:00am to 5:00pm and Saturday 8:00am to 4:00pm. The

facility handles about 135,000 tons each year.

Apex Transfer Station (South Union, KY.) - This facility is permitted to accept 600 tons of MSW a day. The
operation accepts residential, commercial and industrial waste from Waste Connections Companies, the general public,

and local competitors. The facility is open from 6:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday and 6:00 am. to 12:00
p.m. Saturdays. The facility employs a scale attendant, a loader operator and a spotter. The waste is top-loaded into
walking floor trailers and transported 88 miles to Hopkins County Regional Landfill, a Waste Connections landfill
facility. The facility is operated by Waste Connections under a 20 year lease that began November 1, 2005.

athitt County Transfer Station (Jackson, Kentucky) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. Typically the
lity processes around 20 to 30 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal haulers
as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from Monday through Friday. The
operation consists of 1tipping floor operator. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader.
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Normally 1 to 2 loads/day are transported daily to the Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located 80 miles away. During a
.ical year the transfer station is expected to process over 6,500tons of material.

Campbellsville Transfer Station (Campbellsville, Kentucky) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. Typically
the facility processes around 40 to 60 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal
haulers as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:30 AM to 4:30 PM from Monday through Friday,
and from 8:00AM to 12:00 PM on Saturdays. The operation consists of 1 tipping floor operator and one scale
attendant. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader. Normally 4 to 6 loads/day are
transported daily to the Laure]l Ridge Landfill, which is located 110 miles away. During a typical year the transfer

station is expected to process over 29,000 tons of material.

Canyon City Transfer Station (Canyon City, Colorado) - This facility has a maximum handling of 500 tons of
residential and commercial waste per day but a normal average handling ofv80 tons per day. The gate hours are 8am

to Spm M-F. The facility operates with a crew of 1 equipment operators, 1 scale house operator, 0 spotter, and a site
manager. The equipment used 1 John Deere 544G front-end loader. One loader is used to push trash into the building
and into a walking floor trailer that is backed into a loading pit. The waste is transported to Fountain Landfill in

Fountain, Colorado. During a typical year the facility processes 40,000 tons of material.

Central Transfer and Recyeling (Vancouver, Washington) — This facility routinely processes about 550 tons of MSW
during a normal operating day. The operation accepts material from commercial waste collections companies and the
general public. This facility accepts recyclable material from the public within Clark County. The operating hours are
6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday. The facility operates
with a crew of three supervisors, four equipment operators, four solid waste technicians, one truck driver, six scale house
attendants, and one office administrator. The facility operates with two medium-sized wheel loaders, which continually
push solid waste directly into an MSW compactor. The facility has a third loader to move recycle boxes. This facility

‘Iects approximately 190,000 tons of solid waste per year and 19,000 tons of recyclable materials per year. The waste

ransported 13.5 miles from the transfer station to the port where it is loaded onto a barge and transported 180 miles up
river where it is then trucked 10 miles to the Finley Buttes Landfill in Boardman, Oregon. The facility also provides for
the handling of waste oil, household hazardous waste, discarded tires, metals and recyclable materials such as

newspaper, cardboard, and various plastics.

Centralia Transfer and Recycling (Centralia, Washington) — This facility routinely processes about 250 tons of

MSW during a normal operating day. The operation accepts material from commercial waste collections companies and
the general public. This facility accepts recyclable material from the public within Lewis County. The operating hours
are 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. Saturday. The facility operates with two
medium-sized wheel loaders, which load waste into open top transfer trailers. This facility collects approximately 80,000
tons of solid waste per year and 7,000 tons of recyclable materials per year. The facility also provides for the handling of
waste oil, household hazardous waste, discarded tires, metals and recyclable materials such as newspaper, cardboard, and

various plastics.

Cleveland Transfer Station (Cleveland, Tennessee) — This facility is fully permitted to accept MSW and routinely
processes about 375 tons of MSW during a normal operating day. The operations routine accepts materials from
commercials waste collections companies and from the general public. The operation typically runs from 7:00 a.m. to
4:00 p.m. and has an operating crew of 1 equipment operators, | laborer and 1 gate masters. The facility operates
with 1 medium sized wheel loaders which marshal the waste and load the materials into tipper trailers which are
stationed in a loading pit. The waste is transported to the Meadow Branch Landfill in Athens, Tennessee which is 35
miles from the transfer station. During a typical year the transfer station processed 96,000 tons.

Colorado Springs Transfer Station (Colorado Springs, Colorado) - This facility has a maximum handling of 1000,
s of residential and commercial waste per day but a nonmal average handling of 263 tons per day. The gate hours

8am to Spm M-F. The facility operates with a crew of 1 equipment operators, 1 scale house operators, | spotter,
and a site manager. The equipment used 1 John Deere 644G One loader is used to push trash into the building and into
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the walking floor trailer that is backed into a loading pit. The waste is transported to Fountain Landfill in Fountain,
lorado During a typical year the facility processed 57,000 tons of material.

Cumberland Waste Disposal Transfer Station (Crossville, TN) - This facility processes an average of 110 tons per
day of MSW and C & D material. The operations routine accepts materials from commercials waste collections

companies and from the general public. The facility hours are 7:00am - 4:00pm Monday - Friday and is operated by |
equipment operator who loads and swaps trailers and one scale attendant who is also a dispatcher. The facility operates
with one John Deere backhoe and one spotter tractor. 7th Transfer is the 3rd party vendor who hauls away the trash to
Meadow Branch Landfill in Athens, TN and to the Cumberland County Landfill in Crossville, TN. During a typical
year the transfer station has processed 17,500 tons of materials.

Curry Transfer and Recycling (Brookings, Oregon) - This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and
recyclables. The operation routinely accepts material from commercial and residential routes and some commercial

contractors. The operation runs from 7:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. This facility has an operating
crew of three people. One person handles the recyclables and two people load and spot. The facility has two medium-
size wheeled loaders; one to load the solid waste into transfer trailers and one for the recycling operation that consists
of baling and the general handling of recyclable material. This facility collects approximately 15,600 tons of solid
waste per year. The waste is transferred to the Dry Creek Landfill in Medford, Oregon, which is 140 miles away from
the transfer station. The facility accepts tin, glass, newspaper, cardboard, mixed waste paper, aluminum cans, assorted
plastics and used motor oil. The used motor oil is burned in the waste oil heater in the maintenance shop.

Floyd County Transfer Station (Langley, Kentucky) WCN operates this transfer station. Typically the facility
processes around 80 to 100 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal haulers as well
as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:30 PM from Monday through Friday. The operation
consists of | tipping floor operator and one scale attendant. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a
‘)eeled loader. Normally 4 to 5 loads/day are transported daily to the Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located
miles away. During a typical year the transfer station is expected to process over 23,000 tons of material.

Fremont Transfer Station (Fremont, Nebraska) On a normal operating day we average about 150 tons of MSW. Our
transfer station accepts waste from contractors, hauling companies and the general public. Our hours of operation are
Monday through Friday 8:00am to 5:00pm and Saturdays from 8:00am to noon. We have one operator and one scale
clerk who is an employee of the City of Fremont. We have one loader on site and a contract with Ladd Trucking to
transport our loads to the Coalition Landfill in Clarkson Nebraska, which is located about 56 miles northwest of our
facility. Our transfer station also provides collection for waste oil, used batteries and truck tires. Qur site also
provides drop off of white goods or appliances. Our facility averages about 45,000 tons per year.

Gering Transfer Station (Gering, Nebraska) The Gering Facility is fully permitted to accept as much as 200 tons of
MSW per day. Typically the facility processes around 40 to 60 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from
commercial and municipal haulers as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from
Monday through Friday, and from 8:00 AM to 12:00 PM on Saturdays. The operation consists of one tipping floor
operator and one scale attendant. Debris is pushed into the trailers with a CAT 910F Loader and packed into the trailer
with a John Deere Excavator. The trailer fleet consists of 3-53 foot walking floor trailers and 1-48 foot walking floor
trailer. Normally four to six loads are transported daily to J Bar J Landfill, which is located 127 miles away. During a
typical year the transfer station is expected to process over 23,000 tons of material.

Greer Transfer Station (Greer, South Carolina) The facility is located west of Spartanburg approximately 2 miles
northeast of the Greenville Spartanburg international airport in Greer, SC. The facility has ready access to the 1-95 and
Hwy 290 and is strategically located to serve the entire Greenville/Spartanburg market. The transfer station currently
does approximately 250 tons per day of municipal solid waste. While most of the volume coming into the transfer

tion is internally generated from the hauling operations, the operation also accepts material from other independent

‘lection companies and some minor amounts from the general public. Waste is aggregated into long haul trailers and

transported about 40 miles to the Anderson County Landfill in Benton, S.C. The operating hours are 6:00 a.m. to 4:00
p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. on Saturday. Waste Connections staff man the gate and
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coordinate customer interactions and billing. The waste marshalling operations and waste transport operations are
tracted out to a 3" party (First Tee). The contractor operates the facility with two medium-sized wheel loaders, which

ntinually marshal the waste and load into open top walking floor semi-trailers.

Green-Team of San Jose Transfer Station (San Jose, California) — This facility is fully permitted to accept as much
as 149 tons of MSW each day and routinely processes about 90 tons of MSW during a normal operating day. The

operations routine accepts materials from our fleet of Multi Family and Single Family collection vehicles in the City of
San Jose. The operation typical runs from 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and has operating crew of one person who Spots and
process flow into the trailer by remotely walking the sold waste forward. The facility operates without the use of any
loaders. The waste is transported to John Smith Landfill in san Benito County, California which is 60 miles from the
transfer station. In the case of Multi-Family solid waste, this material is transported to Z-Best for solid waste
composting and diversion. During a typical year the transfer station received approximately 24,000 tons of solid

waste.

G&W Transfer Station (Somerset, Kentucky) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. Typically the facility
processes around 90 to 120 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal haulers as well
as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:30 PM from Monday through Friday, and from 8:00
AM to 12:00 PM on Saturdays. The operation consists of 1 tipping floor operator and one scale attendant. Waste is
loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader. Normally Sto 7 loads/day are transported daily to the
Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located 48 miles away. During a typical year the transfer station is expected to process

over 26,000 tons of material

Hardy Road Transfer Station (Houston, Texas) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. The operating hours are
4:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 5:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. on Saturday. WCI staff man the gate and
coordinate customer interactions and billing. WCI operates with a crew of two scale house attendants with oversight

m the Wilson Road Hauling offices. The waste marshalling operations and waste transport operations are contracted

to a 3" party (Sprint Logistics). The contractor operates the facility with two medium-sized wheel loaders, which
continually marshal the waste and load into open top walking floor semi-trailers. The operation accepts material from
commercial waste collections companies and some minor amounts from the general public. Hardy Road currently
handles roughly 1,300 tons per day with approximately 400 to 450 tons per day from the Wilson Road hauling
operations. A portion of the volume coming out of the transfer station is going to the Waste Management Atascocita
Landfill under a transload agreement. This facility is projected to handle approximately 195,000 tons of solid waste per
year or routinely processes about 684 tons of MSW during a normal operating day.

Harlan Transfer Station (Langley, Kentucky) WCN operates this transfer station. Typically the facility processes
around 100 to 120 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal haulers as well as the
general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from Monday through Friday. The operation consists
of 1 tipping floor operator and one scale attendant. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled
loader. Normally 5 to 6 loads/day are transported daily to the Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located 62miles away.
During a typical year the transfer station is expected to process over 28,000 tons of material.

Hidden Valley Transfer & Compost (Puyallup, Washington) LRI a subsidiary of WCN, owns and operates the
facility. The transfer facility routinely processes 800 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The operating hours are
Monday thru Sunday 8:00am- 6:00pm. Solid waste material is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the
general public. The facility is manned by six employees who operate the facility for waste off-loading and loading into
an AMFAB compactor for transport to the 304" Street Landfill located in Graham, WA. During a typical year the
transfer station is expected to process over 228,000 tons of material.

Hood River Transfer Station (Hood River, Oregon) - This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and
yclables from the public and commercial customers. The operation runs from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday
ough Friday. This operation runs with two people. One person greets customers and measures each load while the

second person packs solid waste into drop boxes using a backhoe. This facility collects approximately 16,800 tons of

solid waste per year. The waste is transferred to the Wasco County Landfill in The Dalles, Oregon, approximately 30
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miles from the transfer site. The transfer station also accepts recycling, including mixed waste paper, cardboard, tin,
minum, assorted plastics, glass, used motor oil and yard debris from the general public and its residential curbside
lection. This facility collects approximately 1,255 tons of yard debris and 2,675 tons of recyclables per year.

Jordan Road Transfer Station (Englewood, Colorado) - This facility has a maximum handling of 2,200 tons of
residential and commercial waste per day but a normal average handling of 1,000 tons per day. The operations can
run from 13 to 24 hours and gate hours are 4am to Spm. The facility operates with a crew of 4 equipment operators, 2
scale house operators, | spotter, and a site manager. The equipment used is 3 Volvo 150¢ front-end loaders. One loader
is used to push trash into the building and two load walking floor trailers that are backed into a loading pit. The waste
is transported to Denver Regional Landfill in Erie, Colorado or Tower Road Landfill in Denver, Colorado. DRL is
about 40 miles from the transfer station and Tower is about 30 miles. During a typical year the facility processed

275,000 tons of material.

Lakewood transfer Station (Lakewood, Washington). This facility accepts solid waste from both LeMay hauling
companies originating from the greater Pierce County area. Material accepted includes MSW and C&D waste. Hours
of operation are Monday through Friday, 6:30am to 4:30pm. Average monthly inbound tonnage is 7,200.

Lenoir City Transfer Station (Loudon, TN) — This facility processes about 190 tons of MSW during a normal
operating day. The operations routine accepts materials from commercials waste collections conipanies. The operation

typical runs from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and has an operating crew of 1 equipment operators, I spotters and 1 gate
master. The facility operates with 1 medium sized wheel loader, which marshals the waste and loads the materials into
tipper trailers, which are stationed in a loading pit. The waste is transported to Meadow Branch landfill in Athens, TN
which is 30 miles from the transfer station. During a typical year the transfer station processed 50,000 tons or

materials.

q!rl'ey’s Disposal (Fife, Washington)-. Murrey's Transfer Station is located at 4622 70th Ave East in Fife

shington. It is a private facility owned and operated by Waste Connections Inc. dba The Murrey Companies as a
consolidation point for solid waste materials (garbage only) collected throughout the greater Pierce County area. No
other commercial solid waste collection vehicles or the public are allowed to or otherwise use the transfer station. The
facility routinely processes 400 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The operating hours are Monday through Friday
6:00am to 5:00 pm. The facility is manned by one employee who operates a Grizzly compactor to compact loads into
intermodal containers and walking floor transfer trailers. The waste is transported to the LRI 304th Street Landfill

located in Graham, WA

Nesika Beach Transfer Station (Gold Beach, Oregon) - This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and

recyclables from the public and commercial customers. This facility is a drop-off point for residential and commercial
solid waste and recyclables. The operating hours are 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Tuesday through Saturday. This
operation runs with one person who uses a backhoe to load the transfer trailers. This person takes care of both the solid
waste and the recyclables. This facility collects approximately 5,800 tons of solid waste per year. The recyclables are
loaded into roll off bins and transported to Curry Transfer and Recycling where they are baled. The waste is loaded
into transfer trailers and hauled to the Dry Creek Landfill in Medford, Oregon, which is approximately 160 miles from
the transfer site. The facility accepts tin, glass, newspaper, cardboard, mixed waste paper, aluminum cans, assorted
plastics and used motor oil. The used motor oil is burned in the waste oil heater at the maintenance shop at Curry

Transfer.

Ord Transfer Station (Ord, Nebraska) —The facility at the present time is permitted to handle 3000 cubic yards of
municipal solid waste per month. Our current permit allows only commercial loads of municipal solid waste to be
accepted; however, the public can deliver waste oil, white goods, tires, and construction debris. The station has one full
time employee that utilizes a motorized loader to move waste from the tipping floor to an open top-live floor trailers
t is stationed in a loading pit. The operation runs from 8:00a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday. The current
ration handles solid waste from approximately ten counties in north central Nebraska, which generates an average
monthly volume of 400 tons. The waste is then transported to the Butler County Landfill, 240 mile round trip away.
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Prosser Rd Transfer Station (Knoxville, TN) — This facility processes about 650 tons of MSW during a normal
irating day. The operations routine accepts materials from commercials waste collections companies. The operation
ical runs from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and has an operating crew of 2 equipment operators, 2 spotters and 2 gate
masters. The facility operates with 1 medium sized wheel loader, and | excavator, which marshal the waste and load
the materials into walking floor / tipper trailers which are stationed in a loading pit. The waste is transported to

Meadow Branch / Volunteer landfilis in Athens and Oneida, TN which are 55 miles from the transfer station. During a
typical year the transfer station processed 175,000 tons or materials.

Pueblo Transfer Station (Pueblo, Colorado) - This facility has a maximum handling of 1000tons of residential and
commercial waste per day but a normal average handling of 275 tons per day. The gate hours are 8am to 5pm M-F.
The facility operates with a crew of | equipment operators, 1 scale house operators, 1 spotter, and a site manager. The
equipment used is 1 John Deere 644J front end loader. One loader is used to push trash into the building and into the
walking floor trailer that is backed into a loading pit The waste is transported to Fountain Landfill in Fountain,

Colorado. During a typical year the facility handles 70,000 tons of material.

ucen City Transfer (Charlotte, North Carolina) - The operation accepts material from commercial waste collections
companies and some minor amounts from the general public. This facility is projected to handle approximately 161,858
tons of solid waste per year ot routinely processes about 565 tons of MSW during a normal operating day. Of this
tonnage about 33 tons per day are internally generated volume, 125 tons per day under the Waste Management transload
agreement and 100 tons per day from other 3" Parties. Waste Connections staff will man the gate and coordinate
customer interactions and billing. Waste Connections operates with a crew of two scale house attendants with oversight
from the Duncan Hauling offices. The waste marshalling operations and waste transport operations are sub-contracted
out to a third party (K R Drenth). The contractor operates the facility with two medium-sized wheel loaders, which
continually marshal the waste and load into open top walking floor semi-trailers. The waste is transported approximately

50 miles to the Anson County Landfill.

&nders County Recycling and Disposal (Wahoo, Nebraska) —In a normal operating day we average about 3.85

tons of MSW. Our transfer station accepts waste from the general public and private contractors. Our hours of
operation are noon to 3 pm on Wednesdays and 8 am through noon on Saturdays. We have one gate attendant on duty
at these times. Wahoo Sanitation transports the loads to the Butler County Landfill at David City, which is NW of
Wahoo approximately 40 miles away. Our facility averages about 400 tons per year. The transfer station also collects
waste oil, used batteries, car and truck tires, and appliances. We also have on site recycling bins available.

Sales Road Transfer (Lakewood, Washington) LRI a subsidiary of WCN, owns and operates the facility. The
transfer facility routinely processes 60 tons of Woodwaste daily. The operating hours are Monday thru
Sunday 8:00am-4:30pm. Woodwaste is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The
facility is manned by three employees. The waste is transported to the 304" Street Landfill located in Graham, WA.

Southern Disposal Transfer Station (Memphis TN) — The station receives waste typically from 12:00am to 6:00pm
five days a week with limited usage on the weekends. Average daily volumes are 650 tons per day. The station
accepts municipal solid waste or MSW and construction debris or C&D. Operation of the station, loading and
transportation is contracted to a third party service provider who regularly operates with a crew of six employee’s that
make up two shifts with two operators and a laborer per shift. The facility is newly constructed and opened for use in
November of 2005. 1t is approximately 100° by 100 in size with two staggered loading bays on the east side of the
building. Loading is accomplished with a wheel loader and tamping is performed with an excavator. The waste is
loaded into 53° flat bottom trailers that are transported 71 miles to the Walnut Landfill where they are offloaded
mechanically via a tipper. During a typical year the transfer station has processed 140,000 tons.

Sweet Home Transfer Station (Sweet Home, Oregon) — This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and
yclables from the public and commercial customers. This facility is a drop-off point for residential and commercial
id waste and recyclables. The operating hours are 10:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Tuesday through Saturday. There are
two attendant/operators at this facility who collect money from customers, monitor the recycling drop-off area, general
cleanup, bale recyclables and load the transfer trailers using a backhoe. This facility collects approximately 15,600
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tons of solid waste per year and approximately 18,000 tons of wood, metal, yard debris and other recyclables.
Qstomers dump the solid waste into roll off containers, which are then hauled to the Coffin Butte Landfill in
rvallis, Oregon, approximately 45 miles from the transfer site. Site operators pick out recyclable wood, cardboard,
metal, aluminum and other materials before loading the remaining solid waste into the roll off containers. Source
separated recyclables collected on-site include scrap metal, white goods, tin, aluminum, cardboard, wood, yard debris,
glass, newspaper, waste paper, lead acid batteries, tires, assorted plastics, used motor oil and electronic waste. A reuse
area displays materials customers can take for their own use. Commingled curbside recycling is consolidated and
hauled to SP Newsprint in Portland, approximately 95 miles from the transfer site.

The Dalles Transfer Station (The Dalles, Oregon) — This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and
recyclables from the public and commercial customers. The operation runs from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday
through Saturday. This operation runs with one person who greets customers, measures loads and directs customers to
the tip floor. Solid waste is moved via conveyor belt into transfer trailers, which is then packed with a backhoe. This
facility collects approximately 1,440 tons of solid waste per year. The waste is transferred to the Wasco County
Landfill in The Dalles, Oregon, approximately 20 miles from the transfer site. The transfer station also accepts
recycling, including mixed waste paper, cardboard, tin, aluminum, assorted plastics, glass, used motor oil and yard
debris from the general public and its residential curbside collection. This facility collects approximately 300 tons of

yard debris and 1,500 tons of recyclables per year.

Tehama County MRF (Red Bluff, California) WCN operates the facility under a long terin operating agreement with
the Amador County. The transfer facility routinely processes 175 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The facility also
accommodates curbside collected recyclable and source separated paper, cardboard, 3 colors of glass, bimetal cans,
PET & HDPE plastics, aluminum and scrap metal; as well as, having separate facilities for wood & green waste, C&D
and inert materials. The operating hours are Monday thru Friday 8:00am-4:30pm and Saturday and Sunday 8:00am-
2:30pm. Solid waste materia! is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The facility is

nned by 8 employees who interfaces with the customers and operates a 2 wheeled Loader to top load into Roll-Off

.ntainers. The waste is transported to the Tehama County Landfill located adjacent to the MRF.

Victor Transfer Station: (Victor, Montana) - VTS currently handles 125-150 tons of solid waste per day. The
facility accepts waste from Bitterroot Disposal as well as the general public. Our hours of operation are 8-4, Monday
thru Saturday. We accept tires, C & D, and MSW. We don’t take any Hazardous Waste. Victor Transfer is at

capacity with the current equipment.

Wayne County Transfer Station (Monticello, Kentucky) WCN owns & operates this transfer station. Typically the
facility processes around 20 to 30 tons per day. The operation accepts waste from commercial and municipal haulers
as well as the general public. Operating hours are from 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM from Monday through Friday. The
operation consists of 1 tipping floor operator. Waste is loaded into the walking floor trailers with a wheeled loader.
Normally 1 to 2 loads/day are transported daily to the Laurel Ridge Landfill, which is located 61 miles away. During a
typical year the transfer station is expected to process over 7,000 tons of material.

West Coast Recyeling and Transfer (Coos Bay, Oregon) — This facility is fully permitted to accept solid waste and

recyclables from the public and commercial customers. The operation runs from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday
through Saturday, May through October and 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday, November through
April. There are three people who operate this facility; one traffic booth attendant, one spotter and one loader
operator. This facility collects approximately 24,000 tons of solid waste per year. Residential and commercial
customers and route trucks dump at this transfer station, The solid waste is moved via conveyor belt into a compactor
and then loaded into transfer trailers and hauled to either the Beaver Hill Disposal Site in Coos County, approximately
18 miles from the transfer site or to the Coffin Butte Landfill in Corvallis, Oregon, approximately 150 miles from the
transfer site. The transfer station also accepts recycling, including mixed waste paper, cardboard, tin, aluminum,

orted plastics, glass, used motor oil, lead acid batteries, electronic waste and yard debris from the general public.

recyclable materials are commingled with the exception of glass, yard debris, electronic waste, batteries and motor
oil. Approximately 2,400 tons of recyclable materials are collected per year.
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West Vancouver Materials Recovery Center (Vancouver, Washington) — This facility routinely processes about
tons of MSW during a normal operating day. The operation accepts material from commercial customers and the
eral public. This facility also processes all curbside recycling from within Clark County, which equates to
approximately 190 tons per day. The operating hours are 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. for the general public and 4:00 a.m. to
7:30 p.m. for commercial haulers Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Saturday. The facility
operates with a crew of three supervisors, three equipment operators, six solid waste technicians, two truck drivers,
three scale house attendants, one office administrator, and three maintenance personnel. The facility operates with two
medium-sized wheel loaders, which continually push onto an in-feed conveyor, which loads an MSW compactor.
There are also two additional loaders used for recyclable products such as compost, wood chips, and paper products.
This facility collects approximately 150,000 tons of solid waste per year and 60,000 tons of recyclable materials per
year. The waste is transported half a mile from the transfer station to the port where it is loaded onto a barge and
transported 180 miles up river where it is then trucked 10 miles to the Finley Buttes Landfill in Boardman, Oregon.
The facility also provides for the handling of waste oil, household hazardous waste, discarded tires, metals and
recyclable materials such as newspaper, cardboard, and various plastics.

Western El Dorado Recovery System Facility (“WERS”) (Placerville California) WCN owns and operates this
facility. The transfer facility routinely processes 400 tons of municipal solid waste daily. The facility also
accommodates curbside collected recyclables , “Blue Bag” materials and source separated paper, cardboard, mixed
glass, bimetal cans, PET & HDPE plastics, aluminum and scrap metal; as well as, having separate facilities for wood
& green waste, C&D and inert materials. The operating hours are Monday thru Sunday 8:00am- 5:00pm. Solid waste
material is accepted from Commercial Waste Haulers and from the general public. The facility is manned
by 30 employees who interface with the customers and operate various equipment to top load into walking floor
Transfer Trailers, end dumps and possum belly trucks. The waste is transported to the Kiefer Landfill located in
Sacramento County, CA, the Forward Landfill located in Stockton, CA. Single stream recyclable materials are

transported to Pacific Rim Recyclers for additional processing.

.chita Transfer Station (Wichita, Kansas) This facility is fully permitted to accept 4000 tons per day of MSW and
routinely processes 1500 TPD of MSW during a normal operating day. The building sits on 17 acres and the building
itself is 38,000 sq. feet in size. The operations routine accepts materials from commercial waste collection companies,
residential waste collection companies and the general public as well. There are six receiving bays with one being set
aside for the general public where commercial or residential trucks are not allowed. There are two load bays where by
the loaders which are 960 Cat wheel loaders marshal the trash to throughout the day. The loaders load the materials
into 53 foot aluminum tipper trailers, The hours of operation of the facility are 4:00 am to 6:00pm Monday thru
Friday, Saturday 6:00am to 4:00pm and Sunday 8:00 am to 2:00pm. The waste is transported to our Plume Thicket
Landfill located Harper, Kansas. We currently contract out the loading, and transportation of this process to a
company called MBI who use 35 tractor-trailer rigs to transport these loads each day. The facility is manned by a
supervisor, one scale master, two spotters and two litter pickers/laborers who are WCI employees and MBI has three
wheel loader operators and 35 tractor trailer drivers.  The facility also provides for the handling of appliances, C&D
materials and tires, which are all, banned by local ordinance from being accepted in the transfer station. This is done
with a convenience center located outside the facility using open top roll-off boxes setting down in pits. During a
typical year the transfer station will process 350,000 tons of MSW.

Landfill & Transfer Station References

We have provided a listing of references for our transfer station & landfill operating contracts, State and local
regulatory officials and facilities inspectors (LEA). The list is accurate and correct as of January 7, 2008 but is subject

to changes after that date.

Landfill & Traunsfer Station Contract References

iy of Avenal 559-386-5766 Court House, Suite 11
issa Whitien Lovington, NM 88260-4030
919 Skyline Boulevard Lea County 505-396-8521

Avenal, CA 93204 Randy Smith
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Leflore County
Abraham
W. Market Street
Greenwood, MS 38930
Phone: (662)455-3904
Fax: (662)455-7965

Madera County

Stell Manfredi

200 West 4th Street
Madera, CA 93637
Telephone (559) 675-7703

Northeast Mississippi Solid Waste
Management Authority

Hale Aust

County Maintenance Facility,
Highway 4

State/Local Regulatory Official

LEA for Amador County
Tim Hall

810 Court Street
Jackson, CA 95642
209.223.6439
thall@co.amador.ca.us

,4 for El Dorado County
emuel (Lem) Estolas
3091 County Center Drive, Suite 180

Auburn, CA 95603
Phone: (530) 745-2300

LEA for Kings County
Troy Hommerding
330 Campus Drive
Hanford, CA 93230
559-584-1411

LEA for Madera County
Jill Nishi

2037 W. Cleveland
Madera, CA 93637
559-675-71817

LEA for Placer County

Debra Kirshman

3091 County Center Drive, Suite 180
Aubum, CA 95603

Phone: {(530) 745-2300

LEA for San Benito County
Ray Stevens
1 San Felipe Road,
e 101
Hollister, CA 95023
Phone: (831) 636-4035

Ripley, MS 38663
(662) 728-4667

NNSWC

Gary Lund

610 E. Monroe Avenue
Norfolk, NE 68701
402-644-8715

San Benito County
Mandy Rose

3220 Southside Road
Hollister, CA 95023
831-636-4110

Tehama County/City of Red Bluff
Management Agency
Alan Abbs

LEA for San Jose

Sharon Clute

City of San Jose

Department of Planning, Building,
and

Cade Enforcement

170 W San Carlos St
San Jose, CA 95113
Phone: (408) 277-8472
Fax: (408)277-3290

LEA San Louis Obispo
Mr. Jeff Hackett
CIWMB

PO Box 4025
Sacramento, CA 95812
916-341-6000

LEA for Tehama County
Allen Fleming

633 Washington Street
Red Bluff, CA 96080
530-527-8020

Pierce County, WA

Andy Comstock

3629 South D Street

Tacoma, WA 98418-6813 253 798-
6538

State of Colorado

Doug Ickenberry and

Jetry Henderson.

4300 Chenry Creek Drive S
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19995 Plymire Road
Red Bluff, CA 96080
530-528-1102

Three Rivers Regional Waste
Management Authority

75 S. Main Street

PO Box 690

Pontotoc, MS 38863

Ronnie Bell

662/489-2415

Western Placer JPA
Bill Zimmerman
11476 C Avenue
Auburn, CA. 95603
916-645-5180

Denver, CO 80222-1530
303-692-3437 or
303-692-3455

State of Illinois

John Tripses

7620 North University Street, Suite
201

Peoria, [L 61614

(309) 693-5462

State of Kansas

William Bider

1000 SW Jackson, Suite 320
Topeka, KS 66612-1366
785-296-1612

State of Kentucky
Ronald Gruzesky

14 Reilly Road
Frankfort, KY 40601
502-564-6716

State of Minnesota
Corey Boeck

1601 E. Hwy 12, Suite 1
Willmar, MN 56201
320-214-3786

Mississippi DEQ

Billy Warden

PO Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385
(601) 961-5047

Fax (601) 961-5703
billy_warden@deq.state.ms.us
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State of Montana

k Thompson

0 E. Sixth Avenue
P.O. Box 200901
Helena, MT 59620-0901
Phone: 406-444-5345
Fax: 406-444-4386

State of Nebraska

Bill Gidley

1200 N Street, Suite 400
Lincoln, NE 68509-8922
402-471-2186

State of New Mexico
George (Chuck) Akeley
1190 Saint Francis Drive
Santa Fe, NM 87503
505-827-2853

State of Oklahoma

Greg Garber/ Dee Ready Inspector
707 North Robinson

Oklahoma City, OK 73101-1677
405-702-5100

State of Oregon

¢ Gingerich
East Scenic Drive, #307

e Dalles, OR 97058-3434
541-298-7330

State of Tennessee

Mike Apple, Director

5th Floor, L&C Tower
401 Church Street
Nashville, TN 37243-1535
615-532-0780

State of Tennessee

Guy Moose

Management of Solid (Trash) &
Hazardous Wastes

Chattancoga Environmental Field
Office

Key Personnel

540 McCallie Avenue,
Suite 550

State Office Bldg
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Phone: (423) 634-5745
Fax: (423) 634-6389

State of Tennessee

Larry Cook

Management of Solid (Trash) &
Hazardous Wastes

Knoxville Environmental Field
Office

3711 Middlebrook Pike

Knoxville, TN 37921 Phone: (865)
594-6035 FAX: (865) 594-6105

Manager MSW Permits Section -
TCEQ in Austin

Dr. Richard Carnmichael,
Municipal Solid Waste Permits
Section — MC 124

Texas Comumission on
Environmental Quality

12100 Park 35 Circle, Building F
Austin, TX 78753

(512) 239-6784

TCEQ Project Manager for
Seabreeze LF

Mr. Eric Beller

Geologist

Municipal Solid Waste Permits
Section — MC 124

Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality

12100 Park 35 Circle, Building F
Austin, TX 78753
(512)239-1177

TCEQ Project Manager for Hardy
Road TS

Mr. Charles Ouseph, Ph.D, P.E.
Project Manager

Municipal Solid Waste Pennits
Section — MC 124

Waste Permits Division

Texas Commission on
Environmenta! Quality

12100 Park 35 Circle, Building F
Austin, TX 78753

(512) 239-3269

TCEQ Enforcement in Houston
Waste Section Manager, TCEQ
Region 12

Ms. Nicole Bealle

TCEQ Region 12

5425 Polk Ave., Ste. H
Houston, TX 77023-1452
(713) 767-3500

State of Washington
Department of Ecology,

Solid Waste and

Financial Assistance

Cullen Stephenson

Program Manager

P.O. Box 47600, Olympia, WA
98504-7600

(360) 407-6103

Weld County

Departinent of Public Health &
Environment

Deborah Blandin

1555 N | 7th Avenue

Greeley Co.80631
dblandin@co.weld.co.us
(970)304-6415 ext.2216

Fax (970)304-6411

State of Wyoming
Environmental Quality

‘ Robert W. Breuer

122 West 25th St, Herschler Building
Cheyenne 82002

Ph. 307-473-3454

Fax 307-777-7682

WCIT & Waste Connections, Inc. has assembled a management team that has gained extensive and proven hands-
on experience managing every aspect of today’s municipal transfer stations and landfills. This combined expertise
adds up to well over 100 years and includes every facet of design, permitting, construction, operation, monitoring,
closure and post-closure maintenance to landfill gas collection and treatment, groundwater remediation, and
hazardous waste site and superfund site management. The experience was garnered at hundreds of transfer stations,
andfills or remediation projects and covered most of the fifty states.

Local North Carolina Area Management
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qim Fadul serves as the Divisional Vice President and has oversight of the entire North and South Carolina area

arketplace for Waste Connections. He joined Waste Connections, Inc. in 2003, and has served as the District
Manager for the Memphis Tennessee market place before coming to North Carolina in 2009. Mr. Fadul has 24
years experience in the solid waste industry, starting with Chambers Development in 1986 and then USA Waste
Services after it acquired Chambers Development in 1995 and continued with Waste Management after its merger
in 1998. Through that time, Mr, Fadul has held various operational and general management roles of increasing
responsibility. Mr. Fadul holds a B.S. degree in Public Service from West Liberty State College.

Tyler Fitzgerald ~serves as the Division Landfill Manager with oversight of Anson Landfill in Anson County,
North Carolina, Anderson Regional landfill in Anderson, South Carolina and Peachland Hauling in Polkton, NC.
M. Fitzgerald has nineteen years experience in the solid waste industry, which began with Chambers Development
in 1991. USA Waste Services purchased Chambers Development in 1995 that became Waste Management through
a merger in 1998. Before joining Waste Connections in April of 2009, Mr. Fitzgerald was serving as General
Manager for Kimble Companies, a privately owned and operated solid waste services company in Ohio. Mr.
Fitzgerald holds a B.A. in Economics and Business Administration from the University of Pittsburgh.

Regional Staff

Chris Ruane serves as our Regional Vice President. Mr. Ruane has worked in the solid waste industry for 19 years.
He started working in the solid waste ficld in 1988 as a financial analyst for Chambers Development Company Inc.
In 1989, Mr. Ruane began managing a project services group supporting solid waste development and construction
projects for Chambers. In 1991, Mr. Ruane entered general management and advanced in this capacity with
increased responsibility with other publicly traded companies such as Sanifill, USA Waste Services, Inc., and
Waste Management, Inc. Mr. Ruane joined Waste Connections in December 2002.

wri Shaner, P.E. serves as our Regional Engineer. Mr. Shaner has worked in the solid waste industry for 19 years.
He started working in the solid waste field in 1988 as a consulting engineer. In 1990, Mr. Shaner began managing
engineering and construction projects for Chambers Development Company Inc (Chambers merged into USA
Waste and was renamed Waste Management, Inc.). Mr. Shaner has held positions of increased responsibility with
Chambers, USA Waste, and Waste Management until joining Waste Connections in April 2002.

James Norstrom has 22 years of experience in the solid waste industry in various engineering and environmental
positions such as Region Engineering Manager, Director of Environmental Due Diligence, and Senior Director of
Engineering. Prior to his solid waste experience, he conducted geotechnical engineering studies for high-rise
buildings, highways and bridges, and offshore platforms. He has a Masters Degree in Geotechnical Engineering and
Bachelors Degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Illinois, and he is registered professional engineer in

Texas.

Corporate Staff

Ronald J. Mittelstaeds has been CEO of Waste Connections, Inc. since the company was formed, and was elected
Chairman of the Board of Directors in January 1998. Prior to founding Waste Connections, Inc., Mr. Mittelstaedt
gained extensive direct managerial experience over numerous transfer stations and landfills in the Western United
States and Canada, Mr. Mittelstaedt has more than ten years of experience in the solid waste industry. He served
with United Waste Systems, Inc., as Executive Vice President, from January 1997 to August 1997, where he was
responsible for corporate development for all states west of Colorado. As Regional Vice President of USA Waste
Services, Inc. (and their predecessor company Sanifill, Inc.) from November 1993 to January 1997, he was
responsible for all operations in 16 states and Canada. Mr. Mittelstaedt held various positions at Browning-Ferris
Industries, Inc. from August 1987 to November 1993, most recently as Division Vice President in Northern
Qalifomia, overseeing the San Jose market. Previously he was the District Manager responsible for BFI's operations
Sacramento and the surrounding areas. Mr. Mittelstaedt holds a B.S. in Finance from the University of California

at Santa Barbara.
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.\ Sacramento and the surrounding areas. Mr. Mittelstaedt holds a B.S. in Finance from the University of California
t Santa Barbara.

Sreven F. Bouck serves as President of Waste Connections, Inc. Mr. Bouck joined Waste Connections, Inc. in
February 1998. Mr. Bouck held various positions with First Analysis Corporation from 1986 to 1998, including
most recently as Managing Director coordinating corporate finance. In that capacity, he provided merger and
acquisition advisory services to companies in the environmental industry. Mr. Bouck was also responsible for
assisting in investing venture capital funds focused on the environmental industry that were managed by First
Analysis. In connection with those investments, he served on the board of directors of several companies. While at
First Analysis, Mr. Bouck also provided analytical research coverage for a number of publicly traded environmental
services companies. Mr. Bouck holds B.S. and M.S. degrees in mechanical engineering from Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute and an M.B.A. in Finance from the Wharton School. He has been a Chartered Financial

Analyst since 1990.

Darrell W. Chambliss has been Vice President of Operations since October 1, 1997. Prior to joining Waste
Connections, Mr. Chambliss gained extensive experience with numerous municipal solid waste transfer stations and
landfills. Mr. Chambliss has held various management positions at USA Waste Services, Inc. (including Sanifill,
Inc. and United Waste, Inc., both of which were acquired by USA Waste Services, Inc.) from April 1995 to
September 1997, including most recently Division Manager in Corning, California, where he was responsible for
the operations of 19 operating companies as well as supervising and integrating acquisitions. From July 1989 to
April 1995, he held various management positions with Browning-Ferris Industries, Inc., including serving as
Assistant District Manager in San Jose, California, and as District Manager in Tucson, Arizona for more than three
years. Mr. Chambliss holds a B.S. in Business Administration from the University of Arkansas.

im Little has been Waste Connections, Inc.’s Vice President of Engineering since October 1999. Prior to joining
e company, Mr. Little gained extensive experience in transfer station and landfill management and engineering.
From November 1996 to October 1999, Mr. Little served as Regional Landfill Manager for Waste Management,
Inc. From April 1986 to November 1996, M. Little held several managerial and technical positions in the solid

waste and environmental industry.

Scoit Schreiber has been Waste Connections, Inc.’s Vice President of Disposal Operations since February 2009.
Prior to then, Mr. Schreiber served as Director of Landfill Operations since October 1998. Priot to Joining the
company, Mr. Schreiber gained extensive experience in transfer station and landfill management. From September
1993 to September 1998, Mr. Schreiber served as Director of Landfill Development and Director of Environmental
Compliance for Allied Waste Industries. From August 1988 to September 1993, Mr. Schreiber served has Regional
Engineer and Director of Landfill Development for Laidlaw Waste Systems. From June 1979 to August 1988, Mr.
Schreiber held several managerial and technical positions in the solid waste and environmnental industry.
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PROJECT APPROACH

The purpose of this Exhibit is to outline in detail how Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc. will meet
the needs of the City of Greensboro Municipal Solid Waste Management Services. The base term for the
contract will commence July 1, 2012.

Waste Connections understands fully that it will be our responsibility for providing, if awarded, day to day
transfer station operations, loading of material and hauling to the disposal site. Once the city awards the
contract, equipment will be finalized for delivery and service based on the contract guidelines. We will use
two (2) D-155 Komatsu Dozers, one (1) PC 490 Excavator, two (2) 250E off-road trucks, one (1) water
truck , one (1), one (1) 90,000 Ib. Trash Compactor, and support equipment. There will be one (1) site
manager to operate the site on a daily basis with four (4) or five (5) equipment operators. The proximity of
the Bishop Road facility will be an asset in ensuring issues are resolved and/ or corrected in a timely
manner. The necessary backup equipment and personnel will be readily available at the Bishop Road
facility. The strong ties with our vendors throughout the local piedmont area to provide us with fuel, parts
and equipment will allow expedient start up of the project. John Tucker & Associates, David Garrett P.E.,
P.G. will be utilized to ensure compliance and regulatory processes and procedures.

Consistent communication between Waste Connections and the City of Greensboro will allow up to date
information and future opportunities.

Milestones

Award of Contract June 5, 2012
Contract Negotiations June 22, 2012
Equipment Delivery June 22-30, 2012
Co-ordination with City for project start up June 6 — 22, 2012
Database set up for billing June 25, 2012
Service start July 1, 2012

Site Manager/personnel will be on site (City of Greensboro) to coordinate, resolve questions and requests
of City personnel.

WNWASTE CONINECTIONS, INC.

Corzerzect with zhe Fzezaere

2012

February 23,
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WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC
Connecs with the Future

Financial Stability and Statement

Waste Connections of North Carolina, Inc. to date does not have current or prior bankruptcy
proceedings. Please find enclosed the most recent annual report with audited financial reports of
the corporation.




NORTH CAROLINA
Department of the Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION

I, Elaine F. Marshall, Secretary of State of the State of North Carolina, do hereby
cettify that
WASTE CONNECTIONS OF NORTH CAROLINA, INC.

a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware was authorized to transact
business in the State of North Carolina by issuance of a certificate of authority on the 9th

day of March, 2009,

I FURTHER certify that the said corporation's certificate of authority is not
suspended for failure to comply with the Revenue Act of the State of North Carolina; that
the said corporation's certificate of authority is.not revoked for failure to comply with the
provisions of the North Carolina Business Corporation Act; that its most recent annual
report required by G.S. 55-16-22 has been delivered to the Secretary of State; and that a
certificate of withdrawal has not been issued in the name of the said corporation as of the

date of this certificate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto sct
my hand and affixed my official scal at the City
of Raleigh;his-9th-day -of Janbary, 2012.

. Secretary of State .

Scan to verify online.

_..Certification 92203119-1_Reference#l 10807616- Page: [ of ..
Verify this certificate online at wivw.secretary.state.nc.us/verification
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Delaware ...

The First State

7, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "WASTFE CONNECTIONS OF NORTH
CAROLINA, INC." IS DULY INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE
OF DELAWARE AND IS IN GOOD STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL CORPORATE
EXISTENCE SO FAR AS THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE
SIXTH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D. 2012.

AND T DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE SAID "WASTE

CONNECTIONS OF NORTH CARCLINA, INC." WAS INCORPORATED ON THE

TWENTY-SIXTH DAY OF FEBRUARY, A.D. 2009.
AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE FRANCHISE TAXES

HAVE BEEN PAID TO DATE.
AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL REPORTS HAVE

BEEN FILED TO DATE.

S S P Cepmmet e g e

SQZK

4659944 8300
120022881

- You. may..verdfy. .this.cartificate-onlino .
at corp.dslaware. gov/authvez shtml

I\) Jeffray W Bullock. Secretary of State
AUTHEN TION' 9280450

DATE 01~ 06'—-12




Waste CoNNECTIONS INC.

Contnect with the Fitture®

CORPORATE OFFICE

35 Iron Paint Clrcle, Suite 200
Folsom, CA 95630
Phone- 916-608-8200
Fax- 916-351-0249
Federal |.D. # 94-3283464

Ron J. Mittelstaedt — Chief Executive Officer
_ - Steven F. Bouck — Presldent
Worthing Jackman — Executive Vice President and Chlef Financial Officer

BANK REFERENCE

Bank of America {Credit Inquiries)
100 Federal Street
Boston, MA 02110
Phone- 415-343-9301 (Fax Inquiries Only)

Account # 0052285556
CREDIT REFERENCES
Western Peterbilt, inc. Valley Aggregate Transport
P O Box 24065 753 N. George Washington Bivd
Seatile, WA 98124 Yuba City, CA 95993
_ Requiests by fax only 530-821-2600 Phone
206-903-6967
MoNeilus Truck & Manufacturing Co.  Shartéls, Friese LLP
Alth:; Accounting Manager One Maritime Plaza, 18" Floor
P OBox 70 A San Francisco, CA 94111
Dodge Center, MN 55627 - 415-421-6600 Phone
909-370-0739 Fax - 415-421-2922 Fax
Bridgeport Manufacturing Inc
P OBox 217
Bridgepont, TX 76426
800-800-5485 Phone
940-683-5475 Fax

35 Iron Point Circle, Suite 200 « Folsom, CA 9'5630-858‘9 Lol (916) 608-8200 + Fax (916) 608-8290 » www. WasceConneciions.com
@




MAKING THE RIGHT MOVES

WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.
2011 ANNUAL REPORT




DIFFERENTIATED MARKETS

WESTERN REGION

59 COLLECTION OPERATIONS
24 TRANSFER STATIONS
10 LANDFILLS
26 RECYCLING OPERATIONS
7 INTERMODAL

CENTRAL REGION

52 COLLECTION OPERATIONS
12 TRANSFER STATIONS

23 LANDFILLS

13 RECYCLING OPERATIONS



DIFFERENTIATED RESULTS

MAP LEGEND
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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

Making the Right Moves... as important in business as in life. For Waste Connections,
making the right moves involves market selection, capital deployment, a guiding set of
operating values, personnel development, and corporate headquarters location. It also
involves the tireless efforts of our 6,000 employees in making a positive impact on the
customers and communities we are privileged to serve. Together, the right moves have

resulted in superior financial performance and value creation for our stockholders.

Waste Connections is the premier provider of solid waste services in mostly exclusive
and secondary markets across the United States. Our differentiated strategy targets
markets that have strong demographic growth trends and where competitive barriers
exist. Approximately half of our revenue is derived from markets where we have

long—term, exclusive arrangements to provide our services.

We prefer to avoid highly competitive, large urban markets, where a punitive
price/market share trade-off makes sustainable value creation difficule. Put simply,
since solid waste is treated like a commodity in urban America, our market strategy
seeks to avoid these areas. We have adhered to this strategy since our founding, and
today our operations across 30 states generate the highest operating and free cash flow

margins among U.S. publicly-traded solid waste companies.

Our results in 2011 once again demonstrated the benefits of our differentiated
strategy within the solid waste industry. Revenue in 2011 grew 14.1% to
$1.51 billion, and net income, on an adjusted basis, increased 15.6% to $167.6 million.

Frec cash flow was $254.5 million, or $2.24 per diluted share, up 23.1%.

We also deployed over $480 million in 2011 for capiral expenditures and acquisitions
to reinvest in and expand our business. We signed or closed acquisitions with
annualized revenue of approximately $200 million, a single year record for us,
including new market entries in Alaska and New York’s Hudson Valley. We returned
more than $150 million of capital to stockholders through the repurchase of common

stock and cash dividends, and increased our regular quarterly cash dividend by 20%.



The strength of our financial profile was affirmed by S&P, who upgraded our credit

rating to “BBB”, now among the highest within our sector.

Stockholders were again rewarded for these record results as our Total Shareholder
Return, or TSR, in 2011 was 21.6%, compared to 2.1% for the S&P 500 Index and
-7.6% for our solid waste industry peer group, making 2011 our eighth consecutive
year for positive stockholder returns. For the five-year period ending December 31,
2011 (a period commencing before the start of the “Great Recession”), our TSR was
81.5%, casily outpacing the approximately -1.2% TSR for the S&P 500 Index and
11.6% for our solid waste industry peer group over the same period. Our free cash
flow per diluted share, the measure that we believe is the best gauge of value creation,
increased 143.5% over that same five-year period. The directional similarities in
growth of our TSR and free cash flow per diluted share over both one and five-year

periods confirm our belief in this correlation.

While our past successes provide a solid foundation for the future, we recognize that
there are headwinds that will make 2012, our 15t anniversary, a challenging year.
These stem primarily from recent declines in recycling commodity values, soaring fuel
prices and dampened volume growth from the loss of lower-priced disposal volumes
at one of our largest landfills. Making the Right Moves will again be key to our success
in this environment. Pricing discipline, tight costs controls, employee development,
and potential acquisitions will position us for continuing growth and margin

expansion as these headwinds begin to dissipate in late 2012.

Headwinds or not, our operating values—Safety, Integrity, Customer Service, To Be a
Great Place to Work, and To Be the Premier Solid Waste Services Company in the U.S.
—guide our daily actions and decisions. As Safety is our #1 value, we are pleased to report
that we had fewer incidents in 2011 than in 2003 when we were almost one-third of our
current size. Please excuse the play on words...but this improvement was no accident.

Our employees have the training, coaching, resources and incentives for continuous

. “ .. N : . ..
improvement. A “zero-incident” culture is the least we owe our families and communities.
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Making the Right Moves for us in 2012 also includes the relocation of our corporate
headquarters to The Woodlands, Texas. Our expanding geographic reach and expected
continuing growth required us to make an objective assessment of the most effective
location for our corporate headquarters. The Woodlands offers our employees a more
centrally located, lower cost, business and tax friendly environment that should
ideally position us for our next growth phase. California was a good location for the
earlier stages of our Company. But The Woodlands provides better accessibility to our

operations across 30 states and improved ability to attract and retain personnel.
Our stockholders should be pleased to know that the vast majority of our corporate
employees plan to relocate. We think this speaks volumes for our culture, and we

thank them for their commitment to Waste Connections.

Thank you for your continued support as we enter our 15th year.

Ronald J. Mittelstaedt Steven E. Bouck

CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Our Company

Waste Connections, Inc. is an integrated solid waste services company that provides solid waste collection, transfer, disposal and
recycling services in mostly exclusive and secondary markets in the U.S. We provide intermodal services for the rail haul movement
of cargo and solid waste containers in the Pacific Northwest through a network of seven intermodal facilities. We also treat and
dispose of non-hazardous waste that is generated in the exploration and production of oil and natural gas primarily at a facility in
Southwest Louisiana. As of December 31, 2011, we served more than two million residential, commercial and industrial customers
from a network of operations in 29 states: Alabama, Arizona, California, Colorado, Idaho, Illinois, lowa, Kansas, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina,
Oklahoma, Oregon, South Carolina, South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Washington and Wyoming. As of December 31, 2011,
we owned or operated a network of 140 solid waste collection operations, 58 transfer stations, seven intermodal facilities, 39 recycling
operations, 46 active landfills, and one exploration and production waste treatment and disposal facility.

We are a leading provider of solid waste services in most of our markets. We have focused on exclusive and secondary markets
because we believe that those areas offer:

e opportunities to enter into exclusive arrangements;

e more competitive barriers to entry;

e less competition from larger solid waste services companies;

e  projected economic and population growth rates that will contribute to the growth of our business; and
e anumber of independent solid waste services companies suitable for acquisition.

Our senior management team has extensive experience in operating, acquiring and integrating solid waste services businesses,
and we intend to continue to focus our efforts on balancing internal and acquisition-based growth. We anticipate that a part of our
future growth will come from acquiring additional solid waste collection, transfer and disposal businesses and, therefore, we expect
that additional acquisitions could continue to affect period-to-period comparisons of our operating results.

Waste Connections, Inc. is a Delaware corporation organized in 1997.
Our Operating Strategy

Our operating strategy seeks to improve financial returns and deliver superior stockholder value creation within the solid waste
industry. We seek to avoid highly competitive, large urban markets and instead target markets where we can provide non-integrated
or integrated solid waste services under exclusive arrangements or where we can operate on an integrated basis while attaining high
market share. The key components of our operating strategy, which are tailored to the competitive and regulatory factors that affect
our markets, are as follows:

Control the Waste Stream. In markets where waste collection services are provided under exclusive arrangements, or where
waste disposal is municipally funded or available at multiple municipal sources, we believe that controlling the waste stream by
providing collection services is often more important to our profitability and growth than owning or operating landfills. In addition,
contracts in some Western U.S. markets in which we operate dictate the disposal facility to be used. The large size of many western
states increases the cost of interstate and long haul disposal, heightening the effects of regulations that direct or otherwise restrict
waste disposal, which may make it more difficult for a landfill to obtain the disposal volume necessary to operate profitably. In
markets with these characteristics, we believe that landfill ownership or vertical integration is not as critical to our success.

Provide Vertically Integrated Services. In markets where we believe that owning landfills is a strategic element to a collection
operation because of competitive and regulatory factors, we generally focus on providing integrated services, from collection through
disposal of solid waste in landfills that we own or operate.

Manage on a Decentralized Basis. We manage our operations on a decentralized basis. This places decision-making authority
close to the customer, enabling us to identify and address customers’ needs quickly in a cost-effective manner. We believe that
decentralization provides a low-overhead, highly efficient operational structure that allows us to expand into geographically
contiguous markets and operate in relatively small communities that larger competitors may not find attractive. We believe that this



structure gives us a strategic competitive advantage, given the relatively rural nature of many of the markets in which we operate, and
makes us an attractive buyer to many potential acquisition candidates.

As of December 31, 2011, we delivered our services from approximately 180 operating locations grouped into three regions: our
Western Region is comprised of operating locations in California, Idaho, Montana, Nevada, Oregon, Washington and western
Wyoming; our Central Region is comprised of operating locations in Arizona, Colorado, Kansas, Louisiana, Minnesota, Nebraska,
New Mexico, Oklahoma, South Dakota, Texas, Utah and eastern Wyoming; and our Eastern Region is comprised of operating
locations in Alabama, Illinois, Iowa, Kentucky, Massachusetts, Michigan, Mississippi, New York, North Carolina, South Carolina and
Tennessee. We manage and evaluate our business on the basis of the regions’ geographic characteristics, interstate waste flow,
revenue base, employee base, regulatory structure and acquisition opportunities. Each region has a regional vice president and a
regional controller, reporting directly to our corporate management. These regional officers are responsible for operations and
accounting in their regions and supervise their regional staff. See Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements for further
information on our segment reporting of our operations.

Each operating location has a district or site manager who has a high degree of decision-making authority for his or her operations
and is responsible for maintaining service quality, promoting safety, implementing marketing programs and overseeing day-to-day
operations, including contract administration. Local managers also help identify acquisition candidates and are responsible for
integrating acquired businesses into our operations and obtaining the permits and other governmental approvals required for us to
operate.

Implement Operating Standards. We develop company-wide operating standards, which are tailored for each of our markets
based on industry norms and local conditions. We implement cost controls and employee training and safety procedures and establish
a sales and marketing plan for each market. By internalizing the waste stream of acquired operations, we can further increase
operating efficiencies and improve capital utilization. We use a wide-area information system network, implement financial controls
and consolidate certain accounting, personnel and customer service functions. While regional and district management operate with a
high degree of autonomy, our executive officers monitor regional and district operations and require adherence to our accounting,
purchasing, marketing and internal control policies, particularly with respect to financial matters. Our executive officers regularly
review the performance of regional officers, district managers and operations. We believe we can improve the profitability of existing
and newly acquired operations by establishing operating standards, closely monitoring performance and streamlining certain
administrative functions.

Our Growth Strategy
We tailor the components of our growth strategy to the markets in which we operate and into which we hope to expand.

Obtain Additional Exclusive Arrangements. Our operations include market arcas where we have exclusive arrangements,
including franchise agreements, municipal contracts and governmental certificates, under which we are the exclusive service provider
for a specified market. These exclusive rights and contractual arrangements create a barrier to entry that is usually obtained through
the acquisition of a company with such exclusive rights or contractual arrangements or by winning a competitive bid.

We devote significant resources to securing additional franchise agreements and municipal contracts through competitive bidding
and by acquiring other companies. In bidding for franchises and municipal contracts and evaluating acquisition candidates holding
governmental certificates, our management team draws on its experience in the waste industry and knowledge of local service areas in
existing and target markets. Our district management and sales and marketing personnel maintain relationships with local
governmental officials within their service areas, maintain, renew and renegotiate existing franchise agreements and municipal
contracts, and secure additional agreements and contracts while targeting acceptable financial returns. Our sales and marketing
personnel also expand our presence into areas adjacent to or contiguous with our existing markets, and market additional services to
existing customers. We believe our ability to offer comprehensive rail haul disposal services in the Pacific Northwest improves our
competitive position in bidding for such contracts in that region.

Generate Internal Growth. To generate internal revenue growth, our district management and sales and marketing personnel
focus on increasing market penetration in our current and adjacent markets, soliciting new residential, commercial and industrial
customers in markets where such customers have the option to choose a particular waste collection service and marketing upgraded or
additional services (such as compaction or automated collection) to existing customers. We also focus on raising prices and instituting
surcharges, when appropriate, to offset cost increases. Where possible, we intend to leverage our franchise-based platforms to expand
our customer base beyond our exclusive market territories. As customers are added in existing markets, our revenue per routed truck
increases, which generally increases our collection efficiencies and profitability. In markets in which we have exclusive contracts,
franchises and certificates, we expect internal volume growth generally to track population and business growth.




Expand Through Acquisitions. We intend to expand the scope of our operations by continuing to acquire solid waste companies
in new markets and in existing or adjacent markets that are combined with or “tucked in” to our existing operations. We focus our
acquisition efforts on markets that we believe provide significant growth opportunities for a well-capitalized market entrant and where
we can create economic and operational barriers to entry by new competitors. This focus typically highlights markets in which we can
either: (1) provide waste collection services under exclusive arrangements such as franchise agreements, municipal contracts and
governmental certificates; or (2) gain a leading market position and provide vertically integrated collection and disposal services. We
believe that our experienced management, decentralized operating strategy, financial strength, size and public company status make us
an attractive buyer to certain solid waste collection and disposal acquisition candidates. We have developed an acquisition discipline
based on a set of financial, market and management criteria to evaluate opportunities. Once an acquisition is closed, we seek to
integrate it while minimizing disruption to our ongoing operations and those of the acquired business.

In new markets, we often use an initial acquisition as an operating base and seek to strengthen the acquired operation's presence in
that market by providing additional services, adding new customers and making “tuck-in” acquisitions of other solid waste companies
in that market or adjacent markets. We believe that many suitable “tuck-in” acquisition opportunities exist within our current and
targeted market areas that may provide us with opportunities to increase our market share and route density.

The U.S. solid waste services industry experienced significant consolidation during the 1990s. The consolidation trend has
continued, most notably with the merger between Republic Services, Inc. and Allied Waste Industries, Inc. in 2008 and the merger
between IESI-BFC Ltd. and Waste Services, Inc. in 2010. In addition, Veolia Environnement S.A. recently announced its intention to
divest its U.S. solid waste business. The solid waste services industry remains regional in nature with acquisition opportunities
available in selected markets. Some of the remaining independent landfill and collection operators lack the capital resources,
management skills and/or technical expertise necessary to comply with stringent environmental and other governmental regulations
and compete with larger, more efficient, integrated operators. In addition, many of the remaining independent operators may wish to
sell their businesses to achieve liquidity in their personal finances or as part of their estate planning. Due to the prevalence of
exclusive arrangements, we believe the Western markets contain the largest and most attractive number of acquisition opportunities.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we completed 13 acquisitions, none of which individually accounted for greater than
10% of our total assets. The total fair value of consideration transferred for the 13 acquisitions completed during the year ended
December 31, 2011 was $375.7 million. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we completed 19 acquisitions, none of which
individually or in the aggregate accounted for greater than 10% of our total assets. During 2009, we completed the acquisition of
100% interests in certain operations from Republic Services, Inc. and some of its subsidiaries and affiliates (“Republic”) for an
aggregate purchase price of $377.1 million. The operations were divested as a result of Republic’s merger with Allied Waste
Industries, Inc. During the year ended December 31, 2009, we completed six other acquisitions, none of which individually or in the
aggregate accounted for greater than 10% of our total assets.

SOLID WASTE SERVICES
Residential, Commercial and Industrial Collection Services

We serve more than two million residential, commercial and industrial customers from operations in 29 states. Our services are
generally provided under one of the following arrangements: (1) governmental certificates; (2) exclusive franchise agreements;
(3) exclusive municipal contracts; (4) residential subscriptions; (5) residential contracts; or (6) commercial and industrial service
agreements.

Governmental certificates, exclusive franchise agreements and exclusive municipal contracts grant us rights to provide services
within specified areas at established rates. Governmental certificates, or G Certificates, are unique to the State of Washington. The
Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission, or the WUTC, awards G Certificates to solid waste collection service providers
in unincorporated areas and electing municipalities. These certificates typically grant the holder the exclusive and perpetual right to
provide specific residential, commercial and/or industrial waste services in a defined territory at specified rates subject to divestiture
and/or cancellation by the WUTC on specified, limited grounds. Franchise agreements typically provide an exclusive period of seven
years or longer for a specified territory. These arrangements specify a broad range of services to be provided, establish rates for the
services and often give the service provider a right of first refusal to extend the term of the agreement. Municipal contracts typically
provide a shorter service period and a more limited scope of services than franchise agreements and generally require competitive
bidding at the end of the contract term. We do not expect that the loss of any current contracts in negotiation for renewal or contracts
likely to terminate in 2012 will have a material adverse effect on our revenues or cash flows. No single contract or customer
accounted for more than 10% of our total revenues at the consolidated or reportable segment level for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 or 2009.



We provide residential solid waste services, other than those we perform under exclusive arrangements, under contracts with
homeowners’ associations, apartment owners, mobile home park operators or on a subscription basis with individual households. We
set base residential fees on a contract basis primarily based on route density, the frequency and level of service, the distance to the
disposal or processing facility, weight and type of waste collected, type of equipment and containers furnished, the cost of disposal or
processing and prices charged by competitors in that market for similar services. Collection fees are paid either by the municipalities
from tax revenues or directly by the residents receiving the services. We provide 20- to 96-gallon carts to residential customers.

We provide commercial and industrial services, other than those we perform under exclusive arrangements, under customer
service agreements generally ranging from one to five years in duration. We determine fees under these agreements by such factors as
collection frequency, level of service, route density, the type, volume and weight of the waste collected, type of equipment and
containers furnished, the distance to the disposal or processing facility, the cost of disposal or processing and prices charged by
competitors in our collection markets for similar services. Collection of larger volumes of commercial and industrial waste streams
generally helps improve our operating efficiencies, and consolidation of these volumes allows us to negotiate more favorable disposal
prices. We provide one- to ten-cubic yard containers to commercial customers and ten- to 50-cubic yard containers to industrial
customers. For an additional fee, we install stationary compactors that compact waste prior to collection on the premises of large
volume customers.

Landfill Disposal Services

We generally own solid waste landfills to achieve vertical integration in markets where the economic and regulatory environments
make landfill ownership attractive. We also own landfills in certain markets where we do not provide collection services because we
believe that the waste volume generated in these markets makes landfill ownership attractive. Where our operations are vertically
integrated, we eliminate third-party disposal costs and generally realize higher margins and stronger operating cash flows. The fees
charged at disposal facilities, which are known as tipping fees, are based on market factors and take into account the type and weight
or volume of solid waste deposited and the type and size of the vehicles used to transport waste. Solid waste landfills over time
generate a greenhouse gas, methane, which can be converted into a valuable source of clean energy. We deploy gas recovery systems
to collect methane, which can then be used to generate electricity for local households, fuel local industrial power plants, power
alternative fueled vehicles, or qualify for carbon emission credits.

Our landfill facilities consisted of the following at December 31, 2011:
Owned and operated landfills 3

Operated landfills under life-of-site agreements
Operated landfills under limited-term operating agreements
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We own landfills in California, Colorado, Illinois, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Nebraska,
New Mexico, North Carolina, Oklahoma, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Washington. In addition, we operate, but do
not own, landfills in California, Mississippi, Nebraska, New Mexico and New York. With the exception of three landfills, two of
which are located in Mississippi and one in Colorado, which only accept construction and demolition and other non-putrescible waste,
all landfills that we own or operate are municipal solid waste landfills.

Under landfill operating agreements, the owner of the property, generally a municipality, usually owns the permit and we operate
the landfill for a contracted term, which may be the life of the landfill. Where the contracted term is not the life of the landfill, the
property owner is generally responsible for final capping, closure and post-closure obligations. We are responsible for all final
capping, closure and post-closure obligations at four of our five operated landfills for which we have life-of-site agreements. Five of
our six operating contracts for which the contracted term is less than the life of the landfill have expiration dates from 2012 to 2018,
and we intend to seek renewal of these contracts prior to, or upon, their expiration. The remaining operating contract for which the
contracted term is less than the life of the landfill is operated on a month-to-month basis.



Based on remaining permitted capacity as of December 31, 2011, and projected annual disposal volumes, the average remaining
landfill life for our owned and operated landfills and landfills operated, but not owned, under life-of-site agreements, is estimated to be
approximately 38 years. Many of our existing landfills have the potential for expanded disposal capacity beyond the amount currently
permitted. We regularly consider whether it is advisable, in light of changing market conditions and/or regulatory requirements, to
seck to expand or change the permitted waste streams or to seek other permit modifications. We also monitor the available permitted
in-place disposal capacity of our landfills on an ongoing basis and evaluate whether to seek capacity expansion. In making this
evaluation, we consider various factors, including the following:

o  whether the land where the expansion is being sought is contiguous to the current disposal site, and we either own the
expansion property or have rights to it under an option, purchase, operating or other similar agreement;

o whether total development costs, final capping costs, and closure/post-closure costs have been determined;

e  whether internal personnel have performed a financial analysis of the proposed expansion site and have determined that it has
a positive financial and operational impact;

o whether internal personnel or external consultants are actively working to obtain the necessary approvals to obtain the landfill
expansion permit; and

e whether we consider it probable that we will achieve the expansion (for a pursued expansion to be considered probable, there
must be no significant known technical, legal, community, business or political restrictions or similar issues existing that we
believe are more likely than not to impair the success of the expansion).

We are currently seeking to expand permitted capacity at nine of our landfills for which we consider expansions to be probable.
Although we cannot be certain that all future expansions will be permitted as designed, the average remaining landfill life for our
owned and operated landfills and landfills operated, but not owned, under life-of-site agreements is estimated to be approximately
48 years when considering remaining permitted capacity, probable expansion capacity and projected annual disposal volume.

The following table reflects estimated landfill capacity and airspace changes, as measured in tons, for owned and operated landfills
and landfills operated, but not owned, under life-of-site agreements (in thousands):

2011 2010
Probable Probable
Permitted Expansion Total Permitted Expansion Total

Balance, beginning of year 531,905 133,324 665,229 526,088 119,227 645,315
Acquired landfills 1,846 4,000 5,846 21,710 - 21,710
Permits granted 12,047 (12,047) - 5,426 (5,426) -
Airspace consumed (14,387) - (14,387) (13,255) - (13,255)
Pursued expansions - 16,537 16,537 - - -
Changes in engineering

estimates 1,239 - 1,239 (8,064) 19,523 11,459
Balance, end of year 532,650 141,814 674,464 531,905 133,324 665,229

The estimated remaining operating lives for the landfills we own and landfills we operate under life-of-site agreements, based on
remaining permitted and probable expansion capacity and projected annual disposal volume, in years, as of December 31, 2011, and
December 31, 2010, are shown in the tables below. The estimated remaining operating lives include assumptions that the operating
permits are renewed.

2011
0toS 6 to 10 11 to 20 21 to 40 41 to 50 51+ Total
Owned and operated landfills 1 2 4 8 4 16 35
Operated landfills under life-of-
site agreements - - 2 2 - | 5
1 2 6 10 4 17 40
2010
0to5 6 to 10 11t020 21to40 41t0o S0 51+ Total
Owned and operated landfills 2 1 4 7 3 18 35
Operated landfills under life-of-
site agreements - - - 3 - 1 4
2 1 4 10 3 19 39




The disposal tonnage that we received in 2011 and 2010 at all of our landfills is shown in the tables below (tons in thousands):

Three months ended

Twelve months

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2011 2011 2011 2011 ended
Number Total Number Total Number Total Number Total December 31,
of Sites Tons of Sites Tons of Sites Tons of Sites Tons 2011
Owned landfills and
landfills operated under
life-of-site agreements 39 3,059 39 3,592 40 4,134 40 3,602 14,387
Operated landfills 5 120 5 136 5 150 6 140 546
44 3,179 44 3,728 45 4,284 46 3,742 14,933
Three months ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, Twelve months
2010 2010 2010 2010 ended
Number Total Number Total Number Total Number Total December 31,
of Sites Tons of Sites Tons of Sites Tons of Sites Tons 2010
Owned landfills and
landfills operated under
life-of-site agreements 38 2,853 38 3,324 39 3,775 39 3,303 13,255
Operated landfills 5 122 5 137 5 136 5 128 523
43 2,975 43 3,461 44 3,911 44 3,431 13,778

In 2010, we renewed an operating agreement at one of our landfills which resulted in a term equal to the remaining life of the site.
As a result, this landfill previously classified as operated is currently operated under a life-of-site agreement. We have restated all
information above to reflect this change.

Transfer Station Services

We have an active program to acquire, develop, own and operate transfer stations in markets proximate to our collection
operations. Transfer stations receive, compact and load solid waste to be transported to landfills via truck, rail or barge. Transfer
stations extend our direct-haul reach and link collection operations with distant disposal facilities. We owned or operated 58 transter
stations at December 31, 2011. Currently, we own transfer stations in California, Colorado, Kansas, Kentucky, Montana, Nebraska,
North Carolina, New York, Oklahoma, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Washington. In addition, we operate, but do
not own, transfer stations in Idaho, Kentucky, Nebraska, Tennessee, Washington and Wyoming. We believe that transfer stations
benefit us by:

e  concentrating the waste stream from a wider area, which increases the volume of disposal at our landfill facilitics and gives us
greater leverage in negotiating more favorable disposal rates at other landfills;

e improving utilization of collection personnel and equipment; and

e building relationships with municipalities and private operators that deliver waste, which can lead to additional growth
opportunities.

Recycling Services

We offer residential, commercial, industrial and municipal customers recycling services for a variety of recyclable materials,
including cardboard, office paper, plastic containers, glass bottles and ferrous and aluminum metals. In addition, we have partnered
with RecycleBank to introduce a customer loyalty and rewards program in certain markets to encourage customers to either recycle
for the first time or increase their current recycling efforts. We own or operate 39 recycling processing operations and sell other
collected recyclable materials to third parties for processing before resale. The majority of the recyclables we process for sale are
paper products and are shipped to customers in Asia. Changes in end market demand can cause fluctuations in the prices for such
commodities, which can affect revenue, operating income and cash flows. Certain of our municipal recycling contracts in Washington
specify certain benchmark resale prices for recycled commodities. To the extent the prices we actually receive for the processed
recycled commodities collected under those contracts exceed the prices specified in the contracts, we share the excess with the
municipality, after recovering any previous shortfalls resulting from actual market prices falling below the prices specified in the
contracts. To reduce our exposure to commodity price volatility and risk with respect to recycled materials, we have adopted a pricing
strategy of charging collection and processing fees for recycling volume collected from third parties. We believe that recycling will
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continue to be an important component of local and state solid waste management plans due to the public’s increasing environmental
awareness and expanding regulations that mandate or encourage recycling.

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION WASTE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SERVICES

We treat and dispose of non-hazardous waste that is generated in the exploration and production, or E&P, of oil and natural gas
primarily at a facility in Southwest Louisiana. E&P waste streams accepted at this permitted location include: saltwater, which is
injected into on-site disposal wells; recovered hydrocarbons, which are sold for re-use; and soil, which is treated to remove
hydrocarbons, salts, dissolved solids and heavy metals and then tested to ensure regulatory compliance. In addition, this facility
accepts non-hazardous industrial wastes from local refineries and petrochemical plants. We also accept E&P waste soils and other
hydrocarbon-contaminated soils and liquids at our solid waste landfills.

INTERMODAL SERVICES

Intermodal logistics is the movement of containers using two or more modes of transportation, usually including a rail or truck
segment. We entered the intermodal services business in the Pacific Northwest through the acquisition of Northwest Container
Services, Inc., which provides repositioning, storage, maintenance and repair of cargo containers for international shipping
companies. We provide these services for containerized cargo primarily to international shipping companies importing and exporting
goods through the Pacific Northwest. We also operate two intermodal facilities primarily for the shipment of waste by rail to distant
disposal facilities that we do not own. As of December 31, 2011, we owned or operated seven intermodal operations in Washington
and Oregon. Our fleet of double-stack railcars provides dedicated direct-line haul services among terminals in Portland, Tacoma and
Seattle. We have contracts with the Burlington Northern Santa Fe and Union Pacific railroads for the movement of containers among
our seven intermodal operations. We also provide our customers container and chassis sales and leasing services.

We intend to further expand our intermodal business through cross-selling efforts with our solid waste services operations. We
believe that a significant amount of solid waste is transported currently by truck, rail and barge from primarily the Seattle-Tacoma and
Metro Portland areas to remote landfills in Eastern Washington and Eastern Oregon. We believe our ability to market both intermodal
and disposal services will enable us to more effectively compete for these volumes.

COMPETITION

The U.S. solid waste services industry is highly competitive and requires substantial labor and capital resources. In addition to us,
the industry includes: two national, publicly-held solid waste companies — Waste Management, Inc. and Republic Services, Inc.;
several regional, publicly-held and privately-owned companics; and several thousand small, local, privately-owned companies.
Certain of the markets in which we compete or will likely compete are served by one or more large, national solid waste companies, as
well as by numerous regional and local solid waste companies of varying sizes and resources, some of which we believe have
accumulated substantial goodwill in their markets. We also compete with operators of alternative disposal facilities, including
incinerators, and with counties, municipalities and solid waste districts that maintain their own waste collection and disposal
operations. Public sector operators may have financial advantages over us because of their access to user fees and similar charges, tax
revenues and tax-exempt financing.

We compete for collection, transfer and disposal volume based primarily on the price and, to a lesser extent, quality of our
services. From time to time, competitors may reduce the price of their services in an effort to expand their market shares or service
areas or to win competitively bid municipal contracts. These practices may cause us to reduce the price of our services or, if we elect
not to do so, to lose business. We provide a significant amount of our residential, commercial and industrial collection services under
exclusive franchise and municipal contracts and G Certificates. Exclusive franchises and municipal contracts may be subject to
periodic competitive bidding.

The U.S. solid waste services industry has undergone significant consolidation, and we encounter competition in our efforts to
acquire collection operations, transfer stations and landfills. We generally compete for acquisition candidates with publicly-owned
regional and national waste management companies. Accordingly, it may become uneconomical for us to make further acquisitions or
we may be unable to locate or acquire suitable acquisition candidates at price levels and on terms and conditions that we consider
appropriate, particularly in markets we do not already serve. Competition in the disposal industry is also affected by the increasing
national emphasis on recycling and other waste reduction programs, which may reduce the volume of waste deposited in landfills.

The intermodal services industry is also highly competitive. We compete against other intermodal rail services companies,
trucking companies and railroads, many of which have greater financial and other resources than we do. Competition is based
primarily on price, reliability and quality of service.



REGULATION
Introduction

Our operations, including landfills, solid waste transportation, transfer stations, intermodal operations, vehicle maintenance shops
and fueling facilities are all subject to extensive and evolving federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, the
enforcement of which has become increasingly stringent. The environmental regulations that affect us are administered by the
Environmental Protection Agency, or the EPA, and other federal, state and local environmental, zoning, health and safety agencies.
The WUTC regulates the portion of our collection business in Washington performed under G Certificates. We currently comply in
all material respects with applicable federal, state and local environmental laws, permits, orders and regulations. In addition, we
attempt to anticipate future regulatory requirements and plan in advance as necessary to comply with them. We do not presently
anticipate incurring any material costs to bring our operations into environmental compliance with existing or expected future
regulatory requirements, although we can give no assurance that this will not change in the future.

Major federal, state and local statutes and regulations that apply to our operations are described generally below. Certain of the
statutes described below contain provisions that authorize, undet certain circumstances, lawsuits by private citizens to enforce the
provisions of the statutes. In addition to penalties, some of those statutes authorize an award of attorneys' fees to parties that
successfully bring such an action. Enforcement actions under these statutes may include both civil and criminal penalties, as well as
injunctive relief in some instances.

The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, or RCRA

RCRA regulates the generation, treatment, storage, handling, transportation and disposal of solid waste and requires states to
develop programs to ensure the safe disposal of solid waste. RCRA divides solid waste into two groups, hazardous and nonhazardous.
Wastes are generally classified as hazardous if they either: (1) are specifically included on a list of hazardous wastes; or (2) exhibit
certain characteristics defined as hazardous. Household wastes are specifically designated as nonhazardous. Wastes classified as
hazardous under RCRA are subject to much stricter regulation than wastes classified as nonhazardous, and businesses that deal with
hazardous waste are subject to regulatory obligations in addition to those imposed on handlers of nonhazardous waste. From time to
time, our intermodal services business transports hazardous materials in compliance with federal transportation requirements. Some
of our ancillary operations, such as vehicle maintenance operations, may generate hazardous wastes. We manage these wastes in
substantial compliance with applicable laws.

In October 1991, the EPA adopted the Subtitle D Regulations governing solid waste landfills. The Subtitle D Regulations, which
generally became effective in October 1993, include location restrictions, facility design standards, operating criteria, closure and
post-closure requirements, financial assurance requirements, groundwater monitoring requirements, groundwater remediation
standards and corrective action requirements. In addition, the Subtitle D Regulations require that new landfill sites meet more
stringent liner design criteria (typically, composite soil and synthetic liners or two or more synthetic liners) intended to keep leachate
out of groundwater and have extensive collection systems to carry away leachate for treatment prior to disposal. Groundwater
monitoring wells must also be installed at virtually all landfills to monitor groundwater quality and, indirectly, the effectiveness of the
leachate collection system. The Subtitle D Regulations also require, where certain regulatory thresholds are exceeded, that facility
owners or operators control emissions of methane gas generated at landfills in a manner intended to protect human health and the
environment. Each state is required to revise its landfill regulations to meet these requirements or such requirements will be
automatically imposed by the EPA on landfill owners and operators in that state. Each state is also required to adopt and implement a
permit program or other appropriate system to ensure that landfills in the state comply with the Subtitle D Regulations. Various states
in which we operate or may operate in the future have adopted regulations or programs as stringent as, or more stringent than, the
Subtitle D Regulations.

RCRA also regulates underground storage of petroleum and other regulated materials. RCRA requires registration, compliance
with technical standards for tanks, release detection and reporting, and corrective action, among other things. Certain of our facilities
and operations are subject to these requirements.

The Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, or the Clean Water Act

The Clean Water Act regulates the discharge of pollutants from a variety of sources, including solid waste disposal sites and
transfer stations, into waters of the United States. If run-off from our owned or operated transfer stations or run-off or collected
leachate from our owned or operated landfills is discharged into streams, rivers or other surface waters, the Clean Water Act would
require us to apply for and obtain a discharge permit, conduct sampling and monitoring and, under certain circumstances, reduce the
quantity of pollutants in such discharge. Also, virtually all landfills are required to comply with the EPA's storm water re gulations
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issued in November 1990, which are designed to prevent contaminated landfill storm water run-off from flowing into surface waters.
We believe that our facilities comply in all material respects with the Clean Water Act requirements. Various states in which we
operate or may operate in the future have been delegated authority to implement the Clean Water Act permitting requirements, and
some of these states have adopted regulations that are more stringent than the federal Clean Water Act requirements. For example,
states often require permits for discharges that may impact ground water as well as surface water.

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, or CERCLA

CERCLA established a regulatory and remedial program intended to provide for the investigation and cleanup of facilities where
or from which a release of any hazardous substance into the environment has occurred or is threatened. CERCLA’s primary
mechanism for remedying such problems is to impose strict joint and several liability for cleanup of facilities on current owners and
operators of the site, former owners and operators of the site at the time of the disposal of the hazardous substances, any person who
arranges for the transportation, disposal or treatment of the hazardous substances, and the transporters who select the disposal and
treatment facilities, regardless of the care exercised by such persons. CERCLA also imposes liability for the cost of evaluating and
remedying any damage to natural resources. The costs of CERCLA investigation and cleanup can be very substantial. Liability under
CERCLA does not depend on the existence or disposal of “hazardous waste” as defined by RCRA; it can also be based on the release
of even very small amounts of the more than 700 “hazardous substances” listed by the EPA, many of which can be found in household
waste. In addition, the definition of “hazardous substances” in CERCLA incorporates substances designated as hazardous or toxic
under the federal Clean Water Act, Clear Air Act and Toxic Substances Control Act. If we were found to be a responsible party for a
CERCLA cleanup, the enforcing agency could hold us, or any other generator, transporter or the owner or operator of the
contaminated facility, responsible for all investigative and remedial costs, even if others were also liable. CERCLA also authorizes
the imposition of a lien in favor of the United States on all real property subject to, or affected by, a remedial action for all costs for
which a party is liable. Subject to certain procedural restrictions, CERCLA gives a responsible party the right to bring a contribution
action against other responsible parties for their allocable shares of investigative and remedial costs. Our ability to obtain
reimbursement from others for their allocable shares of such costs would be limited by our ability to find other responsible parties and
prove the extent of their responsibility, their financial resources, and other procedural requirements. Various state laws also impose
strict joint and several liability for investigation, cleanup and other damages associated with hazardous substance releases.

The Clean Air Act

The Clean Air Act, or CAA, generally, through state implementation of federal requirements, regulates emissions of air pollutants
from certain landfills based on factors such as the date of the landfill construction and tons per year of emissions of regulated
pollutants. Larger landfills and landfills located in areas where the ambient air does not meet certain requirements of the CAA may be
subject to even more extensive air pollution controls and emission limitations. In addition, the EPA has issued standards regulating
the disposal of asbestos-containing materials. Air permits may be required to construct gas collection and flaring systems and
composting operations, and operating permits may be required, depending on the potential air emissions. State air regulatory
programs may implement the federal requirements but may impose additional restrictions. For example, some state air programs
uniquely regulate odor and the emission of toxic air pollutants. The EPA recently modified, or is in the process of modifying,
standards promulgated under the CAA in a manner which could increase our compliance costs. For example, the EPA has recently
modified or discussed modifying boiler emission standards, national ambient air quality standards applicable to particulate matter,
carbon monoxide, and oxides of sulfur and nitrogen, and other standards to make them more stringent.

Climate Change Laws and Regulations

On September 27, 2006, California enacted AB 32, the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006, which established the first
statewide program in the United States to limit greenhouse gas, or GHG, emissions and impose penalties for non-compliance.
Because landfill and collection operations emit GHGs, our operations in California are subject to regulations issued under AB 32. The
California Air Resources Board, or CARB, has taken, and plans to take, various actions to implement AB 32, including the approval in
December 2008 of an AB 32 Scoping Plan summarizing the main GHG-reduction strategies for California. CARB approved a landfill
methane control measure, which became effective in June 2010, and this measure requires that certain uncontrolled landfills install gas
collection and control systems and also sets operating standards for gas collection and control systems. In addition, CARB approved
in December 2010 and revised in October 2011 regulations implementing a GHG cap-and-trade program, which is scheduled to begin
imposing compliance obligations in 2013.

State climate change laws could also affect our non-California operations. For example, the Western Climate Initiative, which
once included seven states and four Canadian provinces, has developed GHG reduction strategies, among them a GHG cap-and-trade
program.



The EPA’s regulation of GHG emissions under its CAA authority may also impact our operations. In 2009, the EPA made an
endangerment finding allowing GHGs to be regulated under the CAA. The CAA requires stationary sources of air pollution to obtain
New Source Review, or NSR, permits prior to construction and, in some cases, Title V operating permits. Pursuant to the EPA’s
rulemakings and interpretations, certain Title V and NSR Prevention of Significant Deterioration, or PSD, permits issued on or after
January 2, 2011, must address GHG emissions. As a result, new or modified landfills may be required to install Best Available
Control Technology to limit GHG emissions. The EPA may in the future promulgate CAA New Source Performance Standards
applicable to landfills. The EPA’s Mandatory Greenhouse Gas Reporting Rule sets monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting
requirements applicable to certain landfills and other entities.

These statutes and regulations increase the costs of our operations, and future climate change statutes and regulations may have an
impact as well. If we are unable to pass such higher costs through to our customers, our business, financial condition and operating
results could be adversely affected.

The Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, or the OSH Act

The OSH Act is administered by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration, or OSHA, and many state agencies whose
programs have been approved by OSHA. The OSH Act establishes employer responsibilities for worker health and safety, including
the obligation to maintain a workplace free of recognized hazards likely to cause death or serious injury, comply with adopted worker
protection standards, maintain certain records, provide workers with required disclosures and implement certain health and safety
training programs. Various OSHA standards may apply to our operations, including standards concerning notices of hazards, safety in
excavation and demolition work, the handling of asbestos and asbestos-containing materials and worker training and emergency
response programs.

Flow Control/Interstate Waste Restrictions

Certain permits and approvals and state and local regulations may limit a landfill’s or transfer station’s ability to accept waste that
originates from specified geographic areas, import out-of-state waste or wastes originating outside the local jurisdictions or otherwise
discriminate against non-local waste. These restrictions, generally known as flow control restrictions, are controversial, and some
courts have held that some state and local flow control schemes violate constitutional limits on state or local regulation of interstate
commerce, while other state and local flow control schemes do not. Certain state and local jurisdictions may seek to enforce flow
control restrictions through local legislation or contractually. These actions could limit or prohibit the importation of out-of-state
waste or direct that wastes be handled at specified facilities. Such actions could adversely affect our transfer stations and landfills.
These restrictions could also result in higher disposal costs for our collection operations. If we were unable to pass such higher costs
through to our customers, our business, financial condition and operating results could be adversely affected.

State and Local Regulations

Each state in which we now operate or may operate in the future has laws and regulations governing the generation, storage,
treatment, handling, transportation and disposal of solid waste, occupational safety and health, water and air pollution and, in most
cases, the siting, design, operation, maintenance, closure and post-closure maintenance of landfills and transfer stations. State and
local permits and approval for these operations may be required and may be subject to periodic renewal, modification or revocation by
the issuing agencies. In addition, many states have adopted statutes comparable to, and in some cases more stringent than, CERCLA.
These statutes impose requirements for investigation and cleanup of contaminated sites and liability for costs and damages associated
with such sites, and some provide for the imposition of liens on property owned by responsible parties.

Many municipalities also have enacted or could enact ordinances, local laws and regulations affecting our operations. These
include zoning and health measures that limit solid waste management activities to specified sites or activities, flow control provisions
that direct or restrict the delivery of solid wastes to specific facilities, laws that grant the right to establish franchises for collection
services and bidding for such franchises, and bans or other restrictions on the movement of solid wastes into a municipality.

Various jurisdictions have enacted “fitness” regulations which allow agencies with authority over waste service contracts or
permits to deny or revoke such contracts or permits based on the compliance history of the provider. Some jurisdictions also consider
the compliance history of the parent, subsidiaries, or affiliated companies of the provider in making these decisions.

Permits or other land use approvals with respect to a landfill, as well as state or local laws and regulations, may specify the

quantity of waste that may be accepted at the landfill during a given time period and/or the types of waste that may be accepted at the
landfill. Once an operating permit for a landfill is obtained, it generally must be renewed periodically.
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There has been an increasing trend at the state and local level to mandate and encourage waste reduction at the source and waste
recycling, and to prohibit or restrict the disposal in landfills of certain types of solid wastes, such as yard wastes, leaves, tires,
computers and other electronic equipment waste, and painted wood and other construction and demolition debris. The enactment of
regulations reducing the volume and types of wastes available for transport to and disposal in landfills could prevent us from operating
our facilities at their full capacity.

Some state and local authorities enforce certain federal requirements in addition to state and local laws and regulations. For
example, in some states, local or state authorities enforce requirements of RCRA, the OSH Act and parts of the Clean Air Act and the
Clean Water Act instead of the EPA or OSHA, as applicable, and in some states such laws are enforced jointly by state or local and
federal authorities.

Public Utility Regulation

In some states, public authorities regulate the rates that landfill operators may charge. The adoption of rate regulation or the
reduction of current rates in states in which we own or operate landfills could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
operating results.

Solid waste collection services in all unincorporated areas of Washington and in electing municipalities in Washington are
provided under G Certificates awarded by the WUTC. In association with the regulation of solid waste collection service levels in
these areas, the WUTC also reviews and approves rates for regulated solid waste collection and transportation service.

RISK MANAGEMENT, INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL SURETY BONDS
Risk Management

We maintain environmental and other risk management programs that we believe are appropriate for our business. Our
environmental risk management program includes evaluating existing facilities and potential acquisitions for environmental law
compliance. We do not presently expect environmental compliance costs to increase materially above current levels, but we cannot
predict whether future acquisitions will cause such costs to increase. We also maintain a worker safety program that encourages safe
practices in the workplace. Operating practices at our operations emphasize minimizing the possibility of environmental
contamination and litigation. Our facilities comply in all material respects with applicable federal and state regulations.

Insurance

We have a high deductible insurance program for automobile liability, property, general liability, workers’ compensation,
employer’s liability claims, employee group health insurance and employment practices liability. Our loss exposure for insurance
claims is generally limited to per incident deductibles. Losses in excess of deductible levels are insured subject to policy limits.
Under our current insurance program, we carry per incident deductibles of $2 million for automobile liability claims, $1.5 million for
workers’ compensation and employer’s liability claims, $1 million ($2 million aggregate) for general liability claims, $250,000 for
employee group health insurance and employment practices liability, and primarily $100,000 for property claims. Additionally, we
have umbrella policies with third-party insurance companies for automobile liability, general liability and employer’s liability. Since
workers’ compensation is a statutory coverage limited by the various state jurisdictions, the umbrella coverage is not applicable. Also,
our umbrella policy does not cover property claims, as the insurance limits for these claims are in accordance with the replacement
values of the insured property. From time to time, actions filed against us include claims for punitive damages, which are generally
excluded from coverage under all of our liability insurance policies.

We carry environmental protection insurance which has a $250,000 per incident deductible. This insurance policy covers all
owned or operated landfills, certain transfer stations and other facilities. Subject to policy terms, insurance coverage is guaranteed for
acquired and newly-constructed facilities, but each addition to the policy is underwritten on a site-specific basis and the premium is set
according to the conditions found at the site. Our policy provides insurance for new pollution conditions that originate after the
commencement of our coverage. Pollution conditions existing prior to the commencement of our coverage, if found, could be
excluded from coverage.

Financial Surety Bonds
We use financial surety bonds for a variety of corporate guarantees. The financial surety bonds are primarily used for
guaranteeing municipal contract performance and providing financial assurances to meet final capping, landfill closure and post-

closure obligations as required under certain environmental regulations. In addition to surety bonds, such guarantees and obligations
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may also be met through alternative financial assurance instruments, including insurance, letters of credit and restricted asset deposits.
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had provided customers and various regulatory authorities with surety bonds in the aggregate
amount of approximately $243.3 million and $221.7 million, respectively, to secure our landfill final capping, closure and post-closure
requirements and $68.7 million and $63.9 million, respectively, to secure performance under collection contracts and landfill
operating agreements.

We own a 9.9% interest in a company that, among other activities, issues financial surety bonds to secure final capping, landfill
closure and post-closure obligations for companies operating in the solid waste sector, including a portion of our own.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2011, we employed 5,909 full-time employees, of which 750, or approximately 12.7% of our workforce, were
employed under collective bargaining agreements, primarily with the Teamsters Union. These employees are subject to labor
agreements that are renegotiated periodically. We have seven collective bargaining agreements covering 331 employees that are set to
expire during 2012. We do not expect any significant disruption in our overall business in 2012 as a result of labor negotiations,
employee strikes or organizational efforts.

SEASONALITY

We expect our operating results to vary seasonally, with revenues typically lowest in the first quarter, higher in the second and
third quarters and lower in the fourth quarter than in the second and third quarters. This seasonality reflects the lower volume of solid
waste generated during the late fall, winter and early spring because of decreased construction and demolition activities during winter
months in the U.S. We expect the fluctuation in our revenues between our highest and lowest quarters to be approximately 7% to
10%. In addition, some of our operating costs may be higher in the winter months. Adverse winter weather conditions slow waste
collection activities, resulting in higher labor and operational costs. Greater precipitation in the winter increases the weight of
collected waste, resulting in higher disposal costs, which are calculated on a per ton basis.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth certain information concerning our executive officers and key employee as of February 8, 2012:

NAME AGE  POSITIONS

Ronald J. Mittelstaedt " 48  Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Steven F. Bouck 54 President

Darrell W. Chambliss 47  Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Worthing F. Jackman 47  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
David G. Eddie 42 Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
David M. Hall 54  Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing

James M. Little 50 Senior Vice President — Engineering and Disposal
Eric M. Merrill 59  Senior Vice President — People, Safety and Development
Eric O. Hansen 46  Vice President — Chief Information Officer

Jerri L. Hunt ® 60  Vice President — Employee Relations

Scott I. Schreiber 55  Vice President — Disposal Operations

Patrick J. Shea 41 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Gregory Thibodeaux 45 Vice President — Maintenance and Fleet Management
Richard K. Wojahn 54  Vice President — Business Development

M Member of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors.
@ Key employee.

Ronald J. Mittelstaedt has been Chief Executive Officer and a director of Waste Connections since the company was formed, and
was elected Chairman in January 1998. Mr. Mittelstaedt also served as President from Waste Connections’ formation through August
2004. Mr. Mittelstacdt has more than 23 years of experience in the solid waste industry. Mr. Mittelstaedt holds a B.A. degree in
Business Economics with a finance emphasis from the University of California at Santa Barbara.

Steven F. Bouck has been President of Waste Connections since September 1, 2004. From February 1998 to that date, Mr. Bouck
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Bouck held various positions with First Analysis Corporation
from 1986 to 1998, focusing on financial services to the environmental industry. Mr. Bouck holds B.S. and M.S. degrees in
Mechanical Engineering from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, and an M.B.A. in Finance from the Wharton School.

Darrell W. Chambliss has been Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Waste Connections since October 2003.
From October 1, 1997, to that date, Mr. Chambliss served as Executive Vice President — Operations. Mr. Chambliss has more than
22 years of experience in the solid waste industry. Mr. Chambliss holds a B.S. degree in Business Administration from the University
of Arkansas.

Worthing F. Jackman has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Waste Connections since September 1,
2004. From April 2003 to that date, Mr. Jackman served as Vice President — Finance and Investor Relations. Mr. Jackman held
various investment banking positions with Alex. Brown & Sons, now Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., from 1991 through 2003,
including most recently as a Managing Director within the Global Industrial & Environmental Services Group. In that capacity, he
provided capital markets and strategic advisory services to companies in a variety of sectors, including solid waste services. Mr.
Jackman serves as a director for Quanta Services, Inc. He holds a B.S. degree in Finance from Syracuse University and an M.B.A.
from the Harvard Business School.

David G. Eddie has been Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer of Waste Connections since January 2011. From
February 2010 to that date, Mr. Eddie served as Vice President — Chief Accounting Officer. From March 2004 to February 2010, M.
Eddie served as Vice President — Corporate Controller. From April 2003 to February 2004, Mr. Eddie served as Vice President —
Public Reporting and Compliance. From May 2001 to March 2003, Mr. Eddie served as Director of Finance. Mr. Eddie served as
Corporate Controller for International Fibercom, Inc. from April 2000 to May 2001. From September 1999 to April 2000, Mr. Eddie
served as Waste Connections’ Manager of Financial Reporting. From September 1994 to September 1999, Mr. Eddie held various
positions, including Audit Manager, for PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Mr. Eddie is a Certified Public Accountant and holds a B.S.
degree in Accounting from California State University, Sacramento.

David M. Hall has been Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing of Waste Connections since October 2005. From
August 1998 to that date, Mr. Hall served as Vice President — Business Development. Mr. Hall has more than 24 years of experience
in the solid waste industry with extensive operating and marketing experience in the Western U.S. Mr. Hall received a B.S. degree in
Management and Marketing from Missouri State University.
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James M. Little has been Senior Vice President — Engineering and Disposal of Waste Connections since February 2009. From
September 1999 to that date, Mr. Little served as Vice President — Engineering. Mr. Little held various management positions with
Waste Management, Inc. (formerly USA Waste Services, Inc., which acquired Waste Management, Inc. and Chambers Development
Co. Inc.) from April 1990 to September 1999, including Regional Environmental Manager and Regional Landfill Manager, and most
recently Division Manager in Ohio, where he was responsible for the operations of ten operating companies in the Northern Ohio area.
Mr. Little is a certified professional geologist and holds a B.S. degree in Geology from Slippery Rock University.

Eric M. Merrill has been Senior Vice President — People, Safety and Development of Waste Connections since January 2009.
From June 2007 to that date, Mr. Merrill served as Senior Vice President — People, Training and Development. Mr. Merrill joined us
in 1998 and since 2000 had served as Regional Vice President — Pacific Northwest Region. Mr. Merrill has over 24 years of
experience in the solid waste industry. He holds a B.S. degree in Accounting from the University of Oregon.

Eric O. Hansen has been Vice President — Chief Information Officer of Waste Connections since July 2004. From January 2001
to that date, Mr. Hansen served as Vice President — Information Technology. From April 1998 to December 2000, Mr. Hansen served
as Director of Management Information Systems. Mr. Hansen holds a B.S. degree from Portland State University.

Jerri L. Hunt has been Vice President — Employee Relations of Waste Connections since June 2007. Ms. Hunt previously served
as Vice President — Human Resources from May 2002 to June 2007, and as Vice President — Human Resources and Risk Management
from December 1999 to April 2002. From 1994 to 1999, Ms. Hunt held various positions with First Union National Bank (including
the Money Store, which was acquired by First Union National Bank), most recently Vice President of Human Resources. From 1989
to 1994, Ms. Hunt served as Manager of Human Resources and Risk Management for Browning-Ferris Industries, Inc. Ms. Hunt also
served as a Human Resources Supervisor for United Parcel Service from 1976 to 1989. She holds a B.S. degree from California State
University, Sacramento, and a Master’s degree in Human Resources from Golden Gate University.

Scott I. Schreiber has been Vice President — Disposal Operations of Waste Connections since February 2009. From October 1998
to that date, Mr. Schreiber served as Director of Landfill Operations. Mr. Schreiber has more than 32 years of experience in the solid
waste industry. From September 1993 to September 1998, Mr. Schreiber served as corporate Director of Landfill Development and
corporate Director of Environmental Compliance for Allied Waste Industries, Inc. From August 1988 to September 1993, Mr.
Schreiber served as Regional Engineer (Continental Region) and corporate Director of Landfill Development for Laidlaw Waste
Systems Inc. From June 1979 to August 1988, Mr. Schreiber held several managerial and technical positions in the solid waste and
environmental industry. Mr. Schreiber holds a B.S. degree in Chemistry from the University of Wisconsin at Parkside.

Patrick J. Shea has been Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Waste Connections since February 2009. From
February 2008 to that date, Mr. Shea served as General Counsel and Secretary. He served as Corporate Counsel from February 2004
to February 2008. Mr. Shea practiced corporate and securities law with Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison LLP in San Francisco from
1999 to 2003 and Winthrop, Stimson, Putnam & Roberts (now Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP) in New York and London from
1995 to 1999. Mr. Shea holds a B.S. degree in Managerial Economics from the University of California at Davis and a J.D. degree
from Cornell University.

Gregory Thibodeaux has been Vice President — Maintenance and Fleet Management of Waste Connections since January 2011.
From January 2000 to that date, Mr. Thibodeaux served as Director of Maintenance. Mr. Thibodeaux has more than 26 years of
experience in the solid waste industry having held various management positions with Browning Ferris Industries, Sanifill, and USA
Waste Services, Inc. Before coming to Waste Connections, Mr. Thibodeaux served as corporate Director of Maintenance for Texas
Disposal Systems.

Richard K. Wojahn has been Vice President — Business Development of Waste Connections since February 2009. From
September 2005 to that date, Mr. Wojahn served as Director of Business Development. Mr. Wojahn served as Vice President of
Operations for Mountain Jack Environmental Setrvices, Inc. (which was acquired by Waste Connections in September 2005) from
January 2004 to September 2005. Mr. Wojahn has more than 30 years of experience in the solid waste industry having held various
management positions with Waste Management, Inc. and Allied Waste Industries, Inc. Mr. Wojahn attended Western Illinois
University.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our corporate website address is http://www.wasteconnections.com. The information on our website is not incorporated by
reference in this annual report on Form 10-K. We make our reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K and any amendments to such
reports available on our website free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after we file them with or furnish them to the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. The public may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public
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Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an internet website at http://www.sec.gov that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking in nature, including statements related to
our ability to provide adequate cash to fund our operating activities, our ability to draw on our credit facility or raise additional capital,
the impact of global economic conditions on our volume, business and results of operations, the effects of landfill special waste
projects on volume results, the effects of seasonality on our business and results of operations, demand for recyclable commodities
and recyclable commodity pricing, completion of the Alaska Waste acquisition and the expected timing thereof, the impact of the
relocation of our corporate headquarters to The Woodlands, Texas, our expectations with respect to capital expenditures, and our
expectations with respect to the purchase of fuel and fuel prices. These statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking
terminology such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” or “anticipates,” or the negative thereof or comparable
terminology, or by discussions of strategy.

Our business and operations are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties and, consequently, actual results may differ
materially from those projected by any forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those
projected include, but are not limited to, those listed below and elsewhere in this report. There may be additional risks of which we
are not presently aware or that we currently believe are immaterial which could have an adverse impact on our business. We make no
commitment to revise or update any forward-looking statements in order to reflect events or circumstances that may change.

Risks Related to Qur Business

Our acquisitions may not be successful, resulting in changes in strategy, operating losses or a loss on sale of the business acquired.

Even if we are able to make acquisitions on advantageous terms and are able to integrate them successfully into our operations
and organization, some acquisitions may not fulfill our objectives in a given market due to factors that we cannot control, such as
market position, customer base, third party legal challenges or governmental actions. See discussion regarding the Solano County,
California Measure E/Landfill Expansion Litigation under the “Legal Proceedings” section of Note 11 of our consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8 of this report. As a result, operating margins could be less than we originally anticipated when we made
those acquisitions. In addition, we may change our strategy with respect to that market or those businesses and decide to sell the
operations at a loss, or keep those operations and recognize an impairment of goodwill and/or intangible assets. Similar risks may
affect contracts that we are awarded to operate municipally-owned assets, such as landfills. See discussion regarding the Colonie,
New York Landfill Privatization Litigation under the “Legal Proceedings” section of Note 11 of our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of this report.

A portion of our growth and future financial performance depends on our ability to integrate acquired businesses into our organization
and operations.

A component of our growth strategy involves achieving economies of scale and operating efficiencies by growing through
acquisitions. We may not achieve these goals unless we effectively combine the operations of acquired businesses with our existing
operations. Similar risks may affect contracts that we are awarded to operate municipally-owned assets, such as landfills. In addition,
we are not always able to control the timing of our acquisitions. Our inability to complete acquisitions within the time frames that we
expect may cause our operating results to be less favorable than expected, which could cause our stock price to decline.

Competition for acquisition candidates, consolidation within the waste industry and economic and market conditions may limit our
ability to grow through acquisitions.

Most of our growth since our inception has been through acquisitions. Although we have identified numerous acquisition
candidates that we believe are suitable, we may not be able to acquire them at prices or on terms and conditions favorable to us.

Other companies have adopted or may in the future adopt our strategy of acquiring and consolidating regional and local
businesses. We expect that increased consolidation in the solid waste services industry will continue to reduce the number of
attractive acquisition candidates. Moreover, general economic conditions and the environment for attractive investments may affect
the desire of the owners of acquisition candidates to sell their companies. As a result, we may have fewer acquisition opportunities
and those opportunities may be on less attractive terms than in the past, which could cause a reduction in our rate of growth from
acquisitions.

Our ability to access the capital markets may be severely restricted at a time when we would like, or need, to do so. While we

expect we will be able to fund some of our acquisitions with our existing resources, additional financing to pursue additional
acquisitions may be required. However, if market conditions deteriorate, we may be unable to secure additional financing or any such
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additional financing may be available to us on unfavorable terms, which could have an impact on our flexibility to pursue additional
acquisition opportunities and maintain our desired level of revenue growth in the future. In addition, disruptions in the capital and
credit markets could adversely affect our ability to draw on our credit facility. Our access to funds under the credit facility is
dependent on the ability of the banks that are parties to the facility to meet their funding commitments. Those banks may not be able
to meet their funding commitments if they experience shortages of capital and liquidity or if they experience excessive volumes of
borrowing requests within a short period of time.

We may be unable to compete effectively with larger and better capitalized companies, companies with lower return expectations, and
governmental service providers.

Our industry is highly competitive and requires substantial labor and capital resources. Some of the markets in which we compete
or will likely compete are served by one or more large, national companies, as well as by regional and local companies of varying
sizes and resources, some of which we believe have accumulated substantial goodwill in their markets. Some of our competitors may
also be better capitalized than we are, have greater name recognition than we do, or be able to provide or be willing to bid their
services at a lower price than we may be willing to offer. Our inability to compete effectively could hinder our growth or negatively
impact our operating results.

We also compete with counties, municipalities and solid waste districts that maintain or could in the future choose to maintain
their own waste collection and disposal operations, including through the implementation of flow control ordinances or similar
legislation. These operators may have financial advantages over us because of their access to user fees and similar charges, tax
revenues and tax-exempt financing.

We may lose contracts through competitive bidding, early termination or governmental action.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from market arcas where we have exclusive arrangements, including franchise
agreements, municipal contracts and G Certificates. Many franchise agreements and municipal contracts are for a specified term and
are or will be subject to competitive bidding in the future. For example, we have approximately 255 contracts, representing
approximately 3.4% of our annual revenues, which are set for expiration or automatic renewal on or before December 31, 2012.
Although we intend to bid on additional municipal contracts and franchise agreements, we may not be the successful bidder. In
addition, some of our customers, including municipalities, may terminate their contracts with us before the end of the terms of those
contracts. Similar risks may affect contracts that we are awarded to operate municipally-owned assets, such as landfills. See
discussion regarding the Colonie, New York Landfill Privatization Litigation under the “Legal Proceedings” section of Note 11 of our
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

Governmental action may also affect our exclusive arrangements. Municipalities may annex unincorporated areas within counties
where we provide collection services. As a result, our customers in annexed areas may be required to obtain services from
competitors that have been franchised by the annexing municipalities to provide those services. In addition, municipalities in which
we provide services on a competitive basis may elect to franchise those services. Unless we are awarded franchises by these
municipalitics, we will lose customers. Municipalities may also decide to provide services to their residents themselves, on an
optional or mandatory basis, causing us to lose customers. Municipalities in Washington may, by law, annex any unincorporated
territory, which could remove such territory from an area covered by a G Certificate issued to us by the WUTC. Such occurrences
could subject more of our Washington operations to competitive bidding. Moreover, legislative action could amend or repeal the laws
governing WUTC regulation, which could harm our competitive position by subjecting more areas to competitive bidding and/or
overlapping service. If we are not able to replace revenues from contracts lost through competitive bidding or early termination or
from the renegotiation of existing contracts with other revenues within a reasonable time period, our revenues could decline.

Price increases may not be adequate to offset the impact of increased costs or may cause us to lose volume.

We seek to secure price increases necessary to offset increased costs, to improve operating margins and to obtain adequate returns
on our deployed capital. Contractual, general economic or market-specific conditions may limit our ability to raise prices. As a result
of these factors, we may be unable to offset increases in costs, improve operating margins and obtain adequate investment returns
through price increases. We may also lose volume to lower-cost competitors.

Economic downturns adversely affect operating results.

Negative effects of a weak economy include decreases in volume generally associated with the construction industry, reduced
personal consumption and declines in recycled commodity prices. In an economic slowdown, we also experience the negative effects
of increased competitive pricing pressure, customer turnover, and reductions in customer service requirements. Worsening economic
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conditions or a prolonged or recurring economic recession could adversely affect our operating results and expected seasonal
fluctuations. Further, we cannot assure you that an improvement in economic conditions after such a downturn will result in an
immediate, if at all positive, improvement in our operating results or cash flows.

Our results are vulnerable to economic conditions and seasonal factors affecting the regions in which we operate.

Our business and financial results would be harmed by downturns in the general economy of the regions in which we operate and
other factors affecting those regions, such as state regulations affecting the solid waste services industry and severe weather
conditions. Based on historic trends, we expect our operating results to vary seasonally, with revenues typically lowest in the first
quarter, higher in the second and third quarters, and lower in the fourth quarter than in the second and third quarters. We expect the
fluctuation in our revenues between our highest and lowest quarters to be approximately 7% to 10%. This seasonality reflects the
lower volume of solid waste generated during the late fall, winter and early spring because of decreased construction and demolition
activities during the winter months in the U.S. In addition, some of our operating costs may be higher in the winter months. Adverse
winter weather conditions slow waste collection activities, resulting in higher labor and operational costs. Greater precipitation in the
winter increases the weight of collected waste, resulting in higher disposal costs, which are calculated on a per ton basis. Because of
these factors, we expect operating income to be generally lower in the winter months, and our stock price may be negatively affected
by these variations.

We may be subject in the normal course of business to judicial, administrative or other third party proceedings that could interrupt or
limit our operations, require expensive remediation, result in adverse judgments, settlements or fines and create negative publicity.

Governmental agencies may, among other things, impose fines or penalties on us relating to the conduct of our business, attempt
to revoke or deny renewal of our operating permits, franchises or licenses for violations or alleged violations of environmental laws or
regulations or as a result of third party challenges, require us to install additional pollution control equipment or require us to
remediate potential environmental problems relating to any real property that we or our predecessors ever owned, leased or operated
or any waste that we or our predecessors ever collected, transported, disposed of or stored. Individuals, citizens groups, trade
associations or environmental activists may also bring actions against us in connection with our operations that could interrupt or limit
the scope of our business. Any adverse outcome in such proceedings could harm our operations and financial results and create
negative publicity, which could damage our reputation, competitive position and stock price.

Increases in the price of fuel may adversely affect our business and reduce our operating margins.

The market price of fuel is volatile and rose substantially in recent years before falling with the general economic downturn in late
2008, but again rose during 2009, 2010 and 2011. We generally purchase diesel fuel at market prices, and such prices have fluctuated
significantly. A significant increase in our fuel cost could adversely affect our business and reduce our operating margins and
reported earnings. To manage a portion of this risk, we have entered into fuel hedge agreements related to forecasted diesel fuel
purchases and may also enter into fixed-price fuel purchase contracts. During periods of falling diesel fuel prices, our hedge payable
positions may increase and it may become more expenstve to purchase fuel under fixed-price fuel purchase contracts than at market
prices.

Increases in labor and disposal and related transportation costs could impact our financial results.

Our continued success will depend on our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. We compete with other businesses in
our markets for qualified employees. From time to time, the labor supply is tight in some of our markets. A shortage of qualified
employees would require us to enhance our wage and benefits packages to compete more effectively for employees, to hire more
expensive temporary employees or to contract for services with more expensive third-party vendors. The relocation of our corporate
headquarters from California to Texas, discussed in greater detail in Note 10 of our consolidated financial statements included in Ttem
8 of this report, may temporarily exacerbate this risk. Labor is one of our highest costs and relatively small increases in labor costs per
employee could materially affect our cost structure. If we fail to attract and retain qualified employees, control our labor costs during
periods of declining volumes, or recover any increased labor costs through increased prices we charge for our services or otherwise
offset such increases with cost savings in other areas, our operating margins could suffer. Disposal and related transportation costs are
our second highest cost category. If we incur increased disposal and related transportation costs to dispose of solid waste, and if, in
either case, we are unable to pass these costs on to our customers, our operating results would suffer.

Efforts by labor unions could divert management attention and adversely affect operating results.

From time to time, labor unions attempt to organize our employees. Some groups of our employees are represented by unions,
and we have negotiated collective bargaining agreements with most of these groups. We are currently engaged in negotiations with
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other groups of employees represented by unions. Additional groups of employees may seek union representation in the future. Asa
result of these activities, we may be subjected to unfair labor practice charges, complaints and other legal and administrative
proceedings initiated against us by unions or the National Labor Relations Board, which could negatively impact our operating results.
Negotiating collective bargaining agreements with these groups could divert management attention, which could also adversely affect
operating results. If we are unable to negotiate acceptable collective bargaining agreements, we might have to wait through “cooling
off” periods, which are often followed by union-initiated work stoppages, including strikes. Furthermore, any significant work
stoppage or slowdown at ports or by railroad workers could reduce or interrupt the flow of cargo containers through our intermodal
facilities. Depending on the type and duration of any labor disruptions, our operating expenses could increase significantly, which
could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We could face significant withdrawal liability if we withdraw from participation in one or more underfunded multiemployer pension
plans in which we participate.

We participate in various “multiemployer” pension plans administered by employee and union trustees. We make periodic
contributions to these plans pursuant to our various contractual obligations to do so. In the event that we withdraw from participation
in or otherwise cease our contributions to one of these plans, then applicable law regarding withdrawal liability could require us to
make additional contributions to the plan if it is underfunded, and we would have to reflect that as an expense in our consolidated
statement of operations and as a liability on our consolidated balance sheet. Our withdrawal liability for any multiemployer plan
would depend on the extent of the plan's funding of vested benefits. In the ordinary course of our renegotiation of collective
bargaining agreements with labor unions that participate in these plans, we may decide to discontinue participation in a plan, and in
that event, we could face a withdrawal liability. Some multiemployer plans in which we participate may from time to time have
significant underfunded liabilities. Such underfunding could increase the size of our potential withdrawal liability.

Increases in insurance costs and the amount that we self-insure for various risks could reduce our operating margins and reported
earnings.

We maintain high deductible insurance policies for automobile, general, employer’s, environmental and directors’ and officers’
liability as well as for employee group health insurance, property insurance and workers’ compensation. We carry umbrella policies
for certain types of claims to provide excess coverage over the underlying policies and per incident deductibles. The amounts that we
self-insure could cause significant volatility in our operating margins and reported earnings based on the occurrence and claim costs of
incidents, accidents, injuries and adverse judgments. Our insurance accruals are based on claims filed and estimates of claims
incurred but not reported and are developed by our management with assistance from our third-party actuary and our third-party
claims administrator. To the extent these estimates are inaccurate, we may recognize substantial additional expenses in future periods
that would reduce operating margins and reported earnings. From time to time, actions filed against us include claims for punitive
damages, which are generally excluded from coverage under all of our liability insurance policies. A punitive damage award could
have an adverse effect on our reported earnings in the period in which it occurs. Significant increases in premiums on insurance that
we retain also could reduce our margins.

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition; we may incur substantially more debt in the future.

As of December 31, 2011, we had $1.18 billion of total indebtedness outstanding. We may incur substantial additional debt in the
future. The incurrence of substantial additional indebtedness could have important consequences to you. For example, it could:

e increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;

e limit our ability to obtain additional financing or refinancings at attractive rates;

o require the dedication of a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to the payment of principal of, and interest on,
our indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of such cash flow to fund our growth strategy, working capital, capital
expenditures, dividends, share repurchases and other general corporate purposes;

o limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry; and

e place us at a competitive disadvantage relative to our competitors with less debt.

Each business that we acquire or have acquired may have liabilities or risks that we fail or are unable to discover, including
environmental liabilities.

It is possible that the corporate entities or sites we have acquired, or which we may acquire in the future, have liabilities or risks in
respect of former or existing operations or properties, or otherwise, which we have not been able to identify and assess through our
due diligence investigations. As a successor owner, we may be legally responsible for those liabilities that arise from businesses that
we acquire. Even if we obtain legally enforceable representations, warranties and indemnities from the sellers of such businesses, they
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may not cover the liabilities fully or the sellers may not have sufficient funds to perform their obligations. Some environmental
liabilities, even if we do not expressly assume them, may be imposed on us under various regulatory schemes and other applicable
laws. In addition, our insurance program may not cover such sites and will not cover liabilities associated with some environmental
issues that may have existed prior to attachment of coverage. A successful uninsured claim against us could harm our financial
condition or operating results. Additionally, there may be other risks of which we are unaware that could have an adverse affect on
businesses that we acquire or have acquired. For example, interested parties may bring actions against us in connection with
operations that we acquire or have acquired. Any adverse outcome in such proceedings could harm our operations and financial
results and create negative publicity, which could damage our reputation, competitive position and stock price.

Liabilities for environmental damage may adversely affect our financial condition, business and earnings.

We may be liable for any environmental damage that our current or former facilities cause, including damage to neighboring
landowners or residents, particularly as a result of the contamination of soil, groundwater or surface water, and especially drinking
water, or to natural resources. We may be liable for damage resulting from conditions existing before we acquired these facilities.
We may also be liable for any on-site environmental contamination caused by pollutants or hazardous substances whose
transportation, treatment or disposal we or our predecessors arranged or conducted. If we were to incur liability for environmental
damage, environmental cleanups, corrective action or damage not covered by insurance or in excess of the amount of our coverage,
our financial condition or operating results could be materially adversely affected.

Our accruals for our landfill site closure and post-closure costs may be inadequate.

We are required to pay capping, closure and post-closure maintenance costs for landfill sites that we own and operate. We are
also required to pay capping, closure and post-closure maintenance costs for four of our five operated landfills for which we have life-
of-site agreements. Our obligations to pay closure or post-closure costs may exceed the amount we have accrued and reserved and
other amounts available from funds or reserves established to pay such costs. In addition, the completion or closure of a landfill site
does not end our environmental obligations. After completion or closure of a landfill site, there exists the potential for unforeseen
environmental problems to occur that could result in substantial remediation costs. Paying additional amounts for closure or post-
closure costs and/or for environmental remediation could harm our financial condition or operating results.

The financial soundness of our customers could affect our business and operating results.

As a result of the disruptions in the financial markets and other macro-economic challenges currently affecting the economy of
the United States and other parts of the world, our customers may experience cash flow concerns. As a result, if customers’ operating
and financial performance deteriorates, or if they are unable to make scheduled payments or obtain credit, customers may not be able
to pay, or may delay payment of, accounts receivable owed to us. Any inability of current and/or potential customers to pay us for
services may adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We depend significantly on the services of the members of our senior, regional and district management team. and the departure of
any of those persons could cause our operating results to suffer.

Our success depends significantly on the continued individual and collective contributions of our senior, regional and district
management team. Key members of our management have entered into employment agreements, but we may not be able to enforce
these agreements. The loss of the services of any member of our senior, regional or district management or the inability to hire and
retain experienced management personnel could harm our operating results.

Our decentralized decision-making structure could allow local managers to make decisions that adversely affect our operating results.

We manage our operations on a decentralized basis. Local managers have the authority to make many decisions concerning their
operations without obtaining prior approval from executive officers, subject to compliance with general company-wide policies. Poor
decisions by local managers could result in the loss of customers or increases in costs, in either case adversely affecting operating
results.

We may incur charges related to capitalized expenditures of landfill development projects, which would decrease our earnings.

In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, we capitalize some expenditures and advances relating to
landfill development projects. We expense indirect costs such as executive salaries, general corporate overhead and other corporate
services as we incur those costs. We charge against earnings any unamortized capitalized expenditures and advances (net of any
amount that we estimate we will recover, through sale or otherwise) that relate to any operation that is permanently shut down or

20



determined to be impaired and any landfill development project that we do not expect to complete. For example, if we are
unsuccessful in our attempts to obtain or defend permits that we are seeking or have been awarded to operate or expand a landf{ill, we
will no longer generate anticipated income from the landfill and we will be required to expense in a future period the amount of
capitalized expenditures related to the landfill or expansion project, less the recoverable value of the property and other amounts
recovered. Additionally, we may incur increased operating expenses to dispose of the previously internalized waste that would need
to be transported to another disposal location. Any such charges could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations for
that period and could decrease our stock price. See discussion regarding the Chaparral, New Mexico Landfill Permit Litigation, the
Harper County, Kansas Permit Litigation and the Solano County, California Measure E/Landfill Expansion Litigation under the
“Legal Proceedings” section of Note 11 of our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

Because we depend on railroads for our intermodal operations. our operating results and financial condition are likely to be adversely
affected by any reduction or deterioration in rail service.

We depend on two major railroads for the intermodal services we provide — the Burlington Northern Santa Fe and Union Pacific.
Consequently, a reduction in, or elimination of, rail service to a particular market is likely to adversely affect our ability to provide
intermodal transportation services to some of our customers. In addition, the railroads are relatively free to adjust shipping rates up or
down as market conditions permit when existing contracts expire. Rate increases would result in higher intermodal transportation
costs, reducing the attractiveness of intermodal transportation compared to solely trucking or other transportation modes, which could
cause a decrease in demand for our services. Our business could also be adversely affected by harsh weather conditions or other
factors that hinder the railroads’ ability to provide reliable transportation services.

Qur financial results are based upon estimates and assumptions that may differ from actual results.

In preparing our consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, several
estimates and assumptions are made that affect the accounting for and recognition of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. These
estimates and assumptions must be made because certain information that is used in the preparation of our financial statements is
dependent on future events, cannot be calculated with a high degree of precision from data available or is not capable of being readily
calculated based on generally accepted methodologies. In some cases, these estimates are particularly difficult to determine and we
must exercise significant judgment. The estimates and the assumptions having the greatest amount of uncertainty, subjectivity and
complexity are related to our accounting for landfills, self-insurance, intangibles, allocation of acquisition purchase price, income
taxes, asset impairments and litigation, claims and assessments. Actual results for all estimates could differ materially from the
estimates and assumptions that we use, which could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

The adoption of new accounting standards or interpretations could adversely affect our financial results.

Our implementation of and compliance with changes in accounting rules and interpretations could adversely affect our operating
results or cause unanticipated fluctuations in our results in future periods. The accounting rules and regulations that we must comply
with are complex and continually changing. Recent actions and public comments from the SEC have focused on the integrity of
financial reporting generally. The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, has recently introduced several new or proposed
accounting standards, or is developing new proposed standards, which would represent a significant change from current industry
practices. For example, the proposed derivatives guidance would change the overall accounting for hedges by requiring only a
qualitative assessment of hedge effectiveness at inception and reassessments only under certain circumstances. However, the
proposed guidance requires all ineffectiveness to be recorded in the income statement and eliminates the short cut and critical terms
match methods to attain hedge effectiveness. Additionally, the proposed lease accounting pronouncement would change the
accounting for operating leases by requiring a “right-of-use-asset” to be recorded on the balance sheet as well as a corresponding
liability for the obligation to pay lease rentals. The proposed guidance also changes how lease expense is recognized in the income
statement requiring more expense to be recorded in the initial years of the lease.

In addition, many companies’ accounting policies are being subjected to heightened scrutiny by regulators and the public. While
we believe that our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, we
cannot predict the impact of future changes to accounting principles or our accounting policies on our financial statements going
forward.

Pending or future litigation or governmental proceedings could result in material adverse consequences, including judgments or
settlements.

We are, and from time to time become, involved in lawsuits, regulatory inquiries, and governmental and other legal proceedings
arising out of the ordinary course of our business. Many of these matters raise difficult and complicated factual and legal issues and
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are subject to uncertainties and complexities. The timing of the final resolutions to lawsuits, regulatory inquiries, and governmental
and other legal proceedings is uncertain. Additionally, the possible outcomes or resolutions to these matters could include adverse
judgments or settlements, either of which could require substantial payments, adversely affecting our consolidated financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows. See discussion under the “Legal Proceedings™ section of Note 11 of our consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8 of this report.

If we are not able to develop and protect intellectual property. or if a competitor develops or obtains exclusive rights to a breakthrough
technology, our financial results may suffer.

Our existing and proposed service offerings to customers may require that we develop or license, and protect, new technologies.
We may experience difficulties or delays in the research, development, production and/or marketing of new products and services
which may negatively impact our operating results and prevent us from recouping or realizing a return on the investments required to
bring new products and services to market. Further, protecting our intellectual property rights and combating unlicensed copying and
use of intellectual property is difficult, and any inability to obtain or protect new technologies could impact our services to customers
and development of new revenue sources. Additionally, a competitor may develop or obtain exclusive rights to a “breakthrough
technology” that provides a revolutionary change in traditional waste management. If we have inferior intellectual property to our
competitors, our financial results may suffer.

Risks Related to Our Industry

Fluctuations in prices for recycled commodities that we sell and rebates we offer to customers may cause our revenues and operatin,
results to decline.

We provide recycling services to some of our customers. The majority of the recyclables we process for sale are paper products
that are shipped to customers in Asia. The sale prices of and demands for recyclable commodities, particularly paper products, are
frequently volatile and when they decline, our revenues, operating results and cash flows will be affected. Our recycling operations
offer rebates to customers based on the market prices of commodities we buy to process for resale. Therefore, if we recognize
increased revenues resulting from higher prices for recyclable commodities, the rebates we pay to suppliers will also increase, which
also may impact our operating results.

Our financial and operating performance may be affected by the inability to renew landfill operating permits, obtain new landfills and
expand existing ones.

We currently own and/or operate 46 landfills. Our ability to meet our financial and operating objectives may depend in part on
our ability to acquire, lease, or renew landfill operating permits, expand existing landfills and develop new landfill sites. It has
become increasingly difficult and expensive to obtain required permits and approvals to build, operate and expand solid waste
management facilities, including landfills and transfer stations. Operating permits for landfills in states where we operate must
generally be renewed every five to ten years, although some permits are required to be renewed more frequently. These operating
permits often must be renewed several times during the permitted life of a landfill. The permit and approval process is often time
consuming, requires numerous hearings and compliance with zoning, environmental and other requirements, is frequently challenged
by special interest and other groups, and may result in the denial of a permit or renewal, the award of a permit or renewal for a shorter
duration than we believed was otherwise required by law, or burdensome terms and conditions being imposed on our operations. We
may not be able to obtain new landfill sites or expand the permitted capacity of our landfills when necessary. Obtaining new landfill
sites is important to our expansion into new, non-exclusive markets. If we do not believe that we can obtain a landfill site in a non-
exclusive market, we may choose not to enter that market. Expanding existing landfill sites is important in those markets where the
remaining lives of our landfills are relatively short. We may choose to forego acquisitions and internal growth in these markets
because increased volumes would further shorten the lives of these landfills. Any of these circumstances could adversely affect our
operating results.

Future changes in laws or renewed enforcement of laws regulating the flow of solid waste in interstate commerce could adversely
affect our operating results.

Various state and local governments have enacted, or are considering enacting, laws and regulations that restrict the disposal
within the jurisdiction of solid waste generated outside the jurisdiction. In addition, some state and local governments have
promulgated, or are considering promulgating, laws and regulations which govern the flow of waste generated within their respective
jurisdictions. These “flow control” laws and regulations typically require that waste generated within the jurisdiction be directed to
specified facilities for disposal or processing, which could limit or prohibit the disposal or processing of waste in our transfer stations
and landfills. Such flow control laws and regulations could also require us to deliver waste collected by us within a particular
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jurisdiction to facilities not owned or controlled by us, which could increase our costs and reduce our revenues. In addition, such laws
and regulations could require us to obtain additional costly licenses or authorizations to be deemed an authorized hauler or disposal
facility.

Additionally, public interest and pressure from competing industry segments has caused some trade associations and
environmental activists to seek enforcement of laws regulating the flow of solid waste that have not been recently enforced and which,
in at least one case, we believe are unconstitutional and otherwise unlawful. See discussion regarding the Solano County, California
Measure E/Landfill Expansion Litigation under the “Legal Proceedings” section of Note 11 of our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of this report. If successful, these groups may advocate for the enactment of similar laws in neighboring
jurisdictions through local ballot initiatives or otherwise. All such waste disposal laws and regulations are subject to judicial
interpretation and review. Court decisions, congressional legislation, and state and local regulation in the waste disposal area could
adversely affect our operations.

Extensive and evolving environmental, health, safety and employment laws and regulations may restrict our operations and growth
and increase our costs.

Existing environmental and employment laws and regulations have become more stringently enforced in recent years. Competing
industry segments and other interested parties have sought enforcement of laws that local jurisdictions have not recently enforced and
which, in at least one case, we believe are unconstitutional and otherwise unlawful. See discussion regarding the Solano County,
California Measure E/Landfill Expansion Litigation under the “Legal Proceedings” section of Note 11 of our consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8 of this report. If successful, such groups may advocate for the enactment of similar laws in neighboring
jurisdictions through local ballot initiatives or otherwise. In addition, our industry is subject to regular enactment of new or amended
federal, state and local environmental and health and safety statutes, regulations and ballot initiatives, as well as judicial decisions
interpreting these requirements. These requirements impose substantial capital and operating costs and operational limitations on us
and may adversely affect our business. In addition, federal, state and local governments may change the rights they grant to, the
restrictions they impose on, or the laws and regulations they enforce against, solid waste services companies, and those changes could
restrict our operations and growth.

Climate change regulations may adversely affect operating results.

Governmental authorities and various interest groups have promoted laws and regulations that could limit greenhouse gas, or
GHG, emissions due to concerns that GHGs are contributing to climate change. The State of California has already adopted a climate
change law, and other states in which we operate are considering similar actions. For example, California enacted AB 32, the Global
Warming Solutions Act of 2006, which established the first statewide program in the United States to limit GHG emissions and
impose penalties for non-compliance. The California Air Resources Board has taken and plans to take various actions to implement
the program, including the approval in December 2008 of an AB 32 Scoping Plan summarizing the main GHG-reduction strategies for
California; a landfill methane control measure, which became effective in June 2010; and, in December 2010, a GHG cap-and-trade
program which is scheduled to begin imposing compliance obligations in 2013. Because landfill and collection operations emit
GHGs, our operations in California are subject to regulations issued under AB 32. These regulations increase our costs for those
operations and adversely affect our operating results. The Western Climate Initiative, which once included seven states, all of which
we operate in, and four Canadian provinces, has also developed GHG reduction strategies, among them a GHG cap-and-trade
program. In addition, the EPA made an endangerment finding in 2009 allowing certain GHGs to be regulated under the Clean Air
Act. This finding allows the EPA to create regulations that will impact our operations — including imposing emission reporting,
permitting, control technology installation, and monitoring requirements, although the materiality of the impacts will not be known
until all regulations are finalized. The EPA has already finalized its GHG “reporting rule,” which requires that municipal solid waste
landfills monitor and report GHG emissions. The EPA has also finalized its “tailoring rule,” which imposes certain permitting and
control technology requirements upon newly-constructed or modified facilities which emit GHGs over a certain threshold under the
Clean Air Act New Source Review Prevention of Significant Deterioration, or NSR PSD, and Title V permitting programs. As a
result, NSR PSD or Title V permits issued after January 2, 2011, for new or modified landfills may need to address GHG emissions,
including by requiring the installation of Best Available Control Technology. Notably, landfills may become subject to such
permitting requirements under the “tailoring rule” based on their GHG emissions even if their emission of other regulated pollutants
would not otherwise trigger permitting requirements. In addition, NEPA and the National Highway Transportation Safety
Administration promulgated in August 2011 standards to reduce GHG emissions from, and increase the fuel efficiency of, medium-
and heavy-duty vehicles.
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Extensive regulations that govern the desiegn, operation and closure of landfills may restrict our landfill operations or increase our
costs of operating landfills.

Regulations that govern landfill design, operation, closure and financial assurances include the regulations that establish minimum
federal requirements adopted by the EPA in October 1991 under Subtitle D of RCRA. If we fail to comply with these regulations or
their state counterparts, we could be required to undertake investigatory or remedial activities, curtail operations or close landfills
temporarily or permanently. Future changes to these regulations may require us to modify, supplement or replace equipment or
facilities at substantial costs. If regulatory agencies fail to enforce these regulations vigorously or consistently, our competitors whose
facilities are not forced to comply with the Subtitle D regulations or their state counterparts may obtain an advantage over us. Our
financial obligations arising from any failure to comply with these regulations could harm our business and operating results.

Alternatives to landfill disposal may cause our revenues and operating results to decline.

Counties and municipalities in which we operate landfills may be required to formulate and implement comprehensive plans to
reduce the volume of solid waste deposited in landfills through waste planning, composting, recycling or other programs. Some state
and local governments prohibit the disposal of certain types of wastes, such as yard waste, at landfills. Although such actions are
useful to protect our environment, these actions, as well as the actions of our customers to reduce waste or seck disposal alternatives,
have reduced and may in the future further reduce the volume of waste going to landfills in certain areas, which may affect our ability
to operate our landfills at full capacity and could adversely affect our operating results.

Unusually adverse weather conditions may interfere with our operations, harming our operating results.

Our operations could be adversely affected, beyond the normal seasonal variations described above, by unusually long periods of
inclement weather, which could interfere with collection, landfill and intermodal operations, reduce the volume of waste generated by
our customers, delay the development of landfill capacity, and increase the costs we incur in connection with the construction of
landfills and other facilities. Periods of particularly harsh weather may force us to temporarily suspend some of our operations.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2011, we owned 140 collection operations, 45 transfer stations, 32 municipal solid waste landfills, three
construction and demolition landfills, 39 recycling operations, five intermodal operations and one exploration and production waste
treatment and disposal facility, and operated, but did not own, an additional 13 transfer stations, 11 municipal solid waste landfills and
two intermodal operations in 29 states. We lease certain of the sites on which these facilities are located. We lease various office
facilities, including our corporate offices in The Woodlands, Texas, where we occupy approximately 19,000 square feet of space. We
also lease approximately 64,000 square feet of space in our former corporate offices in Folsom, California. We may incur a loss on
lease in 2012 on the cessation of use of our former corporate offices, which we estimate could range between $4 million and $6
million. We also maintain regional administrative offices in each of our regions. We own various equipment, including waste
collection and transportation vehicles, related support vehicles, double-stack rail cars, carts, containers, chassis and heavy equipment
used in landfill, collection, transfer station and intermodal operations. We believe that our existing facilities and equipment are
adequate for our current operations. However, we expect to make additional investments in property and equipment for expansion and
replacement of assets in connection with future acquisitions.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Information regarding our legal proceedings can be found under the “Legal Proceedings” section of Note 11 of our consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 of this report and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART II

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “WCN”. The following table sets forth, for the
periods indicated, the high and low prices per share of our common stock, as reported on the New York Stock Exchange. Prices have
been retroactively adjusted to reflect our three-for-two stock split, in the form of a 50% stock dividend, effective as of November 12,
2010.

DIVIDENDS

HIGH LOW DECLARED
2012
First Quarter (through January 20, 2012) $ 33.94 $ 31.81 $ 0.090"
2011
Fourth Quarter $ 35.95 $ 3126 $ 0.090
Third Quarter 35.35 29.06 0.075
Second Quarter 32.69 28.77 0.075
First Quarter 29.86 26.99 0.075
2010
Fourth Quarter $ 27.79 $ 2560 % 0.075
Third Quarter 26.96 22.97 -
Second Quarter 24.71 22.01 -
First Quarter 23.58 20.46 -

(1) On February 7, 2012, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.09 per
share on our common stock. The dividend will be paid on March 6, 2012, to stockholders of record on the close of business on
February 21, 2012. The Board will review the cash dividend periodically, with a long-term objective of increasing the amount of the
dividend. We cannot assure you as to the amounts or timing of future dividends. We have the ability under our senior revolving
credit facility to repurchase our common stock and pay dividends provided we maintain specified financial ratios.

As of January 20, 2012, there were 80 record holders of our common stock.

On December 5, 2011, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized a $400 million increase to, and extended the term of,
our previously announced common stock repurchase program. As amended, our common stock repurchase program authorizes the
repurchase of up to $1.2 billion of our common stock through December 31, 2014. Under the program, stock repurchases may be
made in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions from time to time at management's discretion. The timing and
amounts of any repurchases will depend on many factors, including our capital structure, the market price of our common stock and
overall market conditions. As of December 31, 2011, we have repurchased approximately 39.2 million shares of our common stock at
a cost of $765.4 million. The table below reflects repurchases we made during the three months ended December 31, 2011 (in
thousands, except share and per share amounts):

Maximum
Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Shares Purchased Value of Shares that

Total Number Average as Part of Publicly May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid Announced Purchased Under
Period Purchased Per Share) Program the Program
10/1/11 - 10/31/11 - $ - - $ 466,306
11/1/11 = 11/30/11 633,862 32.31 633,862 445,828
12/1/11-12/31/11 350,626 32.15 350,626 434,557
984,488 32.25 984,488

(1) This amount represents the weighted average price paid per common share. This price includes a per share commission paid
for all repurchases.
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the total cumulative stockholder returns on our common stock over the past five
fiscal years with the total cumulative returns for the S&P 500 Index and a peer group index we selected. The graph assumes an
investment of $100 in our common stock on December 31, 2006, and the reinvestment of all dividends. This chart has been calculated
in compliance with SEC requirements and prepared by Capital 1Q°%.
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This graph and the accompanying text is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed filed with the SEC, and is not to be incorporated
by reference in any filing by us under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

Base Indexed Returns
Period Years Ending
Company Name / Index Dec06 Dec07 Dec08 Dec09 Decl0 Decll
Waste Connections, Inc.  $ 100 $ 111.55 $ 11397 $ 120.36 $ 14935 $ 181.55
S&P 500 Index $ 100 $ 105.49 $ 66.46 $ 84.05 $ 96.71 $ 98.76
Peer Group ©® $ 100 $ 96.97 $ 94.68 $ 106.51 $ 12084 $ 11164

(a) Peer Group Companies: Casella Waste Systems, Inc.; Republic Services, Inc.; Waste Management, Inc.; IESI-BFC Ltd.
(included from June 5, 2009, when it began trading on a U.S. stock exchange)

THE STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE INCLUDED IN THIS GRAPH IS NOT NECESSARILY INDICATIVE OF FUTURE
STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

This table sets forth our selected financial data for the periods indicated. This data should be read in conjunction with, and is
qualified by reference to, “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in
Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and our audited consolidated financial statements, including the related notes and our
independent registered public accounting firm’s report and the other financial information included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The selected data in this section is not intended to replace the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2011% 2010 ™ 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:

Revenues $ 1,505366 $ 1,319,757 $§ 1,191,393 § 1,049,603 $ 958,541
Operating expenses:

Cost of operations 857,580 749,487 692,415 628,075 566,089

Selling, general and administrative 161,967 149,860 138,026 111,114 99,565

Depreciation 147,036 132,874 117,796 91,095 81,287

Amorttization of intangibles 20,064 14,582 12,962 6,334 4,341

Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 1,657 571 (481) 629 250
Operating income 317,062 272,383 230,675 212,356 207,009
Interest expense (44,520) (40,134) (49,161) (43,102) (39,206)
Interest income 530 590 1,413 3,297 1,593
Loss on extinguishment of debt - (10,193) - - -
Other income (expense), net 57 2,830 (7,551) (633) 289
Income before income tax provision 273,129 225,476 175,376 171,918 169,685
Income tax provision (106,958) (89,334) (64,565) (56,775) (58,328)
Net income 166,171 136,142 110,811 115,143 111,357

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interests (932) (1,038) (986) (12,240) (14,870)

Net income attributable to Waste Connections $ 165,239 $ 135,104 $ 109,825 $ 102,903 $ 96,487

Earnings per common share attributable to Waste
Connections’ common stockholders:

Basic $ 147 $ 117 § 092 $ 098 $ 0.94
Diluted $ 145 $ 1.16 § 091 $ 0.96 $ 0.92
Shares used in the per share calculations:

Basic ® 112,720,444 115,646,173 119,119,601 105,037,311 102,357,785
Diluted ® 113,583,486 116,894,204 120,506,162 107,129,568 104,992,070
Cash dividends per common share $ 0315 $ 0.075 $ -5 - % -
Cash dividends paid $ 35,566 $ 8,561 § - $ - $ -
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BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and equivalents
Working capital (deficit)
Property and equipment, net
Total assets
Long-term debt and notes payable
Total equity

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2011 W 2010 2009 ¥ 2008 2007
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
12,643 $ 9,873 § 9,639 $ 265,264 $ 10,298
(34,844) (37,976) (45,059) 213,747 (24,849)

1,450,469 1,337,476 1,308,392 984,124 865,330
3,328,005 2,915,984 2,820,448 2,600,357 1,981,548
1,172,758 909,978 867,554 819,828 704,184
1,399,687 1,370,418 1,357,036 1,261,997 814,618

(a) For more information regarding this financial data, see the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations section included in this report. For disclosures associated with the impact of the adoption of new accounting pronouncements and
the comparability of this information, see Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Share amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect our three-for-two stock split, in the form of a 50% stock dividend, effective as of
March 13, 2007 and our three-for-two stock split, in the form of a 50% stock dividend, effective as of November 12, 2010,
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the “Selected Financial Data” included in Item 6 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this report.

Industry Overview

The solid waste industry is a local and highly competitive business, requiring substantial labor and capital resources. The
participants compete for collection accounts primarily on the basis of price and, to a lesser extent, the quality of service, and compete
for landfill business on the basis of tipping fees, geographic location and quality of operations. The solid waste industry has been
consolidating and continues to consolidate as a result of a number of factors, including the increasing costs and complexity associated
with waste management operations and regulatory compliance. Many small independent operators and municipalities lack the capital
resources, management, operating skills and technical expertise necessary to operate effectively in such an environment. The
consolidation trend has caused solid waste companies to operate larger landfills that have complementary collection routes that can
use company-owned disposal capacity. Controlling the point of transfer from haulers to landfills has become increasingly important
as landfills continue to close and disposal capacity moves further from collection markets.

Generally, the most profitable industry operators are those companies that are vertically integrated or enter into long-term
collection contracts. A vettically integrated operator will benefit from: (1) the internalization of waste, which is bringing waste to a
company-owned landfill; (2) the ability to charge third-party haulers tipping fees either at landfills or at transfer stations; and (3) the
efficiencies gained by being able to aggregate and process waste at a transfer station prior to landfilling.

Executive Overview

We are an integrated solid waste services company that provides solid waste collection, transfer, disposal and recycling services
in mostly exclusive and secondary markets in the U.S. We provide intermodal services for the rail haul movement of cargo and solid
waste containers in the Pacific Northwest through a network of intermodal facilitics. We also treat and dispose of non-hazardous
waste that is generated in the exploration and production of oil and natural gas primarily at a facility in Southwest Louisiana. We seek
to avoid highly competitive, large urban markets and instead target markets where we can provide either solid waste services under
exclusive arrangements, or markets where we can be integrated and attain high market share. In markets where waste collection
services are provided under exclusive arrangements, or where waste disposal is municipally funded or available at multiple municipal
sources, we believe that controlling the waste stream by providing collection services under exclusive arrangements is often more
important to our growth and profitability than owning or operating landfills.

Operating Results

Revenues in 2011 increased 14.1% to $1.51 billion from $1.32 billion in 2010, with approximately two-thirds of this growth
attributable to acquisitions. Operating margins, net income, capital expenditures, and free cash flow also increased, further
strengthening our business and financial profile.

As shown in the table below, internal growth decreased to 4.7% in 2011, from 5.5% in 2010. Pricing increased 0.7%, due to
higher surcharges primarily related to increased fuel prices. Increased landfill revenue primarily associated with higher special waste,
ot one-time projects, offset most of the continuing weakness in collection revenue, which resulted in total volume growth decreasing
from flat in 2010 to negative 0.3% in 2011. Intermodal, recycling and other contributed 1.4% to internal growth in 2011, a slower rate
of growth than the 2.6% realized in 2010, due primarily to a more moderate rate of increase in recycled commodity prices compared to
the unprecedented rate of increases in such commodity prices throughout 2010. Decreases in recycled commodity values experienced
during the fourth quarter of 2011 are expected to result in negative internal growth from such revenue in 2012.

2011 2010
Price 3.6% 2.9%
Volume (0.3%) 0.0%
Intermodal, Recycling and Other 1.4% 2.6%
Internal Growth 4.7% 5.5%

In 2011, adjusted operating income before depreciation and amortization, a non-GAAP financial measure (refer to page 49 of this
report for a definition and reconciliation to Operating income), increased 15.4% to $489.5 million, from $424.3 million in 2010. Asa
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percentage of revenue, adjusted operating income before depreciation and amortization increased from 32.1% in 2010, to 32.5% in
2011. This 0.4 percentage point increase was primarily attributable to growth in higher margin revenue components: price increases
to our customers, higher recycling commodity values and increased disposal volumes, offset by a 0.8% increase in fuel expense as a
percent of revenue due to increased market prices for diesel. Net income attributable to Waste Connections in 2011 increased 22.3%
to $165.2 million from $135.1 million in 2010.

Free Cash Flow

Net cash provided by operating activities increased 16.9% to $388.2 million in 2011, from $332.2 million in 2010, and capital
expenditures increased 5.3% to $141.9 million over that period. Free cash flow, a non-GAAP financial measure (refer to page 49 of
this report for a definition and reconciliation to Net cash provided by operating activities), increased 17.7% to $254.5 million in 2011,
from $216.3 million in 2010. Free cash flow as a percentage of revenues was 16.9% in 2011, compared to 16.4% in 2010. This
increase as a percentage of revenues was primarily due to increased deferred taxes associated with an Internal Revenue Service
approved change in our tax method for deducting depreciation expense for certain landfills as well as other tax deductible timing
differences associated with depreciation.

Return of Capital to Stockholders

In 2011, we returned $152.4 million to stockholders through a combination of stock repurchases and cash dividends. We
repurchased approximately 3.8 million shares of common stock at a cost of $116.8 million during 2011. Our Board of Directors also
declared dividends totaling $35.6 million throughout 2011, and increased the quarterly cash dividend by 20% from $0.075 to $0.09
per share of common stock in October 2011. Our Board of Directors intends to review the quarterly dividend during the fourth quarter
of cach year, with a long-term objective of increasing the amount of the dividend. We expect the amount of capital we return to
stockholders through stock repurchases to vary depending on our financial condition and results of operations, capital structure, the
amount of cash we deploy on acquisitions, the market price of our common stock, and overall market conditions. We cannot assure
you as to the amounts or timing of future stock repurchases or dividends. We have the ability under our senior revolving cre dit facility
to repurchase our common stock and pay dividends provided we maintain specified financial ratios.

Capital Position

We target a leverage ratio, as defined in our credit facility, between 2.5x and 2.75x of total debt to earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA. We deployed $495.4 million during 2011 for acquisitions, repurchases of common stock,
and dividends. These cash outlays were primarily funded by borrowings during the year and operating cash flow. As a result of our
strong free cash flow and improved financial performance, our leverage ratio remained below our targeted range at year-end 2011
despite the large outlay of capital.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. As described by the SEC, critical accounting estimates and assumptions
are those that may be material due to the levels of subjectivity and judgment necessary to account for highly uncertain matters or the
susceptibility of such matters to change, and that have a material impact on the financial condition or operating performance of a
company. Such critical accounting estimates and assumptions are applicable to our reportable segments. Based on this definition, we
believe the following are our critical accounting estimates.

Insurance liabilities. We maintain high deductible insurance policies for automobile, general, employer’s, environmental and
directors and officers’ liability as well as for employee group health insurance, property insurance and workers’ compensation. We
carry umbrella policies for certain types of claims to provide excess coverage over the underlying policies and per incident
deductibles. Our insurance accruals are based on claims filed and estimates of claims incurred but not reported and are developed by
our management with assistance from our third-party actuary and third-party claims administrator. The insurance accruals are
influenced by our past claims experience factors, which have a limited history, and by published industry development factors. If we
experience insurance claims or costs above or below our historically evaluated levels, our estimates could be materially affected. The
frequency and amount of claims or incidents could vary significantly over time, which could materially affect our self-insurance
liabilities. Additionally, the actual costs to settle the self-insurance liabilities could materially differ from the original estimates and
cause us to incur additional costs in future periods associated with prior year claims.
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Income taxes. We use the liability method to account for income taxes. Accordingly, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the
enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. If our judgment and estimates
concerning assumptions made in calculating our expected future income tax rates are incorrect, our deferred tax assets and liabilities
would change. Based on our net deferred tax liability balance at December 31, 2011, each 0.1 percentage point change to our
expected future income tax rate would change our net deferred tax liability balance and income tax expense by approximately
$1.0 million.

Accounting for landfills. We recognize landfill depletion expense as airspace of a landfill is consumed. Our landfill depletion
rates are based on the remaining disposal capacity at our landfills, considering both permitted and probable expansion airspace. We
calculate the net present value of our final capping, closure and post-closure commitments by estimating the total obligation in current
dollars, inflating the obligation based upon the expected date of the expenditure and discounting the inflated total to its present value
using a credit-adjusted risk-free rate. Any changes in expectations that result in an upward revision to the estimated undiscounted
cash flows are treated as a new liability and are inflated and discounted at rates reflecting current market conditions. Any changes in
expectations that result in a downward revision (or no revision) to the estimated undiscounted cash flows result in a liability that is
inflated and discounted at rates reflecting the market conditions at the time the cash flows were originally estimated. This policy
results in our final capping, closure and post-closure liabilities being recorded in “layers.” The resulting final capping, closure and
post-closure obligation is recorded on the balance sheet along with an offsetting addition to site costs, which is amortized to depletion
expense as the remaining landfill airspace is consumed. Interest is accreted on the recorded liability using the corresponding discount
rate. The accounting methods discussed below require us to make certain estimates and assumptions. Changes to these estimates and
assumptions could have a material effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Any changes to our estimates are
applied prospectively.

Landfill development costs. Landfill development costs include the costs of acquisition, construction associated with excavation,
liners, site berms, groundwater monitoring wells, gas recovery systems and leachate collection systems. We estimate the total costs
associated with developing each landfill site to its final capacity. Total landfill costs include the development costs associated with
expansion airspace. Expansion airspace is described below. Landfill development costs depend on future events and thus actual costs
could vary significantly from our estimates. Material differences between estimated and actual development costs may affect our cash
flows by increasing our capital expenditures and thus affect our results of operations by increasing our landfill depletion expense.

Final capping, closure and post-closure obligations. We accrue for estimated final capping, closure and post-closure maintenance
obligations at the landfills we own, and four of the five landfills that we operate, but do not own, under life-of-site agreements. We
could have additional material financial obligations relating to final capping, closure and post-closure costs at other disposal facilities
that we currently own or operate or that we may own or operate in the future. At January 1, 2011, we decreased our discount rate
assumption for purposes of computing 2011 “layers” for final capping, closure and post-closure obligations from 6.5% to 5.75%, in
order to more accurately reflect our long-term cost of borrowing as of the end of 2010. Our inflation rate assumption was 2.5% for the
years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010. Significant reductions in our estimates of the remaining lives of our landfills or
significant increases in our estimates of the landfill final capping, closure and post-closure maintenance costs could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, changes in regulatory or legislative requirements
could increase our costs related to our landfills, resulting in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

We own two landfills for which the prior owners are obligated to reimburse us for certain costs we incur for final capping, closure
and post-closure activities on the portion of the landfill utilized by the prior owners. We accrue the prior owner’s portion of the final
capping, closure and post-closure obligation within the balance sheet classification of other long-term liabilities, and a corresponding
receivable from the prior owner in long-term other assets.

Disposal capacity. Our internal and third-party engineers perform surveys at least annually to estimate the remaining disposal
capacity at our landfills. Our landfill depletion rates are based on the remaining disposal capacity, considering both permitted and
probable expansion airspace, at the landfills that we own and at the landfills that we operate, but do not own, under life-of-site
agreements. Our landfill depletion rate is based on the term of the operating agreement at our operated landfill that has capitalized
expenditures. Expansion airspace consists of additional disposal capacity being pursued through means of expansion that is not
actually permitted. Expansion airspace that meets the following criteria is included in our estimate of total landfill airspace.

1) whether the land where the expansion is being sought is contiguous to the current disposal site, and we either own the

expansion property or have rights to it under an option, purchase, operating or other similar agreement;
2) whether total development costs, final capping costs, and closure/post-closure costs have been determined;
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3) whether internal personnel have performed a financial analysis of the proposed expansion site and have determined that it has
a positive financial and operational impact;

4) whether internal personnel or external consultants are actively working to obtain the necessary approvals to obtain the landfill
expansion permit; and

5) whether we consider it probable that we will achieve the expansion (for a pursued expansion to be considered probable, there
must be no significant known technical, legal, community, business or political restrictions or similar issues existing that we
believe are more likely than not to impair the success of the expansion).

We may be unsuccessful in obtaining permits for expansion disposal capacity at our landfills. In such cases, we will charge the
previously capitalized development costs to expense. This will adversely affect our operating results and cash flows and could result
in greater landfill depletion expense being recognized on a prospective basis.

We periodically evaluate our landfill sites for potential impairment indicators. Our judgments regarding the existence of
impairment indicators are based on regulatory factors, market conditions and operational performance of our landfills. Future events
could cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that our landfill carrying costs are impaired. Any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible testing. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles are tested for impairment on at least an
annual basis in the fourth quarter of the year.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, we elected to early adopt the new guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
related to testing goodwill for impairment. This new guidance provides us the option to perform a “qualitative” assessment to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value. In performing the
qualitative assessment, we assess relevant events and circumstances that may impact the fair value of our reporting units, including the
following:

e  macroeconomic conditions;

e industry and market considerations;

e cost factors;

e overall financial performance;

e Company-specific events;

e events affecting a reporting unit;

e sustained decreases in share price; and

e recent fair value calculation for our reporting units, if available.

If, after assessing the above described events and circumstances, we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of
a reporting unit, which we have determined to be our geographic operating segments, is greater than its carrying value, then no further
testing is required. If we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value is less than the carrying value, then we would
perform the first step of quantitative testing for goodwill impairment, as described below.

In the first step of quantitative testing for goodwill impairment, we estimate the fair value of each reporting unit and compare the
fair value with the carrying value of the net assets assigned to each reporting unit. If the fair value of a reporting unit is greater than
the carrying value of the net assets assigned to the reporting unit, then no impairment results. If the fair value is less than its carrying
value, then we would perform a second step and determine the fair value of the goodwill. In this second step, the fair value of
goodwill is determined by deducting the fair value of a reporting unit’s identifiable assets and liabilities from the fair value of the
reporting unit as a whole, as if that reporting unit had just been acquired and the purchase price were being initially allocated. If the
fair value of the goodwill is less than its carrying value for a reporting unit, an impairment charge would be recorded to earnings in
our Consolidated Statements of Income. In testing indefinite-lived intangibles for impairment, we compare the estimated fair value of
each indefinite-lived intangible to its carrying value. If the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible is less than its carrying value,
an impairment charge would be recorded to earnings in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

To determine the fair value of each of our reporting units as a whole and each indefinite-lived intangible asset, we use discounted
cash flow analyses, which require significant assumptions and estimates about the future operations of each reporting unit and the
future discrete cash flows related to each indefinite-lived intangible asset. Significant judgments inherent in these analyses include the
determination of appropriate discount rates, the amount and timing of expected future cash flows and growth rates. The cash flows
employed in our 2011 discounted cash flow analyses were based on ten-year financial forecasts, which in turn were based on the 2012
annual budget developed internally by management. These forecasts reflect operating profit margins that were consistent with 2011
results and perpetual revenue growth rates of 3.5%. Our discount rate assumptions are based on an assessment of our weighted
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average cost of capital. In assessing the reasonableness of our determined fair values of our reporting units, we evaluate our results
against our current market capitalization.

In addition, we would evaluate a reporting unit for impairment if events or circumstances change between annual tests indicating
a possible impairment. Examples of such events or circumstances are the same as those described above for the qualitative assessment
of goodwill impairment.

We did not record an impairment charge as a result of our qualitative impairment test of goodwill or quantitative impairment test
of indefinite-lived intangibles in 2011. Additionally, we do not expect any impairment on our goodwill or indefinite-lived intangibles
in the foreseeable future. However, we cannot assure you that goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles will not be impaired at any
time in the future.

Business Combination Accounting. We recognize, separately from goodwill, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at their estimated acquisition date fair values. We measure and recognize goodwill as of the acquisition date as the excess of:
(a) the aggregate of the fair value of consideration transferred, the fair value of any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree (if any) and
the acquisition date fair value of our previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over (b) the fair value of net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed.

From time to time, we consummate acquisitions in which we exchange operations we own for operations owned by another solid
waste company. These exchange transactions require us to estimate the fair market value of either the operations we receive or the
operations we dispose of, whichever is more clearly evident. To the extent that the fair market value of the operations we dispose of
differs from the fair market value of the operations we obtain, cash is either paid or received to offset the difference in fair market
values. One method we use to estimate the fair value of solid waste companies is based on a multiple of EBITDA. We determine the
appropriate EBITDA multiple to be used in the valuation of exchange transactions based on factors such as the size of the transaction,
the type and location of markets serviced, the existence of long-term contracts and the EBITDA multiples we have paid in other
similar cash-based transactions.

General

Our solid waste revenues are derived from one industry segment, and consist mainly of fees we charge customers for collection,
transfer, recycling and disposal of non-hazardous solid waste. Our collection business also generates revenues from the sale of
recyclable commodities, which have significant variability. A large part of our collection revenues comes from providing residential,
commercial and industrial services. We frequently perform these services under service agreements, municipal contracts or franchise
agreements with governmental entities. Our existing franchise agreements and most of our existing municipal contracts give us the
exclusive right to provide specified waste services in the specified territory during the contract term. These exclusive arrangements
are awarded, at least initially, on a competitive bid basis and subsequently on a bid or negotiated basis. We also provide residential
collection services on a subscription basis with individual households.

We charge transfer station and landfill customers a tipping fee on a per ton and/or per yard basis for disposing their solid waste at
our transfer stations and landfill facilities. Many of our transfer station and landfill customers have entered into one to ten year
disposal contracts with us, most of which provide for annual indexed price increases.

We typically determine the prices of our solid waste services by the collection frequency and level of service, route density,
volume, weight and type of waste collected, type of equipment and containers furnished, the distance to the disposal or processing
facility, the cost of disposal or processing, and prices charged by competitors for similar services. The terms of our contracts
sometimes limit our ability to pass on price increases. Long-term solid waste collection contracts often contain a formula, generally
based on a published price index, that automatically adjusts fees to cover increases in some, but not all, operating costs, or that limit
increases to less than 100% of the increase in the applicable price index.

Our revenues from recycling services consist of selling recyclable materials (including cardboard, office paper, plastic containers,
glass bottles and ferrous and aluminum metals) collected from our residential customers and at our recycling processing operations to
third parties for processing before resale.

Our revenues from intermodal services consist mainly of fees we charge customers for the movement of cargo and solid waste

containers between our intermodal facilities. We also generate revenue from the storage, maintenance and repair of cargo and solid
waste containers and the sale or lease of containers and chassis.
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No single contract or customer accounted for more than 10% of our total revenues at the consolidated or reportable segment level
during the periods presented. The table below shows for the periods indicated our total reported revenues attributable to services
provided (dollars in thousands).

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Collection $ 1,069,065 62.0% $ 951,327 62.8% $ 901,768  66.1%
Disposal and transfer 510,330 29.6 458,241 30.3 392,497 28.8
Intermodal, recycling and other 144,583 8.4 103,974 6.9 68,845 5.1
1,723,978 100.0% 1,513,542 100.0% 1,363,110 100.0%
Less: intercompany elimination (218,612) (193,785) (171,717)
Total revenue $ 1,505,366 $ 1,319,757 $ 1,191,393

Cost of operations includes labor and benefits, tipping fees paid to third-party disposal facilities, vehicle and equipment
maintenance, workers’ compensation, vehicle and equipment insurance, insurance and employee group health claims expense, third-
party transportation expense, fuel, the cost of materials we purchase for recycling, district and state taxes and host community fees and
royalties. Our significant costs of operations in 2011 were labor, third-party disposal and transportation, vehicle and equipment
maintenance, taxes and fees, insurance and fuel. We use a number of programs to reduce overall cost of operations, including
increasing the use of automated routes to reduce labor and workers’ compensation exposure, utilizing comprehensive maintenance and
health and safety programs, and increasing the use of transfer stations to further enhance internalization rates. We carry high-
deductible insurance for automobile liability, property, general liability, workers’ compensation, employer’s liability and employer
group health claims. If we experience insurance claims or costs above or below our historically evaluated levels, our estimates could
be materially affected.

Selling, general and administrative, or SG&A, expense includes management, sales force, clerical and administrative employee
compensation and benefits, legal, accounting and other professional services, acquisition, bad debt expense and rent expense for our
corporate headquarters.

Depreciation expense includes depreciation of equipment and fixed assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. Depletion expense includes depletion of landfill site costs and total future development costs as remaining airspace of the
landfill is consumed. Remaining airspace at our landfills includes both permitted and probable expansion airspace. Amortization
expense includes the amortization of finite-lived intangible assets, consisting primarily of long-term franchise agreements and
contracts, customer lists and non-competition agreements, over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets, consisting primarily of certain perpetual rights to provide solid waste collection and
transportation services in specified territories, are not amortized.

We capitalize some third-party expenditures related to development projects, such as legal, engineering and interest expenses.

We expense all third-party and indirect acquisition costs, including third-party legal and engineering expenses, executive and
corporate overhead, public relations and other corporate services, as we incur them. We charge against net income any unamortized
capitalized expenditures and advances (net of any portion that we belicve we may recover, through sale or otherwise) that may
become impaired, such as those that relate to any operation that is permanently shut down and any landfill development project that
we believe will not be completed. We routinely evaluate all capitalized costs, and expense those related to projects that we believe are
not likely to succeed. For example, if we are unsuccessful in our attempts to obtain or defend permits that we are seeking or have
been awarded to operate or expand a landfill, we will no longer generate anticipated income from the landfill and we will be required
to expense in a future period the amount of capitalized expenditures related to the landfill or expansion project, less the recoverable
value of the property and other amounts recovered. See discussions regarding the Chaparral, New Mexico Landfill Permit Litigation,
the Harper County, Kansas Landfill Permit Litigation and the Solano County, California Measure E/Landfill Expansion Litigation
under the “Legal Proceedings” section of Note 11 of our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

Segment Reporting

Our Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates performance and determines resource allocations based on several factors, of
which the primary financial measure is operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets.
Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets is not a measure of operating income,
operating performance or liquidity under GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.
Our management uses operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets in the evaluation of
segment operating performance as it is a profit measure that is generally within the control of the operating segments.
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We manage our operations through three geographic operating segments, which are also our reportable segments. Each operating
segment is responsible for managing several vertically integrated operations, which are comprised of districts. In April 2011, as a
result of the County Waste acquisition described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, we realigned our reporting
structure and changed our three geographic operating segments from Western, Central and Southern to Western, Central and Eastern.
As part of this realignment, the states of Arizona, Louisiana, New Mexico and Texas, which were previously part of the Southern
region, are now included in the Central region. Also as part of this realignment, the state of Michigan, which was previously part of
the Central region, is now included in the Eastern region (previously referred to as the Southern region). Additionally, the states of
New York and Massachusetts, which we now operate in as a result of the County Waste acquisition, are included in the Eastern
region. The segment information presented herein reflects the realignment of these districts. Under the current orientation, our
Western Region is comprised of operating locations in California, Idaho, Montana, Nevada, Oregon, Washington and western
Wyoming; our Central Region is comprised of operating locations in Arizona, Colorado, Kansas, Louisiana, Minnesota, Nebraska,
New Mexico, Oklahoma, South Dakota, Texas, Utah and eastern Wyoming; and our Eastern Region is comprised of operating
locations in Alabama, Illinois, Iowa, Kentucky, Massachusetts, Michigan, Mississippi, New York, North Carolina, South Carolina and
Tennessee.

Revenues, net of intercompany eliminations, for our reportable segments are shown in the following table for the periods
indicated (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Western $ 742588 $ 709,821 $ 634,368
Central 430,177 386,697 356,964
Eastern 332,601 223,239 200,061

$ 1,505366 $ 1,319,757 § 1,191,393

Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets for our reportable segments is shown in
the following table for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Western $ 232940 § 218,254 $§ 184,421
Central 152,059 127,861 115,129
Eastern 95,301 69,013 57,701
Corporate® 5,519 5,282 3,701

$ 485,819 $ 420,410 $ 360,952

(a) Corporate functions include accounting, legal, tax, treasury, information technology, risk management, human resources, training
and other administrative functions.

A reconciliation of Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets to Income before
income tax provision is included in Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Significant changes in revenue and operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets for
our reportable segments for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to the year ended December 31, 2010 and for the year
ended December 31, 2010, compared to the year ended December 31, 2009, are discussed below:

Segment Revenue

Revenue in our Western segment increased $32.8 million, or 4.6%, to $742.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from
$709.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the components of the increase
consisted of revenue acquired from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010, of $0.7 million,
net price increases of $17.4 million, recyclable commodity sales increases of $11.9 million, intermodal revenue increases of $3.8
million and other revenue increases of $0.4 million, partially offset by decreases of $1.3 million from divested operations and volume
decreases of $0.1 million.

Revenue in our Western segment increased $75.4 million, or 11.9%, to $709.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
from $634.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the components of the increase
consisted of revenue acquired from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2009 of $31.1 million,
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net price increases of $13.1 million, volume increases of $5.6 million, recyclable commodity sales increases of $20.4 million,
intermodal increases of $9.1 million, partially offset by decreases of $1.1 million from divested operations and other revenue
decreases of $2.8 million.

Revenue in our Central segment increased $43.5 million, or 11.2%, to $430.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from
$386.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the components of the increase
consisted of revenue acquired from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010, of $29.4 million,
net price increases of $20.0 million and recyclable commodity sales increases of $1.4 million, partially offset by decreases of $1.5
million from divested operations and volume decreases of $5.8 million.

Revenue in our Central segment increased $29.7 million, or 8.3%, to $386.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from
$357.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the components of the increase
consisted of revenue acquired from acquisitions closed during, ot subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2009 of $17.4 million,
net price increases of $14.6 million, recyclable commodity sales increases of $3.0 million and other revenue increases of $0.2 million,
partially offset by decreases of $4.7 million from divested operations and volume decreases of $0.8 million.

Revenue in our Eastern segment increased $109.4 million, or 49.0%, to $332.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
from $223.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the components of the increase
consisted of revenue acquired from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010, of $98.0 million,
net price increases of $9.6 million, volume increases of $2.0 million and recyclable commodity sales increases of $0.7 million,
partially offset by decreases of $0.6 million from divested operations and other revenue decreases of $0.3 million.

Revenue in our Eastern segment increased $23.1 million, or 11.6%, to $223.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
from $200.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the components of the increase
consisted of revenue acquired from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2009 of $20.2 million,
net price increases of $6.6 million and recyclable commodity sales increases of $1.1 million, partially offset by volume decreases of
$4.3 million and other revenue decreases of $0.5 million.

Segment Operating Income before Depreciation. Amortization and Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets

Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets in our Western segment increased
$14.6 million, or 6.7%, to $232.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from $218.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily due to increased revenues, decreased disposal expenses and decreased third party
trucking and transportation expenses at our collection and disposal operations, partially offset by increased rail transportation expenses
at our intermodal operations, increased franchise fees and taxes on revenues, increased expenses associated with the cost of purchasing
recyclable commodities, increased direct and administrative labor expenses, increased diesel fuel expense and increased truck,
equipment and container repair expenses.

Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets in our Western segment increased
$33.9 million, or 18.3%, to $218.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from $184.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily due to income generated from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year
ended December 31, 2009, and the following changes at operations owned in the comparable periods in 2009 and 2010: increased
revenues, decreased legal expenses and decreased fuel expenses due to lower realized losses on diesel fuel hedges allocated to the
Waestern segment, partially offset by increased disposal expenses, increased third party trucking and transportation expenses, increased
expenses associated with the cost of purchasing recyclable commodities, increased taxes on revenues, increased direct and
administrative labor expenses, and increased truck, equipment and container repair expenses.

Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets in our Central segment increased
$24.2 million, or 18.9%, to $152.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from $127.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily due to income generated from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year
ended December 31, 2011 and the following changes at operations owned in comparable periods in 2010 and 2011: increased
revenues, decreased auto and workers’ compensation insurance expenses and decreased advertising expenses, partially offset by
increased disposal expenses, increased third party trucking and transportation expenses, increased taxes on revenues, increased diesel
fuel expense and increased truck, equipment and container repair expenses.

Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets in our Central segment increased

$12.8 million, or 11.1%, to $127.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from $115.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily due to income generated from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year
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ended December 31, 2009, and the following changes at operations owned in the comparable periods in 2009 and 2010: increased
revenues, partially offset by increased disposal expenses, increased third party trucking and transportation expenses, increased taxes
on revenues, increased direct and administrative labor expenses, increased container repair expenses and increased advertising
expenses.

Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets in our Eastern segment increased
$26.3 million, or 38.1%, to $95.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from $69.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2010. The increase was primarily due to income generated from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended
December 31, 2010 and the following changes at operations owned in comparable periods in 2010 and 2011: increased revenues,
partially offset by increased third party trucking and transportation expenses, increased taxes on revenues, increased direct labor
expenses, increased diesel fuel expense, increased truck, equipment and container repair expenses and increased expenses for
uncollectible accounts receivable.

Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets in our Eastern segment increased
$11.3 million, or 19.6%, to $69.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from $57.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2009. The increase was primarily due to income generated from acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended
December 31, 2009, and the following changes at operations owned in the comparable periods in 2009 and 2010: increased revenues
and decreased auto and workers’ compensation insurance expenses, partially offset by increased disposal expenses, increased third
party trucking and transportation expenses, increased taxes on revenues, and increased container repair expenses.

Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets at Corporate increased $0.2 million, or
4.5%, to $5.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from $5.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Our estimated
recurring corporate expenses, which can vary from the actual amount of incurred corporate expenses, are allocated to our three
geographic operating segments.

Operating income before depreciation, amortization and gain (loss) on disposal of assets at Corporate increased $1.6 million, or
42.7%, to $5.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from $3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Our
estimated recurring corporate expenses, which can vary from the actual amount of incurred corporate expenses, are allocated to our
three geographic operating segments. The increase was primarily due to decreased legal expenses, decreased direct acquisition costs
that were charged to expense and recording charges during the year ended December 31, 2009 to establish our liability for remaining
rental expenses, net of estimated sublease rentals, at our prior corporate office facilities, partially offset by increased cash and stock-
based incentive compensation expense.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth items in our consolidated statements of income in thousands and as a percentage of revenues for the
periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31,

As a % of 2011 As a % of 2010 As a % of 2009
2011 Revenues 2010 Revenues 2009 Revenues
Revenues $ 1,505,366 100.0% $ 1,319,757 100.0% $ 1,191,393 100.0%
Cost of operations 857,580 57.0 749,487 56.8 692,415 58.1
Selling, general and administrative 161,967 10.8 149,860 11.3 138,026 11.6
Depreciation 147,036 9.8 132,874 10.1 117,796 9.9
Amortization of intangibles 20,064 1.3 14,582 1.1 12,962 1.1
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 1,657 0.0 571 0.1 (481) (0.1)
Operating income 317,062 21.1 272,383 20.6 230,675 19.4
Interest expense (44,520) (3.0) (40,134) 3.0) (49,161) “.1)
Interest income 530 0.0 590 0.1 1,413 0.1
Loss on extinguishment of debt - - (10,193) (0.8) - -
Other income (expense), net 57 0.0 2,830 0.2 (7,551) 0.7)
Income tax provision (106,958) (7.1) (89,334) (6.8) (64,565) 54
Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests (932) (0.0) (1,038) (0.1) (986) 0.1)
Net income attributable to Waste
Connections $ 165,239 11.0% $ 135,104 10.2% $ 109,825 9.2%

Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Revenues. Total revenues increased $185.6 million, or 14.1%, to $1.51 billion for the year ended December 31, 2011, from $1.32
billion for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010, increased revenues by approximately
$128.1 million. Operations divested during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010, decreased revenues by
approximately $3.4 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the net increase in prices charged to our customers was $47.0 million, consisting of
$36.7 million of core price increases and $10.3 million of fuel, materials and environmental surcharges.

Volume decreases in our existing business during the year ended December 31, 2011, decreased revenues by approximately
$3.9 million. The net decrease in volume was primarily attributable to decreases in commercial hauling activity, partially offset by
increases in landfill special waste volumes and roll off hauling activity.

Recyclable commodity price increases, which occurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2011, and increased
recyclable commodity volumes collected, increased revenues by $14.0 million. The increase in recyclable commodity prices during
the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was primarily due to increased overseas demand for recyclable commodities. Recyclable
commodity prices during the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were consistent as the increased demand occurring
during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 did not continue during the final three months of 2011. If average recyclable
commodity prices during the year ended December 31, 2012 are consistent with the average recyclable commodity prices realized
during the three months ended December 31, 2011, we expect recyclable commodity revenue to decline by approximately $8 million
to $10 million during the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to the year ended December 31, 2011.

Other revenues increased by $3.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2011, primarily due to an increase in cargo volume
at our intermodal operations.

Cost of Operations. Total cost of operations increased $108.1 million, or 14.4%, to $857.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2011, from $749.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily attributable to operating costs
associated with acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010, increased rail transportation expenses
at our intermodal operations, increased third party trucking and transportation expenses due to increased waste disposal

39



internalization, increased franchise fees and taxes on revenues due to increased tax rates and increased landfill volumes, increased
expenses associated with the cost of purchasing recyclable commodities due to recyclable commodity pricing increases, increased
labor expenses, increased employee medical benefit expenses resulting from increased claims cost and severity, increased diesel fuel
expense resulting from higher market prices for fuel and increased truck, equipment and container repair expenses.

Cost of operations as a percentage of revenues increased 0.2 percentage points to 57.0% for the year ended December 31, 2011,
from 56.8% for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase as a percentage of revenues was due primarily to increased diesel
fuel expense and acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010 having higher disposal costs as a
percentage of revenue relative to our company average, partially offset by higher gross margins on landfill special waste volumes and
leveraging existing personnel to support increases in landfill volumes, recyclable commodity revenue and intermodal revenue.

SG&A. SG&A expenses increased $12.1 million, or 8.1%, to $162.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from
$149.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily the result of additional personnel expenses from
acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010, increased payroll and payroll-related expenses,
increased equity compensation expense, increased cash incentive compensation expense, increased contributions to community
organizations and public programs in our operating markets, increased expenses for uncollectible accounts receivable and increased
employee travel expenses, partially offset by decreased employece deferred compensation expense resulting from deferred
compensation liabilities to employees being reduced as a result of declines in the market value of investments to which employee
deferred compensation balances are tracked, decreased advertising expenses and a decrease in direct acquisition expenses.

SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues decreased 0.5 percentage points to 10.8% for the year ended December 31, 2011,
from 11.3% for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease as a percentage of revenues was primarily attributable to leveraging
our administrative activities to support increases in landfill volumes, recyclable commodity revenue and intermodal revenue,
decreased employee deferred compensation expense, decreased advertising expenses and acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to,
the year ended December 31, 2010 having lower SG& A expenses as a percentage of revenue than our company average.

In December 2011, we commenced a relocation of our corporate headquarters from Folsom, California to The W oodlands, Texas.
The relocation is expected to be completed in 2012. In connection with the relocation, we expect to incur an estimated $15 million of
increased SG&A costs during 2012 related to personnel and office relocation expenses. In addition, we may incur a loss on lease in
2012 on the cessation of use of our former corporate headquarters in Folsom, California, which we estimate could range between $4
million and $6 million.

Depreciation. Depreciation expense increased $14.1 million, or 10.7%, to $147.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
from $132.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily attributable to depreciation and depletion
associated with acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010, increased depreciation expense
associated with additions to our fleet and equipment purchased to support our existing operations, and increased depletion expense
associated with increases in landfill volumes.

Depreciation expense as a percentage of revenues decreased 0.3 percentage points to 9.8% for the year ended December 31, 2011,
from 10.1% for the year ended December 31, 2010, due primarily to acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended
December 31, 2010 having depreciation expense as a percentage of revenues below our company average and leveraging existing
equipment to service increases in landfill volumes, recyclable commodity revenue and intermodal revenue.

Amortization of Intangibles. Amortization of intangibles expense increased $5.5 million, or 37.6%, to $20.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011, from $14.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, due primarily to the amortization of contracts
and customer lists acquired during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2010.

Operating_Income. Operating income increased $44.7 million, or 16.4%, to $317.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2011, from $272.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily attributable to increased revenues,
partially offset by increased operating costs, increased SG&A expense, and increased depreciation expense and amortization of
intangibles expense.

Operating income as a percentage of revenues increased 0.5 percentage points to 21.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011,
from 20.6% for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase as a percentage of revenues was primarily due to the previously
described 0.5 percentage point decrease in SG&A expense and 0.3 percentage point decrease in depreciation expense, partially offset
by the 0.2 percentage point increase in cost of operations and 0.2 percentage point increase in amortization expense.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $4.4 million, or 10.9%, to $44.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from
$40.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase was due to increased borrowings on our senior revolving credit
facility, an increase in the applicable margin above the base rate or Eurodollar rate under our new senior revolving credit facility that
we entered into in July 2011, interest expense associated with the April 2011 issuance of our 2016 Notes, 2018 Notes and 2021 Notes
and interest accretion expense recorded on long-term liabilities recorded at fair value associated with acquisitions closed during the
year ended December 31, 2011, partially offset by funding the redemption of our 2026 Notes with borrowings under our credit facility
at lower interest rates, a reduction in the amortization of our debt discount and debt issuance costs on the redeemed 2026 Notes, the
expiration of a $50 million interest rate swap in June 2011 with a fixed rate of 4.29% and a reduction in the fixed interest rate paid on
$175 million of interest rate swaps. In February 2011, three interest rate swaps with a combined notional amount of $175 million and
fixed interest rate of 4.37% expired and we commenced a new $175 million interest rate swap with a fixed interest rate of 2.85%.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt. Loss on extinguishment of debt for the year ended December 31, 2010, consisted of an expense
charge of $9.7 million associated with the redemption of our 2026 Notes and an expense charge of $0.5 million associated with the
redemption of our Wasco Bonds.

Income Tax Provision. Income taxes increased $17.7 million, or 19.7%, to $107.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
from $89.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Our effective tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, were 39.2% and 39.6%, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we recorded a $1.5 million increase in the income tax provision associated with an
adjustment in deferred tax liabilities resulting from a voter-approved increase in Oregon state income tax rates and changes to the
geographic apportionment of our state income taxes.

Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Revenues. Total revenues increased $128.4 million, or 10.8%, to $1.32 billion for the year ended December 31, 2010, from $1.19
billion for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2009, increased revenues by approximately
$68.8 million. Operations divested during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2009, decreased revenues by approximately
$5.9 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the net increase in prices charged to our customers was $34.4 million, consisting of
$31.8 million of core price increases and $2.6 million of fuel, materials and environmental surcharges.

Volume increases in our existing business during the year ended December 31, 2010, increased revenues by approximately
$0.5 million. The net increase in volume was primarily attributable to increases in landfill volumes and roll off hauling activity for
operations owned in the comparable periods, partially offset by declines in residential and commercial hauling activity. Our volume
improved from a negative $10.4 million and negative $1.9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2010 and June 30, 2010,
respectively, to a positive $10.1 million and positive $2.7 million during the three months ended September 30, 2010 and December
31, 2010, respectively, as a result of increased stability in our operating markets and revenues generated from landfill special waste
projects.

Increased recyclable commodity volumes collected and increased recyclable commodity prices during the year ended December
31, 2010, increased revenues by $24.6 million. The increase in recyclable commodity prices was primarily a result of the recovery of
overseas demand for recyclable commodities, which had experienced significant year-over-year declines beginning near the end of
2008 and continuing through most of 2009.

Other revenues increased by $6.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2010, primarily due to an increase in cargo volume
at our intermodal operations.

Cost of Operations. Total cost of operations increased $57.1 million, or 8.2%, to $749.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2010, from $692.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily attributable to operating costs
associated with acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2009, and the following changes at
operations owned in the comparable periods in 2009 and 2010: increased rail transportation expenses at our intermodal operations;
increased third party trucking and transportation expenses due to increased waste disposal internalization and outsourcing these
services; increased disposal expenses due to increased disposal rates and volumes; increased franchise fees and taxes on revenues due
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to increased tax rates and increased landfill volumes; increased expenses associated with the cost of purchasing recyclable
commodities due to recyclable commodity pricing increases; increased labor expenses; increased truck, equipment and container
repair expenses; increased property taxes and increased facility repairs; partially offset by decreased diesel fuel expense due primarily
to the expiration at the end of 2009 of diesel fuel purchase contracts in which the diesel fuel contract price per gallon exceeded the
diesel fuel retail price; decreased auto and workers’ compensation expense under our high deductible insurance program due to a
reduction in projected losses on open claims and a decrease in general liability insurance expenses due to reduced claims severity.

Cost of operations as a percentage of revenues decreased 1.3 percentage points to 56.8% for the year ended December 31, 2010,
from 58.1% for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease as a percentage of revenues was primarily attributable to decreased
fuel expense, decreased auto and workers’ compensation expense, decreased general liability insurance expenses and price increases
charged to our customers being higher, on a percentage basis, than certain expense increases recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2010, partially offset by increased third party trucking and transportation expenses and increased rail transportation
expenses.

SG&A. SG&A expenses increased $11.9 million, or 8.6%, to $149.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from
$138.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily the result of additional personnel from acquisitions
closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2009, increased payroll and payroll-related expenses, increased cash and
stock-based incentive compensation expense and increased advertising expenses, partially offset by a decrease in legal expenses,
decreased direct acquisition expenses and decreased expenses associated with our prior corporate office facilities. During the year
ended December 31, 2009, we incurred higher direct acquisition expenses due primarily to our acquisition of certain operations from
Republic Services, Inc.

SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues decreased 0.3 percentage points to 11.3% for the year ended December 31, 2010,
from 11.6% for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease as a percentage of revenues was primarily attributable to declines in
the aforementioned charges for our prior corporate office facilities and direct acquisition expenses.

Depreciation. Depreciation expense increased $15.1 million, or 12.8%, to $132.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
from $117.8 milljon for the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily attributable to depreciation and depletion
associated with acquisitions closed during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2009, increased depletion expense at
existing operations and increased depreciation expense associated with additions to our fleet and equipment purchased to support our
existing operations.

Depreciation expense as a percentage of revenues increased 0.2 percentage points to 10.1% for the year ended December 31,
2010, from 9.9% for the year ended December 31, 2009, due primarily to increased depletion expense at acquired operations.

Amortization of Intangibles. Amortization of intangibles expense increased $1.6 million, or 12.5%, to $14.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010, from $13.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, due primarily to amortization on contracts,
customer lists and other intangibles acquired during, or subsequent to, the year ended December 31, 2009.

Loss (Gain) on Disposal of Assets. Loss (gain) on disposal of assets increased $1.1 million, to a loss of $0.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010, from a gain of $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. On an aggregate basis, assets disposed
in 2010 had a higher book carrying value relative to sales proceeds compared to assets disposed in 2009.

Operating_Income. Operating income increased $41.7 million, or 18.1%, to $272.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2010, from $230.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily attributable to increased revenues,
partially offset by increased operating costs, increased SG&A expense, and increased depreciation expense and amortization of
intangibles expense.

Operating income as a percentage of revenues increased 1.2 percentage points to 20.6% for the year ended December 31, 2010,
from 19.4% for the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase as a percentage of revenues was due to the previously described
1.3 percentage point decrease in cost of operations and 0.3 percentage point decrease in SG&A expense, partially offset by the
0.2 percentage point increase in depreciation expense and 0.2 percentage point increase in loss (gain) on disposal of assets.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $9.1 million, or 18.4%, to $40.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
from $49.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease was primarily attributable to funding the redemption of our
2026 Notes with borrowings under our credit facility at lower interest rates, a reduction in the amortization of our debt discount on the
redecmed 2026 Notes and reduced average borrowing rates on the portion of our credit facility borrowings not fixed under interest rate
swap agreements.
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Interest Income. Interest income decreased $0.8 million to $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from $1.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2009, due to lower average cash balances. We maintained higher cash balances, primarily between
January 2009 and April 2009, in order to fund acquisitions that closed during the second quarter of 2009.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt. Loss on extinguishment of debt for the year ended December 31, 2010, consisted of an expense
charge of $9.7 million associated with the redemption of our 2026 Notes and an expense charge of $0.5 million associated with the
redemption of our Wasco Bonds.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income (expense), net increased $10.4 million to an income balance of $2.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010, from an expense balance of $7.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. During the year
ended December 31, 2009, we recorded a $9.2 million charge to other expense resulting from the termination of two interest rate swap
agreements prior to their expiration.

Income Tax Provision. Income taxes increased $24.7 million, or 38.4%, to $89.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
from $64.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Our effective tax rates for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, were 36.8% and 39.6%, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we recorded a $1.2 million increase in the income tax provision as sociated with the
reconciliation of the income tax provision to the 2009 federal and state tax returns, which were filed during 2010. We also recorded a
reduction to the liability for uncertain tax positions of approximately $0.6 million due to the expiration of certain statutes of
limitations, which was recorded as a reduction to income tax expense. Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 2010, we
recorded a $1.5 million increase in the income tax provision associated with an adjustment in deferred tax liabilities resulting from a
voter-approved increase in Oregon state income tax rates and changes to the geographic apportionment of our state income taxes and a
$0.4 million increase in the income tax provision associated with the disposal of certain assets that had no tax basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded a reduction to income tax expense of $1.6 million, resulting from
changes to the geographical apportionment of our state income taxes due to acquisitions closed in the current year and from current
year changes to the state apportionment formulas used in certain states, and the reconciliation of the income tax provision to the 2008
federal and state tax returns, which were filed during 2009. Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded a
net reduction to the liability for uncertain tax positions of approximately $0.8 million due to the expiration of certain statutes of
limitations, which was recorded as a reduction to income tax expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table sets forth certain cash flow information for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 (in
thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 388,170 $ 332,179 $ 306,194
Net cash used in investing activities (400,505) (214,224) (548,227)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 15,105 (117,721) (13,592)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 2,770 234 (255,625)
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 9,873 9,639 265,264
Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 12,643 $ 9,873 $ 9,639
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Operating Activities Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2011, net cash provided by operating activities was $388.2 million. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, net cash provided by operating activities was $332.2 million. The $56.0 million net increase in cash provided by
operating activities was due primarily to the following:

1)
2)

3)
4

5)

An increase in net income of $30.0 million;

An increase in deferred taxes of $24.6 million due primarily to the recognition during the year ended December 31, 2011, of

tax benefits totaling $16.4 million associated with an Internal Revenue Service approved change in our tax method for

deducting depreciation expense for certain landfills as well as other tax deductible timing differences associated with

depreciation;

An increase in depreciation and amortization expense of $19.6 million;

An increase of $7.2 million attributable to a decrease in the excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation,

due to a decrease in stock option exercises resulting in decreased taxable income recognized by employees that is tax

deductible to us; less

A decrease in cash flows from operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions, of $23.7 million to cash used

by operating assets and liabilities of $7.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from cash provided by operating

assets and liabilities of $15.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The significant components of the $7.8 million

in cash outflows from changes in operating assets and liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2011, include the

following:

a) adecrease in cash resulting from a $14.5 million increase in accounts receivable due to an increase in revenues;

b) a decrease in cash resulting from a $4.2 million increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets due primarily to
increases in prepaid insurance expenses, income taxes receivable, other prepaid expenses and parts inventory;

¢) a decrease in cash resulting from a $2.9 million decrease in accounts payable due primarily to the timing of payments;
less

d) an increase in cash resulting from an increase in accrued liabilities of $10.4 million due primarily to increased accrued
interest expense due to increased debt balances and the timing of interest payments, increased liabilities for auto and
workers’ compensation claims, and increased liabilities for employee medical benefit expenses, increased liabilities for
property taxes and increased liability for cash incentive compensation; less

) an increase in cash resulting from an increase in deferred revenue of $4.2 million due primarily to increased revenues
and timing of billing for services.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, net cash provided by operating activities was $332.2 million. For the year ended
December 31, 2009, net cash provided by operating activities was $306.2 million. The $26.0 million net increase in cash provided by
operating activities was due primarily to the following:

1y
2)
3)

4)
5)

6)

An increase in net income of $25.3 million;

An increase in depreciation and amortization expense of $16.7 million;

A decrcase in deferred taxes of $11.8 million due primarily to the recognition during the year ended December 31, 2009, of

tax benefits associated with a change in our tax method for deducting depreciation expense for certain landfills;

An increase in equity-based compensation expense of $2.0 million;

A decrease of $7.9 million attributable to an increase in the excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation,

due to an increase in stock option exercises resulting in increased taxable income recognized by employees that is tax

deductible to us; and

An increase in cash flows from operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions, of $2.5 million to cash

provided by operating assets and liabilities of $15.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from cash provided by

operating assets and liabilities of $13.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The significant components of the
$15.9 million in cash inflows from changes in operating assets and liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2010, include
the following:

a) an increase in cash resulting from a $3.3 million decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets due primarily to
decreases in prepaid income taxes and prepaid insurance expenses;

b) an increase in cash due to a $19.1 million increase in accrued liabilities due primarily to increased accruals for auto and
workers’ compensation insurance claims, cash-based employee incentive compensation expense, payroll and payroll-
related liabilities, partially offset by a decrease in accrued interest due to the redemption of the 2026 Notes in April
2010; less

¢) a decrease in cash resulting from a $0.9 million decrease in accounts payable due primarily to the timing of payments for
capital expenditures and operating expenses; less

d) a decrease in cash due to a $9.3 million increase in accounts receivable due to increased revenues.

44



As of December 31, 2011, we had a working capital deficit of $34.8 million, including cash and equivalents of $12.6 million. Our
working capital deficit decreased $3.2 million from $38.0 million at December 31, 2010. To date, we have experienced no loss or
lack of access to our cash or cash equivalents; however, we can provide no assurances that access to our cash and cash equivalents will
not be impacted by adverse conditions in the financial markets. Our strategy in managing our working capital is generally to apply the
cash generated from our operations that remains after satisfying our working capital and capital expenditure requirements, along with
stock repurchase and dividend programs, to reduce our indebtedness under our credit facility and to minimize our cash balances.

Investing Activities Cash Flows

Net cash used in investing activities increased $186.3 million to $400.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from
$214.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The significant components of the increase include the following:

1) An increase in payments for acquisitions of $177.3 million primarily due to the recent acquisition of County Waste and for
the Colonie Landfill transaction;

2) An increase in capital expenditures for property and equipment of $7.1 million due to increases in expenditures for site costs
at various landfills, equipment, computers and buildings, partially offset by a decrease in expenditures for land and trucks,
and

3) A decrease in proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment of $2.2 million.

Net cash used in investing activities decreased $334.0 million to $214.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from
$548.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The significant components of the decrease include the following:

1) A decrease in payments for acquisitions of $339.0 million; less

2) An increase in capital expenditures for property and equipment of $6.6 million due to increases in site costs for various
landfills, construction of buildings for operational facilities and purchase of containers, land and land improvements, partially
offset by a decrease in truck and equipment purchases.

Financing Activities Cash Flows

Net cash flows from financing activities increased $132.8 million to a net cash provided by financing activities total of
$15.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from a net cash used in financing activities total of $117.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010. The significant components of the increase include the following:

1) An increase in net long-term borrowings of $155.0 million due primarily to the issuance of new debt to fund the acquisition
of County Waste and for the Colonie Landfill transaction;

2) A decrease in payments to repurchase our common stock of $49.5 million; less

3) A decrease in proceeds from option and warrant exercises of $27.9 million due to a decrease in the number of options and
warrants exercised in the year ended December 31, 2011; less

4) An increase in cash dividends paid of $27.0 million with the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend in November 2010; less

5) A decreasc in the excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation of $7.2 million; less

6) An increase in debt issuance costs of $6.6 million in conjunction with our new senior revolving credit facility entered into
during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Net cash used in financing activities increased $104.1 miilion to $117.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from
$13.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The significant components of the increase include the following:

1) An increase in payments to repurchase our common stock of $103.7 million;

2) A decrease in net long-term borrowings of $8.9 million due to increased availability of operating cash flow after funding
operations, acquisitions, capital expenditures, stock repurchases and dividend payments;

3) An increase in stock dividends paid of $8.6 million with the initiation of a quarterly stock dividend in 2010; less

4) A change in book overdraft of $7.5 million resulting from fluctuations in our outstanding cash balances at banks for which
outstanding check balances can be offset; less

5) An increase in proceeds from option and warrant exercises of $17.7 million due to an increase in the number of options and
warrants exercised in the year ended December 31, 2010; less,

6) An increase in the excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation of $7.9 million, due to the aforementioned
increase in options and warrants exercised in the year ended December 31, 2010, which resulted in increased taxable income,
recognized by employees, that is tax deductible by us.
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Our business is capital intensive. Our capital requirements include acquisitions and fixed asset purchases. We will also make
capital expenditures for landfill cell construction, landfill development, landfill closure activities and intermodal facility construction
in the future.

On December 5, 2011, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized a $400 million increase to, and extended the term of,
our previously announced common stock repurchase program. As amended, our common stock repurchase program authorizes the
repurchase of up to $1.2 billion of our common stock through December 31, 2014. Under the program, stock repurchases may be
made in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions from time to time at management’s discretion. The timing and
amounts of any repurchases will depend on many factors, including our capital structure, the market price of the common stock and
overall market conditions. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had repurchased in aggregate 39.2 million and 35.4 million shares,
respectively, of our common stock at an aggregate cost of $765.4 million and $648.6 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2011,
the remaining maximum dollar value of shares available for purchase under the program was approximately $434.6 million.

On October 19, 2010, our Board of Directors authorized a three-for-two split of our common stock, in the form of a 50% stock
dividend, payable to stockholders of record as of October 29, 2010. Shares resulting from the split were issued on November 12,
2010. All share and per share amounts for all periods presented have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock split.

In addition, in October 2010, our Board of Directors authorized the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend of $0.075 per share, as
adjusted for the three-for-two stock split described above. In October 2011, our Board of Directors authorized an increase to our
regular quarterly cash dividend by $0.015, from $0.075 to $0.09 per share. Cash dividends of $35.6 million and $8.6 million were
paid during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Board will review the cash dividend periodically, with a
long-term objective of increasing the amount of the dividend. We cannot assure you as to the amounts or timing of future dividends.

We made $141.9 million in capital expenditures during the year ended December 31, 2011. We expect to make capital
expenditures of approximately $145 million in 2012 in connection with our existing business. We intend to fund our planned 2012
capital expenditures principally through internally generated funds and borrowings under our credit facility. In addition, we may
make substantial additional capital expenditures in acquiring solid waste collection and disposal businesses. If we acquire additional
landfill disposal facilities, we may also have to make significant expenditures to bring them into compliance with applicable
regulatory requirements, obtain permits or expand our available disposal capacity. We cannot currently determine the amount of these
expenditures because they will depend on the number, nature, condition and permitted status of any acquired landfill disposal
facilities. We believe that our cash and equivalents, credit facility and the funds we expect to generate from operations will provide
adequate cash to fund our working capital and other cash needs for the foreseeable future. However, disruptions in the capital and
credit markets could adversely affect our ability to draw on our credit facility or raise other capital. Our access to funds under the
credit facility is dependent on the ability of the banks that are parties to the facility to meet their funding commitments. Those banks
may not be able to meet their funding commitments if they experience shortages of capital and liquidity or if they experience
excessive volumes of borrowing requests within a short period of time.

We have a $1.2 billion senior revolving credit facility, or the credit facility, with a syndicate of banks for which Bank of America,
N.A. acts as administrative agent and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association act as co-
syndication agents. As of December 31, 2011, $519.0 million was outstanding under the credit facility, exclusive of outstanding
standby letters of credit of $80.4 million. As of December 31, 2010, $511.0 million was outstanding under the credit facility,
exclusive of outstanding standby letters of credit of $82.9 million. As of December 31, 2009, $269.0 million was outstanding under
the credit facility, exclusive of outstanding standby letters of credit of $87.1 million.

Under the credit facility, there is no maximum amount of standby letters of credit that can be issued; however, the issuance of
standby letters of credit reduces the amount of total borrowings available. The credit facility requires us to pay a commitment fee
ranging from 0.200% per annum to 0.350% per annum of the unused portion of the facility. The borrowings under the credit facility
bear interest, at our option, at either the base rate plus the applicable base rate margin on base rate loans, or the Eurodollar rate plus the
applicable Eurodollar margin on Eurodollar loans. The base rate for any day is a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the highest of:
(1) the federal funds rate plus one half of one percent (0.500%); (2) the LIBOR rate plus one percent (1.000%), and (3) the rate of
interest in effect for such day as publicly announced from time to time by Bank of America as its “prime rate.” The LIBOR rate is
determined by the administrative agent pursuant to a formula in the credit agreement. The applicable margins under the credit
agreement vary depending on our leverage ratio, as defined in the credit agreement, and range from 1.150% per annum to 2.000% per
annum for LIBOR loans and 0.150% per annum to 1.000% per annum for base rate loans. The credit facility matures in July 2016.
The borrowings under the credit facility are not collateralized. The credit agreement contains representations and warranties and
places certain business, financial and operating restrictions on us relating to, among other things, indebtedness, liens and other
encumbrances, investments, mergers and acquisitions, asset sales, sale and leaseback transactions, and dividends, distributions and
redemptions of capital stock. The credit agreement requires that we maintain specified financial ratios. As of December 31, 2011 and
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2010, we were in compliance with all applicable covenants under the credit facility. We expect to be in compliance with all applicable
covenants under the credit facility for the next 12 months. We use the credit facility for acquisitions, capital expenditures, working
capital, standby letters of credit and general corporate purposes.

On March 20, 2006, we completed the offering of $200 million aggregate principal amount of our 3.75% Convertible Senior
Notes due 2026, or the 2026 Notes, pursuant to a private placement. The 2026 Notes were convertible into cash and, if applicable,
shares of our common stock based on an initial conversion rate of 44.1177 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of
2026 Notes (which was equal to an initial conversion price of approximately $22.67 per share), subject to adjustment, and only under
certain circumstances. Upon a surrender of the 2026 Notes for conversion, we were required to deliver cash equal to the lesser of the
aggregate principal amount of notes to be converted or our total conversion obligation.

On April 1, 2010, we redeemed the $200 million aggregate principal amount of the 2026 Notes. Holders of the notes chose to
convert a total of $22.7 million principal amount of the notes. In addition to paying the principal amount of these notes with proceeds
from our credit facility, we issued 32,859 shares of our common stock in connection with the conversion and redemption. We
redeemed the balance of $177.3 million principal amount of the notes with proceeds from our credit facility. All holders of the notes
also received accrued interest and an interest make-whole payment. As a result of the redemption, we recognized $9.7 million of pre-
tax expense ($6.0 million net of taxes) in April 2010.

On July 15, 2008, we entered into a Master Note Purchase Agreement with certain accredited institutional investors pursuant to
which we issued and sold to the investors at a closing on October 1, 2008, $175 million of senior uncollateralized notes due October 1,
2015, or the 2015 Notes, in a private placement. The 2015 Notes bear interest at the fixed rate of 6.22% per annum with interest
payable in arrears semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 beginning on April 1, 2009, and with principal payable at the maturity of
the 2015 Notes on October 1, 2015.

On October 26, 2009, we entered into a First Supplement to the Master Note Purchase Agreement with certain accredited
institutional investors pursuant to which we issued and sold to the investors on that date $175 million of senior uncollateralized notes
due November 1, 2019, or the 2019 Notes, in a private placement. The 2019 Notes bear interest at the fixed rate of 5.25% per annum
with interest payable in arrears semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 beginning on May 1, 2010, and with principal payable at the
maturity of the 2019 Notes on November 1, 2019.

On April 1, 2011, we entered into a Second Supplement to Master Note Purchase Agreement with certain accredited institutional
investors (the “Second Supplement™), pursuant to which we issued and sold to the investors on that date $250 million of senior
uncollateralized notes at fixed interest rates with interest payable in arrears semi-annually on October 1 and April 1 beginning on
October 1, 2011 in a private placement. Of these notes, $100 million will mature on April 1, 2016 with an annual interest rate of
3.30% (the “2016 Notes™), $50 million will mature on April 1, 2018 with an annual interest rate of 4.00% (the “2018 Notes”), and
$100 million will mature on April 1, 2021 with an annual interest rate of 4.64% (the “2021 Notes”).

The 2015 Notes, 2016 Notes, 2018 Notes, 2019 Notes, and 2021 Notes (collectively, the “Senior Notes”) are uncollateralized
obligations and rank equally in right of payment with each of the Senior Notes and obligations under our senior uncollateralized
revolving credit facility. The Senior Notes are subject to representations, warranties, covenants and events of default. Upon the
occurrence of an event of default, payment of the Senior Notes may be accelerated by the holders of the respective notes. The
Senior Notes may also be prepaid at any time in whole or from time to time in any part (not less than 5% of the then-outstanding
principal amount) by us at par plus a make-whole amount determined in respect of the remaining scheduled interest payments on the
Senior Notes, using a discount rate of the then current market standard for United States treasury bills plus 0.50%. In addition, we
will be required to offer to prepay the Senior Notes upon certain changes in control.

We may issue additional series of senior uncollateralized notes pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Master Note
Agreement, provided that the purchasers of the Senior Notes shall not have any obligation to purchase any additional notes issued
pursuant to the Master Note Agreement and the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes and any additional notes is sued
pursuant to the Master Note Agreement shall not exceed $750 million. We currently have $600 million of Notes outstanding under
the Master Note Agreement.
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As of December 31, 2011, we had the following contractual obligations (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1to3 Over
Recorded Obligations Total 1 Year Years 3to5 Years 5 years
Long-term debt $ 1,178,657 $ 5,899 § 9,348 $ 801,911 $ 361,499
Cash interest payments 265,826 48,022 93,693 69,940 54,171

Long-term debt payments include:

)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)

9)

$519.0 million in principal payments due July 2016 related to our credit facility. Our credit facility bears interest, at our
option, at either the base rate plus the applicable base rate margin (approximately 3.65% at December 31, 2011) on base
rate loans, or the Eurodollar rate plus the applicable Eurodollar margin (approximately 1.70% at December 31, 2011) on
Eurodollar loans. As of December 31, 2011, our credit facility allowed us to borrow up to $1.2 billion.

$175.0 million in principal payments due 2015 related to our 2015 Notes. Holders of the 2015 Notes may require us to
purchase their notes in cash at a purchase price of 100% of the principal amount of the 2015 Notes plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, upon a change in control, as defined in the Master Note Purchase Agreement. The 2015 Notes
bear interest at a rate of 6.22%.

$100.0 million in principal payments due 2016 related to our 2016 Notes. Holders of the 2016 Notes may require us to
purchase their notes in cash at a purchase price of 100% of the principal amount of the 2016 Notes plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, upon a change in control, as defined in the Master Note Purchase Agreement. The 2016 Notes
bear interest at a rate of 3.30%.

$50.0 million in principal payments due 2018 related to our 2018 Notes. Holders of the 2018 Notes may require us to
purchase their notes in cash at a purchase price of 100% of the principal amount of the 2018 Notes plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, upon a change in control, as defined in the Master Note Purchase Agreement. The 2018 Notes
bear interest at a rate of 4.00%.

$175.0 million in principal payments due 2019 related to our 2019 Notes. Holders of the 2019 Notes may require us to
purchase their notes in cash at a purchase price of 100% of the principal amount of the 2019 Notes plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, upon a change in control, as defined in the Master Note Purchase Agreement. The 2019 Notes
bear interest at a rate of 5.25%.

$100.0 million in principal payments due 2021 related to our 2021 Notes. Holders of the 2021 Notes may require us to
purchase their notes in cash at a purchase price of 100% of the principal amount of the 2021 Notes plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, upon a change in control, as defined in the Master Note Purchase Agreement. The 2021 Notes
bear interest at a rate of 4.64%.

$38.5 million in principal payments related to our tax-exempt bonds, which bear interest at variable rates (between
0.18% and 0.19%) at December 31, 2011. The tax-exempt bonds have maturity dates ranging from 2012 to 2033.

$18.4 million in principal payments related to our notes payable to sellers. Our notes payable to sellers bear interest at
rates between 2.50% and 10.35% at December 31, 2011, and have maturity dates ranging from 2012 to 2036.

$2.8 million in principal payments related to our notes payable to third parties. Our notes payable to third parties bear
interest at rates between 6.7% and 10.9% at December 31, 2011, and have maturity dates ranging from 2012 to 2019.

The following assumptions were made in calculating cash interest payments:

1)

2)

We calculated cash interest payments on the credit facility using the Eurodollar rate plus the applicable Eurodollar
margin at December 31, 2011. We assumed the credit facility is paid off when it matures in July 2016.

We calculated cash interest payments on our interest rate swaps using the stated interest rate in the swap agreement less
the Eurodollar rate through the earlier expiration of the term of the swaps or the term of the credit facility.
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Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
(amounts in thousands)

Less Than 1to3 3toS Over 5
Unrecorded Obligations” Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Operating leases $ 72,104 § 12,049 § 18,251 $ 12,842 § 28,962

(1) We are party to operating lease agreements as discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. These lease agreements are established in
the ordinary course of our business and are designed to provide us with access to facilities at competitive, market-driven prices. These arrangements
have not materially affected our financial position, results of operations or liquidity during the year ended December 31, 2011, nor are they expected to
have a material impact on our future financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

We have obtained standby letters of credit as discussed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements and financial surety
bonds as discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. These standby letters of credit and financial surety bonds are
generally obtained to support our financial assurance needs and landfill operations. These arrangements have not materially affected
our financial position, results of operations or liquidity during the year ended December 31, 2011, nor are they expected to have a
material impact on our future financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

From time to time, we evaluate our existing operations and their strategic importance to us. If we determine that a given operating
unit does not have future strategic importance, we may sell or otherwise dispose of those operations. Although we believe our
reporting units would not be impaired by such dispositions, we could incur losses on them.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements for a description of the new accounting standards that are applicable to us.
Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Free Cash Flow

We present free cash flow, a non-GAAP financial measure, supplementally because it is widely used by investors as a valuation
and liquidity measure in the solid waste industry. We define free cash flow as net cash provided by operating activities, plus proceeds
from disposal of assets, plus or minus change in book overdraft, plus excess tax benefit associated with equity -based compensation,
less capital expenditures for property and equipment and distributions to noncontrolling interests. This measure is not a substitute for,
and should be used in conjunction with, GAAP liquidity or financial measures. Management uses free cash flow as one of the
principal measures to evaluate and monitor the ongoing financial performance of our operations. Other companies may calculate free
cash flow differently. Our free cash flow for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, is calculated as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 388,170 $ 332,179 $ 306,194
Plus/less: Change in book overdraft 227 279 7,802
Plus: Proceeds from disposal of assets 4,434 6,659 5,061
Plus: Excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation 4,763 11,997 4,054
Less: Capital expenditures for property and equipment (141,924) (134,829) (128,251)
Less: Distributions to noncontrolling interests (675) - -
Free cash flow $ 254,541 $ 216,285 $ 194,860

Adjusted Operating Income Before Depreciation and Amortization

We present adjusted operating income before depreciation and amortization, a non-GAAP financial measure, supplementally
because it is widely used by investors as a performance and valuation measure in the solid waste industry. We define adjusted
operating income before depreciation and amortization as operating income, plus depreciation and amortization expense, plus closure
and post-closure accretion expense, plus or minus any gain or loss on disposal of assets. We further adjust this calculation to exclude
the effects of items management believes impact the ability to assess the operating performance of our business. This measure is not a
substitute for, and should be used in conjunction with, GAAP financial measures. Management uses adjusted operating income before
depreciation and amortization as one of the principal measures to evaluate and monitor the ongoing financial performance of our
operations. Other companies may calculate adjusted operating income before depreciation and amortization differently. Our adjusted
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operating income before depreciation and amortization for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, is calculated as
follows (amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Operating income $ 317,062 $ 272,383 $ 230,675
Plus: Depreciation and amortization 167,100 147,456 130,758
Plus: Closure and post-closure accretion 1,967 1,766 2,055
Plus/less: Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 1,657 571 481
Adjustments:
Plus: Acquisition-related transaction costs @ 1,744 2,081 3,987
Plus: Loss on prior corporate office lease ® - - 1.839
Adjusted operating income before depreciation

and amortization $ 489,530 % 424,257 $ 368,833

(a) Reflects the addback of acquisition-related costs.
(b) Reflects the addback of a loss on our prior corporate office lease due to the relocation of our corporate offices.

Reconciliation of Net Income to Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Net Income per diluted share

Adjusted net income and adjusted net income per diluted share, both non-GAAP financial measures, are provided supplementally
because they are widely used by investors as a valuation measure in the solid waste industry. We provide adjusted net income to
exclude the effects of items management believes impact the comparability of operating results between periods. Adjusted net income
has limitations due to the fact that it may exclude items that have an impact on our financial condition and results of operations.
Adjusted net income and adjusted net income per diluted share are not a substitute for, and should be used in conjunction with, GAAP
financial measures. Management uses adjusted net income and adjusted net income per diluted share as one of the principal measures
to evaluate and monitor the ongoing financial performance of our operations. Other companies may calculate adjusted net income and
adjusted net income per diluted share differently.

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Reported net income attributable to Waste Connections ~ § 165,239  § 135,104 $ 109,825
Adjustments:

Swap termination costs, net of taxes @ E - 5,753

Loss on extinguishment of debt, net of taxes ) - 6,320 -

Acquisition-related transaction costs, net of taxes ) 1,327 1,290 2,630

Loss on prior corporate office lease, net of taxes W - - 1,144

Loss (gain) on disposal of assets, net of taxes * 1,027 776 (299)

Impact of deferred tax adjustment - 1,547 (1,142)

Adjusted net income attributable to Waste Connections _§ 167,593 $ 145,037 $ 117,911

Diluted earnings per common share attributable to
Waste Connections common stockholders:

Reported net income $ 145  § 1.16 $ 0.91
Adjusted net income $ 148  § 124  § 0.98

(a) Reflects the elimination of costs associated with the termination of a notional $175 million of interest rate swaps.
(b) Reflects the elimination of costs associated with carly redemption of outstanding debt.

(c) Reflects the elimination of acquisition-related costs.

(d) Reflects the elimination of a loss on our prior corporate office lease due to the relocation of our corporate offices.

(e) Reflects the elimination of a loss (gain) on disposal of assets.
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() Reflects (1) the elimination in 2009 of a benefit to the income tax provision primarily from a reduction in our deferred tax liabilities
and (2) the elimination in 2010 of an increase to the income tax provision associated with an adjustment in our deferred tax liabilities primarily
resulting from a voter-approved increase in Oregon state income tax rates.

Inflation

Other than volatility in fuel prices, inflation has not materially affected our operations in recent years. Consistent with industry
practice, many of our contracts allow us to pass through certain costs to our customers, including increases in landfill tipping fees and,
in some cases, fuel costs. Therefore, we believe that we should be able to increase prices to offset many cost increases that result from
inflation in the ordinary course of business. However, competitive pressures or delays in the timing of rate increases under our
contracts may require us to absorb at least part of these cost increases, especially if cost increases exceed the average rate of inflation.
Management's estimates associated with inflation have an impact on our accounting for landfill liabilities.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to market risk, including changes in interest rates and prices of certain
commodities. We use hedge agreements to manage a portion of our risks related to interest rates and fuel prices. While we are
exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to our hedge agreements, in all cases such counterparties are
highly rated financial institutions and we do not anticipate non-performance. We do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. We monitor our hedge positions by regularly evaluating the positions at market and by performing sensitivity
analyses over the unhedged fuel and variable rate debt positions.

At December 31, 2011, our derivative instruments included three interest rate swap agreements that effectively fix the interest rate
on the applicable notional amounts of our variable rate debt as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fixed Variable
Notional Interest Interest Rate
Date Entered Amount Rate Paid* Received Effective Date Expiration Date
March 2009 $ 175,000 2.85% 1-month LIBOR  February 2011 February 2014
August 2011 $ 150,000 0.80% 1-month LIBOR  April 2012 January 2015
December 2011 $ 175,000 1.60% 1-month LIBOR  February 2014 February 2017

* plus applicable margin.

Under derivatives and hedging guidance, all the interest rate swap agreements are considered cash flow hedges for a portion of
our variable rate debt, and we apply hedge accounting to account for these instruments. The notional amounts and all other significant
terms of the swap agreements are matched to the provisions and terms of the variable rate debt being hedged.

On October 26, 2009, we terminated two of our interest rate swap agreements in conjunction with issuing our 2019 Notes. We
terminated an interest rate swap in the amount of $75 million that would have expired in March 2011 and an interest rate swap in the
amount of $100 million that would have expired in June 2011. As a result of terminating these interest rate swaps, we made a cash
payment of $9.2 million to the counterparty of the swap agreements. Further, because we used the proceeds of the 2019 Notes to
reduce the borrowings under our senior uncollateralized revolving credit facility, it is no longer probable that the forecasted
transactions that were being hedged by these interest rate swap agreements will occur. Therefore, we recorded a charge of
$9.2 million to other expense in the fourth quarter of 2009.

We have performed sensitivity analyses to determine how market rate changes will affect the fair value of our unhedged floating
rate debt. Such an analysis is inherently limited in that it reflects a singular, hypothetical set of assumptions. Actual market
movements may vary significantly from our assumptions. Fair value sensitivity is not necessarily indicative of the ultimate cash flow
or earnings effect we would recognize from the assumed market rate movements. We are exposed to cash flow risk due to changes in
interest rates with respect to the unhedged floating rate balances owed at December 31, 2011 and 2010, of $382.5 million and
$325.4 million, respectively, including floating rate debt under our credit facility and floating rate municipal bond obligations. A one
percentage point increase in interest rates on our variable-rate debt as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, would decrease our annual pre-
tax income by approximately $3.8 million and $3.3 million, respectively. All of our remaining debt instruments are at fixed rates, or
effectively fixed under the interest rate swap agreements described above; therefore, changes in market interest rates under these
instruments would not significantly impact our cash flows or results of operations, subject to counterparty default risk.
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The market price of diesel fuel is unpredictable and can fluctuate significantly. We purchase approximately 28 million gallons of
diesel fuel per year; therefore, a significant increase in the price of fuel could adversely affect our business and reduce our operating
margins. To manage a portion of this risk, in 2008, we entered into fuel hedge agreements related to forecasted diesel fuel purchases.

At December 31, 2011, our derivative instruments included one fuel hedge agreement as follows:

Diesel
Rate
Notional Paid
Amount Fixed
(in gallons per (per Diesel Rate Received Effective Expiration
Date Entered month) gallon) Variable Date Date
December 2008 400,000 $ 3.03 DOE Diesel Fuel Index* January 2012 December 2012

*If the national U.S. on-highway average price for a gallon of diesel fuel (“average price”), as published by the Department of Energy, exceeds the
contract price per gallon, we receive the difference between the average price and the contract price (multiplied by the notional number of gallons)
from the counterparty. If the average price is less than the contract price per gallon, we pay the difference to the counterparty.

Under derivatives and hedging guidance, the fuel hedge is considered a cash flow hedge for a portion of our forecasted diesel fuel
purchases, and we apply hedge accounting to account for this instrument.

We have performed sensitivity analyses to determine how market rate changes will affect the fair value of our unhedged diesel
fuel purchases. Such an analysis is inherently limited in that it reflects a singular, hypothetical set of assumptions. Actual market
movements may vary significantly from our assumptions. Fair value sensitivity is not necessarily indicative of the ultimate cash flow
or earnings effect we would recognize from the assumed market rate movements. For the year ending December 31, 2012, we expect
to purchase approximately 28 million gallons of diesel fuel, of which 23.2 million gallons will be purchased at market prices and
4.8 million gallons will be purchased at prices that are fixed under our fuel hedges. With respect to the approximately 23.2 million
gallons of unhedged diesel fuel we expect to purchase in 2012 at market prices, a $0.10 per gallon increase in the price of fuel over the
year would decrease our pre-tax income during this period by approximately $2.3 million.

We market a variety of recyclable materials, including cardboard, office paper, plastic containers, glass bottles and ferrous and
aluminum metals. We own and operate 39 recycling processing operations and sell other collected recyclable materials to third parties
for processing before resale. Certain of our municipal recycling contracts in the state of Washington specify benchmark resale prices
for recycled commodities. If the prices we actually receive for the processed recycled commodities collected under the contract
exceed the prices specified in the contract, we share the excess with the municipality, after recovering any previous shortfalls resulting
from actual market prices falling below the prices specified in the contract. To reduce our exposure to commodity price risk with
respect to recycled materials, we have adopted a pricing strategy of charging collection and processing fees for recycling volume
collected from third parties. In the event of a decline in recycled commodity prices, a 10% decrease in average recycled commodity
prices from the average prices that were in effect during the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, would have had a $7.8 million
and $4.6 million impact on revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Waste Connections, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Waste Connections, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in
the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the
related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on
the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rel iability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Sacramento, CA
February 7, 2012
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WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $6,617 and
$5,084 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net
Restricted assets

Other assets, net

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Book overdraft
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt and notes payable
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt and notes payable
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred income taxes

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Equity:

Preferred stock: $0.01 par value per share; 7,500,000 shares authorized; none

issued and outstanding

Common stock: $0.01 par value per share; 250,000,000 and
150,000,000 shares authorized; 110,907,782 and 113,950,081 shares issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Total Waste Connections’ equity
Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries
Total equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statemnents.
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December 31,

2011 2010
$ 12,643 9,873
176,277 152,156
20,630 20,130
39,708 33,402
249,258 215,561
1,450,469 1,337,476
1,116,888 927,852
449,581 381,475
30,544 30,441
31,265 23,179
$ 3,328,005 2,915,984
$ 95,097 85,252
12,169 12,396
106,243 99,075
64,694 54,157
5,899 2,657
284,102 253,537
1,172,758 909,978
74,324 47,637
397,134 334,414
1,928,318 1,545,566
1,109 1,139
408,721 509,218
(3,480) (3,095)
988,560 858,887
1,394,910 1,366,149
4,777 4,269
1,399,687 1,370,418
$ 3,328,005 2,915,984




WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Revenues $ 1,505,366 $ 1,319,757 $ 1,191,393
Operating expenses:

Cost of operations 857,580 749,487 692,415

Selling, general and administrative 161,967 149,860 138,026

Depreciation 147,036 132,874 117,796

Amortization of intangibles 20,064 14,582 12,962

Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 1.657 571 (481)
Operating income 317,062 272,383 230,675
Interest expense (44,520) (40,134) (49,161)
Interest income 530 590 1,413
Loss on extinguishment of debt - (10,193) -
Other income (expense), net 57 2,830 (7,551)
Income before income tax provision 273,129 225,476 175,376
Income tax provision (106,958) (89,334) (64,565)
Net income 166,171 136,142 110,811

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (932) (1,038) (986)
Net income attributable to Waste Connections $ 165,239 $ 135,104 $ 109,825
Earnings per common share attributable to Waste Connections’

common stockholders:

Basic $ 1.47 $ 1.17 $ 0.92

Diluted $ 1.45 $ 1.16 $ 0.91
Shares used in the per share calculations:

Basic 112,720,444 115,646,173 119,119,601

Diluted 113,583,486 116,894,204 120,506,162
Cash dividends per common share $ 0.315 $ 0.075 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balances at December 31, 2008

Vesting of restricted stock units

Tax withholdings related to net share settlements of restricted stock units
Equity-based compensation

Exercise of stock options and warrants

Excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation
Repurchase of common stock

Amounts reclassified into earnings, net of taxes

Changes in fair value of swaps, net of taxes

Fair value of noncontrolling interest associated with business acquired
Net income

Other comprehensive income

Income tax effect of other comprehensive income

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income attributable to Waste Connections

Balances at December 31, 2009

Stock split

Vesting of restricted stock units

Tax withholdings related to net share settlements of restricted stock units
Equity-based compensation

Exercise of stock options and warrants

Excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation
Repurchase of common stock

Cash dividends on common stock

WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2010 AND 2011
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

WASTE CONNECTIONS’ EQUITY

Reacquisition of equity component resulting from conversion of 2026 Convertible Senior Notes
Issuance of shares in connection with conversion of 2026 Convertible Senior Notes

Amounts reclassified into earnings, net of taxes

Changes in fair value of swaps, net of taxes

Net income

Other comprehensive incomne

Income tax effect of other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income attributable to Waste Connections
Balances at December 31, 2010

Vesting of restricted stock units

Tax withholdings related to net share settlements of restricted stock units

Equity-based compensation

Exercise of stock options and warrants

Excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation
Repurchase of common stock

Cash dividends on common stock

Amounts reclassified into earnings. net of taxes

Changes in fair value of swaps, net of taxes

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

Fair value of noncontrolling interest associated with business acquired
Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Income tax effect of other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income attributable to Waste Connections

Balances at December 31, 2011

ACCUNULATED
ADDITIONAL OTHER COMPRE-
COMPREHENSIVE COMMON STOCK PAID-IN HENSIVE INCOME RETAINED NONCONTROLLING
INCOMNE STIARLS AMUUNT CAPITAL (LOSS) EARNINGS INTERESTS TOTAL

119,763,358 $ 798 3 661,555 $ (23,937) $ 622913 668 $ 1261997
410,461 3 3) - - - -
(138,733) ) (2,556) - - - (2,557)
- - 9336 - - - 9336
1,236,780 8 15,389 - - = 15,397
- z 4,054 - - = 4,054
(3.373,242) (22) (62,602) - - = (62,624)
- - - 14.416 - - 14,416
- - - 4,629 E - 4,629
. - - - - 1,577 1,577
$ 110,811 - - - B 109,825 986 110,811
30,743 - - - - - - z
(11,698) - - 2 - - - =
129,856 - < = = - = -
(986) - - - = S = -
$ 128,870 = - = = R . .
117,898,624 $ 786 $ 625173 $ 4892 $ 732,738 3231 $ 1357036
- 394 - - (394) Z =
511,196 5 3) - - - -
(175,776) @) (3.781) - - = (3,783)
- - 11,331 - . - 11,331
2,572,195 25 33,049 - - - 33,074
- - 11,997 - - - 11,997
(6,889,017) (69) (166,251) - = - (166,320)
. - - - (8,561) - (8.561)
- z (2,295) . - - (2,295)
32,859 : = - = = =
- = - 8.050 - = 8,050
- - - (6.253) - - (6,253)
$ 136,142 - . - . 135.104 1.038 136,142
2,873 - B . - % R E
(1,076) 5 = Z : = R =
137,939 - - = = = - z
(1,038) 2 = = = = B =
$ 136,901 B i - z 2 = -
113,950,081 $ 1,139 § 509218 § (3,095 $ 858,887 4269 $ 1370418
545,223 6 (6) : = = =
(186,811) 2) (5,509) g - - (5.511)
= - 11,879 - - = 11,879
407,012 4 5,155 - - = 5,159
= . 4,763 - - - 4,763
(3.807,723) (38) (116,779) - - - (116,817)
- - - - (35,566) . (35,566)
- - - 934 - - 934
- - - (1,319) S - (1,319)
- - - E s (675) (675)
- - - - - 251 251
$ 166,171 - = . - 165,239 932 166.171
(621) - - - - - R -
236 - - - - - R =
165,786 - - - - B B =
(932) - - - = Z B =
$ 164,854 - - = % - : -
110,907,782 $ 1,109 $ 408721 $ (3.480) $ 988,560 4777 $ 1399687

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(IN THOUSANDS)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles
Deferred income taxes, net of acquisitions
Loss on redemption of 2026 Convertible Senior Notes, net of make-whole
payment
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Amortization of debt discount
Equity-based compensation
Interest income on restricted assets
Closure and post-closure accretion
Excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Accrued liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Capital expenditures for property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Decrease (increase) in restricted assets, net of interest income
Increase in other assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term debt
Principal payments on notes payable and long-term debt
Change in book overdraft
Proceeds from option and warrant exercises
Excess tax benefit associated with equity-based compensation
Payments for repurchase of common stock
Payments for cash dividends
Tax withholdings related to net share settlements of restricted stock units
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Debt issuance costs

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and equivalents at end of year

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$ 166,171 $ 136,142 § 110,811
1,657 571 (481)
147,036 132,874 117,796
20,064 14,582 12,962
50,989 26,431 38,224
. 2,255 -
1,420 1,574 1,942
- 1,245 4,684
11,879 11,331 9,336
(454) (511) (488)
1,967 1,766 2,055
(4,763) (11,997) (4,054)
(14,507) (9,321) (4,328)
(4,236) 3,304 (8,032)
(2,912) (853) 13,218
4,161 3,244 (309)
10,355 19,086 9,070
(657) 456 3,788
388,170 332,179 306,194
(258,352) (81,010)  (420,011)
(141,924) (134,829)  (128,251)
4,434 6,659 5,061
351 (2,552) (3,880)
(5,014) (2,492) (1,146)
(400,505) (214224)  (548,227)
592,500 483,253 426,500
(421,872) (467,660)  (401,970)
(227) 279 7,802
5,159 33,074 15,397
4,763 11,997 4,054
(116,817) (166,320) (62,624)
(35,566) (8,561) :
(5,511) (3,783) (2,557)
(675) - 5
(6,649) 2 (194)
15,105 (117,721) (13,592)
2,770 234 (255,625)
9,873 9,639 265,264
$ 12,643 $ 9873 $§ 9,639

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)
SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION AND NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cash paid for income taxes $ 52,729 $ 50,111 §$ 26,848
Cash paid for interest $ 39,499 $ 39913 § 41,662
In connection with its acquisitions, the Company assumed liabilities as follows:
Fair value of assets acquired $ 404,550 $ 107,144 $ 461,120
Cash paid for current year acquisitions (257,852) (81,010) (416,853)
Liabilities assumed and notes payable issued to sellers of businesses acquired $ 146,698 $ 26,134 $ 44,267

The accompanying notes are an integtal part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

1. ORGANIZATION, BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Business

Waste Connections, Inc. (“WCI” or the “Company”) was incorporated in Delaware on September 9, 1997, and commenced its
operations on October 1, 1997, through the purchase of certain solid waste operations in the state of Washington. The Company is an
integrated, non-hazardous solid waste services company that provides collection, transfer, disposal and recycling services to
commercial, industrial and residential customers. The Company also provides intermodal services for the movement of containers in
the Pacific Northwest.

Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of WCI and its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. The
consolidated entity is referred to herein as the Company. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at purchase to be cash equivalents.
The Company did not have any cash equivalents at December 31, 2011 or 2010.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, restricted
assets and accounts receivable. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with banks that at times exceed applicable
insurance limits. The Company reduces its exposure to credit risk by maintaining such deposits with high quality financial
institutions. The Company’s restricted assets are invested primarily in U.S. government and agency securities. The Company has not
experienced any losses related to its cash and cash equivalent or restricted asset accounts. The Company generally does not require
collateral on its trade receivables. Credit risk on accounts receivable is minimized as a result of the large and diverse nature of the
Company’s customer base. The Company maintains allowances for losses based on the expected collectability of accounts
receivable.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Revenues are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the service has been provided, the price is fixed or
determinable and collection is reasonably assured. Certain customers are billed in advance and, accordingly, recognition of the related
revenues is deferred until the services are provided. In accordance with revenue recognition guidance, any tax assessed by a
governmental authority that is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer is presented in the
statements of income on a net basis (excluded from revenues).

The Company’s receivables are recorded when billed or accrued and represent claims against third parties that will be settled in
cash. The carrying value of the Company’s receivables, net of the allowance for doubtful accounts, represents their estimated net
realizable value. The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical collection trends, type of customer
such as municipal or non-municipal, the age of outstanding receivables and existing economic conditions. If events or changes in
circumstances indicate that specific receivable balances may be impaired, further consideration is given to the collectability of those
balances and the allowance is adjusted accordingly. Past-due receivable balances are written off when the Company’s internal
collection efforts have been unsuccessful in collecting the amount due.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Improvements or betterments, not considered to be maintenance and repair, which add
new functionality or signiﬁcantly extend the life of an asset are capitalized. Third-party expenditures related to pending development
prolects such as legal and engineering expenses, are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repair costs, including planned
major maintenance activities, are charged to expense as incurred. The cost of assets retired or otherwise disposed of and the related
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accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal. Gains and losses resulting from disposals of
property and equipment are recognized in the period in which the property and equipment is disposed. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the lease term, whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 10 — 20 years
Land and leasehold improvements 3 - 20 years
Machinery and equipment 3 - 12 years
Rolling stock 3—10 years
Containers 5 —12 years
Rail cars 20 years

Landfill Accounting

The Company utilizes the life cycle method of accounting for landfill costs. This method applies the costs to be capitalized
associated with acquiring, developing, closing and monitoring the landfills over the associated consumption of landfill capacity. The
Company utilizes the units of consumption method to amortize landfill development costs over the estimated remaining capacity of a
landfill. Under this method, the Company includes future estimated construction costs using current dollars, as well as costs incurred
to date, in the amortization base. When certain criteria are met, the Company includes expansion airspace, which has not been
permitted, in the calculation of the total remaining capacity of the landfill.

—  Landfill development costs. Landfill development costs include the costs of acquisition, construction associated with
excavation, liners, site berms, groundwater monitoring wells, gas recovery systems and leachate collection systems. The
Company estimates the total costs associated with developing each landfill site to its final capacity. This includes certain
projected landfill site costs that are uncertain because they are dependent on future events and thus actual costs could vary
significantly from estimates. The total cost to develop a site to its final capacity includes amounts previously expended and
capitalized, net of accumulated depletion, and projections of future purchase and development costs, liner construction costs,
and operating construction costs. Total landfill costs include the development costs associated with expansion airspace.
Expansion airspace is addressed below.

—  Final capping, closure and post-closure obligations. The Company accrues for estimated final capping, closure and post-
closure maintenance obligations at the landfills it owns and four of the five landfills that it operates, but does not own under
life-of-site agreements. Accrued final capping, closure and post-closure costs represent an estimate of the current value of
the future obligation associated with final capping, closure and post-closure monitoring of non-hazardous solid waste
landfills currently owned or operated under life-of-site agreements by the Company. Final capping costs represent the costs
related to installation of clay liners, drainage and compacted soil layers and topsoil constructed over areas of the landfill
where total airspace capacity has been consumed. Closure and post-closure monitoring and maintenance costs represent the
costs related to cash expenditures yet to be incurred when a landfill facility ceases to accept waste and closes. Accruals for
final capping, closure and post-closure monitoring and maintenance requirements in the U.S. consider site inspection,
groundwater monitoring, leachate management, methane gas control and recovery, and operating and maintenance costs to be
incurred during the period afler the facility closes. Certain of these environmental costs, principatly capping and methane gas
control costs, are also incurred during the operating life of the site in accordance with the landfill operation requirements of
Subtitle D and the air emissions standards. Daily maintenance activities, which include many of these costs, are expensed as
incurred during the operating life of the landfill. Daily maintenance activities include leachate disposal; surface water,
groundwater, and methane gas monitoring and maintenance; other pollution control activities; mowing and fertilizing the
landfill final cap; fence and road maintenance; and third party inspection and reporting costs. Site specific final capping,
closure and post-closure engineering cost estimates are prepared annually for landfills owned or operated under life-of-site
agreements by the Company for which it is responsible for final capping, closure and post-closure.

The net present value of landfill final capping, closure and post-closure liabilities are calculated by estimating the total obligation
in current dollars, inflating the obligation based upon the expected date of the expenditure and discounting the inflated total to its
present value using a credit-adjusted risk-free rate. Any changes in expectations that result in an upward revision to the estimated
undiscounted cash flows are treated as a new liability and are inflated and discounted at rates reflecting current market conditions.
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Any changes in expectations that result in a downward revision (or no revision) to the estimated undiscounted cash flows result in a
liability that is inflated and discounted at rates reflecting the market conditions at the time the cash flows were originally estimated.

This policy results in the Company’s capping, closure and post-closure liabilities being recorded in “layers.” At January 1, 2011, the
Company decreased its discount rate assumption for purposes of computing 2011 “layers” for final capping, closure and post-closure
obligations from 6.5% to 5.75%, in order to more accurately reflect the Company’s long-term cost of borrowing as of the end of
2010. The Company’s inflation rate assumption was 2.5% for the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010.

In accordance with the accounting guidance on asset retirement obligations, the final capping, closure and post-closure liability is
recorded on the balance sheet along with an offsetting addition to site costs which is amortized to depletion expense on a units-of-
consumption basis as remaining landfill airspace is consumed. The impact of changes determined to be changes in estimates, based on
an annual update, is accounted for on a prospective basis. Depletion expense resulting from final capping, closure and post-closure
obligations recorded as a component of landfill site costs will generally be less during the early portion of a landfill’s operating life
and increase thereafter. Owned landfills and landfills operated under life-of-site agreements have estimated remaining lives, based on
remaining permitted capacity, probable expansion capacity and projected annual disposal volumes, that range from approximately 1 to
188 years, with an average remaining life of approximately 48 years. The costs for final capping, closure and post-closure obligations
at landfills the Company owns or operates under life-of-site agreements are generally estimated based on interpretations of current
requirements and proposed or anticipated regulatory changes.

The estimates for landfill final capping, closure and post-closure costs consider when the costs would actually be paid and factor
in inflation and discount rates. Interest is accreted on the recorded liability using the corresponding discount rate. When using
discounted cash flow techniques, reliable estimates of market premiums may not be obtainable. In the waste industry, there is no
market for selling the responsibility for final capping, closure and post-closure obligations independent of selling the landfill in its
entirety. Accordingly, the Company does not believe that it is possible to develop a methodology to reliably estimate a market risk
premium and has therefore excluded any such market risk premium from its determination of expected cash flows for landfill asset
retirement obligations. The possibility of changing legal and regulatory requirements and the forward-looking nature of these types of
costs make any estimation or assumption less certain.

The following is a reconciliation of the Company’s final capping, closure and post-closure liability balance from December 31,
2009 to December 31, 2011:

Final capping, closure and post-closure liability at December 31,2009 § 32,235

Adjustments to final capping, closure and post-closure liabilities (6,990)
Liabilities incurred 2,513
Accretion expense 1,766
Closure payments (1,133)
Assumption of closure liabilities from acquisitions 146
Final capping, closure and post-closure liability at December 31, 2010 28,537
Adjustments to final capping, closure and post-closure liabilities (1,038)
Liabilities incurred 2,088
Accretion expense 1,967
Closure payments (2,100)
Assumption of closure liabilities from acquisitions 1,429

Final capping, closure and post-closure liability at December 31,2011  $§ 30,883

The adjustments to final capping, closure and post-closure liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2011, primarily consisted of
an increase in estimated airspace at one of the Company’s landfills at which an expansion is being pursued. The adjustments to final
capping, closure and post-closure liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2010, primarily consisted of revisions in capping, closure
and post-closure cost estimates related to a landfill acquired from Republic Services, Inc., as well as decreases in estimates of annual
tonnage consumption. The final capping, closure and post-closure liability is included in Other long-term liabilities in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company performs its annual review of its cost and capacity estimates in the first quarter of each
year.

At December 31, 2011, $28,190 of the Company’s restricted assets balance was for purposes of securing its performance of future
final capping, closure and post-closure obligations.
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— Disposal capacity. The Company’s internal and third-party engineers perform surveys at least annually to estimate the
remaining disposal capacity at its landfills. This is done by using surveys and other methods to calculate, based on the terms
of the permit, height restrictions and other factors, how much airspace is left to fill and how much waste can be disposed of at
a landfill before it has reached its final capacity. The Company’s landfill depletion rates are based on the remaining disposal
capacity, considering both permitted and probable expansion airspace, at the landfills it owns, and landfills it operates, but
does not own, under life-of-site agreements. The Company’s landfill depletion rate is based on the term of the operating
agreement at its operated landfill that has capitalized expenditures. Expansion airspace consists of additional disposal
capacity being pursued through means of an expansion that has not yet been permitted. Expansion airspace that meets the
following criteria is included in the estimate of total landfill airspace:

1) whether the land where the expansion is being sought is contiguous to the current disposal site, and the Company either
owns the expansion property or has rights to it under an option, purchase, operating or other similar agreement;

2) whether total development costs, final capping costs, and closure/post-closure costs have been determined;

3) whether internal personnel have performed a financial analysis of the proposed expansion site and have determined that
it has a positive financial and operational impact;

4) whether internal personnel or external consultants are actively working to obtain the necessary approvals to obtain the
landfill expansion permit; and

5) whether the Company considers it probable that the Company will achieve the expansion (for a pursued expansion to be
considered probable, there must be no significant known technical, legal, community, business, or political restrictions or
similar issues existing that the Company believes are more likely than not to impair the success of the expansion).

It is possible that the Company’s estimates or assumptions could ultimately be significantly different from actual results. In some
cases the Company may be unsuccessful in obtaining an expansion permit or the Company may determine that an expansion permit
that the Company previously thought was probable has become unlikely. To the extent that such estimates, or the assumptions used to
make those estimates, prove to be significantly different than actual results, or the belicf that the Company will receive an expansion
permit changes adversely in a significant manner, the costs of the landfill, including the costs incurred in the pursuit of the expansion,
may be subject to impairment testing, as described below, and lower profitability may be experienced due to higher amortization rates,
higher capping, closure and post-closure rates, and higher expenses or asset impairments related to the removal of previously included
expansion airspace.

The Company periodically evaluates its landfill sites for potential impairment indicators. The Company’s judgments regarding
the existence of impairment indicators are based on regulatory factors, market conditions and operational performance of its landfills.
Future events could cause the Company to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that its landfill carrying costs are impaired.

Business Combination Accounting
The Company accounts for business combinations as follows:

e The Company recognizes, separately from goodwill, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their estimated
acquisition date fair values. The Company measures and recognizes goodwill as of the acquisition date as the excess of:
(a) the aggregate of the fair value of consideration transferred, the fair value of any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree (if
any) and the acquisition date fair value of the Company’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over (b) the
fair value of net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

e At the acquisition date, the Company measures the fair values of all assets acquired and liabilities assumed that arise from

contractual contingencies. The Company measures the fair values of all noncontractual contingencies if, as of the
acquisition date, it is more likely than not that the contingency will give rise to an asset or liability.
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Finite-Lived Intangible Assets

The amounts assigned to the franchise agreements, contracts, customer lists and non-competition agreements are being amortized
on a straight-line basis over the expected term of the related agreements (ranging from 1 to 56 years).

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

The Company acquired indefinite-lived intangible assets in connection with certain of its acquisitions. The amounts assigned to
indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of the value of certain perpetual rights to provide solid waste collection and transportation
services in specified territories. The Company measures and recognizes acquired indefinite-lived intangible assets at their estimated
acquisition date fair values. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized. Goodwill represents the excess of: (a) the aggregate
of the fair value of consideration transferred, the fair value of any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree (if any) and the acquisition
date fair value of the Company’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over (b) the fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Goodwill and intangible assets, deemed to have indefinite lives, are subject to annual impairment tests as
described below. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles are tested for impairment on at least an annual basis in the fourth quarter
of the year.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company elected to early adopt the new guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) related to testing goodwill for impairment. This new guidance provides the Company the option to perform a
“qualitative” assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying
value. In performing the qualitative assessment, the Company assesses relevant events and circumstances that may impact the fair
value of its reporting units, including the following:

macroeconomic conditions;

industry and market considerations;

cost factors;

overall financial performance;

Company-specific events;

events affecting a reporting unit;

sustained decreases in share price; and

recent fair value calculation for the Company’s reporting units, if available.

If, after assessing the above described events and circumstances, the Company determines that it is more likely than not that the
fair value of a reporting unit, which it has determined to be its geographic operating segments, is greater than its carrying value, then
no further testing is required. If the Company determines that it is more likely than not that the fair value is less than the carrying
value, then the Company would perform the first step of quantitative testing for goodwill impairment, as described below.

In the first step of quantitative testing for goodwill impairment, the Company estimates the fair value of each reporting unit and
compares the fair value with the carrying value of the net assets assigned to each unit. If the fair value of a reporting unit is greater
than the carrying value of the net assets assigned to the reporting unit, then no impairment results. If the fair value is less than the
carrying value, then the Company would perform a second step and determine the fair value of the goodwill. In this second step, the
fair value of goodwill is determined by deducting the fair value of a reporting unit’s identifiable assets and liabilities from the fair
value of the reporting unit as a whole, as if that reporting unit had just been acquired and the purchase price were being initially
allocated. If the fair value of the goodwill is less than its carrying value for a reporting unit, an impairment charge would be recorded
to earnings in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. In testing indefinite-lived intangibles for impairment, the Company
compares the estimated fair value of each indefinite-lived intangible to its carrying value. If the fair value of the indefinite-lived
intangible is less than its carrying value, an impairment charge would be recorded to earnings in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Income.

To determine the fair value of each of the Company’s reporting units as a whole and each indefinite-lived intangible asset, the
Company uses discounted cash flow analyses, which require significant assumptions and estimates about the future operations of each
reporting unit and the future discrete cash flows related to each indefinite-lived intangible asset. Significant judgments inherent in
these analyses include the determination of appropriate discount rates, the amount and timing of expected future cash flows and
growth rates. The cash flows employed in the Company’s 2011 discounted cash flow analyses were based on ten-year financial
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forecasts, which in turn were based on the 2012 annual budget developed internally by management. These forecasts reflect operating
profit margins that were consistent with 2011 results and perpetual revenue growth rates of 3.5%. The Company’s discount rate
assumptions are based on an assessment of the Company’s weighted average cost of capital. In assessing the reasonableness of the
Company’s determined fair values of its reporting units, the Company evaluates its results against its current market capitalization.

In addition, the Company would evaluate a reporting unit for impairment if events or circumstances change between annual tests
indicating a possible impairment. Examples of such events or circumstances are the same as those described above for the qualitative
assessment of goodwill impairment.

As a result of performing the tests for potential impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, the Company
determined that no impairment existed as of December 31, 2011 or 2010, and, therefore, there were no write-downs to any of its
goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets.

Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets

Property, plant, equipment and other intangible assets are carried on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on
their cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization. Other intangible assets consist of long-term franchise agreements, contracts,
customer lists and non-competition agreements. The recoverability of these assets is tested whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Typical indicators that an asset may be impaired include:

a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate;

an adverse action or assessment by a regulator;

a more likely than not expectation that a segment or a significant portion thereof will be sold; or
the testing for recoverability of a significant asset group within a segment.

If any of these or other indicators occur, a test of recoverability is performed by comparing the carrying value of the asset or asset
group to its undiscounted expected future cash flows. If the carrying value is in excess of the undiscounted expected future cash
flows, impairment is measured by comparing the fair value of the asset to its carrying value. Fair value is determined by an internally
developed discounted projected cash flow analysis of the asset. Cash flow projections are sometimes based on a group of assets,
rather than a single asset. If cash flows cannot be separately and independently identified for a single asset, the Company will
determine whether an impairment has occurred for the group of assets for which the projected cash flows can be identified. If the fair
value of an asset is determined to be less than the carrying amount of the asset or asset group, an impairment in the amount of the
difference is recorded in the period that the impairment indicator occurs. Several impairment indicators are beyond the Company’s
control, and whether or not they will occur cannot be predicted with any certainty. Estimating future cash flows requires significant
judgment and projections may vary from cash flows eventually realized. There are other considerations for impairments of landfills,
as described below.

Landfills — There are certain indicators listed above that require significant judgment and understanding of the waste industry
when applied to landfill development or expansion projects.

A regulator or court may deny or overturn a landfill development or landfill expansion permit application before the development
or expansion permit is ultimately granted. See Note 11 for discussion of the Chaparral, New Mexico Landfill Permit Litigation, the
Harper County, Kansas Landfill Permit Litigation and the Solano County, California Measure E/Landfill Expansion Litigation.

Management may periodically divert waste from one landfill to another to conserve remaining permitted landfill airspace.

Therefore, certain events could occur in the ordinary course of business and not necessarily be considered indicators of
impairment due to the unique nature of the waste industry.

65



WASTE CONNECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTSY)

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets held by trustees consist principally of funds deposited in connection with landfill final capping, closure and post-
closure obligations and other financial assurance requirements. Proceeds from these financing arrangements are directly deposited
into trust funds, and the Company does not have the ability to utilize the funds in regular operating activities. See Note 9 for further
information on restricted assets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and equivalents, trade receivables, restricted assets, trade
payables, debt instruments, interest rate swaps and fuel hedges. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying values of cash and
equivalents, trade receivables, restricted assets, and trade payables are considered to be representative of their respective fair values.
The carrying values of the Company’s debt instruments, excluding certain notes as listed in the table below, approximate their fair
values as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, based on current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. The
carrying values and fair values of the Company’s debt instruments where the carrying values do not approximate their fair values as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, are as follows:

Carrying Value at Fair Value* at
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010

6.22% Senior Notes due 2015 $ 175,000 $ 175,000 $ 186,305 $ 198,300
3.30% Senior Notes due 2016 $ 100,000 $ - $ 98,980 $ -
4.00% Senior Notes due 2018 $ 50,000 $ - $ 51,220 $ -
5.25% Senior Notes due 2019 $ 175,000 $ 175,000 $ 174,125 $ 191,316
4.64% Senior Notes due 2021 $ 100,000 $ - $ 104,250 $ -

*Fair value based on quoies of bonds with similar ratings in similar industries
For details on the fair value of the Company’s interest rate swaps and fuel hedges, refer to Note 9.
Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. All of the Company’s derivatives have been
designated as cash flow hedges; therefore, the effective portion of the changes in the fair value of derivatives will be recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of the
changes in the fair value of derivatives will be immediately recognized in earnings. The Company classifies cash inflows and
outflows from derivatives within operating activities on the statement of cash flows.

One of the Company’s objectives for utilizing derivative instruments is to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in cash flows due to
changes in the variable interest rates of certain borrowings issued under its credit facility. The Company’s strategy to achieve that
objective involves entering into interest rate swaps that are specifically designated to the Company’s credit facility and accounted for
as cash flow hedges.

At December 31, 2011, the Company’s derivative instruments included three interest rate swap agreements as follows:

Fixed Variable
Notional Interest Interest Rate
Date Entered Amount Rate Paid* Received Effective Date Expiration Date
March 2009 $ 175,000 2.85% 1-month LIBOR  February 2011 February 2014
August 2011 $ 150,000 0.80% 1-month LIBOR  April 2012 January 2015
December 2011 $ 175,000 1.60% 1-month LIBOR  February 2014 February 2017

* plus applicable margin.
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On October 26, 2009, the Company terminated two of its interest rate swap agreements in conjunction with issuing the
2019 Notes. The Company terminated an interest rate swap in the amount of $75,000 that would have expired in March 2011 and an
interest rate swap in the amount of $100,000 that would have expired in June 2011. As a result of terminating these interest rate
swaps, the Company made a cash payment of $9,250 to the counterparty of the swap agreements. Further, because the Company used
the proceeds of the 2019 Notes to reduce the borrowings under its senior uncollateralized revolving credit facility, it is no longer
probable that the forecasted transactions that were being hedged by these interest rate swap agreements will occur. Therefore, the
Company recorded a charge of $9,250 to other expense in 2009.

Another of the Company’s objectives for utilizing derivative instruments is to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in cash flows
due to changes in the price of diesel fuel. The Company’s strategy to achieve that objective involves entering into fuel hedges that are

specifically designated to certain forecasted diesel fuel purchases and accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At December 31, 2011, the Company’s derivative instruments included one fuel hedge agreement as follows:

Notional Diesel
Amount Rate Paid
(in gallons per Fixed (per Diesel Rate Received Effective Expiration
Date Entered month) gallon) Variable Date Date
December 2008 400,000 $ 3.03  DOE Diesel Fuel Index* January 2012  December 2012

* If the national U.S. on-highway average price for a gallon of diesel fuel (“average price”), as published by the Department of Energy, exceeds the
contract price per gallon, the Company receives the difference between the average price and the contract price (multiplied by the notional number of
gallons) from the counterparty. If the average price is less than the contract price per gallon, the Company pays the difference to the counterparty.

The fair values of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:

Derivatives Designated as Cash Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Flow Hedges Balance Sheet Location Fair Value __ Balance Sheet Location Fair Value
Interest rate swaps Accrued liabilities™ $ (4,476)
Other long-term liabilities (4,642)
Prepaid expenses and other

Fuel hedges current assets” $ 3,506
Total derivatives designated as

cash flow hedges $ 3,506 $ (9,118)

(a) Represents the estimated amount of the existing unrealized losses on interest rate swaps as of December 31,2011 (based on the interest rate yield curve
at that date), included in accumulated other comprehensive loss expected to be reclassified into pre-tax earnings within the next 12 months. The actual amounts
reclassified into eamings are dependent on future movements in interest rates.

(b) Represents the estimated amount of the existing unrealized gains on fuel hedges as of December 31, 2011 (based on the forward DOE diesel fuel index
curve at that date), included in accumulated other comprehensive loss expected to be reclassified into pre-tax earnings within the next 12 months. The actual
amounts reclassified into earnings are dependent on future movements in diesel fuel prices.

The fair values of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges as of December 31, 2010, are as follows:

Derivatives Designated as Cash Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Flow Hedges Balance Sheet Location Fair Value _ Balance Sheet Location Fair Value
Interest rate swaps Accrued liabilities $ (4,988)
Other long-term liabilities (4,734)
Prepaid expenses and other
Fuel hedges current assets $ 2,469
Other assets, net 2,261

Total derivatives designated as
cash flow hedges $ 4,730 $ (9,722)
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The following table summarizes the impact of the Company’s cash flow hedges on the results of operations, comprehensive
income and accumulated other comprehensive loss (“AOCL”) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Derivatives Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized Statement of Amount of (Gain) or Loss Reclassified
Designated as Cash as AOCL on Derivatives, Net of Tax Income from AOCL into Earnings,
Flow Hedges (Effective Portion)(a) Classification Net of Tax (Effective Portion)™ ©
Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
Interest rate swaps $ (3,224) $ 6,812) $ 3,283  Interest expense $ 3,598 $ 5612 $ 9,124
Fuel hedges 1,905 559 1,346  Cost of operations (2,664) 2,438 5,292
Total $ (1,319) $ (6,253) $ 4,629 $ 934 $ 8,050 $ 14,416

(@) Inaccordance with the derivatives and hedging guidance, the effective portions of the changes in fair values of interest rate swaps and fuel hedges have
been recorded in equity as a component of AOCL. As the critical terms of the interest rate swaps match the underlying debt being hedged, no ineffectiveness is
recognized on these swaps and, therefore, all unrealized changes in fair value are recorded in AOCL. Because changes in the actual price of diesel fuel and
changes in the DOE index price do not offset exactly each reporting period, the Company assesses whether the fuel hedges are highly effective using the
cumulative dollar offset approach.

(b) Amounts reclassified from AOCL into earnings related to realized gains and losses on interest rate swaps are recognized when interest payments or
receipts occur related to the swap contracts, which correspond to when interest payments are made on the Company’s hedged debt. Amounts exclude the charge
of $9,250 related to the termination of two interest rate swap agreements in October 2009.

(¢) Amounts reclassified from AOCL into earnings related to realized gains and losses on fuel hedges are recognized when settlement payments or receipts
occur related to the hedge contracts, which correspond to when the underlying fuel is consumed.

The Company measures and records ineffectiveness on the fuel hedges in Cost of operations in the Consolidated Statements of
Income on a monthly basis based on the difference between the DOE index price and the actual price of diesel fuel purchased,
multiplied by the notional number of gallons on the contracts. There was no significant ineffectiveness recognized on the fuel hedges
during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

See Note 13 for further discussion on the impact of the Company’s hedge accounting to its consolidated Comprehensive income
and AOCL.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method to account for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using
the enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The Company assumes
the deductibility of certain costs in its income tax filings and estimates the future recovery of defetred tax assets.

The Company is required to evaluate whether the tax positions taken on its federal and state income tax returns will more likely
than not be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority. If the Company determines that such tax positions will
not be sustained, it records a Hability for the related unrecognized tax benefits. The Company classifies its liability for unrecognized
tax benefits as a current liability to the extent it anticipates making a payment within one year.

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock units is determined based on the number of shares granted and the closing
price of the Company’s common stock.

All share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and is recognized
on a straight-line basis as expense over the employee’s requisite service period. The Company calculates potential income tax
windfalls and shortfalls 